
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
__________________________________ 

 
Tuesday, 30 March 2010 at 7.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

A G E N D A 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY 
PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Fazlul Haque  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Abjol Miah, (Leader of the 
Respect Group) 
Councillor David Snowdon, 
(Conservative) 
 

Councillor M. Shahid Ali, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Fazlul 
Haque, Helal Abbas, Clair Hawkins and 
Denise Jones) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Fazlul 
Haque, Helal Abbas, Clair Hawkins and 
Denise Jones) 
Councillor Rupert Eckhardt, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor David 
Snowdon) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Abdul Munim, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Fazlul Haque, Helal Abbas, 
Clair Hawkins and Denise Jones) 
 

 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 
 
 



 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Caroline Chalklin, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4881, E-mail: caroline.chalklin@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 30 March 2010 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 To receive any apologies for absence. 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  3 - 12  
 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 

unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 15 December 2010. 

  

4. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
CONSIDERATION  

  

4 .1 Audit Opinion Plan - London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets 2009-10   

13 - 28  

4 .2 Audit Opinion Plan - London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets Pension Fund 2009-10   

29 - 42  

4 .3 Certification of Claims and Returns - London Borough 
of Tower Hamlets 2008-09   

43 - 58  

 UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

4 .4 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report December 2009-10  (Pages 59 - 100) 
4 .5 Annual Internal Audit Plan 2010-11  (Pages 101 - 156) 
4 .6 Annual Anti-Fraud Plan 2010-11  (Pages 157 - 170) 
4 .7 Anti--Fraud and Corruption Strategy  (Pages 171 - 216) 
4 .8 Treasury Activity for the period ending 28 February 2010   
4 .9 Changes to Local Government Reporting Standards  (Pages 217 - 222) 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\5\0\AI00024054\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\5\0\AI00024054\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 15 DECEMBER 2009 
 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Fazlul Haque (Chair)  
Councillor Clair Hawkins  
Councillor Denise Jones  
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones  
  
Other Councillors Present: 
None.  
  

 
Officers Present: 
 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Alan Finch – (Service Head, Corporate Finance, Resources) 
Minesh Jani – (Service Head, Risk Management) 
Tony Qayum – (Head of Audit Services, Internal Audit) 
Steve Vinall – (Service Manager, Deloittee & Tauche) 
Sayeed Kadir – (Directors of Tower Hamlets Homes) 
Jackie Odunoye – (Service Head Strategy Regeneration and 

Sustainability, Development & Renewal) 
John Chilton – (Head of Parking Services, Communities 

Localities and Culture) 
Zoe Folley – (Committee Officer, Democratic Services Chief 

Executive's) 
 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Abbas, Eaton 
and Snowdon. It was also reported that Councillor Dr Jones would be 
deputising for Councillor Snowdon.  
 
Noted.  
 
APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR MEETING 
 
In view of the unavailability of the Vice – Chair Councillor Abbas, the Chair 
Councillor Haque sought nominations for the appointment of a Vice – Chair 
for the duration of the meeting.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
Accordingly it was RESOLVED that Councillor Hawkins be appointed Vice – 
Chair for the duration of the meeting.    
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor F. Haque (Chair) declared a general personal interest in the 
agenda. The declaration was made on the basis that the agenda contained 
references to Tower Hamlets Homes and Councillor Haque was a member of 
the Tower Hamlets Homes Board.   
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a general personal interest in the agenda. The 
declaration was made on the basis that the agenda contained references to 
Tower Hamlets Homes and Councillor Jones was a member of the Tower 
Hamlets Homes Board.   
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that subject to the amendment below the unrestricted minutes of 
the meeting held on 29th September 2009 be approved -  
 
Minute 6.1 (Tower Hamlets Annual Governance Reports 2008/09) – Second 
Paragraph be reworded to state that in relation to the £120m assets 
incorrectly included in the previous years balance sheet, Councillor Haque 
queried the reasons for this and asked that it be clarified.  
 
ACTION BY:  Zoe Folley (Democratic Services)  
 

4. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
None received.  
 

5. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Nil Items.  
 

6. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS FOR CONSDIERATION  
 
 

6.1 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report  September 2009 - November 
2009 (AC/001/09)  
 
Mr Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) introduced the report and 
explained the four assurance ratings assigned to each area audited for the 
benefit of the Committee. 
 
Mr Jani reported that the percentage of priority 2 recommendations 
implemented at the follow stage was 71% but the target was 95% and 
reaching this was a key aim. Corporate wide action had been taken to 
improve this score. It was anticipated that this would have the desired effect.  

Page 4



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
In reply to a question from Councillor Haque, Mr Jani reported that all of the 
recommendations not implemented were submitted to and discussed with the 
Corporate Directors and this enabled them to considered with Audit what 
needed to be done.  
 
It was RESOLVED that a progress report be submitted to the next meeting of 
the Committee (highlighting progress in reaching the targets).  It was also 
RESOLVED that where no progress had been made, the Corporate Director 
be asked to submit a written response explaining the reasons for the lack of 
progress. 
 
ACTION BY:    Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
 
(a) Management of Major Works – Systems Audit   - Limited 
(Extensive Assurance) 
 
Mr Jani reported on the reasons why the above had been assigned a limited 
assurance. Overall it was considered that the systems of control for 
recovering outstanding arrears and debt recovery needed to be strengthened. 
Mr Jani welcomed to the meeting Ms Jackie Odunoye (Service Head Strategy 
- Innovation & Sustainability) and Sayeed Kadir (Director of Tower Hamlets 
Homes).  
 
The officers reported the following points:  
 

• Ms Odunoye reported that since the fieldwork had been completed a 
considerable amount of progress had been made. The Council and 
Tower Hamlets Homes had implemented a major Leaseholder 
Improvement Programme and had submitted a report to the Corporate 
Management Team on leaseholder service charges.  

• The contract framework had been re tendered. There was also 
specific/individual contract tendering to improve performance and 
progress had been made in bringing the contractors final accounts up 
to date.  The final accounts were updated on a monthly basis. 

• As part of the Leaseholder Improvement Plan, consideration would be 
given to putting fees against properties. The Tower Hamlets Homes 
Board received regular reports where debt recovery and collection was 
covered in a significant way. 

• Mr Kadir reported that the contacts for major works had been re 
tendered as a result they were now more cost efficient. Where there 
was a legal issue that could not be resolved and it was not possible to 
implement the final certification, time limits would be put on cases to 
force completion. The key target was to complete work on time and the 
Staff Performance Development Reviews would focus on this.  There 
was also proactive recovery letters, and action to encourage the use of 
direct debit. Last month (November 2009) the target for recovery had 
been exceeded.  The sum receovered was £1.4 million representing 
the services best performance in three years. The target for this month 
was £1 million as of today (15th December 2009) the service had 
collected £700,000.   

Page 5



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Councillor Hawkins queried the overall level of debt, the number of write offs 
and the number of charges not being put on properties.  Ms Odunoye stated 
that the collection figures for debt recovery had risen throughout the year.  
The target for the third quarter was £15,000 and at this point in the year it 
expected that the third quarter target would only narrowly be missed.  The 
service was looking to half the overall level of major works debt by the end of 
the year. Tower Hamlets Homes was preparing a schedule for major works 
write offs to be completed by the end of this year and then subjected to the 
Council’s processes. In cases where leaseholders at risk of loosing their 
properties were unable to pay for the charges, Tower Hamlets Homes was 
exploring alternative recovery routes. 

 
Councillor Haque queried at which point in the process would a debt be 
written off and the mortgage company be contacted? Mr Kadir clarified that 
the service had a qualified in house debt advisor.  The mortgage company 
would only be contacted as a last result option. There was a timescale for 
major works and they were carried out in accordance with the statutory 
legislation and the leaseholder contracts.   

 
The service had also starting undertaking up front charges and incremental 
billing as each section of work was completed to enable customers to pay in 
stages.  

 
(b) Teesdale Estate Concrete Works and Associated Repairs (Limited, 
Moderate Assurance)  
 
Sayeed Kadir (Director of Tower Hamlets Homes) reported on progress made 
in implementing the outstanding recommendations from the original audit in 
June 2008.   

 
Mr Kadir reported that the contracts for the work previously covered by the 
Framework Contracts had been re tendered and they also had made the 
Quantity Surveyors responsible for overseeing the costs of work.  

 
Mr Kadir met with Audit on a regular basis to consider the audit 
recommendations and they were also submitted reports to the Tower Hamlets 
Homes Finance Board  and the Council’s Finance Team on a quarterly basis.  
It was RESOLVED that a progress report be submitted to a future meeting of 
the Audit Committee.  

 
ACTION BY:  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management)  

  Democratic Services  
 

(c)  Management and Control of Blue Badges – Systems Audit  
 

Mr John Chilton (Head of Parking Services, Communities Localities and 
Culture) reported on progress made in implementing the audit 
recommendations for the management and control of Blue Badges .  

 

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

He referred to the recommendations regarding the Parking Services (CRM) IT 
system. There was currently a major procurement process underway to 
replace the system and it was expected that a new award for the replacement 
of the system would be made in the new year. Therefore the difficulties with 
accessing the system, producing management reports for quality control 
purposes would be addressed.  The structural review of the service was 
underway and it was expected the vacant posts (for Parking Permit Officer 
and Team Leader Investigations) would be appointed to in the new year. The 
Mobility Contract had gone out to tender and this process should be 
completed by the middle of June 2010.  

 
In reply to questions, Mr Chilton reported that in terms of customer feedback 
the main issues were lack of monitoring, response times to enquiries and the 
appeals process. Steps were being taken to address all of these issues. The 
service was using customer feedback to improve performance.  

 
Councillor Haque queried whether the systems for collecting income could be 
made more robust?  

 
Mr Chilton clarified that the Mobility Team handled less than £10,000 per 
annum in respect of the Freedom Bus Passes and the Blue Badge Stock. He 
also reported that the system for collecting income was about to change. 
Subject to Cabinet approval, the Mobility Team would no longer handle and 
administer the charges for Freedom Bus passes. The service had decided to 
allow London Council’s to carryout this function. This should address the 
issues around collection and banking. The Mobility Team would continue to 
charge for the replacement of the Blue Badge stock (used in conjunction with 
the Tower Hamlets Parking permit as an anti theft measure), which was a 
disabled persons badge. It was believed that the Team should continue to 
charge for this. The issues around the speed of payments had also been 
resolved.  

 
RESOLVED that the feedback presentations on the limited assurance risks be 
noted.  
 

6.2 Annual Internal Audit Report for Schools – 2008/09 (AC/002/09)  
 
Mr Steve Vinnel (Deloittee & Tauche) presented the findings of the Annual 
Audit Report for Schools for 2008/09 drawing attention to the common 
findings and the conclusions.  
 
In reply to a question from Councillor Jones, Mr Vinnel stated that the 
findings of the Audit were reported to the Head Teachers and the School 
Governors. The Audit Inspectors also held exit interviews with the school 
staff. At which they would highlight the key findings and would agree 
recommendations. Schools were also sent copies of draft reports.  
 
Councillor Haque considered that the systems in place in schools needed to 
be strengthened given most schools audited only met the minimum 
standards. He considered that the findings in respect of CRB checks were a 
particular cause for concern.  

Page 7



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

 
In reply to a further question about the Council’s role in strengthening the 
systems of control, Mr Jani reported that the systems of control in place 
varied between individual Schools.  The Council could take steps to ensure 
the key objectives were met. It was intended that the Corporate Directors and 
Children’s School’s and Families would formulate an improvement plan 
based on the findings and that often school audits were followed up with an 
intensive level of support from Children’s Schools and Families.  
 
Councillor Haque considered that there were inconsistencies between 
schools and that this needed to be addressed. He commented that the 
number assigned substantial assurance (eight) was quite low. Members 
considered that an implementation plan should be produced to show how 
schools planned to improve. It was RESOLVED that this information would 
be reported back to the Committee in March. Councillor Haque also 
considered it important to establish which schools were reaching the 
standards. It was RESOLVED that this information be included in the report 
requested.  
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report (AC/002/09) be noted and the 
matters raised by audit in each of the 12 areas examined be taken into 
account.  
 
ACTION BY:   Mr Steve Vinnel (Deloittee& Tauche) 

   Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management)  
 
 

6.3 Annual Governance Statement for the 2008/09 Accounts Update 
(AC/003/09)  
 
Mr Minesh Jani (Service Head, Risk Management) introduced the report. 
The report updated the Audit Committee on the progress made in dealing 
with the significant issues identified in the annual government statement. 
 
In response to the report, Members discussed the likelihood that Tower 
Hamlets Homes would achieve Two Star Status and the funding to be 
generated by this. The Committee indicated that they should keep a 
watchful eye over this matter given the implications for the Decent Homes 
Programme.  
 
Following which it was RESOLVED That the action in dealing with the 
issues raised on the annual governance contents of the report be noted.  
 
 

6.4 Update on Risk Management (AC/004/09)  
 
Mr Minesh Jani (Service Head, Risk Management) presented the report. The 
report provided an update on the Council’s risk management arrangements. 
The report also captures the risks reported to the Corporate Management 
Team as part of the recent risk management update.  
 

Page 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

Mr Jani outlined the key improvements as detailed in the report. Mr Jani 
reported that the Corporate Risk Register was considered at a Corporate and 
a Directorate level and at the Finance Strategy Group. A key aim of the 
improvements was to make the process for managing risk simpler. He 
referred to the development of an automated system for capturing risk which 
was JCAD.  It was also reported that the Council had appointed a number of 
Risk Champions.  The Risk Champions held quarterly meetings with Audit 
where they examine pertinent risks for reporting to the Corporate 
Management Team.   
 
Attention was draw to the new issues in particular the risks around future 
budget settlements, not achieving the energy efficiency requirements, the 
implications of the Laming Report and the failure to deliver Decent Homes by 
2016.  
 
In response to questions, it was reported that the Risk Champions received 
specific training and there was an e-learning tool for staff use at a lower level. 
There was also a wider risk management forum made up of key bodies such 
as the Police, the PCT and Fire Services and the aim of this was to gain a 
holistic picture of risk. All of the Risk Champions were Service Heads or one 
tear below in every directorate.  
 
It was RESOLVED that an update on the Working Neighbourhoods Fund 
(WNF) be submitted to the Committee at its next meeting in March 2010. It 
was also noted that the funding for this initiative was due to expire in October 
2010. The Committee stressed the need to identify the implications of this 
risk and to take early action before the funding expired. C Naylor 
RESOLVED  to report back to the Committee about this.  
 
It was also reported the WNF monitoring group reviewed progress against 
spend and were due to produce a report in June 2010.   
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report (AC/004/09) and the actions 
planned over the next year to embed risk in section 8 of the report be noted.  
 
ACTION BY:   Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources)  

  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management)  
 
 

6.5 Revised Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 (AC/005/09)  
 
Mr Minesh Jani (Service Head, Risk Management) presented the revised 
internal Audit Plan drawing attention to the key changes. Following a brief 
discussion it was RESOLVED That the contents of the report (AC/005/09) 
be noted and the changes to the 2009/10 internal audit plan be endorsed.  
 
 

6.6 Progress on National Fraud Initiative 2008/09 and Anti Fraud Update 
(AC/006/09)  
 

Page 9



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Mr Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) presented the report highlighting 
the key issues.    
 
Mr Qayum reported the following points:  
 

• The Government was encouraging the use of publicity campaigns to 
prevent housing fraud. Namely the subletting of RSL properties. 
Posters encouraging people to report suspected cases had been 
placed in a variety of public places including doctors surgeries.  

• Audit were working with all RSLs and services across the Council 
(such as legal services) to facilitate recovery and prosecution where 
there was evidence of housing fraud. Progress reports for this 
particular area of work would be reported to the Audit Committee on a 
quarterly basis.   

 
In reply to questions, the Committee noted:  
 

• The Government had also awarded the Council £50,000 for recovery 
and prosecution. The Council was utilising this funding to establish 
the extend of Housing Fraud within the Authority. At this point it was 
too early to tell how significant the problem was. However the new 
processes in place should allow officers to identify the scope of the 
problem.  

• Appendix A indicated that the Audit Commission target of 15% for 
recovery and prosecution had been met. Further government funding 
for this area of work may follow.  

 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report (AC/006/09) be noted.  
 
 

6.7 Treasury Activity for Period Ending 30th November 2009 (AC/007/09)  
 
Mr Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) presented the report highlighting 
the key points. Mr Finch reported that paragraph 5 (Credit Criteria) showed 
the credit requirements placed on financial institutions. All of which 
demonstrated the strength of the banks within the Council’s lending and 
investment list.  Mr Finch confirmed that the Council had restricted investment 
to institutions that had support from national governments and had a strong 
parent body and were approved by the ratings agencies as fit for purpose. At 
the request of the Chair, Mr Finch clarified the meaning of the credit ratings 
listed in Table 1 of the report regarding Credit Rating Requirements.  

 
Mr Finch reported that there was a much more stringent policy for oversees 
investment. All of the institutions within table 3, (the investment strategy list) 
were UK based institutions. In the event the UK rating decreases and 
becomes less than that overseas, the policy may need to be reviewed. A key 
issue was a lot of the banks that met the criteria were not lending in the 
market due to the current economic climate.  
 
It was planned to restrict the term for investment to a 6-9 month duration as 
there was a strong possibility that the interest rates would rise in 2010. The 

Page 10



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 15/12/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

Council was currently making a 1.56% return on its investments which 
represented a relatively strong performance over the period.      

 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report (AC/007/09) be noted.  
 

7. ANY URGENT UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS  
 
None reported.  
 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING.  
 
Tuesday 30th March 2010 7:30pm.  

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.25 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Fazlul Haque 
Audit Committee 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Opinion 
Plan
London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Audit 2009/10 

March 2010 

Agenda Item 41

Page 13



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Summary 3

Fee for the audit of financial statements 5

The audit strategy 7

Key milestones and deadlines 10

The audit team 11

Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 13

Page 14



Summary 

3   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Summary

1 This plan sets out the audit work that we propose to undertake for the audit of the 
2009/10 financial statements. The plan is based on the Audit Commission’s risk-based 
approach to audit planning. It reflects: 

! audit work specified by the Audit Commission for 2009/10; 

! current national risks relevant to your local circumstances; and 

! your local risks. 

Audit fee 

2 The audit fee for the financial statements is £310,000 and we do not propose to 
change it at this stage. This fee assumes good quality accounts and working papers 
are provided in line with agreed timescales and that we can place reliance on Internal 
Audit work. 

The audit strategy 

3 Specific risks are highlighted where we will focus our audit work. The risks highlighted 
are:

! changes to accounting for Private Finance Initiatives and early adoption of IFRIC 
12;

! other accounting changes required by CIPFA's Statement of Recommended 
Practice, including changes to accounting for local taxation; 

! additional disclosures required for senior officers' remuneration; 

! changes in the valuation of fixed assets, and  

! poor quality assurance review of the financial statements prior to submission for 
audit.

4 We intend to adopt a mix of system control testing and substantive testing of year-end 
balances to gain assurance on the financial statements. 

Key milestones and deadlines 

5 The deadline for receipt of the financial statements and working papers is 30 June. We 
will report the results of our audit to the Audit Committee in September to enable an 
audit opinion to be issued by 30 September. 

Page 15



Summary 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  4

The audit team 

6 Sally-Anne Eldridge has taken over from Sharon Martin as the engagement manager. 
The rest of the team remains largely unchanged. We have outlined the Audit 
Commission's arrangements for ensuring the independence of the audit team, quality 
of services and further information on the respective roles of auditors and audited 
bodies in this plan. 

Page 16



Fee for the audit of financial statements 

5   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Fee for the audit of financial 
statements

7 The total fee for the 2009/10 audit is £480,000 and, as indicative in my letter of
27 April 2009, the financial statements element is £310,000. 

8 We are committed to targeting our work where it will have the greatest effect, based 
upon assessments of risk and performance. This means planning work to address 
areas of risk relevant to our audit responsibilities and reflecting this in the audit fees. 

9 The risk assessment process starts with the identification of the significant financial 
operational risks applying to the Council with reference to: 

! our cumulative knowledge of the Council; 

! planning guidance issued by the Audit Commission; 

! the specific results of previous and ongoing audit work; 

! interviews with Council officers, and  

! liaison with Internal Audit.

10 In setting the fee, we have assumed that:

! the risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is consistent with that for 
2008/09;

! you inform us of any significant development impacting on the audit; 

! good quality working papers are supplied at the start of the audit to support the 
entries in the financial statements; 

! audit queries are dealt with in a timely fashion; and  

! Internal Audit undertakes appropriate work on all material systems, work meets 
professional standards, we are able to rely on this work for gaining assurance on 
the accounts. 

11 Where these assumptions are not met, we will be required to undertake additional 
work which is likely to result in an increased audit fee. Where this is the case, we will 
discuss this in the first instance with the Director of Finance.

Page 17



Fee for the audit of financial statements 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  6

Specific actions the Council could take to reduce its audit fees 

12 The Audit Commission requires its auditors to inform audited bodies of specific actions 
it could take to reduce its audit fees. The scale fee for the Council is £527,400. The 
agreed fee is 9 per cent below the scale fee and hence there are limited opportunities 
to reduce the fees further. We will, however, continue to work with officers to identify 
any specific actions that the Council could take and to provide ongoing audit support. 

Page 18



The audit strategy 

7   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

The audit strategy 

13 We will carry out the audit of the financial statements in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board (APB).  

14 We are required to issue an audit report giving my opinion on whether the accounts 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2010.

Identifying opinion audit risks 

15 As part of our audit risk identification process, we need to understand the Council to 
identify any risk of material misstatement (whether due to fraud or error) in the financial 
statements. We do this by: 

! identifying the business risks facing the Council, including assessing its risk 
management arrangements; 

! considering the financial performance of the Council;  

! assessing internal control – including reviewing the control environment, the IT 
control environment and Internal Audit; and

! assessing the risk of material misstatement arising from the activities and controls 
within the Council information systems. 

16 Table 1 details the risks we have identified as relevant to the current opinion audit. 

Table 1 Specific risks 

Risk area Audit response 

Although International Financial Reporting 
Standards do not take effect in Local 
Government until 2010/11, the CIPFA 
Statement of Recommended Practice 
(SoRP) does adopt one standard (IFRIC12) 
for 2009/10. The scope of this is wider than 
just Private Finance Initiative transactions. 
There is a risk that the Council does not 
consider all relevant contracts and that its 
accounts are materially misstated as a 
result.

We will review the Council's process for 
identifying and accounting for transactions 
that need to be considered under IFRIC 
12. We will review the Council's 
assessment of whether the schemes 
should be on- or off-balance sheet under 
IFRIC12. Where the schemes are 
assessed as on-balance sheet, we will 
review the model developed to calculate 
the correct accounting treatment.  

Page 19



The audit strategy 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  8

Risk area Audit response 

The SoRP includes other changes to the 
format of the accounts: 

! Changes to accounting for local taxation; 
and

! Deletion of some notes and other minor 
changes.

We will review the accounts for compliance 
with the SoRP paying particular attention 
to accounting for local taxation. 

Amendments to the accounts and audit 
regulations require more disclosures about 
senior officers' pay. 

We will review the disclosures to ensure 
they are consistent with the regulations. 

The current economic climate suggests 
property values are still volatile and the 
valuer's advice will be critical to ensuring 
the balance sheet is materially accurate. 

We will review the advice provided by the 
Council's valuers, and compare it to trends 
reported by the Audit Commission valuers. 

Interim work completed prior to this plan 
indicates the need for substantive testing in 
areas where we would normally seek to 
place reliance on internal controls. At 
present this includes payroll and housing 
benefits.

We will substantively test payroll, housing 
benefits and other accounts balances in 
the accounts, as appropriate as 
determined by the findings from our interim 
work.

The 2008/09 financial statements contained 
significant errors which could have been 
identified by a robust quality assurance 
process.

We will undertake analytical review and 
substantive testing procedures to gain 
assurance over the entries in the accounts.

17 The Council should provide working papers in respect of these risks. 

Testing strategy  

18 For 2009/10 we plan to gain assurance over the financial statements through a mix of 
controls and substantive testing, with controls testing specifically targeted at the 
following areas: 

! accounts receivable; 

! accounts payable; 

! council tax; and 

! national non-domestic rates. 

Page 20



The audit strategy 

9   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

19 Wherever possible, we will complete some substantive testing earlier in the year 
before the financial statements are available for audit. We have identified the following 
areas for early work: 

! review of implementation of IFRIC 12 and PFI accounting; 

! review of the accounting policies; 

! review of the valuer's advice where available; 

! confirmation of ownership and existence of fixed assets; 

! testing of fixed asset additions and disposals in-year; and, 

! payroll substantive testing. 

20 Where other early testing is identified, this will be discussed with officers.  

Page 21



Key milestones and deadlines 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  10

Key milestones and deadlines

21 The Council is required to prepare the financial statements by 30 June 2010. We are 
required to complete our audit and issue our opinion by 30 September 2010. Table 2 
details the key stages in producing and auditing the financial statements. 

22 We will agree with officers a schedule of working papers required to support the entries 
in the financial statements. 

23 Every week, the audit team will meet with the key contact and review the status of all 
queries. If appropriate, we will meet at a different frequency depending upon the need 
and the number of issues arising.  

Table 2 Proposed timetable 

Task Deadline

Controls and early substantive testing January – June 2010 

Receipt of accounts 30 June 2010 

Forwarding audit working papers to us 30 June 2010 

Start of detailed testing 5 July 2010 

Progress meetings Weekly

Present report to those charged with governance at the 
Audit Committee 

September 2010

Issue opinion By 30 September 2010 

Page 22



The audit team 

11   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

The audit team

24 Table 3 details the key members of the audit team for the 2009/10 audit. 

Table 3 Audit team 

Name Contact details Responsibilities 

Jon Hayes 

District Auditor 

j-hayes@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0844 798 2877 

Responsible for the overall delivery of 
the audit including the quality of 
outputs, signing the opinion and value 
for money conclusion, and liaison with 
the Chief Executive and Director of 
Resources.

Sally-Anne Eldridge 

Senior Audit Manager 

s-eldridge@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0844 798 2287 

Manages and coordinates the different 
elements of audit work. Key point of 
contact for the Director of Finance. 

Shona Milton 

Audit Manager 

s-milton@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0207 364 4784 

Manages day to day audit work. Key 
point of contact for corporate finance 
team.

Grant Slessor 

Team Leader 

g-slessor@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0207 364 4784 

Manages the detailed audit work. Key 
point of contact for the finance team. 

Independence and objectivity 

25 We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity 
of the District Auditor and the audit staff, which we are required by auditing and ethical 
standards to communicate to you.

26 We comply with the ethical standards issued by the APB and with the Commission’s 
requirements in respect of independence and objectivity as summarised in Appendix 1.

Page 23



The audit team 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  12

Quality of service 

27 We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact 
Jon Hayes in the first instance. Alternatively, you may wish to contact, Les Kidner, the 
Head of Operations for London Region.

28 If we are unable to satisfy your concerns, you have the right to make a formal 
complaint to the Audit Commission. The complaints procedure is set out in the leaflet 
'Something to Complain About' which is available from the Commission’s website or on 
request.

Responsibilities 

29 The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited 
Bodies sets out the respective responsibilities of the auditor and the audited body. The 
Audit Commission has issued a copy of the Statement to every audited body. Copies 
are available from the audit Commission website: 

http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/localgov/audit/auditmethodology/Pages/statementresponsibilities.a
spx

30 The Statement summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body begin and end, and our audit work is undertaken in the context of these 
responsibilities.

31 We comply with the statutory requirements governing our audit work, in particular: 

! the Audit Commission Act 1998; and

! the Code of Audit Practice.

Planned outputs 

32 Reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being issued 
to the Audit Committee. 

Table 4 Planned outputs 

Planned output Indicative date 

Opinion audit plan March 2010 

Annual governance report  September 2010

Auditor’s report giving an opinion on the financial statements 30 September 2010 

Final accounts memorandum November 2010 

Page 24



Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 

13   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Appendix 1 – Independence and 
objectivity

1 Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are required to comply with the 
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice and Standing Guidance for Auditors, which 
defines the terms of the appointment. When auditing the financial statements, auditors 
are also required to comply with auditing standards and ethical standards issued by 
the Auditing Practices Board (APB). 

2 The main requirements of the Code of Audit Practice, Standing Guidance for Auditors 
and the standards are summarised below. 

3 International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260 (Communication of audit 
matters with those charged with governance) requires that the appointed auditor: 

! discloses in writing all relationships that may bear on the auditor’s objectivity and 
independence, the related safeguards put in place to protect against these threats 
and the total amount of fee that the auditor has charged the client; and 

! confirms in writing that the APB’s ethical standards are complied with and that, in 
the auditor’s professional judgement, they are independent and their objectivity is 
not compromised 

4 The standard defines ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted 
with the supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case, the appropriate 
addressee of communications from the auditor to those charged with governance is 
the Audit Committee. The auditor reserves the right, however, to communicate directly 
with the Council on matters which are considered to be of sufficient importance. 

5 The Commission’s Code of Audit Practice has an overriding general requirement that 
appointed auditors carry out their work independently and objectively, and ensure that 
they do not act in any way that might give rise to, or could reasonably be perceived to 
give rise to, a conflict of interest. In particular, appointed auditors and their staff should 
avoid entering into any official, professional or personal relationships which may, or 
could reasonably be perceived to, cause them inappropriately or unjustifiably to limit 
the scope, extent or rigour of their work or impair the objectivity of their judgement. 

Page 25



Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  14

6 The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes a number of specific rules. The key rules 
relevant to this audit appointment are as follows. 

! Appointed auditors should not perform additional work for an audited body
(ie work over and above the minimum required to meet their statutory 
responsibilities) if it would compromise their independence or might give rise to a 
reasonable perception that their independence could be compromised. Where the 
audited body invites the auditor to carry out risk-based work in a particular area 
that cannot otherwise be justified as necessary to support the auditor’s opinion and 
conclusions, it should be clearly differentiated within the Audit and Inspection Plan 
as being ‘additional work’ and charged for separately from the normal audit fee. 

! Auditors should not accept engagements that involve commenting on the 
performance of other auditors appointed by the Commission on Commission work 
without first consulting the Commission. 

! The District Auditor responsible for the audit should, in all but the most exceptional 
circumstances, be changed at least once every five years. 

! The District Auditor and senior members of the audit team are prevented from 
taking part in political activity on behalf of a political party, or special interest group, 
whose activities relate directly to the functions of local government or NHS bodies 
in general, or to a particular local government or NHS body. 

7 The District Auditor and members of the audit team must abide by the Commission’s 
policy on gifts, hospitality and entertainment.

Page 26



Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187  Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, covering the £180 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Opinion 
Plan
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund

Audit 2009/10 

March 2010 

Agenda Item 42

Page 29



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Introduction 3

Responsibilities 4

Fee for the audit of financial statements 5

Auditors report on the financial statements 6

Identification of specific risks 7

Testing strategy 8

Key milestones and deadlines 9

The audit team 10

Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 12

Page 30



Introduction

3   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

Introduction

1 This plan sets out the audit work we propose to undertake in relation to the audit of 
financial statements for Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 2009/10. The plan is based on 
the Audit Commission’s risk-based approach to audit planning which assesses: 

! current national risks relevant to the Pension Fund's local circumstances; and 

! the Pension Fund's local risks. 

Page 31



Responsibilities 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund  4

Responsibilities

2 The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited 
Bodies sets out the respective responsibilities of the auditor and the audited body. The 
Audit Commission has issued a copy of the Statement to every audited body.

3 The Statement summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body begin and end, and our audit work is undertaken in the context of these 
responsibilities.

4 We comply with the statutory requirements governing our audit work, in particular: 

! the Audit Commission Act 1998; and

! the Code of Audit Practice.

5 Specifically, the work of auditors on pension fund accounts is defined by the Auditing 
Practices Board Practice Note 15 on the audit of pension fund accounts. 

Page 32



Fee for the audit of financial statements 

5   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

Fee for the audit of financial 
statements

6  The indicative fee for the audit is £38,500, as indicated in my letter of 27 April 2009. 

7 In setting the fee, we have assumed that:

! the level of risk in relation to the audit of the Pension Fund accounts is consistent 
with that for 2008/09; 

! officers will inform us of significant developments impacting on the audit 

! requested information will be provided within agreed timescales; and 

! good quality working papers will be supplied to support the entries in the financial 
statements.

8 Where these assumptions are not met, I will be required to undertake additional work 
which is likely to result in an increased audit fee. Where this is the case, we will 
discuss this in the first instance with the Director of Finance and we will issue 
supplements to the plan to record any revisions to the risk and the impact on the fee.

Specific actions Tower Hamlets Pension Fund could take to reduce its audit fees 

9 The Audit Commission requires its auditors to inform audited bodies of specific actions 
it could take to reduce its audit fees. As in previous years, we will work with staff to 
identify any specific actions that the Council could take and to provide ongoing audit 
support.

Page 33



Auditors report on the financial statements 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund  6

Auditors report on the financial 
statements

10 I will carry out the audit of the financial statements in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board (APB).  

11 I am required to issue an audit report giving my opinion on whether the Pension Fund 
accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at  
31 March 2010. 

12 I am also required to review the pension fund annual report as per the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008.

Identifying opinion audit risks 

13 As part of our audit risk identification process we need to fully understand the audited 
body to identify any risk of material misstatement (whether due to fraud or error) in the 
financial statements. We do this by: 

! identifying the business risks facing the Pension Fund, including assessing your 
own risk management arrangements; 

! considering the financial performance of the Pension Fund;

! assessing internal control - including reviewing the control environment, the IT 
control environment and Internal Audit; and

! assessing the risk of material misstatement arising from the activities and controls 
within the Pension Fund information systems. 

Page 34



Identification of specific risks 

7   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

Identification of specific risks 

14 We have considered the additional risks that are appropriate to the current opinion 
audit and have set these out below. 

Table 1 Specific risks 

Specific opinion risks identified 

Risk area Audit response 

SORP Compliance 

The 2008/09 Pension Fund accounts did not comply 
with the SORP. 

In particular: 

! there was no reconciliation between the opening 
and closing value of investments; 

! the level of funding and commentary on the deficit 
was not disclosed; and  

! management expenses were not analysed. 

Review the entries in the accounts against the 
SORP compliance checklist 

Bank accounts 

In previous years the Pension Fund has not had a 
separate bank account from the Council. We have 
recommended that holding funds in a dedicated 
account would improve transparency and 
governance. Following new Pension Fund 
regulations coming into force on 1 January 2010, this 
will be a requirement from 1 April 2011. 

Review progress in introducing a separate bank 
account and review Pension Fund bank 
reconciliation

Quality Assurance of accounts 

The 2008/09 financial statements contained 
significant errors which could have been identified by 
a robust quality assurance process. 

Undertake analytical review and substantive 
testing procedures to gain assurance over the 
entries in the accounts. 

Page 35



Testing strategy 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund  8

Testing strategy

15 On the basis of risks identified above we will produce a testing strategy which will 
consist of testing key controls and/or substantive tests of transaction streams and 
material account balances at year end. 

16 Our testing can be carried out both before and after the draft financial statements have 
been produced (pre- and post-statement testing).

17 Wherever possible, we will complete some substantive testing earlier in the year 
before the financial statements are available for audit. We have identified the following 
areas where substantive testing could be carried out early: 

! review of accounting policies; 

! bank reconciliation; 

! contributions;

! year end feeder system reconciliations; and 

! related party disclosures.

Where other early testing is identified, this will be discussed with officers.  

Page 36



Key milestones and deadlines 

9   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

Key milestones and deadlines

18 The Council is required to prepare the Pension Fund financial statements by
30 June 2010. We are required to complete our audit and issue our opinion by
30 September 2010. The key stages in the process of producing and auditing the 
financial statements are shown in Table 2. 

19 We will agree with you a schedule of working papers required to support the entries in 
the financial statements. 

20 Every week, we will meet with the key contact and review the status of all queries. If 
appropriate, we will meet at a different frequency depending upon the need and the 
number of issues arising. 

Table 2 Proposed timetable 

Task Deadline

Control and early substantive testing March 2010 

Receipt of accounts 30 June 2010 

Forwarding audit working papers to the auditor 30 June 2010 

Start of detailed testing July 2010 

Progress meetings Weekly 

Present report to those charged with governance at the Audit Committee September 2010  

Issue opinion By 30 September 2010 

Page 37



The audit team 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund  10

The audit team 
21 The key members of the audit team for the 2009/10 audit are shown in the table below. 

Table 3 Audit team 

Name Contact details Responsibilities

Jon Hayes 

District Auditor 

j-hayes@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0844 798 2877  

Responsible for the overall delivery of the 
audit including the quality of outputs, signing 
the opinion and conclusion, and liaison with 
the Chief Executive.

Sally-Anne Eldridge 

Senior Audit Manager 

s-eldridge@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0844 798 2287 

Manages and coordinates the different 
elements of the audit work. Key point of 
contact for the Director of Finance and the 
Head of Pensions. 

Shona Milton 

Audit Manager 

s-milton@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0207 364 4784 

Manages day to day audit work. Key point of 
contact for corporate finance and pension 
fund team. 

Grant Slessor 

Team Leader 

g-slessor@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0207 364 4784 

Manages the detailed audit work. Key point 
of contact for corporate finance and pension 
fund team. 

Independence and objectivity 

22 We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity 
of the District Auditor and the audit staff  

23 We comply with the ethical standards issued by the APB and with the Commission’s 
requirements in respect of independence and objectivity as summarised in Appendix 1.

Meetings

24 The audit team will maintain knowledge of the issues affecting the audit of the Pension 
Fund financial statements through regular liaison with key officers.

Quality of service 

25 We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact 
the District Auditor in the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Les 
Kidner, the Head of Operations for London Region.

Page 38



The audit team 

11   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

26 If we are unable to satisfy your concerns, you have the right to make a formal 
complaint to the Audit Commission. The complaints procedure is set out in the leaflet 
'Something to Complain About' which is available from the Commission’s website or on 
request.

Planned outputs 

27 Reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being issued 
to the Pensions Committee and the Audit Committee. 

Table 4 Planned outputs 

Planned output Indicative date 

Opinion audit plan March 2010 

Annual governance report  September 2010 

Auditor’s report giving an opinion on the financial statements September 2010 

Final accounts memorandum  October 2010 

Page 39



Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund  12

 Appendix 1 – Independence and 
objectivity

1 Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are required to comply with the 
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice and Standing Guidance for Auditors, which 
defines the terms of the appointment. When auditing the financial statements, auditors 
are also required to comply with auditing standards and ethical standards issued by 
the Auditing Practices Board (APB). 

2 The main requirements of the Code of Audit Practice, Standing Guidance for Auditors 
and the standards are summarised below. 

3 International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260 (Communication of audit 
matters with those charged with governance) requires that the appointed auditor: 

! discloses in writing all relationships that may bear on the auditor’s objectivity and 
independence, the related safeguards put in place to protect against these threats 
and the total amount of fee that the auditor has charged the client; and 

! confirms in writing that the APB’s ethical standards are complied with and that, in 
the auditor’s professional judgement, they are independent and their objectivity is 
not compromised 

4 The standard defines ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted 
with the supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case, the appropriate 
addressee of communications from the auditor to those charged with governance is 
the Audit Committee. The auditor reserves the right, however, to communicate directly 
with the Council on matters which are considered to be of sufficient importance. 

5 The Commission’s Code of Audit Practice has an overriding general requirement that 
appointed auditors carry out their work independently and objectively, and ensure that 
they do not act in any way that might give rise to, or could reasonably be perceived to 
give rise to, a conflict of interest. In particular, appointed auditors and their staff should 
avoid entering into any official, professional or personal relationships which may, or 
could reasonably be perceived to, cause them inappropriately or unjustifiably to limit 
the scope, extent or rigour of their work or impair the objectivity of their judgement. 

Page 40



Appendix 1 – Independence and objectivity 

13   London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

6 The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes a number of specific rules. The key rules 
relevant to this audit appointment are as follows. 

! Appointed auditors should not perform additional work for an audited body
(ie work over and above the minimum required to meet their statutory 
responsibilities) if it would compromise their independence or might give rise to a 
reasonable perception that their independence could be compromised. Where the 
audited body invites the auditor to carry out risk-based work in a particular area 
that cannot otherwise be justified as necessary to support the auditor’s opinion and 
conclusions, it should be clearly differentiated within the Audit and Inspection Plan 
as being ‘additional work’ and charged for separately from the normal audit fee. 

! Auditors should not accept engagements that involve commenting on the 
performance of other auditors appointed by the Commission on Commission work 
without first consulting the Commission. 

! The District Auditor responsible for the audit should, in all but the most exceptional 
circumstances, be changed at least once every five years. 

! The District Auditor and senior members of the audit team are prevented from 
taking part in political activity on behalf of a political party, or special interest group, 
whose activities relate directly to the functions of local government or NHS bodies 
in general, or to a particular local government or NHS body. 

! The District Auditor and members of the audit team must abide by the 
Commission’s policy on gifts, hospitality and entertainment.

Page 41



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
audio, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 42



Certification of 
claims and returns 
- annual report 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Audit 2008/09 

March 2010 

Agenda Item 43

Page 43



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents
Key messages 3

Background 4

Findings 5

Appendix 1 – Summary of 2008/09 certified claims 10

Appendix 2 – Action plan 12

Page 44



Key messages 

3   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Key messages 
Funding from government grant-paying departments is an important income stream 
for the Council. The Council needs to manage claiming this income carefully. It 
needs to demonstrate to auditors that it has met the conditions which attach to 
these grants.

This report summarises the findings from the certification of 2008/09 claims. It 
includes the messages arising from my assessment of your arrangements for 
preparing claims and returns and information on claims that we amended or 
qualified.

Certification of claims

1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets receives funding from various grant-paying 
departments. The grant-paying departments attach conditions to these grants and the 
Council must show it has met these conditions. If the Council cannot evidence this, the 
funding can be at risk. It is therefore important that the Council manages certification 
work properly and can demonstrate that the relevant conditions have been met.  

2 In 2008/09, eleven claims with a total value of £563 million were subject to certification. 
Of these, we performed a limited review of two claims and a full review of nine claims. 
Paragraph eight explains the difference between a limited and full review. Seven 
claims required amendment to correct errors prior to certification. For three claims, we 
were unable to fully certify the claim and issued a qualification letter to the grant-paying 
body. One of these qualification issues was subsequently resolved following a request 
from the grant paying body for the Council to conduct further work. The certification of 
one of the eleven claims is currently outstanding. Appendix 1 provides a summary of 
the eleven claims subject to certification.

3 The fee I charged for grant certification work in 2008/09 was £114,746. A further 
charge will be made for the work that is to be completed on the claim that has not yet 
been certified. I do not expect this charge to be significant.  

Actions

4 An action plan which has been agreed with officers is attached in Appendix 2.

Page 45



Background 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  4

Background

5 For 2008/09 we have been required to certify returns totalling £563m for specific 
activities from grant paying departments. As this is significant to the Council’s income it 
is important that this process is properly managed. In particular this means: 

! an adequate control environment over each claim and return; and 

! ensuring that the Council can evidence that it has met the conditions attached to 
each claim.

6 I am required by section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to certify some claims 
and returns for grants or subsidies paid by the government departments and public 
bodies to the London Borough of Tower Hamlets. I charge a fee to cover the full cost of 
certifying claims. The fee depends on the amount of work required to certify each claim 
or return.  

7 The Council is responsible for compiling grant claims and returns in accordance with 
the requirements and timescale set by the grant paying departments.

8 The key features of the current arrangements are as follows: 

! For claims and returns below £100,000 the Commission does not make 
certification arrangements. 

! For claims and returns between £100,000 and £500,000, auditors undertake 
limited tests to agree form entries to underlying records, but do not undertake any 
testing of eligibility of expenditure. 

! For claims and returns over £500,000 auditors assess the control environment for 
the preparation of the claim or return to decide whether or not they can place 
reliance on it. Where reliance is placed on the control environment, auditors 
undertake limited tests to agree from entries to underlying records but do not 
undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure or data. Where reliance 
cannot be placed on the control environment, auditors undertake all of the tests in 
the certification instruction and use their assessment of the control environment to 
inform decisions on the level of testing required. This means that the audit fees for 
certification work are reduced if the control environment is strong.

! For claims spanning over more than one year, the financial limits above relate to 
the amount claimed over the entire life of the claim and testing is applied 
accordingly. The approach impacts on the amount of grants work we carry out, 
placing more emphasis on the high value claims.

Page 46



Findings

5   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Findings

Cross-cutting findings

9 The control environment of every claim over £500,000 was subject to a risk 
assessment. In nine cases, it was concluded that reliance could not be placed in the 
control environment and detailed testing was carried out. There is scope for the 
Council to improve the control environment and significantly reduce the subsequent 
audit work. Working papers should include a full analytical review with explanations for 
significant variances. There is evidence of quality review on the majority of files 
submitted for certification, however errors identified indicate that this is not always 
sufficiently robust. 

10 Overall the speed of response to audit queries has declined and delays were 
encountered in receiving adequate audit evidence for some grants. In some cases 
delays between requests for information and the response were up to two weeks. It is 
recommended that wherever possible queries should be responded to within three 
working days. 

11 In some cases delays were experienced where the main contact was reliant on 
information from a number of sources within the Council. Where an officer has been 
identified as the claim contact they should have a full understanding of the entries 
within the claim and their source. If information is required from another officer this will 
be requested through our contact for the claim. 

12 The number of amendments required suggests that the Council's internal quality 
control procedures are not as robust as they should be. A reduction in the number of 
amendments will reduce the required time input from both Council and Audit 
Commission staff and the fee for certification work.

13 The appointment of a specific grant claims co-ordinator was helpful in resolving 
general queries and escalating issues arising on individual grants. However this officer 
was changed in year and the audit team was not informed promptly which meant that 
problems were not resolved as quickly as they could have been. 

Recommendations

R1 Respond to all audit queries within three working days wherever possible. 

R2 Strengthen the grant claims and returns control environment by implementing a 
more detailed review process prior to audit submission and demonstrating this 
clearly in working paper files. 

R3 Include a full and detailed analytical review consideration of all significant variances 
as part of working paper files. 

R4 Inform the audit team of any changes to key grants contracts during the course of 
certification work.

Page 47



Findings

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  6

Findings relating to specific grant claims and returns 

Housing Benefits Subsidy (BEN01) 

14 During the audit errors were identified with individual claims which resulted in the need 
for additional testing. These related to incorrect information or dates being used in 
income calculations, mis-classification of overpayments and mis-classification of 
backdated payments.

15 When fails which could not be shown to be isolated errors are identified in the primary 
sample, an additional sample of 40 cases is tested from the cells affected by the 
errors. Our initial testing identified that eight additional samples of 40 cases were 
required.

! Cell 11: Rent Rebates (Tenants of Non-HRA Properties) - Total Expenditure 

! Cells 16 & 17: Homeless People in Licensed Accommodation - Expenditure above 
the cap and Expenditure between the threshold and up to and including the cap 

! Cell 28: Rent Rebates (Tenants of Non-HRA Properties) - Eligible Overpayments 

! Cell 38: Rent Rebates (Tenants of Non-HRA Properties) - Backdated Payments 

! Cell 55: Rent Rebates (Tenants of HRA Properties) - Total Expenditure 

! Cell 94: Rent Allowances - Total Expenditure 

! Cell 142: Council Tax Benefit - Total Expenditure 

! Cell 148: Council Tax Benefit - Eligible Excess Benefit  

16 Where the results of the testing allowed us to conclude that an adjustment to a cell 
would result in it being fairly stated, the claim was amended. In all other cases, we 
reported our results in a qualification letter. As a result of the amendments, the subsidy 
payable to the Council was reduced by £109,426. 

17 The additional sample testing was undertaken by the Council. Work has been 
undertaken to reduce the error rates and thus reduce the amount of additional testing 
that is required. This has reduced the amount of extra work that is required by both the 
Council and the audit team - in 2007/08 ten further samples of 40 cases were required. 
The Council should continue this work to reduce the volume of errors in the claim 

18 While the total number of qualification issues has decreased from the previous year 
there is a need for more detailed checking of ongoing work to ensure that benefits are 
awarded at the correct rate.  

Recommendation

R5 Continue to quality review benefits processing and provide training to staff to 
improve the accuracy of awards and support to the Housing Benefit claim. 

Page 48



Findings

7   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts (CFB06) 

19 The deadline for submission to audit was missed as a result of late resolution of final 
accounts audit queries. During the audit of the return issues were identified relating to 
both transposition errors and excel formula errors which could have been avoided with 
a more rigorous quality checking process prior to submission to audit. 

20 Testing of administration costs found invalid items of expenditure which were removed 
prior to certification. The Council should ensure that only eligible items of expenditure 
are included by referring to the guidance and CI. 

21 Evidence could not be provided to support an entry in the claim relating to repayments 
of RTB principal. This figure was adjusted to only include the items which could be 
evidenced. Supporting evidence should be maintained for all figures. 

22 There were a number of delays in the resolution of queries due to the claim preparer 
pursuing explanations from officers in other departments. The claim preparer should 
ensure that where figures are provided by other officers that they fully understand the 
basis of these and that further information can be obtained in a timely manner. 

23 Delays were experienced because evidence had to be retrieved from archiving. To 
avoid similar delays in future, evidence to support claims should be held locally until 
certification work is complete. 

24 Due to the issues above the amount due to CLG was understated and a small penalty 
payment was incurred by the Council. 

Recommendation

R6 Strengthen arrangements to provide evidence to audit to support claims and 
returns such as the housing capital receipts return. 

Housing Subsidy Base Data Return (HOU02) 

25 During the audit of the Base Data return issues were identified relating to transposition 
and data entry errors which could have been avoided with a more rigorous quality 
checking process prior to submission for audit. 

26 There were a number of delays in responding to queries on this audit and this resulted 
in the October return deadline being missed. 

27 Testing identified a number of properties where there were inconsistencies in the 
property management system between the property description and the subsidy 
classification for subsidy purposes. This issue could have been resolved with further 
work from the Council but as the deadline for the return had already been missed it 
was agreed that this would be reported as a qualification issue. On CLG's request 
further work was conducted by the Authority to resolve this issue. Following individual 
analysis of each property the return was amended and subsequently re-certified 
without qualification. 

Page 49



Findings

London Borough of Tower Hamlets  8

28 Having obtained CLG permission to reopen the LOGASNET system to allow the 
Council to make amendments for a set period of time, the Council failed to action the 
amendments by this deadline which further delayed submission and required a second 
request to be made to CLG.

Recommendations

R7 Review the property classifications in the housing subsidy base data return to 
ensure that it is fully consistent with the supporting database. 

R8 Make arrangements to amend and certify base data returns on the electronic data 
collection system within the window set by the awarding body. 

Housing Subsidy Return (HOU01) 

29 As with the housing subsidy base data return there were delays in the resolution of 
queries. Additionally the claim preparer was in part reliant on the working papers of a 
finance officer no longer employed by the Council which further delayed responses. 

30 Amendments were required to the return due to inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements. In one case this was due to an amendment made during the 
accounts audit not having been communicated to the claim preparer by the finance 
department.

31 As with the previous year, this claim has been qualified due to adjustments in cell 
F001cm which are not permitted by the certification instructions. The claim preparer 
has briefed us on the background to these adjustments and considers that they are 
necessary to ensure that the correct subsidy is awarded. These adjustments are not 
expected to recur in 2009/10. 

Recommendations

R9 Communicate adjustments to the financial statements to relevant officers to 
ensure that housing subsidy grant claims are fairly stated. 

R10 Implement detailed handovers when officers leave to ensure that adequate 
knowledge is retained in-house. 

Disabled Facilities Grant (HOU21) 

32 As with the CFB06 return, delays were experienced because evidence had to be 
retrieved from archiving. This led to the certification deadline being missed. To avoid 
similar delays in future, evidence to support claims should be held locally until audit 
work is complete. 

Page 50



Findings

9   London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Teachers' Pension Return (PEN05) 

33 The Teachers' Pension return at Tower Hamlets requires input from both in-house and 
outsourced schools payroll systems. Wherever it is possible we place reliance on the 
work of Internal Audit in order to make the most efficient use of officer time. We placed 
reliance on work conducted by Internal Audit to gain assurance over the data from the 
outsourced payroll systems. 

34 Internal Audit identified minor errors totalling £41 in the £284k sample of payroll data 
tested. We extrapolated these errors to determine the total amendment required to the 
claim. The resultant amendment increased the amount payable to the Teacher’s 
Pensions Agency from £-19.91 to £658.82. 

35 Prior to our extrapolation the claim preparer was unaware that errors had been 
identified during Internal Audit testing which created minor delays in the approval of the 
amendment by the Council. 

Recommendation

R11 Fully cascade findings from internal audit work to officers to ensure they are aware 
of all relevant findings. 

New Deal for Communities (RG03)  

36 The work on this claim is currently in progress. We have experienced delays in 
receiving explanations and supporting evidence from officers and as a result, the 
certification deadline has been missed. 

37 We will continue to discuss this work with senior officers until the certification work is 
complete.

Page 51



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 c

la
im

s
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

  
1
0

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 c

la
im

s
 

C
la

im
 /

 R
e
tu

rn
 

C
I 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

) 
D

e
a
d

li
n

e
D

a
te

 C
e

rt
if

ie
d

 
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 (
A

) 
/ 

Q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 (

Q
) 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

S
u
b
s
id

y
B

E
N

0
1
 

2
2
0
,1

9
0
,0

5
8

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

3
0

/1
1
/2

0
0
9

A
Q

P
o
o
lin

g
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
a
p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 

C
F

B
0
6

7
,5

3
7
,7

5
4

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

0
6

/1
1
/2

0
0
9

A

S
u

re
 S

ta
rt

 E
a

rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

c
a
re

 
G

ra
n

t

E
Y

C
0

2
 

1
0
,3

0
8
,6

8
6

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

2
8

/1
0
/2

0
0
9

N
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 

R
e
tu

rn
H

O
U

0
1

1
9
,4

3
7
,3

4
3

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

2
3

/1
2
/2

0
0
9

A
Q

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 

B
a
s
e
 D

a
ta

 R
e
tu

rn
 

H
O

U
0
2

S
e
e
 H

O
U

0
1
 a

b
o
v
e
 

0
9
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

0
6

/1
1

/2
0

0
9

 (
re

-
c
e
rt

if
ie

d
 2

3
/1

2
/2

0
0
9
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

)

A
Q

 (
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

is
s
u
e
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 

re
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
)

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t

H
O

U
2
1

5
8
8
,0

0
0

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

2
0

/1
1
/2

0
0
9

N
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

o
n
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 

R
e
tu

rn

L
A

0
1

2
8
2
,5

6
5
,3

7
1

2
5
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

2
5

/0
9
/2

0
0
9

N
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

Page 52



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

1
1
 
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

C
la

im
 /

 R
e
tu

rn
 

C
I 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

) 
D

e
a
d

li
n

e
D

a
te

 C
e

rt
if

ie
d

 
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 (
A

) 
/ 

Q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 (

Q
) 

T
e
a
c
h
e
r’
s
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 

R
e
tu

rn
P

E
N

0
5
 

1
9
,6

8
7
,1

7
0

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

1
6

/1
1
/2

0
0
9

A

N
e
w

 D
e

a
l 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
R

G
0
3

2
,3

2
5
,2

8
8

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

T
B

C
T

B
C

L
o
n
d
o
n

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
g
e
n
c
y

R
G

3
1

1
0
1
,1

6
5

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

2
7

/0
7
/2

0
0
9

N
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

L
o
n
d
o
n

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
g
e
n
c
y

R
G

3
1

3
6
2
,1

3
0

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

3
1

/0
7
/2

0
0
9

A

5
6
3
,1

0
2
,9

6
5

Page 53



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

  
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

5
R

1
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

re
e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t 
c
o

m
p

ile
rs

 a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 
re

m
in

d
e
d
 o

f 
3
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

. 
A

ft
e
r 

3
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
, 

e
s
c
a
la

te
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r.

 

R
e

m
in

d
e
r 

e
m

a
il 

to
 b

e
 

s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 

3
1
/3

/1
0

5
R

2
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t 
b
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 
m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

a
u

d
it
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
ti
n
g

 t
h

is
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 i
n

 w
o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e
r 

fi
le

s
. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 e
a
c
h

 a
u
d

it
e

d
 c

la
im

. 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
p

e
rs

. 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
to

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e
rs

 a
n
d

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 
c
h
e

c
k
s
 w

it
h

in
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

/p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 n

o
te

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e
n

t 
o

u
t 
to

 f
in

a
n

c
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
la

im
 p

re
p
a
re

rs
 b

y
 

C
h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

. 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

. 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

b
e

 s
e
n

t 
o

u
t 

b
y
 3

1
/3

/1
0
. 

5
R

3
 

In
c
lu

d
e

 a
 f
u

ll 
a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 a

n
a

ly
ti
c
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e
r 

fi
le

s
. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

/p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 n
o

te
 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

n
t 
o

u
t 

to
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n

ta
n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

is
. 

3
1
/3

/1
0

5
R

4
 

In
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
n
y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 k
e

y
 g

ra
n

ts
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

. 

2
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a

m
 o

f 
a

n
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 (
in

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
ra

n
ts

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r)
  

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

Page 54



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

1
3
 
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

6
R

5
 

C
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 q
u

a
lit

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
a
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la

im
. 

3
M

a
rt

in
 M

c
G

ra
th

 
Y

e
s
 

M
a

rt
in

 M
c
G

ra
th

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
d

 f
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 h
is

 t
e

a
m

. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 

Z
e

b
ra

 T
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 2

2
n
d

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
u
b
s
id

y
 c

la
im

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 b

y
 3

 
s
ta

ff
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
b
m

it
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
l 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a

m
 

2
2
/1

/1
0

(C
o
m

p
le

te
d

) 

7
R

6
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 

re
tu

rn
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 r

e
tu

rn
. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t 
c
o

m
p

ile
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

m
in

d
e

d
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
g

a
th

e
ri
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 a
n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 
a

u
d

it
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
/p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 n
o

te
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

. 

R
e

v
is

e
d
 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 t
o

 
b

e
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t 

b
y
 3

1
/3

/1
0
 

8
R

7
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 b

a
s
e

 d
a

ta
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 f
u
lly

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

2
P

a
u

l 
L

e
e
s
o

n
 

(D
&

R
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r)
 

Y
e
s
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 c

la
im

 p
re

p
a
re

r 
to

 a
d
d
re

s
s
, 
a
n
d
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 D

&
R

 f
in

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

 
3

1
/8

/2
0

1
0

 
(D

e
a

d
lin

e
 

fo
r 

H
S

B
D

 
c
la

im
) 

8
R

8
 

M
a

k
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 c
e
rt

if
y
 

re
tu

rn
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 

a
w

a
rd

in
g

 b
o
d
y
. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t 
c
o

m
p

ile
rs

 a
n

d
 f
in

a
n
c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
rs

 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 r
e
tu

rn
 i
s
 e

n
te

re
d

 o
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

y
 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

. 
W

h
e

re
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 e

n
te

re
d
, 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

 o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

e
fo

re
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 e

x
p
ir
e
s
. 
C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

is
 i
n

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

. 

R
e

v
is

e
d
 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 t
o

 
b

e
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t 

b
y
 3

1
/3

/1
0
 

8
R

9
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
g

ra
n

t 
c
la

im
s
 a

re
 f
a

ir
ly

 
s
ta

te
d
.

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
n

y
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 g
ra

n
t 
c
la

im
s
 

a
re

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 g
ra

n
t 
c
la

im
 p

re
p

a
re

rs
. 
 

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

 
2

0
1

0
 (

A
u

d
it
 

p
e

ri
o
d

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
) 

Page 55



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

  
1
4

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

8
R

1
0
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 h
a

n
d

o
v
e

rs
 w

h
e
n

 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 l
e
a
v
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 i
s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 i
n

-h
o
u

s
e

. 

3
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 m
a
n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
g

ra
n

t 
c
o
m

p
ile

rs
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 h

a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

if
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
le

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 

a
c
t 
a

s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
e

w
 t
o

 
g

ra
n

t 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 n
e
e

d
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

. 

9
R

1
1
 F

u
lly

 c
a
s
c
a
d

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
. 

1
A

lis
o
n
 G

e
b
b
e
tt
 

(C
h

ie
f 

A
c
c
o
u

n
ta

n
t’
s
 

T
e

a
m

)

Y
e
s
 

A
n
y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 g

ra
n
t 
c
o
m

p
ile

rs
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
is

 i
n

to
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 n
o

te
s
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
. 
  
  
  

Page 56



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, audio, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 
    
    
    
     

 
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
30 March 2010 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
5.1 

 
REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
 Quarterly Assurance Report 
 

 Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit for the period December 2009 

to February 2010. 
 

1.2. The report sets out the assurance rating of each audit finalised in the period and 
gives an overall assurance rating. The quarterly assurance report feeds into the 
annual internal audit opinion which will be produced at the end of the financial 
year.    

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The audit committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to take 

account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period.  

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 51

Page 59



 
    
    
    
     

 
3. Background 
 
3.1. From April 2005, we have assigned each review one of four ratings, depending 

upon the level of our findings. The ratings we use are: - 
 

Assurance Definition  

Full 
There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 
the system objectives, and the controls are being 
consistently applied; 

Substantial 
While there is a basically sound system there are 
weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at 
risk or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk; 

Limited 
Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk; 

Nil 
Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
significant error or abuse, or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or 
abuse. 

 
 
3.2. In addition, each review is also considered in terms of its significance to the 

authority in line with the previously agreed methodology. The significance of each 
auditable area is assigned, based on the following factors: -  

 
Significance Definition 

Extensive 
High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental 
Financial Systems, Major Service activity, Scale of 
Service in excess of £5m.   

Moderate Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service 
£1m- £5m. 

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.   
 
 
4. Overall Audit Opinion  
 
4.1. Overall, based on work performed in the year to date, I am able to give a 

substantial level of assurance over the systems and controls in place within the 
authority.  

 

Page 60



 
    
    
    
     

 
5. Overview of finalised audits  
 
5.1. Since the last Assurance Report that was presented to the audit committee on 15 

December 2009, 21 final reports have been issued. The findings of  these audits 
are presented as follows: 
� The chart below summarises the assurance rating assigned by the level of 

significance of each report.  
� Appendix 1 provides a list of the audits organised by assurance rating and 

significance. 
� Appendix 2 provides a brief summary of each audit.  

 
5.2. Members are invited to consider the following: 

� The overall level of assurance provided (para 5.3-5.5).  
� The findings of individual reports. The Audit Committee may wish to focus on 

those with a higher level of significance and those assigned Nil or Limited 
assurance. These are clearly set out in Appendix 1.  

 
5.3. The chart ranks the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place. 

This assurance rating will feed into Internal Audit’s overall assessment of the 
adequacy of governance arrangements that is required as part of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003 and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006. 

 
 

(Please refer to the table on the next page). 

Page 61



 
    
    
    
     

Chart 1  Analysis of Assurance Levels 
 

Assurance 
SUMMARY 

Full Substantial Limited Nil Total 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

5 1  6 

 
M
od
er
ate

  

7 7 1 15 

Sig
nif

ica
nc
e 

 
 

Lo
w  

    

Total Numbers  12 8 1 21 

Total %  57% 38% 5% 100% 

 
5.4. From the table above it can be seen that of the six finalised audits which focused 

on high risk or high value areas; five audits were assigned Substantial Assurance 
and one received Limited Assurance.  A further fifteen audits were of moderate 
significance and of these, seven were assigned Substantial Assurance, seven 
received Limited assurance and one was assigned an assurance rating of Nil.  

 
5.5. Overall, 57% of audits resulted in an adequate assurance (substantial or full) and 

43% of audits have an inadequate assurance rating (limited or nil).  Work in 
progress is shown in Appendix 3. 

 

Page 62



 
    
    
    
     

 
5.6. Performance Indicators 
 

At the start of the year, three performance indicators were formulated to monitor the 
delivery of the Internal Audit service as part of the Chief Executive’s Monitoring 
process. The table below shows the actual and targets for each indicator for the 
period November 2009 to January 2010. 
 

Performance measure 
 Target Actual 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed up 
to January 2010. 80% 81% 
Percentage of Priority 1 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

100% 100% 

Percentage of Priority 2 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

95% 88% 

 
 

5.7. The table above shows that the proportion of internal audit work completed to 
January 2010 which is broadly in line with the plan. The target for the year is to 
complete 100% of the plan. 

 
5.8. The percentage of priority 1 recommendations implemented at the follow up stage 

was around 100%, whereas the percentage of priority 2 recommendations was 
88%.  In view of the unsatisfactory progress in implementing agreed 
recommendations, relevant Corporate Directors were recently sent reports 
highlighting specific performance against the set targets, so that measures can be 
taken at Directorate level to improve performance in this area.  

 
 
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
6.1 The comments of the Corporate Director of Resources  have been incorporated into 

this report. 
 
 
7. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
7.1. There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
 
 

Page 63



 
    
    
    
     

8. One Tower Hamlets Considerations  
 
8.1 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets Considerations issues arising from this 

report.  
 
9. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
9.1. There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
 
 
10. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
10.1.  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
 
11. Risk Management Implications  
 
11.1. The implications arising from failure to control and manage risks could result in 

vulnerability to the systems of control that may be exploited. This report identifies 
areas of risk for management to mitigate. 

 
 
12. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
12.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



Su
mm

ar
y o

f A
ud

its
 U
nd

ert
ak

en
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

As
su

ran
ce
 le
ve
l 

Sig
nif

ica
nc

e 
Di
rec

tor
ate

 
Au

dit
 tit

le 
NI
L 

Mo
de
rat

e 
CS

F 
La
ng
do
n P

ark
 Se

co
nd
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 
 

 
 

LIM
ITE

D 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

Le
ga
l P

lan
nin

g M
ee
tin
gs
 on

 C
hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CL

C 
Ho

us
eh
old

 W
as
te 
Re

cy
clin

g –
 C
on
tra

ct 
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CL

C 
Co

ntr
ol 
an
d M

on
ito
rin
g o

f P
ark

ing
 Pe

rm
its
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e  
TH

H 
Co

ntr
ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 to
 D
ec
an
ted

 D
we

llin
gs
 in
 O
ce
an
 Es

tat
e 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
TH

H 
Co

ntr
ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 to
 Vo

id 
Dw

ell
ing

s 
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
CS

F 
St 

Ed
mu

nd
s C

ath
oli
c P

rim
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CS

F 
Ste

ph
en
 H
aw

kin
g S

pe
cia

l  S
ch
oo
l 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CS

F 
Ha

rry
 R
ob
ert

s N
urs

ery
 Sc

ho
ol 

 
SU

BS
TA

NT
IA
L 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

TH
H 
 

TH
H 
Fin

an
cia

l S
ys
tem

s 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

CL
C 

To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
– G

ov
ern

an
ce
 Ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Int
ern

et 
an
d e

-m
ail
 C
om

pu
ter

 Au
dit
 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

IC
T M

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 O
rga

nis
ati
on
 – 
Co

mp
ute

r A
ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 Po

lici
es
 an

d P
roc

ed
ure

s  
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
CS

F 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
So

cia
l C

are
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CS

F 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
es
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CL

C 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Hig

hw
ay
s 

 
Mo

de
rat

e  
TH

H 
 

Un
au
tho

ris
ed
 O
cc
up
an
ts 
- F

oll
ow

 U
p a

ud
it 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
AC

E 
Me

mb
ers

 Al
low

an
ce
s 

 
Mo

de
rat

e  
CL

C 
FL

AR
E –

 C
om

pu
ter

 Au
dit
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
CS

F 
Se

ve
n M

ills
 Pr

im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

Page 65



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
mm

ar
y o

f A
ud

its
 U
nd

ert
ak
en
  

 
 

 
 

 
Ni
l A

ss
ur
an

ce
 

Tit
le 

Da
te 

of 
Re

po
rt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

/ F
ind

ing
s 

Sc
ale

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

La
ng
do
n P

ark
 

Se
co
nd
ary

 
Sc

ho
ol 

 

Fe
b. 

20
10
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 a
nd
 fi
na
nc
ial
 m

on
ito
rin
g 
aff
air
s 
of 

the
 s
ch
oo
l. 
 T

he
 

fol
low

ing
 is
su
es
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 • 
Th

e 
Sc

he
me

 
of 

De
leg

ati
on
s 

wa
s 

inc
om

ple
te.
 
Th

ere
 
we

re 
no
 

de
cla

rat
ion

s 
of 

bu
sin

es
s 
int
ere

st 
fro

m 
so
me

 g
ov
ern

ors
 a
nd
 s
taf
f w

ith
 

fin
an
cia

l re
sp
on
sib

iliti
es
.  

• 
Bu

dg
et 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 re

po
rts
 la

ck
 ex

pla
na
tio
ns
 on

 bu
dg
et 

va
ria
nc
es
 ev

en
 

wh
ere

 th
e v

ari
an
ce
s a

re 
ov
er 

50
0%

 of
 th
e a

gre
ed
 bu

dg
et.
   

• 
Th

e 
sc
ho
ol 

did
 n
ot 

ha
ve
 a
ny
 p
urc

ha
sin

g 
an
d 
ten

de
rin
g 
pro

ce
du
res

 in
 

pla
ce
. T

he
 sc

ho
ol 
ha
d m

ad
e h

igh
 va

lue
 pu

rch
as
es
 w
he
re 

the
re 

wa
s n

o 
ev
ide

nc
e 
of 

ob
tai
nin

g 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e 
qu
ota

tio
ns
.  

Or
de
rs 

are
 n
ot 

alw
ay
s 

rai
se
d 

fro
m 

the
 s

ch
oo
l’s 

ac
co
un
tin
g 

sy
ste

m 
an
d 

as
 s

uc
h 

no
 

co
mm

itm
en
ts 
are

 ac
co
un
ted

 on
 bu

dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re

co
rds

. 
• 

No
 
ch
arg

ing
 
po
licy

 
in 

pla
ce
. 

Inc
om

e 
co
lle
cti
on
 
pro

ce
ss
es
 
for

 
mi
sc
ell
an
eo
us
 an

d t
rip
/jo
urn

ey
 in
co
me

 w
ere

 in
ad
eq
ua
te.
 

• 
Th

e 
sc
ho
ol 

co
uld

 n
ot 

ev
ide

nc
e 

all
 p

re-
rec

rui
tm
en
t 
ch
ec
ks
 b

ein
g 

co
mp

let
ed
 pr

ior
 to

 em
plo

ym
en
t b

ein
g c

om
me

nc
ed
. T

he
re 

is 
ina

de
qu
ate

 
se
pa
rat

ion
 of
 du

tie
s b

etw
ee
n p

roc
es
sin

g a
nd
 au

tho
ris
ing

 st
art

er 
for

ms
. 

• 
Th

ere
 ar

e n
o r

ob
us
t p

roc
ed
ure

s i
n p

lac
e t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 

all
 st
aff
 ar

e p
aid

 
co
rre

ctl
y. 

It 
wa

s 
es
tab

lish
ed
 th

at 
on
e 
tea

ch
er 

wa
s 
no
t b

ein
g 
pa
id 

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

the
 s
ala

ry 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
for

m 
for

 tw
o 

mo
nth

s. 
Th

is 
me

mb
er 

of 
sta

ff w
as
 be

ing
 un

de
r-p

aid
 by

 £5
0.4

9 f
or 

Ap
ril 
an
d M

ay
 20

09
.  

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi
ce
s. 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Nil

 

Page 66



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

La
ng
do
n P

ark
 

Se
co
nd
ary

 
Sc

ho
ol 

 

Fe
b. 

20
10
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n 

 Fo
llo
win

g t
he
 Au

dit
, th

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
to 
un
de
rta

ke
 vi
sit
s w

ere
 re

inf
orc

ed
 

wit
h S

ch
oo
ls 
Fin

an
ce
 of
fic
er,

 SI
P a

nd
 lin

k a
dv
iso

rs.
 C
lea

rly
 th
e a

ud
it f
ou
nd
 

tha
t p
roc

ed
ure

s w
ere

 no
t c
om

pli
ed
 w
ith
. A

ll r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

ag
ree

d b
y t
he
 sc

ho
ol,
 to
 en

ab
le 
to 
pro

vid
ed
 w
ith
 im

pro
ve
d m

an
ag
em

en
t 

an
d s

up
po
rt a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
the

 sc
ho
ol 
ha
s r
ec
en
tly
 si
gn
ed
 a 
go
ld 
se
rvi
ce
 

fin
an
ce
 SL

A, 
co
mm

en
cin

g  
fro

m 
the

 1s
t  o
f A

pri
l 2
01
0. 
Th

es
e a

dd
itio

na
l 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 w
ill e

na
ble

 fo
r a

gre
ed
 ac

tio
ns
 to
 be

 tra
ck
ed
 an

d 
im
ple

me
nte

d b
y S

ch
oo
ls 
Fin

an
ce
 te
am

 in
clu

din
g e

vid
en
ce
 of
 ac

tio
ns
 ta
ke
n 

wh
ere

 ap
pro

pri
ate

, w
ith
in 
a t
im
efr

am
e t
ha
t re

fle
cts

 de
live

ry 
da
tes

 fo
r 

ag
ree

d a
cti
on
s. 

Th
e s

ch
oo
l h
as
 ag

ree
d t
o c

om
ple

te 
all
 ac

tio
ns
 by

 th
e 2

2nd
 of
 M
arc

h 2
01
0, 

ma
jor
ity
 of
 th
es
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s h

av
e a

lre
ad
y b

ee
n a

cti
on
ed
 to
 da

te.
  

Th
e a

ud
it r
ep
ort

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 w
ere

 ad
de
d t
o t
he
 Sc

ho
ols

 Fi
na
nc
e 

co
mm

itte
e a

ge
nd
a i
n J

an
ua
ry 
20
10
 an

d t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 fo
rw
ard

 un
til 
an
 

ac
ce
pta

ble
 cl
os
ure

 ha
s b

ee
n a

gre
ed
 an

d r
ati
fie
d b

y t
he
 Fu

ll G
ov
ern

ing
 

Bo
dy
 fo
r e

ac
h i
tem

. 
 A f

urt
he
r c
he
ck
 w
ill b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t b
y t
he
 au

dit
or,

 la
ter

 in
 th
e y

ea
r to

 en
su
re 

me
as
ure

s h
av
e b

ee
n e

ffe
cti
ve
. 

 W
e h

av
e w

ritt
en
 to
 th
e s

ch
oo
l fo

rm
all
y t
o a

sk
 w
ha
t a
dd
itio

na
l s
tep

s t
he
 

sc
ho
ol 
pla

ns
 to
 ta
ke
 in
 lig

ht 
of 
the

 au
dit
 fin

din
gs
 an

d s
pe
cif
ica

lly,
 fo
r th

e 
sc
ho
ol 
to 
tak

e i
mm

ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in
 m
itig

ati
ng
 ex

po
su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f
rom

 
we

ak
ne
ss
es
 in
 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Nil

 

Page 67



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lim
ite

d A
ss
ur
an

ce
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Le
ga
l P

lan
nin

g 
Me

eti
ng
s o

n 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti
on
  

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

No
v 

20
09
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

thi
s 
au
dit
 w

as
 to

 a
ss
ure

 m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ha
t t
he
re 

we
re 

so
un
d 

sy
ste

ms
 in

 p
lac

e 
to 

pla
n, 

co
ntr

ol,
 m

an
ag
e 

an
d 

mo
nit
or 

leg
al 

pla
nn
ing

 m
ee
tin
gs
 on

 ch
ild
 pr

ote
cti
on
 is
su
es
.  T

he
 fo
llo
win

g w
as
 re

po
rte

d:-
 

 Of
fic
ers

 a
re 

req
uir
ed
 to

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h 
sta

tut
ory

 g
uid

an
ce
 (C

hil
dre

n’s
 A
ct 

-
19
89
) 
an
d 

the
 J
ud
icia

l P
rot

oc
ols

 (
Pu

bli
c 
La
w 

Ou
tlin

e) 
wh

en
 d

ec
idi
ng
 

wh
eth

er 
the

 Lo
ca
l A

uth
ori
ty 
is 
to 

ma
ke
 an

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n t
o C

ou
rt f

or 
a c

are
 or

 
su
pe
rvi
sio

n o
rde

r. A
lth
ou
gh
 Le

ga
l S

erv
ice

s h
av
e a

n O
ffic

e M
an
ua
l in

 pl
ac
e 

wh
ich

 co
mp

lie
s w

ith
 Le

xc
el 
sta

nd
ard

s, 
we

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
re 

wa
s n

o s
pe
cif
ic 

wr
itte

n 
de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 p

roc
ed
ure

 fo
r p

lan
nin

g, 
co
ntr

oll
ing

 a
nd
 m

an
ag
ing

 
Le
ga
l P

lan
nin

g 
Me

eti
ng
s. 

 S
tep

s 
ha
d 

be
en
 t
ak
en
 t
o 

do
cu
me

nt 
the

 
pro

ce
du
res

 fo
r th

e p
urp

os
es
 of
 th
e F

ram
ew

ork
-I w

ork
flo
w.
   

 Ov
era

ll, 
we

 h
av
e 

rep
ort

ed
 th

at 
sy
ste

ms
 fo

r 
ad
mi
nis

ter
ing

, m
an
ag
ing

, 
co
ntr

oll
ing

 a
nd
 m

on
ito
rin
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 w

ere
 in

 p
lac

e, 
bu
t d

uri
ng
 o

ur 
tes

tin
g 
we

 fo
un
d 
ca
se
s o

f n
on
-co

mp
lia
nc
e 
wit

h 
sy
ste

ms
 a
nd
 p
roc

ed
ure

s 
wh

ich
 
ca
n 

inc
rea

se
 
the

 
ex
po
su
re 

to 
un
ne
ce
ss
ary

 
ris
ks
. 

 
Ou

r 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s, 

the
ref

ore
, w

ere
 a
rou

nd
 re

inf
orc

ing
 th

e 
req

uir
em

en
t t
o 

co
mp

ly 
wit

h 
int
ern

al 
co
ntr

ols
 e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 b
y m

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g 
the

 m
on
ito
rin
g p

roc
ed
ure

s, 
so
 th

at 
no
n-c

om
pli
an
ce
 is
su
es
 ca

n b
e d

ete
cte

d 
an
d p

rev
en
ted

 pr
om

ptl
y. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e A

ss
ist
an
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 (L

eg
al 
Se

rvi
ce
s) 
an
d H

ea
d o

f L
eg
al 
Se

rvi
ce
s –

 C
om

mu
nit
y. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

Page 68



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Le
ga
l P

lan
nin

g 
Me

eti
ng
s o

n 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti
on
  

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

No
v 

20
09
 

  M
an

ag
em

en
t A

cti
on

 
 Th

is 
au
dit
 w

as
 re

qu
es
ted

 b
y L

eg
al 

se
rvi
ce
s 
as
 w

e 
ha
ve
 im

ple
me

nte
d 
a 

ne
w 
inn

ov
ati
ve
 w
ay
 to

 re
co
rd 

an
d t

rac
k t
he
 Le

ga
l P

lan
nin

g m
ee
tin
g (

wh
ich

 
is 

a 
ke
y 
ste

p 
pri
or 

to 
se
ek
ing

 a
 c
are

 o
rde

r). 
W
e 
ha
ve
 e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 a
 

wo
rkf
low

 on
 fra

me
wo

rk 
i a
nd
 ou

r o
wn

 da
ta 

tim
e r

ec
ord

ing
 so

ftw
are

 fo
r th

is 
in 
ord

er 
to 

rec
ord

 th
e a

dv
ice

 an
d e

ns
ure

 it 
is 
tim

ely
 so

 th
e r

isk
 of

 fa
ilu
re 

is 
av
oid

ed
 w
ith
 th

es
e c

he
ck
s a

nd
 ba

lan
ce
s. 
Th

is 
is 
a p

ilo
t a

nd
 ha

s n
ot 

be
en
 

do
ne
 a
t o

the
r b

oro
ug
h 
leg

al 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts.
 In

 th
e 
na
tur

e 
of 

the
se
 n
ew

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 th

e a
ud
it h

elp
ful
ly 
po
int
ed
 ou

t w
he
re 

off
ice

rs 
ha
d n

ot 
co
mp

let
ed
 

for
ms

 p
rop

erl
y 
e.g

. d
ate

s 
or 

sig
na
tur

es
 m

iss
ing

 a
nd
 p

oin
ted

 o
ut 

tha
t 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 h

ad
 g

ap
s 

the
se
 i
ss
ue
s 

ha
ve
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

ac
ted

 u
po
n 

in 
an
tic
ipa

tio
n o

f a
 6 
mo

nth
s r
ev
iew

. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

  

Page 69



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
us
eh
old

 
W
as
te 

Re
cy
clin

g  
 Co

ntr
ac
t 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
  

 

Fe
b 

20
10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to

 as
su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t th
e s

ys
tem

s i
n 

pla
ce
 fo
r c
on
tro

llin
g a

nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g t
he
 co

ntr
ac
t w

ere
 so

un
d, 
ad
eq
ua
te 
an
d 

se
cu
re.

  W
e f

ou
nd
 th

at 
the

 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 

cle
ar 

po
licy

 on
 ho

us
eh
old

 w
as
te 

rec
yc
lin
g. 
 Th

is 
is 
a h

igh
 pr

ior
ity
 se

rvi
ce
 to
 m
ee
t s
tat
uto

ry 
ho
us
eh
old

 w
as
te 

rec
yc
lin
g 
tar

ge
ts 

an
d 
ma

ng
e 
the

 in
cre

as
ing

 c
os
ts 

of 
lan

d 
filli

ng
.  

Th
e 

fol
low

ing
 is
su
es
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 No
 w

ritt
en
 c
on
tra

ct 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 p
roc

ed
ure

s 
we

re 
in 

pla
ce
 a
nd
 c
on
tra

ct 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 w
as
 no

t b
ein

g u
nd
ert

ak
en
 on

 a 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 ba

sis
.  T

he
re 

wa
s 

a 
ge
ne
ral
 la

ck
 o
f c

lar
ity
 o
n 
the

 le
ve
l o

f m
on
ito
rin
g 
req

uir
ed
 a
s 
a 
ris
k 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
ha
d 

no
t b

ee
n 

un
de
rta

ke
n 

to 
tar

ge
t t

he
 c

riti
ca
l a

rea
s 
for

 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 p

urp
os
es
. R

ole
s 

an
d 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
ha
d 

no
t b

ee
n 

cle
arl
y 

as
sig

ne
d 
an
d 
so
me

 st
ab
ility

 in
 se

nio
r m

an
ag
em

en
t p

os
itio

ns
 p
rov

idi
ng
 a
 

co
nti
nu
ou
s l
ea
d a

nd
 pr

es
en
ce
 on

 a 
wh

ole
 sp

ec
tru

m 
of 

wa
ste

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

se
rvi
ce
s w

as
 re

qu
ire
d. 
 

 Ou
r r
ev
iew

 al
so
 fo

un
d t

ha
t e

rro
rs 

ha
d b

ee
n m

ad
e i

n m
ak
ing

 pa
ym

en
ts 

to 
the

 co
ntr

ac
tor

. W
e w

ere
 un

cle
ar 

as
 to

 w
he
the

r p
ay
me

nts
 to

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
r 

we
re 

be
ing

 m
ad
e i

n a
cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 th

e c
on
tra

ct 
pri
ce
s. 

Co
ntr

ols
 ar

ou
nd
 

inv
oic

e 
ch
ec
kin

g, 
ap
pro

va
l 
an
d 

ce
rtif
ica

tio
n 

ne
ed
ed
 t
o 

be
 i
mp

rov
ed
 

sig
nif
ica

ntl
y. 

Va
ria
tio
n c

on
tro

l w
as
 w
ea
k. 

 M
ajo

r v
ari
ati
on
s t

o t
he
 co

ntr
ac
t 

we
re 

no
t s
up
po
rte

d b
y v

ari
ati
on
 or

de
rs 

an
d f

ina
nc
ial
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 w
ere

 no
t 

be
ing

 a
ss
es
se
d 

an
d 

rec
ord

ed
. A

ud
it 
tra

il 
be
tw
ee
n 

fin
an
cia

l c
os
t o

f a
 

va
ria
tio
n a

nd
 in
vo
ice

 pa
ym

en
t fo

r th
at 
va
ria
tio
n n

ee
de
d t
o b

e i
mp

rov
ed
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 a
gre

ed
 w
ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

Pu
bli
c R

ea
lm
. 

 

£2
.7M

 
Lim

ite
d 

  

Page 70



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
us
eh
old

 
W
as
te 

Re
cy
clin

g  
 Co

ntr
ac
t 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
  

 

Fe
b 

20
10
 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

cti
on

 
 A 
co
ntr

ac
t m

on
ito
rin
g m

an
ua
l h
as
 be

en
 pr

od
uc
ed
 an

d w
ill f

orm
 th
e b

as
is 
of 

fut
ure

 c
on
tra

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
me

eti
ng
s. 

Th
es
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
sc
he
du
led

 o
n 

bo
th 

an
 o

pe
rat

ion
al 

an
d 

str
ate

gic
 b

as
is.
 It

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

no
ted

 th
at 

the
 

inv
es
tm
en
ts 

wit
hin

 th
e 
rec

yc
lin
g 
se
rvi
ce
 a
nd
 cl
os
e 
wo

rki
ng
 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

wit
h 
the

 c
on
tra

ct 
ha
ve
 s
ee
n 
a 
do
ub
lin
g 
of 

rec
yc
lin
g 
wit

hin
 th

e 
bo
rou

gh
 

sin
ce
 20

07
 an

d t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 ha

s, 
in 
bo
th 
20
08
/09

 an
d 2

00
9/1

0 e
xc
ee
de
d i
ts 

LA
A 
tar

ge
t f
or 

rec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y f

ore
ca
ste

d 
to 

de
live

r o
ve
r 2

6%
 

rec
yc
lin
g a

cro
ss
 th
e b

oro
ug
h. 

 Th
e c

on
tra

ct 
do
cu
me

nts
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ag

ree
d a

nd
 si
gn
ed
 by

 bo
th 
pa
rtie

s a
nd
 

a 
ful
l a

ss
es
sm

en
t o

f a
ll 
va
ria
tio
n 
ord

ers
 is

 in
 p
rog

res
s. 

W
hil
st 

sp
ec
ific

 
ref

ere
nc
es
 h

av
e 

be
en
 m

ad
e 

to 
the

 la
ck
 o

f s
uit
ab
le 

da
tab

as
es
 fo

r a
ll 

ex
ist
ing

 p
rop

ert
ies

, i
t s

ho
uld

 b
e 

no
ted

 th
at 

the
 n

um
be
r o

f c
om

pla
int
s 

rel
ati
ng
 to
 m
iss

 co
lle
cti
on
s i
s l
ow

. T
he
 fa
ct 
tha

t p
rop

ert
ies

 do
 no

t a
pp
ea
r o

n 
a 
da
tab

as
e 
do
es
 n
ot 

sto
p 
the

 p
rac

tic
al 

co
lle
cti
on
 o
f r
ec
yc
lat
es
 fr
om

 th
e 

res
ide

nt.
  

 Th
e 
co
ntr

ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 ri
sk
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t d

oc
um

en
ts 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

str
uc
tur

ed
 to

 re
fle
ct 

the
 w

ork
 o
f t
he
 n
ew

 c
lea

n 
an
d 
gre

en
 d
ivis

ion
 a
nd
 

cle
arl
y s

ets
 o
ut 

rol
es
 a
nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 a
cro

ss
 th

e 
se
rvi
ce
. P

erm
an
en
t 

sta
ff 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ap
po
int
ed
 a
t a

 se
nio

r l
ev
el 

wit
hin

 th
e 
bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 th

e 
wid

er 
str
uc
tur

e 
wil

l 
no
w 

be
 a

dd
res

se
d 

as
 p

art
 o

f 
the

 n
ex
t 
ph
as
e 

org
an
isa

tio
na
l c
ha
ng
e. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

 

Page 71



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
us
eh
old

 
W
as
te 

Re
cy
clin

g  
 Co

ntr
ac
t 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
  

 

Fe
b 

20
10
 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

cti
on

 (c
on

tin
ue

d) 
 Co

ntr
ols

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 fin

an
cia

l p
ay
me

nts
 w
ere

 in
 pl
ac
e a

t th
e t
im
e o

f th
e 

au
dit
, h
ow

ev
er 

the
se
 w
ere

 la
rge

ly 
dri
ve
n b

y o
ur 

fin
an
ce
 gr

ou
p. 
Th

e I
nte

rim
 

He
ad
 of
 C
lea

n a
nd
 G
ree

n h
as
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
wo

rk 
wit

h t
he
 fin

an
ce
 

se
cti
on
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t a
ll v

ari
ati
on
s a

re 
co
ste

d a
nd
 re

co
rds

 ar
e m

ain
tai
ne
d. 
 

 In 
20
10
-11

 th
e c

on
tro

l o
f fi
na
nc
es
 w
ill b

e m
uc
h m

ore
 cl
os
ely

 m
on
ito
red

 w
ith
 

the
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of

 th
e n

ew
 C
lea

n a
nd
 G
ree

n d
ivis

ion
 an

d t
he
 ap

po
int
me

nt 
of 

a p
erm

an
en
t s
erv

ice
 he

ad
. D

uri
ng
 th

e c
om

ing
 m

on
ths

 de
tai
led

 w
ork

 w
ill 

be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
wit

h o
ffic

ers
 in
 th

e d
ivis

ion
 to

 en
su
re 

tha
t p

rop
er 

pro
ce
du
res

 
are

 m
ain

tai
ne
d a

nd
 fo

llo
we

d, 
als

o t
ha
t th

e o
rig
ina

l c
on
tra

ct 
do
cu
me

nts
 ar

e 
fol
low

ed
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 to
 th
e c

on
tra

ct 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 m
an
ua
l. 

 Re
sp
on
sib

le 
off
ice

rs 
wil

l b
e m

on
ito
red

 m
on
thl
y a

t 1
-2-

1's
 to
 en

su
re 

bu
dg
ets

 
are

 a
cc
ura

te 
an
d 
pro

jec
tio
ns
 a
re 

reg
ula

rly
 p
rov

ide
d 
to 

fin
an
ce
. F

or 
the

 
cu
rre

nt 
ye
ar 

it i
s f
ore

ca
st 
tha

t th
e s

erv
ice

 w
ill 
sh
ow

 an
 en

d o
f y
ea
r o

utt
urn

 
wit

hin
 its

 bu
dg
et 
an
d m

ee
t it
s k

ey
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs.
 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

Page 72



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
an
d 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

Pa
rki
ng
 Pe

rm
its
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

      

Ja
n. 

20
10
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to
 as

su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t th
e s

ys
tem

s f
or 

co
ntr

oll
ing

, m
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 
iss

uin
g 
of 

all
 ty

pe
s 
of 

pa
rki
ng
 p
erm

its
 w

ere
 

so
un
d, 
se
cu
re 

an
d a

de
qu
ate

.  T
he
 fo
llo
win

g i
ss
ue
s w

ere
 re

po
rte

d:-
 

 Ge
ne
ral
ly 

On
e 

Sto
p 

Sh
op
s 

we
re 

ma
kin

g 
ste

ad
y 

pro
gre

ss
 i
n 

the
 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n 
an
d 
iss

ue
 o
f p

erm
its
 a
nd
 s
cra

tch
 c
ard

s 
wit

hin
 th

e 
po
licy

 
gu
ide

lin
es
 se

t b
y C

LC
.  O

pe
rat

ion
al 
pro

ce
du
res

 ha
d b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d b

y t
he
 

Pa
rki
ng
 H

ea
d 
Of
fic
e. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 a
 p
oli
cy
 fr
am

ew
ork

 fo
r p

ark
ing

 p
erm

its
 

ne
ed
ed
 to

 b
e 
de
ve
lop

ed
 a
nd
 a
pp
rov

ed
.. 
 W

e 
rep

ort
ed
 th

at 
the

 re
sid

en
t 

pe
rm

it a
pp
lica

tio
n f

orm
 a
llo
ws

 fo
r n

on
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 re
sid

en
ts 

to 
ob
tai
n 

Re
sid

en
t p
erm

its
 - t

he
re 

are
 so

me
 22

1 R
es
ide

nt 
pe
rm

its
 is
su
ed
 to
 ve

hic
les

 
no
t re

gis
ter

ed
 an

d /
 or

 in
su
red

 to
 a 
LB

TH
 ad

dre
ss
.  

 W
e w

ere
 un

ab
le 
to 
as
ce
rta

in 
if t
he
 ap

pli
ca
nt’
s p

roo
f o

f re
sid

en
cy
 ha

d b
ee
n 

ch
ec
ke
d a

ga
ins

t c
ou
nc
il t
ax
 re

co
rds

 as
 th

is 
co
uld

 no
t b

e e
vid

en
ce
d d

ue
 to

 
po
orl
y 

de
sig

ne
d 

for
ms

. 
In 

ord
er 

to 
ma

na
ge
 a

n 
ini
tia
l h

igh
 le

ve
l o

f 
pro

ce
ss
ing

 e
rro

rs,
 m

on
thl
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 M

an
ag
em

en
t 
Re

po
rts
 w

ere
 

pro
du
ce
d 
on
 th

e 
ac
cu
rac

y o
f p

erm
its
 p
roc

es
se
d 
an
d 
the

re 
ha
s b

ee
n 
an
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ov
er 

a p
eri
od
.  H

ow
ev
er,

 w
e h

igh
lig
hte

d a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sy
ste

ms
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 ar

ou
nd
 po

licy
 an

d f
ina

nc
ial
 ac

co
un
tab

ility
 at

 th
e P

ark
ing

 H
ea
d 

Of
fic
e l
ev
el 
wh

ich
 ca

n p
ut 
the

 sy
ste

ms
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 at
 ris

k. 
 All
 fi
nd
ing

s 
an
d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d  

En
vir
on
me

nta
l C

on
tro

l. 
   

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 73



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
an
d 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

Pa
rki
ng
 Pe

rm
its
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

      

Ja
n. 

20
10
 

  M
an

ag
em

en
t A

cti
on

 
 Th

e 
au
dit
 in

sp
ec
tio
n 
ide

nti
fie
d 
tha

t a
 n
ew

 p
oli
cy
 fr
am

ew
ork

 fo
r p

ark
ing

 
pe
rm

its
 n
ee
de
d 
to 

be
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 
an
d 
ap
pro

ve
d 
as
 th

ere
 a
re 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

for
m 

all
ow

s 
for

 n
on
 T

H 
res

ide
nts

 to
 o
bta

in 
res

ide
nt 

pe
rm

its
 a
nd
 it
 is

 
es
tim

ate
d t

ha
t s

om
e 2

21
 pe

rm
its
 ha

ve
 be

en
 is
su
ed
 to

 ve
hic

les
 re

gis
ter

ed
 

ou
tsi
de
 th
e b

oro
ug
h. 

 
 As

 pa
rt o

f th
e P

ark
ing

 Fe
es
 &
 C
ha
rge

s r
ep
ort

 pr
es
en
ted

 to
 C
ab
ine

t o
n 1

0th
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 it 

wa
s a

gre
ed
 to

 no
 lo

ng
er 

ac
ce
pt 

an
 in

su
ran

ce
 ce

rtif
ica

te 
as
 a 

na
me

d d
riv
er 

to 
ob
tai
n a

 pa
rki
ng
 pe

rm
it. 

As
 a 

res
ult
 pa

rki
ng
 of

fic
ers

 
are

 no
w 
am

en
din

g t
he
 re

sid
en
t p

ark
ing

 pe
rm

it a
pp
lica

tio
n f

orm
 to

 re
mo

ve
 

the
 n
am

ed
 d
riv
er 

on
 th

e 
ins

ura
nc
e 
ce
rtif
ica

te 
as
 a
n 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 p
roo

f o
f 

ve
hic

le.
 T
his

 m
ea
ns
 th

at 
in 
fut
ure

 th
e m

ain
 pr

oo
f o

f v
eh
icle

 w
ill 
be
 th

e U
K 

reg
ist
rat

ion
 ce

rtif
ica

te 
(V
5C

) w
hic

h 
mu

st 
be
 re

gis
ter

ed
 a
t t
he
ir a

dd
res

s i
n 

the
 bo

rou
gh
. A

 co
ns
eq
ue
nc
e o

f th
is 
wil

l b
e t

o r
ed
uc
e t

he
 ris

k o
f fr

au
d  

e.g
. 

the
 22

1 p
erm

its
 id
en
tifi
ed
 w
ill n

o l
on
ge
r b

e i
ss
ue
d. 

    
 

Th
e a

ud
it i
ns
pe
cti
on
 id
en
tifi
ed
 a 

we
ak
ne
ss
 in
 th

e d
es
ign

 of
 th

e a
pp
lica

tio
n 

for
m,
 as

 it 
did

 no
t a

pp
ea
r t
o i

nd
ica

te 
if t

he
 pr

oc
es
sin

g o
ffic

e h
ad
 ch

ec
ke
d 

the
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 sy

ste
m 

to 
eit
he
r v

eri
fy 

the
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 re

f n
um

be
r o

r t
o 

sh
ow

 if 
a 
ch
ec
k h

ad
 b
ee
n 
ma

de
. A

s a
 d
ire
ct 

res
ult
 th

e 
Re

sid
en
t P

erm
it 

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n F

orm
 “o

ffic
ial
 us

e s
ec
tio
n” 

ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 up

da
ted

 to
 in
clu

de
 a 

se
cti
on
 fo

r t
he
 P
roc

es
sin

g 
Of
fic
er 

to 
ind

ica
te 

if t
he
 a
pp
lica

nt 
is 

lia
ble

 fo
r 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x. 
 In

 ad
dit
ion

, th
e r

es
ide

nt 
Pe

rm
it P

roc
es
s M

ap
 m

ak
es
 it 

cle
ar 

tha
t th

e C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 S
ys
tem

 m
us
t b

e c
he
ck
ed
 as

 a 
ma

tte
r o

f c
ou
rse

. A
n 

ad
va
nta

ge
 of

 th
is 
ch
an
ge
 is
 th

at 
we

 ca
n n

ow
 be

 m
uc
h m

ore
 pr

oa
cti
ve
 in

 
pre

ve
nti
ng
 a
nd
 d
ete

cti
ng
 fr
au
d, 

as
 w
ell
 a
s s

ha
rin
g 
inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ith
 o
the

r 
dir
ec
tor

ate
s. 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 74



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
an
d 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

Pa
rki
ng
 Pe

rm
its
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

      

Ja
n. 

20
10
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n (

co
nti

nu
ed

) 
 Fin

all
y t
he
 au

dit
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

lso
 id
en
tifi
ed
 th
at 
no
 re

co
nc
ilia

tio
n b

etw
ee
n t
he
 

pa
rki
ng
 p

erm
it 

sy
ste

m 
an
d 

the
 A

IM
s 

pa
ym

en
t 
sy
ste

m 
wa

s 
be
ing

 
un
de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he
 O
ne
 S
top

 Sh
op
 O
ffic

ers
 at
 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
e w

ork
ing

 da
y i
n 

ord
er 

to 
rec

on
cile

 th
eir
 ta

kin
gs
. T

his
 m

ea
nt 

tha
t i
rre

gu
lar
itie

s 
we

re 
no
t 

be
ing

 id
en
tifi
ed
 pr

om
ptl
y o

r c
orr

ec
tiv
e a

cti
on
 be

ing
 ta

ke
n o

n t
he
 sa

me
 da

y. 
To

 ad
dre

ss
 th

is 
sit
ua
tio
n t

he
 P
ark

ing
 P
erm

its
 m

an
ag
er 

ha
s i
ns
tru

cte
d I

T t
o 

un
de
rta

ke
 ch

an
ge
s t
o t
he
 PC

RM
 (p

erm
its
 da

tab
as
e) 

to 
be
 m
od
ifie

d i
n o

rde
r 

to 
ge
ne
rat

e a
 da

ily 
loc

ati
on
 an

d/o
r O

ffic
er 

tra
ns
ac
tio
n r

ep
ort

. T
his

 w
ill s

erv
e 

to 
rec

on
cile

 th
e 
sta

nd
ard

 A
IM
S 
rep

ort
, w

hic
h 
is 

alr
ea
dy
 a
va
ila
ble

 to
 th

e 
On

e S
top

 Sh
op
 te
am

 le
ad
ers

. 
  All
 o
f t
he
 m

att
ers

 ra
ise

d 
in 

au
dit
 in

sp
ec
tio
n 
rep

ort
 w

ill 
be
 a
dd
res

se
d 
or 

im
ple

me
nte

d b
y t
he
 1s

t  A
pri
l 2
01
0. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 75



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 

to 
De

ca
nte

d 
Dw

ell
ing

s i
n 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te 

Ja
n 

20
10
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

t m
an
ag
em

en
t re

qu
es
t to

 ex
am

ine
 th
e c

on
tro

ls 
ov
er 

the
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f d
ec
an
ts 
wh

ich
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly
 su

bje
ct 
to 
de
mo

litio
n 

as
 pa

rt o
f O

ce
an
 Es

tat
e R

eg
en
era

tio
n. 
Th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 is
su
es
 w
ere

 ra
ise

d:-
 

Th
ere

 w
ere

 n
o 
wr
itte

n 
pro

ce
du
res

 fo
r s

ec
uri
ng
 a
nd
 d
ec
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

dw
ell
ing

s e
arm

ark
ed
 fo
r d

ec
an
tin
g. 
 Th

e I
nte

rim
 N
eig

hb
ou
rho

od
 H
ou
sin

g 
Ma

na
ge
r s

ub
se
qu
en
tly
 en

su
red

 th
at 

all
 vo

ids
 m

ark
ed
 fo

r d
ec
an
tin
g w

ere
 

str
ipp

ed
 ou

t a
nd
 se

cu
red

 an
d a

 co
ntr

ac
t w

as
 le
t to

 ca
rry

 ou
t th

es
e w

ork
s. 
 

An
oth

er 
co
mp

an
y w

as
 p
rov

idi
ng
 2
4 
ho
ur 

pa
tro

ls 
at 

the
 O

ce
an
 E
sta

te.
  

Ho
we

ve
r, 
thi
s w

ork
 w

as
 n
ot 

co
mp

eti
tiv
ely

 te
nd
ere

d, 
the

re 
sh
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 

be
en
 a

 c
lea

r 
co
ntr

ac
t s

pe
cif
ica

tio
n 

an
d 

the
 c

on
tra

ctu
al 

rel
ati
on
sh
ip 

sh
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
cle

ar 
to 

pro
vid

e 
a 
ba
sis

 fo
r s

trin
ge
nt 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 to

 
ma

na
ge
 ris

ks
 of
 pa

yin
g f
or 

un
ne
ce
ss
ary

 an
d d

up
lica

te 
se
cu
rity

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

 Au
dit
 w
as
 ad

vis
ed
 th
at 
TH

H 
we

re 
req

ue
ste

d b
y t
he
 cl
ien

t to
 pr

ov
ide

 th
es
e 

se
rvi
ce
s 

as
 t
he
re 

we
re 

no
 c

lie
nt 

se
cu
rity

 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

in 
pla

ce
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 

no
 fo

rm
al 

fun
din

g 
arr

an
ge
me

nt 
wa

s 
pu
t i
n 
pla

ce
 a
nd
 T

HH
 

be
ga
n t

o i
nc
ur 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

wit
ho
ut 

a f
orm

ali
se
d b

ud
ge
t.  

W
e n

ote
d t

ha
t 

the
 co

st 
of 

sit
e 
se
cu
rity

 a
t t
he
 tim

e 
of 

au
dit
 w
as
 so

me
 £
49
0,2

00
 w
hic

h 
wa

s 
an
 u

nfa
vo
ura

ble
 v
ari
an
ce
. W

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 th

at 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
sh
ou
ld 

clo
se
ly 

mo
nit
or 

thi
s 

sit
ua
tio
n 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 
thi
s 

lev
el 

of 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

wa
s a

ffo
rda

ble
 an

d g
oo
d v

alu
e f
or 

mo
ne
y. 

 All
 fi
nd
ing

s 
an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r o
f 

Ho
us
ing

 a
nd
 C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s 
an
d 
fin
din

gs
 w

ere
 re

po
rte

d 
to 

LB
TH

 
Cli

en
t. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 76



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 

to 
De

ca
nte

d 
Dw

ell
ing

s i
n 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te 

Ja
n 

20
10
 

 Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n  

 
• 

W
ritt
en
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s a
re 

no
w 
in 
pla

ce
 fo
r s
ec
uri
ng
 an

d 
de
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

op
ert

ies
 ea

rm
ark

ed
 fo
r d

ec
an
tin
g. 
 

• 
At 

the
 en

d o
f D

ec
em

be
r a

 co
ntr

ac
t fo

r th
e d

og
 pa

tro
ls 
wa

s a
gre

ed
 

an
d i
s i
n p

lac
e. 
 W

e h
av
e a

gre
em

en
t fr

om
 th
e C

ou
nc
il t
ha
t a
dd
itio

na
l 

co
sts

 in
 ex

ce
ss
 of
 22

5,0
00
 w
ill b

e m
et 
by
 th
em

 as
 th
e e

xtr
a s

ec
uri
ty 

co
sts

 ar
e o

ve
r a

nd
 ab

ov
e a

llo
wa

nc
es
 in
 th
e m

an
ag
em

en
t 

ag
ree

me
nt.
 TH

H 
Fin

an
ce
 of
fic
ers

 ar
e i
n t
he
 pr

oc
es
s o

f ra
isin

g t
he
 

inv
oic

e t
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il. 
 

• 
Mo

nth
ly 
inv

oic
es
 pr

od
uc
ed
 by

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
r p

rov
idi
ng
 th
e d

og
 

pa
tro

ls 
are

 no
w 
pro

vid
ing

 gr
ea
ter

 cl
ari
ty 
on
 th
e l
ev
el 
an
d f
req

ue
nc
y 

of 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 (a

s d
efi
ne
d i
n t
he
 co

ntr
ac
t) a

nd
 th
is 
is 
ch
ec
ke
d b

y t
he
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d M

an
ag
er 

be
for

e s
ign

 of
f. 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 77



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 

to 
Vo

id 
Dw

ell
ing

s 
  

Ja
n 

20
10
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

t m
an
ag
em

en
t re

qu
es
t.  
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 w
as
 to
 

ex
am

ine
 s
ys
tem

s 
for

 c
on
tro

llin
g 
ke
ys
 to

 v
oid

 d
we

llin
gs
 a
cro

ss
 a
ll f

ou
r 

ho
us
ing

 a
rea

s 
an
d 
ma

ke
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 to

 im
pro

ve
 c
on
tro

l. 
 T

he
 

fol
low

ing
 fin

din
gs
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 Ou
r te

sti
ng
 sh

ow
ed
 th
at 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
wa

s r
eq
uir
ed
 in
 th
e c

on
tro

l 
an
d s

ec
uri
ty 
of 

vo
id 
ke
ys
 ac

ros
s a

ll H
ou
sin

g A
rea

s. 
 Th

ere
 w
ere

 no
 w
ritt
en
 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r g

uid
ing

 o
ffic

ers
 o
n 
ke
y c

on
tro

l is
su
es
.  
In 

the
 a
bs
en
ce
 of

 
cle

ar 
pro

ce
du
res

, t
he
re 

wa
s 
a 

ris
k 
tha

t i
nc
on
sis

ten
t p

roc
ed
ure

s 
we

re 
de
plo

ye
d 
an
d 
ac
co
un
tab

ility
 w

as
 n
ot 

as
su
red

.  
Fu

rth
erm

ore
, o

nc
e 
ke
ys
 

we
re 

ha
nd
ed
 ov

er 
to 

Ho
us
ing

 S
erv

ice
s, 
ev
ide

nc
e w

as
 no

t a
lwa

ys
 he

ld 
on
 

the
 vo

id 
file

 to
 sh

ow
 th

at 
loc

ks
 w
ere

 be
ing

 ch
an
ge
d a

nd
 ne

w 
ke
ys
 bo

ok
ed
 

in.
 T
his

 c
an
 e
xp
os
e 
TH

H 
to 

un
ne
ce
ss
ary

 ra
ng
e 
of 

ris
ks
.  

So
me

 L
HO

’s 
we

re 
no
t h

old
ing

 vo
id 
ke
ys
 in
 se

cu
re 

loc
ka
ble

 ca
bin

et 
or 

res
tric

tin
g a

cc
es
s 

to 
vo
id 
ke
ys
.  T

he
re 

wa
s n

o m
on
ito
rin
g o

f v
oid

 ke
ys
 an

d h
en
ce
 ke

ys
 co

uld
 

be
 b
oo
ke
d 
ou
t f
or 

a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

da
ys
, w

ith
 n
o 
fol
low

 u
p 
ac
tio
n 
be
ing

 
un
de
rta

ke
n. 
 

 In 
so
me

 ca
se
s, 

the
 no

tic
e t

o t
erm

ina
te 

the
 te

na
nc
y h

ad
 be

en
 si
gn
ed
 an

d 
da
ted

 by
 th

e t
en
an
t o

nly
 an

d t
he
re 

wa
s n

o i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 on

 th
e V

2 f
orm

 to
 

co
nfi
rm

 w
he
the

r o
r n

ot 
Ho

us
ing

 S
erv

ice
s h

ad
 re

ce
ive

d t
he
 ke

ys
 ba

ck
 fro

m 
the

 te
na
nt.
 T
his

 ca
n 
res

ult
 in

 d
ilu
tio
n 
of 

ac
co
un
tab

ility
 a
s i

t c
ou
ld 

no
t b

e 
cle

arl
y i
de
nti
fie
d a

s t
o w

ho
 ac

ce
pte

d t
he
 ke

ys
 fro

m 
the

 te
na
nt.
   

 All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s. 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 78



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
of 
Ke

ys
 

to 
Vo

id 
Dw

ell
ing

s 
  

Ja
n 

20
10
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n  

 
• 

A r
ec
ord

 of
 vo

id 
loc

k c
ha
ng
es
 ar

e h
eld

 on
 th
e N

ort
hg
ate

 (S
X3

) 
sy
ste

m.
  T

he
re 

are
 w
ritt
en
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s c
lea

rly
 illu

str
ati
ng
 th
at 
loc

k 
ch
an
ge
s a

re 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
on
 al
l v
oid

s. 
• 

W
ritt
en
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s o
n k

ey
 co

ntr
ol 
ha
ve
 be

en
 is
su
ed
 to
 al
l M

an
ag
ers

 
an
d t
ea
ms

 in
 th
e H

ou
sin

g O
ffic

es
.  A

ll o
ffic

ers
 ha

ve
 be

en
 re

qu
es
ted

 
to 
sig

n a
 re

ce
ipt
.  S

po
t c
he
ck
s a

re 
be
ing

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
by
 m
an
ag
ers

 on
 

ke
y c

on
tro

l to
 en

su
re 

off
ice

rs 
are

 fo
llo
win

g k
ey
 co

ntr
ol 
pro

ce
du
res

 
   

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 79



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

St 
Ed

mu
nd
s 

Ca
tho

lic 
Pr
im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 

No
v. 

20
09
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
on
ito
rin
g a

ffa
irs
 of
 th
e s

ch
oo
l. 

Th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 fin

din
gs
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 
• 

Th
e S

ch
em

e o
f D

ele
ga
tio
ns
 do

cu
me

nt 
alt
ho
ug
h a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 th
e f
ull
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

ad
 no

t in
clu

de
d t

he
 m

ax
im
um

 de
leg

ate
d l

im
its
 to

 
the

 D
ep
uty

 H
ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d t
o t
he
 Fi
na
nc
e O

ffic
er.

 
 

• 
Sta

ff 
me

mb
ers

 w
ith
 f

ina
nc
ial
 r

es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
wit

h 
pu
rch

as
ing

 
inf
lue

nc
e a

lso
 ha

d n
ot 
co
mp

let
ed
 bu

sin
es
s d

ec
lar
ati
on
s. 

• 
At 

the
 tim

e o
f t
he
 a
ud
it t

he
re 

we
re 

no
 T
erm

s o
f R

efe
ren

ce
 fo

r t
he
 

Te
ac
hin

g a
nd
 Le

arn
ing

 C
om

mi
tte
e. 

• 
Th

e G
ov
ern

ing
 B
od
y m

inu
tes

 hi
gh
lig
hte

d t
ha
t th

e s
ch
oo
l is

 us
ing

 a 
cre

dit
 c

ard
 f
or 

pu
rch

as
e 

of 
go
od
s 

alt
ho
ug
h 

the
 u

se
 o

f 
de
bit
 

ca
rds

/cr
ed
it 

ca
rds

 is
 n

ot 
inc

lud
ed
 in

 t
he
 S

ch
oo
l’s 

Sc
he
me

 o
f 

De
leg

ati
on
s. 
Th

ere
 is
 no

 re
co
rd 

of 
the

 us
ers

 w
ho
 ar

e a
uth

ori
se
d t

o 
us
e 
the

 c
red

it 
ca
rd 

to 
ma

ke
 p
urc

ha
se
s 
an
d 
the

re 
are

 n
o 
cle

ar 
pro

toc
ols

 a
rou

nd
 re

co
nc
ilin

g 
cre

dit
 c
ard

 s
tat
em

en
ts 

to 
su
pp
ort

ing
 

do
cu
me

nts
. T

he
 c
red

it 
ca
rd 

sta
tem

en
ts 

sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
the

 re
lev

an
t 

inv
oic

es
 ha

d n
ot 
be
en
 au

tho
ris
ed
 by

 an
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 of
fic
er.

 
• 

At 
the

 tim
e o

f th
e a

ud
it t
he
 sc

ho
ol 
did

 no
t h
av
e a

 C
ha
rgi
ng
 Po

licy
. 

• 
Th

e s
ch
oo
l d
id 
no
t h
av
e a

n I
T P

oli
cy
 in
 pl
ac
e. 
 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

Page 80



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

St 
Ed

mu
nd
s 

Ca
tho

lic 
Pr
im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 

No
v. 

20
09
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n  

 Th
e s

ch
oo
l h
as
 ag

ree
d t
o c

om
ple

te 
all
 ac

tio
ns
 w
ith
 a 
de
fin
ed
 tim

efr
am

e. 
W
e 

ha
ve
 w

ritt
en
 t
o 

sc
ho
ols

 f
orm

all
y 

req
ue
sti
ng
 t
he
 s

ch
oo
l a

nd
 t
he
 

go
ve
rni
ng
 bo

dy
 to

 fu
lly 

co
mm

it t
o t

he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m

ad
e i
n t

he
 A
ud
it 

rep
ort

 by
:  

 • 
by
 tr
ac
kin

g 
all
 a
cti
on
s 
wit

hin
 th

e 
tim

efr
am

e 
pro

vid
ed
 in

 th
e 
rep

ort
, 

inc
lud

ing
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f a
cti
on
s t
ak
en
 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

  
• 

co
nfi
rm

 ad
dit
ion

al 
ste

ps
 th

at 
the

 sc
ho
ol 
are

 pl
an
nin

g t
o t
ak
e i
n l
igh

t o
f 

the
 au

dit
 fin

din
gs
  

• 
to 

tak
e i

mm
ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in

 m
itig

ati
ng
 ex

po
su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 in
 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 81



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ste
ph
en
 

Ha
wk

ing
 

Sp
ec
ial
  S

ch
oo
l 

 

Fe
b. 

20
10
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
on
ito
rin
g a

ffa
irs
 of
 th
e s

ch
oo
l. 

 Ma
in 

Co
ntr

ol 
St
ren

gth
s I
de

nti
fie

d: 
• 

Fin
an
cia

l P
lan

nin
g a

nd
 Bu

dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 

• 
Sc

ho
ol 
Me

als
 

• 
Vo

lun
tar

y F
un
d a

nd
 Sc

ho
ol 
Jo
urn

ey
; 

• 
Ris

k M
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 In
su
ran

ce
. 

 
Ma

in 
Co

ntr
ol 

We
ak
ne

ss
es
: 

 
• 

Du
e 
to 

a 
lac

k 
of 

ev
ide

nc
e 
the

 s
ch
oo
l c

ou
ld 

no
t d

em
on
str
ate

 th
at 

su
ffic

ien
t q

uo
tat
ion

s h
ad
 b
ee
n 
ob
tai
ne
d 
for

 th
ree

 p
roc

ure
me

nts
 in

 
ord

er 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 be

st 
va
lue

 as
 re

qu
ire
d b

y t
he
 S
ch
oo
l’s 

Pu
rch

as
ing

 
Po

licy
. 

 
• 

Th
e T

erm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 of
 co

mm
itte

es
 di
d n

ot 
sp
ec
ify
 th
e f
req

ue
nc
y 

of 
co
mm

itte
e m

ee
tin
gs
 or

 de
leg

ate
d f
ina

nc
ial
 lim

its
. 

 
• 

W
hil
st 

a r
eg
ist
er 

of 
bu
sin

es
s i
nte

res
t w

as
 in

 pl
ac
e, 

the
 de

cla
rat

ion
s 

of 
tw
elv

e g
ov
ern

ors
 w
ere

 ou
t o
f d
ate

. 
• 

Ba
nk
 m
an
da
te 
wa

s o
ut 
of 
da
te.
 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

   

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 82



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ste
ph
en
 

Ha
wk

ing
 

Sp
ec
ial
  S

ch
oo
l 

 

Fe
b. 

20
10
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n  

 Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en
ts;
 

Th
e s

ch
oo
l h
as
 ag

ree
d t
o c

om
ple

te 
all
 ac

tio
ns
 w
ith
 a 
de
fin
ed
 tim

efr
am

e. 
W
e 

ha
ve
 w

ritt
en
 t
o 

sc
ho
ols

 f
orm

all
y 

req
ue
sti
ng
 t
he
 s

ch
oo
l a

nd
 t
he
 

go
ve
rni
ng
 bo

dy
 to

 fu
lly 

co
mm

it t
o t

he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m

ad
e i
n t

he
 A
ud
it 

rep
ort

 by
:  

 • 
by
 tr
ac
kin

g 
all
 a
cti
on
s 
wit

hin
 th

e 
tim

efr
am

e 
pro

vid
ed
 in

 th
e 
rep

ort
, 

inc
lud

ing
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f a
cti
on
s t
ak
en
 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

  
• 

co
nfi
rm

 ad
dit
ion

al 
ste

ps
 th

at 
the

 sc
ho
ol 
are

 pl
an
nin

g t
o t
ak
e i
n l
igh

t o
f 

the
 au

dit
 fin

din
gs
  

• 
to 

tak
e i

mm
ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in

 m
itig

ati
ng
 ex

po
su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 in
 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

  

Page 83



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ha
rry

 R
ob
ert

s 
Nu

rse
ry 
Sc

ho
ol 

 
Fe

b. 
20
10
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
on
ito
rin
g a

ffa
irs
 of

 th
e s

ch
oo
l.  

Fo
llo
win

g 
iss

ue
s w

ere
 ra

ise
d:-

 
 

• 
Th

ere
 w
as
 no

 ev
ide

nc
e o

f th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f re

gu
lar
 bu

dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 

rep
ort

s t
o t
he
 Fi
na
nc
e a

nd
 G
en
era

l P
urp

os
es
 C
om

mi
tte
e. 
  

• 
Co

ntr
ols

 ov
er 

ord
eri
ng
 an

d c
ert

ific
ati
on
 of

 in
vo
ice

s w
ere

 fo
un
d t

o b
e 

we
ak
.  

• 
De

cla
rat

ion
s o

f in
ter

es
t h

ad
 no

t b
ee
n o

bta
ine

d f
rom

 th
ree

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 G
ov
ern

ing
 Bo

dy
.   

• 
Th

ere
 w
as
 no

 cl
ea
r li
nk
 be

tw
ee
n t
he
 re

so
urc

e c
om

mi
tm
en
ts 
de
tai
led

 
in 
the

 SD
P a

nd
 th
e a

pp
rov

ed
 an

nu
al 
bu
dg
et.
 

• 
Th

e s
ch
oo
l d
id 
 no

t p
rod

uc
e a

ny
 ca

sh
 flo

w 
for

ec
as
t re

po
rts
.   

• 
Pa

yro
ll r
ec
on
cili

ati
on
s h

av
e n

ot 
be
en
 co

mp
let
ed
 si
nc
e J

un
e 2

00
9. 

• 
Th

ere
 is
 no

 ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t th

e s
ch
oo
l h
as
 an

 ap
pro

ve
d P

ay
 Po

licy
. 

• 
W
hil
st 
the

 sc
ho
ol 
ma

int
ain

 an
 up

 to
 da

te 
inv

en
tor

y f
or 

IT 
eq
uip

me
nt 

we
 id

en
tifi
ed
 th

at 
no
n 
IC
T 
inv

en
tor

y 
ha
d 
no
t b

ee
n 
up
da
ted

 s
inc

e 
Ap

ril 
20
09
. 

 
All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s. 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 84



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ha
rry

 R
ob
ert

s 
Nu

rse
ry 
Sc

ho
ol 

 
Fe

b. 
20
10
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n  

 Th
e s

ch
oo
l h
as
 ag

ree
d t
o c

om
ple

te 
all
 ac

tio
ns
 w
ith
 a 
de
fin
ed
 tim

efr
am

e. 
W
e 

ha
ve
 w

ritt
en
 t
o 

sc
ho
ols

 f
orm

all
y 

req
ue
sti
ng
 t
he
 s

ch
oo
l a

nd
 t
he
 

go
ve
rni
ng
 bo

dy
 to

 fu
lly 

co
mm

it t
o t

he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m

ad
e i
n t

he
 A
ud
it 

rep
ort

 by
:  

 • 
by
 tr
ac
kin

g 
all
 a
cti
on
s 
wit

hin
 th

e 
tim

efr
am

e 
pro

vid
ed
 in

 th
e 
rep

ort
, 

inc
lud

ing
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f a
cti
on
s t
ak
en
 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

  
• 

co
nfi
rm

 ad
dit
ion

al 
ste

ps
 th

at 
the

 sc
ho
ol 
are

 pl
an
nin

g t
o t
ak
e i
n l
igh

t o
f 

the
 au

dit
 fin

din
gs
  

• 
to 

tak
e i

mm
ed
iat
e a

cti
on
 in

 m
itig

ati
ng
 ex

po
su
re 

to 
ris
ks
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 in
 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 85



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l A
ss
ur
an

ce
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

TH
H 
Fin

an
cia

l 
Sy

ste
ms

 
 

Fe
b 

20
10
 

Th
is 

au
dit
 s

ou
gh
t t

o 
pro

vid
e 

as
su
ran

ce
 th

at 
the

 c
om

pa
ny
’s 

fin
an
cia

l 
sy
ste

ms
 fo

r m
an
ag
ing

 th
e 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fee

 e
lem

en
t o

f t
he
 fu

nd
ing

 w
ere

 
so
un
d 

an
d 

se
cu
re.

  
Sy

ste
ms

 s
uc
h 

as
 c

red
ito
rs,
 d

eb
tor

s, 
tre

as
ury

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt,
 co

mp
an
y b

an
k a

cc
ou
nt 

an
d V

AT
 m

an
ag
em

en
t w

ere
 te

ste
d. 
 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
co
ntr

ol 
wa

s 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 a
s 
a 
se
pa
rat

e 
au
dit
.  

Th
e 
iss

ue
s 

rai
se
d a

re 
su
mm

ari
se
d b

elo
w:
- 

 Ov
era

ll, 
cre

dit
ors

 s
ys
tem

 n
ee
de
d 

so
me

 i
mp

rov
em

en
t. 

Co
ntr

ols
 f

or 
en
su
rin
g t
ha
t a
ll p

ay
me

nts
 w
ere

 ce
rtif
ied

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e S

ch
em

e o
f 

De
leg

ati
on
 n
ee
de
d 
im
pro

ve
me

nt.
  T

he
re 

wa
s r

isk
 o
f in

vo
ice

s b
ein

g 
pa
id 

wit
ho
ut 

ce
rtif
ica

tio
n a

nd
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s f
or 

ev
ide

nc
ing

, a
pp
rov

ing
 an

d p
ay
ing

 
ex
pe
ns
es
 to
 in
ter

im
 st
aff
 ne

ed
ed
 to
 be

 st
ren

gth
en
ed
.  .
 

 Ov
era

ll, 
ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n 
of 

VA
T 
wa

s a
de
qu
ate

, b
ut 

we
 re

co
mm

en
de
d 
tha

t 
VA

T r
etu

rns
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 in
de
pe
nd
en
tly
 ch

ec
ke
d a

nd
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 su

bm
itte

d b
y 

du
e 
da
te.
  I
n 
ad
dit
ion

, r
ec
on
cili

ati
on
 p
roc

es
s b

etw
ee
n 
VA

T 
pa
id 

an
d 
the

 
am

ou
nt 
rec

ord
ed
 on

 th
e G

en
era

l L
ed
ge
r s
ys
tem

 re
qu
ire
d i
mp

rov
em

en
t.  
 

 Tre
as
ury

 m
an
ag
em

en
t p

oli
cy
 w
as
 in

 p
lac

e 
an
d 
thi
s w

as
 n
ot 

a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ac
tiv
ity
 d
uri
ng
 th

e 
au
dit
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 
the

 c
urr

en
t B

an
k 
Ma

nd
ate

 re
qu
ire
d 

up
da
tin
g i
n o

rde
r to

 re
fle
ct 
the

 na
me

s a
nd
 de

sig
na
tio
n o

f th
e c

urr
en
t s
en
ior
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tea

m 
wit

h 
de
tai
ls 

of 
the

 le
ve
l o

f s
ign

ing
 a
uth

ori
ty 

for
 e
ac
h 

off
ice

r. 
 T
he
 b
an
k 
ac
co
un
t w

as
 re

co
nc
ile
d 
to 

the
 G

en
era

l L
ed
ge
r o

n 
a 

mo
nth

ly 
ba
sis

, b
ut 

the
se
 re

co
nc
ilia

tio
ns
 w

ere
 n
ot 

ind
ep
en
de
ntl
y c

he
ck
ed
 

an
d a

gre
ed
.  T

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o m

ak
e m

ore
 pa

ym
en
ts 
by
 B
AC

S 
ne
ed
ed
 to

 
be
 ex

plo
red

 an
d m

an
ua
l c
he
qu
e c

on
tro

l re
qu
ire
d t
o b

e m
ad
e r

ob
us
t. 

All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Re
so
urc

es
. 

£3
7.4

M 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 86



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

  
 Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

Ja
n 

20
10
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 so

ug
ht 

to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e o

ve
r th

e s
ou
nd
ne
ss
 an

d a
de
qu
ac
y 

of 
the

 go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
wit

hin
 To

we
r H

am
let
s P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
(TH

P)
  

 Ou
r r
ev
iew

 sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
in 
res

po
ns
e t
o l
eg
isla

tiv
e r

eq
uir
em

en
ts,
 LB

TH
 ha

s 
es
tab

lish
ed
 th

e 
TH

P, 
wh

ich
 fu

nc
tio
ns
 a
s 
a 
Lo
ca
l S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
.  

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 o
bje

cti
ve
s a

nd
 ta

rge
ts 

pu
rsu

ed
 b
y T

HP
 a
re 

tho
se
 sp

ec
ifie

d 
wit

hin
 t
he
 L

oc
al 

Ar
ea
 A

gre
em

en
ts.
 O

ur 
rev

iew
 o

f 
the

 g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo

un
d 

tha
t r

ole
s 

an
d 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
of 

the
 P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Bo

ard
, 
the

 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

Bo
ard

 a
nd
 v

ari
ou
s 

LA
P 

Ste
eri
ng
 G

rou
ps
 a

nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 P

lan
 D

eli
ve
ry 

Gr
ou
ps
 w

ere
 c

lea
rly
 d

efi
ne
d 

wit
hin

 t
he
ir 

res
pe
cti
ve
 T

erm
s 

of 
Re

fer
en
ce
. 
 T

he
re 

is 
a 

for
wa

rd 
pro

gra
mm

e 
of 

me
eti
ng
s f
or 

the
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s a

nd
 m
inu

tes
 of
 th
es
e m

ee
tin
gs
 ar

e t
ak
en
.  

 Ho
we

ve
r, 
the

 m
inu

tes
 of

 m
ee
tin
gs
 n
ee
de
d t

o 
cle

arl
y r

efl
ec
t th

e b
us
ine

ss
 

tha
t s

ho
uld

 b
e 
co
nd
uc
ted

 a
t t
he
se
 m

ee
tin
gs
 to

 a
ch
iev

e 
the

 o
bje

cti
ve
s 

co
nta

ine
d w

ith
in 
the

 te
rm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 of

 ea
ch
 fo

rum
. T

he
re 

wa
s n

o c
lea

r 
sy
ste

m 
to 

de
cla

re 
pe
rso

na
l a

nd
 p
rej
ud
icia

l i
nte

res
ts 

by
 p

art
icip

an
ts 

at 
me

eti
ng
s o

f t
he
 B
oa
rd 

an
d 
its
 E
xe
cu
tiv
es
.  
A 
cle

ar 
sy
ste

m 
ne
ed
ed
 to

 be
 

int
rod

uc
ed
 fo
r id

en
tify

ing
 an

d r
ev
iew

ing
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip’
s r
isk

s o
n a

 re
gu
lar
 

ba
sis

.  A
t o

pe
rat

ion
al 
lev

el,
 th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f T

HP
’s 
au
tho

rity
 an

d d
ele

ga
tio
ns
 

ha
d 
no
t b

ee
n 
ide

nti
fie
d 
wit

hin
 th

e 
CL

C 
Sc

he
me

 o
f D

ele
ga
tio
n 
an
d 
cle

ar 
fin
an
cia

l p
roc

ed
ure

s 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
e 

de
leg

ate
d 

au
tho

rity
 n

ee
de
d 

to 
be
 

dra
fte
d a

nd
 fo

rm
ali
se
d t

o i
mp

rov
e f

ina
nc
ial
 co

ntr
ols

.  
Ov

era
ll, 
we

 w
ere

 of
 

the
 op

ini
on
 th

at 
ad
eq
ua
te 

go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
ha
ve
 be

gu
n t

o b
e p

ut 
in 
pla

ce
, b
ut 
the

re 
is 
sc
op
e f
or 

fur
the

r im
pro

ve
me

nts
 an

d e
mb

ed
din

g o
f th

e 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 of
 so

un
d m

an
ag
em

en
t.  
 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s a

gre
ed
 w
ith
 th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f T

HP
. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Int
ern

et 
& e

-
Ma

il 
Co

mp
ute

r A
ud
it 

  

Oc
t 

20
09
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

thi
s 
au
dit
 w

as
 to

 a
ss
ure

 m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ha
t t
he
re 

we
re 

so
un
d s

ys
tem

s i
n p

lac
e t
o c

on
tro

l th
e u

se
 of
 th
e i
nte

rne
t a
nd
 th
e u

se
 of
 th
e 

em
ail
 sy

ste
m.
 T
his

 w
as
 to

 h
elp

 e
ns
ure

 th
at 

inf
orm

ati
on
 w
as
 co

nfi
de
nti
al,
 

av
ail
ab
le 

an
d 

its
 in

teg
rity

 w
as
 a

ss
ure

d 
for

 C
ou
nc
il 
bu
sin

es
s 

as
 t
he
 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 In
ter

ne
t a
nd
 E-

ma
il is

 co
re 

to 
Co

un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

 Ov
era

ll, 
we

 h
av
e 

rep
ort

ed
 th

at 
sy
ste

ms
 fo

r 
ad
mi
nis

ter
ing

, m
an
ag
ing

, 
co
ntr

oll
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g t

he
 in
ter

ne
t a

nd
 em

ail
 w
ere

 in
 pl
ac
e. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 
we

 re
po
rte

d t
ha
t c
on
tro

ls 
co
uld

 be
 im

pro
ve
d i
n t
he
 fo
llo
win

g a
rea

s:-
  

 
• 

Re
vie

win
g 

the
 in

ter
ne
t a

nd
 e

ma
il 
po
licy

 a
s 

thi
s 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

rev
iew

ed
 fo

r 3
 ye

ars
, a

pp
rov

ing
 th

is 
po
licy

 an
d a

ss
ign

ing
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 
the

 po
licy

 
• 

Re
vie

win
g e

ma
il u

sa
ge
 lo
gs
 to
 id
en
tify

 ex
ce
ss
ive

 us
e o

f th
e s

ys
tem

  
• 

En
su
rin
g a

 co
ntr

ac
t is

 in
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 th

e I
nte

rne
t S

erv
ice

 P
rov

ide
r fo

r 
int
ern

et 
se
rvi
ce
s d

eta
ilin

g t
he
 ro

les
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
• 

Lo
ck
ing

 w
eb
 b
row

se
r s

ett
ing

s t
o h

elp
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

es
e 
ca
nn
ot 

be
 

am
en
de
d t

o w
ea
ke
r s

ett
ing

s w
hic

h c
ou
ld 
ex
po
se
 th

e C
ou
nc
il t
o t

he
 

ris
k o

f in
se
cu
re 

se
rvi
ce
s e

nte
rin
g t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

• 
Ale

rtin
g m

an
ag
em

en
t to

 su
sp
icio

us
 ac

tiv
ity
 on

 th
e F

ire
wa

ll s
ys
tem

 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 
a s

ep
ara

te 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
for

 te
sti
ng
 th
e f
ire
wa

ll 
 All
 
fin
din

gs
 
an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e O

ffic
er 

an
d m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 IC
T D

MT
.  

   

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 88



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

IC
T 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

Or
ga
nis

ati
on
  

 Co
mp

ute
r A

ud
it 

Fe
b 

20
10
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

thi
s 
au
dit
 w

as
 to

 a
ss
ure

 m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ha
t t
he
re 

we
re 

so
un
d 
sy
ste

ms
 in

 p
lac

e 
to 

co
ntr

ol 
the

 u
se
 o
f t
he
 C

ou
nc
il’s

 IC
T 
fac

iliti
es
.  

Th
is 

se
rvi
ce
 f
orm

s 
pa
rt 

of 
the

 R
es
ou
rce

s 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 a

nd
 c

urr
en
tly
  

ma
na
ge
d 
wit

hin
 fo

ur 
ke
y s

erv
ice

s -
 S
erv

ice
 D
eli
ve
ry,
 C
us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s, 

Se
rvi
ce
 D

ev
elo

pm
en
t a

nd
 B

us
ine

ss
 S

up
po
rt. 

Th
e 

se
rvi
ce
 fo

llo
ws

 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s 
co
rpo

rat
e 

pla
nn
ing

/pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 f
ram

ew
ork

. 
An

 I
CT

 S
erv

ice
 

Re
vie

w 
wa

s p
erf

orm
ed
 in
 M

ay
 20

07
 w
hic

h i
de
nti
fie
d t

he
 ne

ed
 to

 es
tab

lish
 

an
 IC

T 
co
mp

ete
nc
y f

ram
ew

ork
 fo

r s
taf
f a

nd
 to

 re
str
uc
tur

e 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 to

 
de
live

r c
us
tom

er 
foc

us
ed
, p
ro-

ac
tiv
e s

erv
ice

s. 
 Ov

era
ll, 
we

 ha
ve
 re

po
rte

d t
ha
t s
ys
tem

s f
or 

ma
na
gin

g t
he
 IC

T s
erv

ice
 ar

e i
n 

pla
ce
.  H

ow
ev
er,

 co
ntr

ols
 co

uld
 be

 im
pro

ve
d i
n t
he
 fo
llo
win

g a
rea

s:-
 

 • 
Pr
oa
cti
ve
ly 

rec
rui
t t
o 
fill 

va
ca
nt 

sta
ff 
po
sit
ion

s 
an
d 
the

 im
pa
ct 

of 
tem

po
rar

y p
os
itio

ns
 on

 th
e b

ud
ge
t 

• 
Re

vie
w 

the
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 a
nd
 p
os
itio

n 
for

 IS
02
70
01
 (I

nfo
rm

ati
on
 

Se
cu
rity

 st
an
da
rd 

ac
cre

dit
ati
on
. 

• 
Co

ns
ide

r th
e c

om
ple

tio
n o

f a
n I

CT
 S
erv

ice
 C
ata

log
ue
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
alo

ng
 IT

IL 
(IT

 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
Lib

rar
y) 

lin
es
. 

• 
Re

vie
w 

an
d 
co
nti
nu
e 
to 

mo
nit
or 

IC
T 

KP
Is 

an
d 
ide

nti
fy 

rem
ed
ial
 

ac
tio
n w

he
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 is
 no

t a
s e

xp
ec
ted

. 
• 

Pu
t p

roc
es
se
s i

n 
pla

ce
 to

 im
pro

ve
 h
ow

 th
e 
IC
T 
se
rvi
ce
 m

ain
tai
ns
 

cu
sto

me
r s
ati
sfa

cti
on
 vi
a t
he
 Se

rvi
ce
 D
es
k. 

 
All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 Se

rvi
ce
 H
ea
d -

 IC
T  

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 

Po
lici

es
 an

d 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

s 
De

c 
20
09
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 so

ug
ht 

to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e t

ha
t th

ere
 w
ere

 so
un
d s

ys
tem

s i
n 

pla
ce
 to

 co
ntr

ol 
the

 u
se
 o
f I
CT

 e
qu
ipm

en
t in

clu
din

g 
so
me

 o
f t
he
 p
oli
cie

s 
an
d 

pro
ce
du
res

 i
n 

pla
ce
. 
Th

ere
 a

re 
a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ap
pro

ac
he
s 

an
d 

pro
ce
ss
es
 
to 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 
Se

cu
rity

 
an
d 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 
ma

na
ge
me

nt.
 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 gu
ida

nc
e i
s p

rov
ide

d b
y I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 G
rou

p (
IG
G)
 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
s 
no
mi
na
ted

 m
em

be
rs 

fro
m 

ke
y 
dir
ec
tor

ate
s. 

Th
ere

 is
 a
n 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 S
ec
uri
ty 

Po
licy

 o
wn

ed
 a
nd
 re

vie
we

d 
by
 th

e 
IG
G.
 T
he
 p
oli
cy
 

inc
lud

es
 st
ate

me
nts

 on
 ap

pli
ca
bil
ity
 of
 do

cu
me

nt 
an
d e

xp
ec
ted

 co
ntr

ols
. 

 Ov
era

ll, 
we

 h
av
e 
rep

ort
ed
 th

at 
sy
ste

ms
 a
nd
 p
roc

ed
ure

s p
rov

idi
ng
 se

cu
re 

fra
me

wo
rk 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e. 
 Fo

llo
win

g r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 m
ad
e:-

 
• 

Co
ns
ist
en
t p

oli
cy
 s
tat
em

en
ts 

are
 m

ad
e 
ac
ros

s 
the

 ra
ng
e 
of 

Co
un
cil 

po
lici

es
 t
ha
t 
co
ntr

ol 
IT 

wo
rki
ng
, 
inc

lud
ing

 r
ev
iew

ing
 a

nd
 m

ak
ing

  
ref

ere
nc
es
 to
 H
om

e W
ork

ing
, In

ter
ne
t a
nd
 em

ail
 an

d s
ec
uri
ty 
po
licy

. 
• 

Re
vie

w 
sta

ff t
rai
nin

g p
roc

es
se
s o

n I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 S
ec
uri
ty 
an
d e

ns
ure

 th
at 

go
od
 p

rac
tic
es
 a

re 
ref

lec
ted

. A
 p

roc
es
s 
to 

as
se
ss
 s
taf
f a

wa
ren

es
s 

sh
ou
ld 
als

o b
e i
mp

lem
en
ted

. 
• 

De
ve
lop

 d
ata

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 
pro

toc
ols

 in
clu

din
g 

co
ntr

ols
 o

ve
r 
da
ta 

ac
ce
ss
, re

ten
tio
n, 
se
cu
rity

 an
d d

isp
os
al.
 

• 
Re

vie
w 

wh
ich

 o
rga

nis
ati
on
s t

he
 C

ou
nc
il s

ha
res

 d
ata

 w
ith
 a
nd
 e
ns
ure

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 co
ntr

ols
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e. 

• 
Re

vie
w 
the

 us
e o

f e
ma

il e
nc
ryp

tio
n i
n u

se
 w
ith
 th

e C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 id
en
tify

 
wh

ere
 fu
rth

er 
us
e c

an
 be

 m
ad
e o

f th
is.
 

• 
Ex

ten
d 
the

 u
se
 o
f p

rot
ec
tiv
e 
ma

rki
ng
 to

 o
the

r a
rea

s 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc
il 

wh
ere

 se
ns
itiv

e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 is
 he

ld.
 

 All
 
fin
din

gs
 
an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e M

an
ag
er 

an
d m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 IC
T D

MT
. 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 90



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
So

cia
l C

are
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

No
v. 

20
09
 

To
 as

su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t th
e s

ys
tem

s o
f c
on
tro

l fo
r th

e p
roc

ure
me

nt,
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 pa

yin
g f
or 

ch
ild
ren

’s 
so
cia

l c
are

 se
rvi
ce
s w

ere
 

so
un
d, 
se
cu
re 

an
d a

de
qu
ate

.  T
he
 fo
llo
win

g i
ss
ue
s w

ere
 re

po
rte

d:-
 

 Th
ere

 w
ere

 s
ou
nd
 a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

in 
pla

ce
 fo

r t
he
 c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 a

nd
 

for
ma

l t
en
de
rin
g, 

ho
we

ve
r w

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 th

at 
be
ca
us
e 
of 

the
 ri
sk
s 

inv
olv

ed
, th

ere
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 a 

sy
ste

m 
for

 de
cla

rat
ion

s o
f in

ter
es
ts 
by
 re

lev
an
t 

sta
ff. 
  

 Th
e 
sy
ste

ms
 in

 p
lac

e 
for

 ch
ec
kin

g 
an
d 
ap
pro

vin
g 
pa
ym

en
ts 

for
 p
roj
ec
ts 

we
re 

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e 
wit

h 
the

 C
ou
nc
il's
 p
roc

ed
ure

s. 
Ho

we
ve
r, 
the

re 
we

re 
ins

tan
ce
s 
wh

ere
 th

e 
ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n, 

ap
pro

va
l a

nd
 c
he
ck
ing

 p
roc

es
s 
ha
d 

be
en
 in
ad
eq
ua
te.
  

 Th
ere

 w
ere

 s
ou
nd
 b
ud
ge
tar

y 
pro

ce
ss
es
 in

 p
lac

e 
bu
t b

ud
ge
t m

ee
tin
gs
 

ne
ed
ed
 to
 be

 re
co
rde

d. 
Ge

ne
ral
ly 
the

re 
wa

s a
de
qu
ate

   c
on
tra

ct 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 

pro
ce
ss
 in

 p
lac

e. 
 W

e 
ha
ve
 re

co
mm

en
de
d 

tha
t f

oll
ow

ing
 th

e 
cu
rre

nt 
res

tru
ctu

re,
 a

n 
eff
ec
tiv
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
inf
orm

ati
on
 s

ys
tem

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

es
tab

lish
ed
 th

at 
inf
orm

s m
an
ag
em

en
t o

n 
all
 a
rea

s o
f t
he
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
pro

ce
ss
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d t
o 
the

 A
cti
ng
 C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

 a
nd
 w

ere
 a

gre
ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 S

erv
ice

 H
ea
d 

Str
ate

gy
 a

nd
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
. 

 

£1
.86

M 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

  

Page 91



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
es
 

  

De
c 

20
09
 

Th
is 

au
dit
 w

as
 c

arr
ied

 o
ut 

us
ing

 a
 r
eg
ula

rity
 a

ud
it 

pro
gra

mm
e 

for
 

es
tab

lish
me

nt 
au
dit
s. 
 Th

ere
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly
 21

 C
hil
dre

n’s
 C
en
tre

’s 
in 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

.  I
n c

on
su
lta
tio
n w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d o

f E
arl
y Y

ea
rs 
an
d S

en
ior
 St

rat
eg
ic 

Ma
na
ge
r, 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 s
ele

cte
d 
fiv
e 
ce
ntr

es
 to

 v
isit

: T
he
se
 w

ere
 L
ittl
e 

Oa
ks
; J

oh
n 
Sm

ith
; M

on
tef
ior
e; 

Sh
ad
we

ll a
nd
 W

ap
pin

g. 
Ou

r r
ev
iew

 fo
un
d 

tha
t g

en
era

lly 
the

re 
we

re 
ad
eq
ua
te 

pro
ce
du
res

 in
 p
lac

e, 
bu
t p

art
icu

lar
 

att
en
tio
n w

as
 ne

ed
ed
 in
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 co

ntr
ol 
are

a:-
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 n

ee
de
d 

to 
be
 s
tre

ng
the

ne
d 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 

de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 w
as
 cl
ea
r a

nd
 tra

ns
pa
ren

t. 
 Pr
ov
isio

n f
or 

fin
an
cia

l a
nd
 bu

dg
eta

ry 
inf
orm

ati
on
 re

qu
ire
d t

o b
e i

mp
rov

ed
 

so
 th
at 
fin
an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t c
an
 be

 so
un
d. 

 Th
e 

ch
ec
kin

g 
an
d 

ap
pro

vin
g 

of 
pe
tty
 c
as
h 

ex
pe
ns
es
, u

tilit
y 
bil
ls 

an
d 

tre
atm

en
t o
f V

AT
 ne

ed
ed
 im

pro
vin

g. 
 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

for
 go

od
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s r

eq
uir
ed
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
an
d i

nv
en
tor

y 
co
ntr

ol 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 pu

t o
n s

ou
nd
 fo
oti
ng
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d b

y t
he
 H
ea
d o

f C
hil
dre

n’s
 

Ce
ntr

es
 an

d r
ep
ort

ed
 to
 Se

rvi
ce
 H
ea
d E

arl
y Y

ea
rs.
 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 92



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Hig
hw

ay
s  

Fe
b 

20
10
 

Th
is 

au
dit
 s
ou
gh
t t
o 
pro

vid
e 
as
su
ran

ce
 th

at 
the

 s
ys
tem

s 
of 

co
ntr

ol 
for

 
de
ve
lop

ing
 a
nd
 m

an
ag
ing

 th
e 
hig

hw
ay
s w

ork
s p

rog
ram

me
 a
nd
 in

div
idu

al 
pro

jec
ts 
wit

hin
 th
is 
pro

gra
mm

e w
ere

 so
un
d, 
se
cu
re 

an
d a

de
qu
ate

.   
 Th

e 
rev

iew
 f
ou
nd
 th

at 
the

re 
we

re 
cle

ar 
po
lici

es
 a

nd
 p

roc
ed
ure

s 
for

 
ma

na
gin

g 
the

 c
ap
ita
l p

rog
ram

me
 a
nd
 p
roj
ec
ts.
 T
he
re 

wa
s 
an
 a
de
qu
ate

 
co
ntr

ol 
to 

es
tab

lish
 th

at 
the

 p
rog

ram
me

 w
as
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 
to 

me
et 

pri
ori
tie
s 

an
d w

as
 pr

op
erl
y c

os
ted

, fu
nd
ed
 an

d a
pp
rov

ed
. T

he
re 

wa
s a

 tr
an
sp
are

nt 
pro

ce
ss
 in

 p
lac

e f
or 

se
lec

tio
n o

f t
he
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 co
ntr

ac
tor

s t
o u

nd
ert

ak
e 

the
 re

qu
ire
d 
wo

rks
. H

ow
ev
er,

 th
e 
req

uir
em

en
t t
o 
en
su
re 

tha
t a

de
qu
ate

 
rec

ord
s w

ere
 m
ain

tai
ne
d t
o l
og
 D
ec
lar
ati
on
s o

f In
ter

es
t w

as
 no

t a
dh
ere

d t
o. 

Th
ere

 w
ere

 in
sta

nc
es
 w
he
re 

the
 au

tho
ris
ati
on
 of

 P
urc

ha
se
 O

rde
rs 

did
 no

t 
co
mp

ly 
wit

h 
the

 
Au

tho
ris
ed
 
sig

na
tor

y 
list

. 
Pr
oje

cts
 
we

re 
be
ing

 
ad
mi
nis

ter
ed
, c

on
tro

lle
d a

nd
 m

an
ag
ed
 to

 en
su
re 

the
y w

ere
 w
ith
in 

bu
dg
et 

bu
t t
he
 co

mp
let
ion

 o
f s

ch
em

es
 m

ay
 n
ot 

be
 w
ith
in 

se
t t
arg

ets
.  

Fin
an
cia

l 
rec

ord
s r

eq
uir
ed
 to

 b
e 
in 

an
 o
rde

rly
 sy

ste
m 

to 
mi
tig
ate

 th
e 
ris
k o

f p
rim

e 
do
cu
me

nts
 b

ein
g 

mi
sla

id 
or 

los
t. 

 T
he
re 

wa
s 

so
me

 s
lip
pa
ge
 in

 th
e 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f w
ork

s a
nd
 th

e a
cti
on
 re

qu
ire
d t

o a
dd
res

s t
his

 w
as
 fo

rm
all
y 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e p
rin
cip

al 
fun

din
g b

od
y, 

bu
t th

e r
eq
uir
ed
 

ac
tio
ns
 w
ere

 n
ot 

for
ma

lly 
lai
d 
do
wn

 a
nd
 m

ay
 re

su
lt i

n 
co
nti
nu
al 

slip
pa
ge
 

oc
cu
rrin

g a
nd
 lo
ss
 of
 fu
nd
ing

. 
 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

Pu
bli
c R

ea
lm
. 

  

£2
.2M

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

     

Page 93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Un
au
tho

ris
ed
 

Oc
cu
pa
nts

 – 
 Fo

llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
 

Ja
n. 

20
10
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 a 

fol
low

 up
 au

dit
 to
 a 

sy
ste

ms
 re

vie
w 
wh

ich
 w
as
 re

po
rte

d i
n 

Ju
ne
 20

08
.  A

 Fo
llo
w-
up
 au

dit
 w
as
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 2

00
9/1

0 A
ud
it 

Pla
n. 
  

 Th
e F

oll
ow

-up
 re

vie
w 
fou

nd
 th

at 
ou
t o

f 1
2 r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s m

ad
e i

n t
he
 

ori
gin

al 
au
dit
, 6

 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ha

d b
ee
n i
mp

lem
en
ted

.  
Th

es
e r

ela
ted

 
to 

ca
rry

ing
 o
ut 

ten
an
cy
 a
ud
its
 b
y 
all
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ar
ea
s 
an
d 
en
su
rin
g 
an
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 

au
dit
 tr
ail
 to

 su
pp
ort

 te
na
nc
y a

ud
its
.  

A 
de
dic

ate
d 
fra

ud
 

ho
tlin

e 
ha
s 
no
w 

be
en
 in

tro
du
ce
d 
for

 re
po
rtin

g 
un
au
tho

ris
ed
 o
cc
up
an
ts.
 

Re
gu
lar
 m

ee
tin
gs
 n

ow
 ta

ke
 p

lac
e 

wit
h 

Le
ga
l S

erv
ice

s 
to 

rev
iew

 a
nd
 

mo
nit
or 

the
 p
rog

res
s i
n 
de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 re

po
rte

d 
ca
se
s. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 so
me

 o
f 

the
 ke

y r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s s

uc
h 
as
 h
av
ing

 a
 cl

ea
r s

tra
teg

y a
nd
 p
oli
cy
 to

 
co
ntr

ol 
an
d 
ma

na
ge
 v
ari
ou
s 
for

ms
 o
f u

na
uth

ori
se
d 
oc
cu
pa
nts

; w
ork

ing
 

joi
ntl
y 

wit
h 

oth
er 

Co
un
cil 

De
pa
rtm

en
ts,
 a

ge
nc
ies

, 
RS

Ls
, 
an
d 

Lo
ca
l 

Au
tho

riti
es
 to

 pr
oa
cti
ve
ly 
ide

nti
fy 

un
au
tho

ris
ed
 oc

cu
pa
nts

; a
nd
 de

ve
lop

ing
 

an
 an

ti-f
rau

d s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 pu

bli
cis

ing
 ca

se
s o

f id
en
tifi
ed
 fra

ud
 st
ill 
ne
ed
ed
 

to 
be
 f
ull
y 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
In 

vie
w 

of 
the

 p
rog

res
s 

ma
de
 s

o 
far

 i
n 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 s
om

e 
of 

the
 k
ey
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
, w

e 
ha
ve
 a
ss
ign

ed
 a
n 

as
su
ran

ce
 le

ve
l o

f ‘
su
bs
tan

tia
l’. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 w
e 
em

ph
as
ise

d 
tha

t f
urt

he
r 

pro
gre

ss
 ne

ed
ed
 to
 be

 m
ad
e t
o i
mp

rov
e t
he
 co

ntr
ol 
en
vir
on
me

nt.
 

 All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Me
mb

ers
 

All
ow

an
ce
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Fe
b. 

20
10
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

thi
s 
au
dit
 re

vie
w 

wa
s 
to 

as
su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t t
he
 

sy
ste

ms
 fo

r a
dm

ini
ste

rin
g, 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 m
em

be
rs’
 al
low

an
ce
s 

an
d c

lai
ms

 fo
r tr

av
el,
 su

bs
ist
en
ce
, e
tc.
 w
ere

 so
un
d, 
se
cu
re 

an
d a

de
qu
ate

. 
 Ov

era
ll, 
the

re 
we

re 
ad
eq
ua
te 

sy
ste

ms
 in

 pl
ac
e f

or 
pa
yin

g a
nd
 pr

oc
es
sin

g 
of 

Me
mb

ers
’ A

llo
wa

nc
es
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 

we
 fo

un
d 

tha
t t

he
 C

ou
nc
il 
ha
d 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 tw

o v
ers

ion
s o

f th
e S

ch
em

e -
 th
e i
ntr

an
et 
ve
rsi
on
 w
hic

h w
as
 la
st 

up
da
ted

 in
 Ju

ly 
20
07
, s
ho
we

d t
he
 ra

tes
 ap

pli
ca
ble

 in
 th

at 
ye
ar.

  W
he
rea

s 
the

 ve
rsi
on
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 w
eb
sit
e w

as
 up

da
ted

 in
 Ju

ne
 20

08
. W

e h
av
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
bo
th 

the
se
 ve

rsi
on
s s

ho
uld

 b
e 
rev

iew
ed
 a
nd
 a
 si

ng
le 

ve
rsi
on
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 pu

t o
n b

oth
 si
tes

.  I
n a

dd
itio

n, 
we

 fo
un
d t

ha
t th

ere
 w
ere

 
no
 w

ritt
en
 p
roc

ed
ure

s f
or 

the
 a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 o
f m

em
be
rs’
 a
llo
wa

nc
es
 fo

r 
Me

mb
ers

 S
up
po
rt 
sta

ff t
o f

oll
ow

. W
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 so

me
 re

str
uc
tur

ing
 of

 
the

 b
ud
ge
t t
o 
en
su
re 

tha
t t
he
 b
ud
ge
t f
or 

Me
mb

ers
 A

llo
wa

nc
es
 h
as
 a
 

de
dic

ate
d c

os
t c
en
tre

 an
d o

bje
ct 
co
de
s s

o t
ha
t th

e s
pe
nd
 on

 di
ffe
ren

t ty
pe
s 

of 
ex
pe
ns
es
 ca

n b
e a

cc
ou
nte

d f
or 

an
d m

on
ito
red

.  I
n 2

00
7/0

8 a
nd
 20

08
/9,
 

the
 m

em
be
rs 

all
ow

an
ce
 bu

dg
ets

 w
ere

 ov
ers

pe
nt 

by
 £5

1,0
00
 an

d £
24
,00

0, 
res

pe
cti
ve
ly.
 W

e 
ha
ve
 th

ere
for

e, 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 th

at 
a 
bu
dg
eta

ry 
co
ntr

ol 
an
d m

on
ito
rin
g s

ys
tem

 be
 pu

t in
 pl
ac
e. 
  

All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

De
mo

cra
tic
 Se

rvi
ce
s. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

FL
AR

E (
AP

P 
Pu

bli
c 

Pr
ote

cti
on
 

Au
dit
) 

 Co
mp

ute
r A

ud
it 

De
c 

20
09
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

thi
s 
au
dit
 w

as
 to

 a
ss
ure

 m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ha
t t
he
re 

we
re 

so
un
d s

ys
tem

s i
n p

lac
e t

o p
lan

, c
on
tro

l, m
an
ag
e t

he
 C
IVI

CA
 A
PP

 (P
ub
lic 

Pr
ote

cti
on
 S
ys
tem

) u
se
d 
for

 th
e 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s a
nd
 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth
 se

rvi
ce
s a

t th
e C

ou
nc
il. 
  

 Th
e 

Co
un
cil 

pe
rfo

rm
s 

a 
va
rie
ty 

of 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d 

pu
bli
c 

pro
tec

tio
n 

ac
tiv
itie

s 
rel
ati
ng
 
to 

tra
din

g 
sta

nd
ard

s, 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l 

he
alt
h 

an
d 

co
mm

un
ity
 sa

fet
y. 
Th

es
e a

cti
vit
ies

 ar
e g

ov
ern

ed
 by

 le
gis

lat
ion

, s
uc
h a

s t
he
 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l P

rot
ec
tio
n 
Ac

t 1
99
0, 

the
 P
ub
lic 

He
alt
h 
Ac

t 2
00
6 
an
d 
the

 
Lic

en
sin

g A
ct 
20
03
. T

he
 C
ivic

a A
PP

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n i
s u

se
d t

o s
up
po
rt t

he
 co

-
ord

ina
tio
n 
of 

the
se
 a
cti
vit
ies

, a
s 
it 
pro

vid
es
 a
 c
en
tra

l r
ep
os
ito
ry 

for
 d
ata

 
pe
rta

ini
ng
 to

 pr
em

ise
s, 
ins

pe
cti
on
s, 
inv

es
tig
ati
on
s, 
res

ide
nt 

co
mp

lai
nts

 an
d 

se
rvi
ce
 re

qu
es
ts.

 
 Ov

era
ll, 

we
 h

av
e 

rep
ort

ed
 th

at 
sy
ste

ms
 fo

r 
ad
mi
nis

ter
ing

, m
an
ag
ing

, 
co
ntr

oll
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g t

he
 sy

ste
m 

we
re 

in 
pla

ce
, b

ut 
du
rin
g o

ur 
tes

tin
g 

we
 
fou

nd
 
so
me

 
ca
se
s 

wh
ere

 
co
ntr

ol 
co
uld

 
be
 
im
pro

ve
d. 

Ou
r 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s, 

the
ref

ore
, w

ere
 fo

cu
se
d 

at 
en
su
rin
g 

tha
t a

de
qu
ate

 
co
ntr

ols
 ex

ist
 fo

r th
e s

up
po
rt o

f th
e s

ys
tem

 in
 th

e e
ve
nt 

of 
un
av
ail
ab
ility

 of
 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tor

, im
pro

vin
g t

he
 pa

ss
wo

rd 
an
d 
ac
ce
ss
 co

ntr
ols

 to
 

ob
tai
n a

cc
es
s t

o t
he
 sy

ste
m 

an
d p

erf
orm

ing
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 al

l u
se
rs 

to 
he
lp 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

eir
 ac

ce
ss
 is
 re

qu
ire
d. 
 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 a
gre

ed
 w
ith
 th

e 
He

ad
 of

 T
rad

ing
 

sta
nd
ard

s a
nd
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth
. 

  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 96



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Se
ve
n M

ills
 

Pr
im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 
Fe

b. 
20
10
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
on
ito
rin
g a

ffa
irs
 of
 th
e s

ch
oo
l. 

 Ma
in 

Co
ntr

ol 
St
ren

gth
s I
de

nti
fie

d: 
 

• 
Ac

co
un
tin
g f
or 

Inc
om

e a
nd
 Ex

pe
nd
itu
re;

 
• 

Pe
rso

nn
el 
an
d P

ay
rol
l M

an
ag
em

en
t; 

• 
Se

cu
rity

 of
 IT

 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e, 
an
d D

ata
 Pr

ote
cti
on
; 

• 
Ris

k M
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 In
su
ran

ce
. 

 
Ma

in 
Co

ntr
ol 

We
ak
ne

ss
es
:  

• 
W
hil
st 

the
 S

ch
em

e 
of 

De
leg

ati
on
s 

do
cu
me

nt 
ha
d 

de
leg

ate
d 

au
tho

ris
ati
on
 of

 or
de
rs 

to 
the

 D
ep
uty

 H
ea
d T

ea
ch
er,

 B
urs

ar,
 O
ffic

e 
Ma

na
ge
r a

nd
 Bu

dg
et 
ho
lde

rs 
no
 m
ax
im
um

 lim
it h

ad
 be

en
 sp

ec
ifie

d. 
  

• 
W
hil
e t

erm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce
 w
ere

 av
ail
ab
le 
for

 th
e F

ina
nc
e C

om
mi
tte
e, 

the
se
 d
id 

no
t e

xis
t f
or 

the
 re

ma
ini
ng
 3
 C

om
mi
tte
es
 a
t t
he
 sc

ho
ol.
  

Th
e F

ina
nc
e C

om
mi
tte
e m

ee
ts 

at 
lea

st 
tw
ice

 a 
ter

m 
bu
t th

ere
 w
as
 

no
 ev

ide
nc
e t
ha
t th

e o
the

r C
om

mi
tte
es
 m
ee
t re

gu
lar
ly.
   

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi
ce
s. 

£1
.6m

 
 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

    

Page 97



      APPENDIX 3 
 

Audit Plan 2009/10 
 
Work in progress 
 
 
Audit Activity 
 

 
Audit status 

Corporate Systems and Council-wide 
Reviews 

 

BV Performance Indicators Draft Report 
Management of Climate Change Draft Report 
Council Wide Debt Management Draft Report 
Contract Management and Monitoring  Draft Report 
Absence Management  Draft Report 
Risk Management Field work 
Control and Use of Minicabs by Staff Draft Report 
  
Assistant Chief Executive’s  
Charges on Property Draft report 
Working Neighbourhood Fund Field Work 
Mainstream Grants – Strategic Commissioning Field work 
  
Children’s, Schools and Families  
Common Assessment Framework Draft Report 
Management and Control of Surplus Balances Draft Report 
Building Schools for Future – contract audits Draft Report 
ContactPoint Implementation Audit Brief 

Page 98



      APPENDIX 3 
 

 

CLC  
Budgetary Control Draft Report 
Development and Renewal  
Homelessness Audit Brief 
Management of Planning Permissions Audit Brief 
Tower Hamlets Homes  
Grounds Maintenance – Contract Monitoring FU 
 

Draft Report 

Installation of Aerials – Contract Audit Draft Report 
Budgetary Control Draft Report 
Performance Management Field work 
Housing Repairs Field work 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing  
Governance of Pooled Agreements Field work 
Resources  
NNDR Draft Report 
Council Tax Draft Report 
Pensions Draft Report 
Management and control of VAT Draft Report 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

 

 
 

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Agenda Item 52

Page 101



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

1 
  

Co
nte

nts
 

 
Fo

rew
ord

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 2 
  Co

nte
xt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 3 

 Ke
y S

tra
teg

ic 
Ris

ks
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 4 

 Th
e R

ole
 of
 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 8 
 20
10
/11

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it P

lan
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 9 
 Th

e I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it P

roc
es
s  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

45
 

 Th
e M

on
ito
rin
g P

roc
es
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
47
 

 
Su

mm
ary

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

48
 

 Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3: 
Ris

k M
an
ag
em

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

49
 

        

Page 102



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

2 
  

   Fo
rew

or
d 

     Th
e r

ole
 of

 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it i
s b

ec
om

ing
 in
cre

as
ing

ly 
im
po
rta

nt 
in 
su
pp
ort

ing
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s a

ch
iev

e t
he
ir g

oa
ls 
an
d o

utc
om

es
. F

or 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te 

tow
ard

s t
he
 ov

era
ll g

oa
ls 
of 

the
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
, e
ffe
cti
ve
 pl
an
nin

g o
f a

ud
it a

cti
vit
y i
s e

ss
en
tia
l, w

he
the

r 
pla

nn
ed
 or

 un
pla

nn
ed
. T

he
 an

nu
al 

au
dit
 pl

an
 fo

r 2
01
0-1

1 i
s d

ev
ise

d u
sin

g a
 ris

k b
as
ed
 m

eth
od
olo

gy
, a

nd
 fo

cu
se
s o

n a
rea

s 
wh

ere
 To

we
r H

am
let
s n

ee
ds
 to
 be

 su
re 

its
 ris

ks
 ar

e b
ein

g p
rop

erl
y m

an
ag
ed
. T

he
 pl
an
 al
so
 re

co
gn
ise

s t
he
 w
ide

r ro
le 
au
dit
 ha

s 
in 

su
pp
ort

ing
 m

an
ag
em

en
t, 
wh

o 
str
ive

 to
 d
eli
ve
r e

xc
ell
en
t p

ub
lic 

se
rvi
ce
s t

o 
res

ide
nts

 liv
ing

 in
, a

nd
 p
eo
ple

 w
ork

ing
 in

 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
, b

y i
nc
lud

ing
 fo

r e
xa
mp

le,
 co

rpo
rat

e r
ev
iew

s, 
va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
, c
on
tra

ct 
an
d I

CT
 au

dit
s. 
A 
lar
ge
 pa

rt o
f th

e a
nn
ua
l p
lan

 
rig
htl
y f
oc
us
es
 on

 pr
ov
idi
ng
 in
de
pe
nd
en
t a
ss
ura

nc
e o

ve
r th

e s
ys
tem

s o
f c
on
tro

l fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 ris
ks
 ac

ros
s t
he
 au

tho
rity

. T
he
re 

is 
als

o s
om

e f
lex

ibi
lity

 w
ith
in 
the

 pl
an
 fo
r ri

sk
s t
ha
t w

ill a
ris
e o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
na
nc
ial
 ye

ar.
 

 In 
pre

pa
rin
g 
the

 p
lan

, i
t i
s 
im
po
rta

nt 
to 

rec
og
nis

e 
the

 c
on
trib

uti
on
s 
ma

de
 b
y 
off
ice

rs 
at 

the
 D

ep
art

me
nta

l a
nd
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
s, 
the

 S1
51
 O
ffic

er,
 an

d t
he
 C
ha
ir o

f th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e f
or 

wh
ich

 I a
m 
gra

tef
ul.
  

  Mi
ne

sh
 Ja

ni 
Se

rvi
ce
 H
ea
d –

 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 A
ud

it 
      

Page 103



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

3 
  

Co
nte

xt 
 

 
Ris

k t
ak
ing

 is
 vi
tal
 to

 th
e s

uc
ce
ss
 of

 an
y b

us
ine

ss
; it
 is
 in
he
ren

t in
 ev

ery
thi
ng
 w
e d

o. 
All
 to

o o
fte
n, 

ho
we

ve
r, r

isk
s a

re 
reg

ard
ed
 

on
ly 
as
 ha

za
rds

 de
sp
ite
 th
e f
ac
t th

ey
 ca

n p
res

en
t s
ign

ific
an
t o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 to
 in
no
va
te 
an
d g

ain
 sh

ort
 an

d l
on
g-

ter
m 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e a

dv
an
tag

es
. R

isk
 an

d o
pp
ort

un
ity
 ar

e, 
in 
es
se
nc
e, 
a d

ua
lity

 – 
like

 tw
o s

ide
s o

f th
e s

am
e c

oin
. 

 Th
e 
Go

od
 G

ov
ern

an
ce
 S
tan

da
rd 

for
 P
ub
lic 

Se
rvi
ce
s 
ide

nti
fie
s 
tha

t ‘
Go

od
 g
ov
ern

an
ce
 m

ea
ns
 “t
ak
ing

 in
for

me
d, 

tra
ns
pa
ren

t 
de
cis

ion
s a

nd
 m

an
ag
ing

 ris
k”.
 T
his

 im
pli
es
 cr

ea
tin
g a

 fr
am

ew
ork

 of
 en

ter
pri
se
-w
ide

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t th

at 
is 
em

be
dd
ed
 in
 th

e 
‘bu

sin
es
s a

s u
su
al’
 op

era
tio
ns
 an

d v
iew

ed
 as

 an
 in
teg

ral
 co

mp
on
en
t o
f h
ow

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 is
 go

ve
rne

d. 
 Ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 no
t a

bo
ut 

av
oid

ing
 or

 el
im
ina

tin
g r

isk
. It

 is
 ab

ou
t u

nd
ers

tan
din

g w
ha
t r
isk

s a
re 

an
d t

he
 po

ten
tia
l im

pa
ct 

up
on
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 sh

ou
ld 
the

 ris
ks
 m
ate

ria
lise

 an
d a

lso
 ab

ou
t c
on
tro

llin
g r

isk
s w

he
n t
he
y a

ris
e. 

 Em
be
dd
ing

 go
od
, e
nte

rpr
ise

-w
ide

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s w
ill f

ac
ilita

te 
the

 ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 
ou
r s
tra

teg
ic 
ob
jec

tiv
es
. 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 an

d t
he
ir e

va
lua

tio
n o

f c
on
tro

ls 
pro

vid
e a

n i
mp

ort
an
t p
art

 of
 th
e t
oo
l k
it t
ha
t th

e C
orp

ora
te 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 an

d 
the

 A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e h

av
e i
n e

va
lua

tin
g t

he
 ris

ks
 be

ing
 fa

ce
d b

y t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
, a

nd
 th

e c
on
tro

ls 
tha

t a
re 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 m
itig

ate
 

the
se
 ris

ks
. 

 

Page 104



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

4 
  

Ke
y 
Ri
sk
s 

 Th
e 
Au

dit
 P
lan

 is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
thr

ee
 p
rin
cip

al 
so
urc

es
 o
f in

for
ma

tio
n 
– 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
ers

 (S
tra

teg
ic 

Ris
ks
 a
nd
 D

ire
cto

rat
e 
ba
se
d 

se
rvi
ce
 ris

ks
), o

ur 
ow

n r
isk

 an
aly

sis
 an

d m
an
ag
em

en
t re

qu
es
t.  

Th
ere

 ar
e 3

3 s
tra

teg
ic 
ris
ks
 cu

rre
ntl
y (

De
c 2

00
9) 

fac
ing

 LB
TH

 
wh

ich
 ar

e b
ein

g m
on
ito
red

 by
 th

e C
MT

 an
d t

he
 A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e T

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ke
y s

tra
teg

ic 
ris
ks
 an

d h
ow

 it 
ge
ts 
as
su
ran

ce
 

fro
m 
va
rio
us
 so

urc
es
 is
 de

mo
ns
tra

ted
 be

low
.   

 

No
. 

Ri
sk
 

So
ur
ce
 o
f 

As
su

ra
nc

e 

DR
A0

00
1 

 Fa
ilu
re 

to 
de
live

r D
ec
en
t H

om
es
 by

 20
16
 

 
20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CS
D0

00
9 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f a
cti
on
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 
the

 La
mi
ng
 re

po
rt i
nto

 Ba
by
 P 

ma
y 

req
uir
e a

dd
itio

na
l fi
na
nc
ial
 re

so
urc

e 
20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

DR
D0

00
2 

Fin
an
cia

l p
en
alt
ies

 fo
r n

ot 
ac
hie

vin
g t
he
 C
RC

 En
erg

y E
ffic

ien
cy
 Sc

he
me

 
(C
RC

) 
 

20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CL
00
02
 

W
as
te 
Str

ate
gy
 - P

roc
ure

me
nt 
Pr
oje

ct 
do
es
 no

t d
eli
ve
r a

 so
lut
ion

 th
at 
is 

wit
hin

 bu
dg
et 

PR
G 

RS
B0

01
0 

Fu
tur

e s
ett
lem

en
t w

ill b
e m

uc
h l
ow

er 
tha

n c
urr

en
t le

ve
l 

 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n B

oa
rd 

DR
C0

00
2 

Re
so
urc

es
 re

qu
ire
d b

y t
he
 D
ire
cto

rat
e t
o d

eli
ve
r it
s p

rio
riti
es
 ar

e n
ot 
av
ail
ab
le 

or 
no
t s
us
tai
na
ble

 
D&

R 
DM

T 

AH
C0

00
1 

Ca
pa
cit
y t
o m

an
ag
e s

ick
ne
ss
 le
ve
ls 
an
d o

the
r H

R 
tas

ks
. 

 
20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

Page 105



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

5 
  

No
. 

Ri
sk
 

So
ur
ce
 o
f 

As
su

ra
nc

e 

CE
AC

00
02
 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
de
live

r a
 cr
ed
ibl
e p

ub
lic 

aw
are

ne
ss
 ca

mp
aig

n -
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

To
ge
the

r w
ith
in 
bu
dg
et 

CE
  D

MT
 

RS
E0

00
2 

Th
e c

os
t o
f a
dm

ini
str
ati
ve
 bu

ild
ing

s m
ay
  in

cre
as
e s

ub
sta

nti
all
y f
rom

 20
10
/11

 
 

20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CS
G0

00
5 

Th
e f
ina

nc
ial
 ris

k a
rou

nd
 th
e B

SF
 pr

og
ram

me
 an

d t
he
 ex

ist
ing

 PF
I s
ch
em

e 
wh

ich
 m
ay
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 bo
ug
ht 
ou
t  w

ith
 th
e c

on
se
qu
en
tia
l d
ela

y i
n 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 ca

pit
al 
inv

es
tm
en
t w

ork
s i
nto

 th
e s

ch
oo
ls 

20
09
-10

 an
d 2

01
0-1

1 
Au

dit
 Pl

an
 

AH
00
09

 
Pe

rso
na
lisa

tio
n -

 Ta
rge

ts 
no
t m

et 
in 
giv

ing
 cl
ien

ts 
ch
oic

e a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 

 
20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CL
00
05

 
Civ

il P
rot

ec
tio
n U

nit
    
Sw

ine
 Fl
u 

 
Bu

sin
es
s C

on
tin
uit
y 

Pla
n 

CS
F0

00
3 

Th
ere

 m
ay
 be

 a 
fai
lur
e t
o m

ain
tai
n t
he
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 ra

tin
g u

nd
er 

the
 ne

w 
Co

mp
reh

en
siv

e A
rea

 As
se
ss
me

nt 
(C
AA

) 
CS

F D
MT

 

AH
00
10

 

Pe
rso

na
lisa

tio
n -

 N
ew

 R
es
ou
rce

 Al
loc

ati
on
 Sy

ste
m 
lea

ds
 to
 th
e A

HW
B 

bu
dg
et 
be
ing

 ov
ers

pe
nt 

20
10
-11

 

AH
00
12

 
Sw

ine
 Fl
u p

an
de
mi
c i
mp

ac
ts 
on
 ca

pa
cit
y t
o m

ain
tai
n e

ss
en
tia
l s
erv

ice
s 

 
Bu

sin
es
s C

on
tin
uit
y 

Pla
n 

LS
P0

10
00
2 

Un
ce
rta

int
y o

f s
us
tai
na
ble

 fu
nd
ing

 af
ter

 W
NF

 
   

20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

Page 106



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

6 
  

No
. 

Ri
sk
 

So
ur
ce
 o
f 

As
su

ra
nc

e 

RS
B0

01
4 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
de
live

r F
ina

nc
ial
 M
an
ag
em

en
t R

ev
iew

 Pr
og
ram

me
 

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
ep
ort

ing
 

an
d T

ec
hn
ica

l G
rou

p 

DR
00
18

 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
ma

na
ge
 th
e r

eq
uir
em

en
t to

 re
du
ce
 th
e n

um
be
r o

f h
ou
se
ho
lds

 in
 

tem
po
rar

y a
cc
om

mo
da
tio
n b

y 5
0%

 by
 20

10
 

20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

DR
D0

00
3 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
ad
eq
ua
tel
y p

lan
, m

an
ag
e a

nd
 m
ain

tai
n a

ss
ets

 an
d p

rem
ise

s 
 

20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

DR
A0

00
5 

Se
rvi
ce
s c

ha
rge

s d
eb
t m

ay
 no

t b
e f
ull
y r
ec
ov
ere

d, 
all
ow

ing
 fo
r th

e p
rov

isio
n. 

To
tal
 de

bt 
is 
£3
3m

. 
20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CS
F0

00
1 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t th

e O
fst
ed
 un

an
no
un
ce
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
 of
 sa

feg
ua
rdi
ng
 fin

ds
 

se
rio
us
 co

nc
ern

s 
CS

F D
MT

 

CE
B0

00
2 

Th
ere

 is
 in
ad
eq
ua
te 
co
rpo

rat
e b

us
ine

ss
 co

nti
nu
ity
 pl
an
nin

g l
ea
din

g t
o l
os
s o

f 
ke
y s

erv
ice

s 
20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

RS
C0

00
4 

Da
ta 
co
mp

rom
ise

d 
 

20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

RS
G0

00
1 

Fa
ilu
re 

of 
the

 cu
sto

me
r c
on
tac

t c
en
tre

 
 

Re
so
urc

es
 D
MT

 

RS
A0

00
1 

Oc
cu
pa
tio
na
l H

ea
lth
 - f

ail
ure

 to
 de

live
r s
erv

ice
s i
n l
ine

 w
ith
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 

HR
IP 

RS
A0

00
4 

W
ork

for
ce
 Pl

an
nin

g -
 Fa

ilu
re 

to 
im
ple

me
nt 
str
ate

gy
 an

d p
lan

s 
 

HR
IP 

Page 107



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

7 
  

No
. 

Ri
sk
 

So
ur
ce
 o
f 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
 

DR
P0

00
1 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
de
live

r L
DF

 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y 

 
As

se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

an
d C

ap
ita
l B

oa
rd 

DR
D0

00
1 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
ad
eq
ua
tel
y p

lan
, m

an
ag
e a

nd
 m
ain

tai
n c

om
mu

nit
y b

uil
din

g 
po
rtfo

lio
 

 
20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

RS
B0

01
1 

A m
od
el 
an
 ef
fic
ien

cy
 pr

og
ram

me
 to
 ta
ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f th

e l
ike

ly 
red

uc
tio
n i
n 

fut
ure

 fu
nd
ing

 ac
ros

s p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r is
 no

t d
ev
elo

pe
d 

20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

RS
C0

00
3 

Fa
ilu
re 

of 
IC
T I

nfr
as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d T

ele
ph
on
y S

erv
ice

 
 

20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

RS
B0

00
5 

Ec
on
om

ic 
un
ce
rta

int
y a

nd
 ba

nk
ing

 co
nd
itio

ns
 le
ad
 to
 lo
ss
 of
 in
co
me

 or
 

inv
es
tm
en
t c
ap
ita
l. 

20
09
-10

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CH
&A

D0
00
1 

Ne
gli
ge
nc
e r

es
ult
ing

 in
 ha

rm
 to
 a 
vu
lne

rab
le 
pe
rso

n (
ari
sin

g f
rom

 Ba
by
 P 

inc
ide

nt)
 

 
20
10
-11

 Au
dit
 Pl

an
 

CE
AA

00
04

 
Ele

cto
ral
 pe

titi
on
 - C

ha
lle
ng
e t
o e

lec
tio
n r

es
ult
 M
ay
 20

10
 

 
CE

 D
MT

 an
d A

ss
 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
 (L

eg
al)
 

 

Page 108



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

8 
  

 

Th
e R

ole
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it 

 
 

Th
e r

ole
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it i
s t

o p
rov

ide
 an

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t ‘a

ss
ura

nc
e’ 

to 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 th

at 
its
 sy

ste
ms

 of
 in

ter
na
l c
on
tro

l a
re 

so
un
d a

nd
 ad

eq
ua
te,
 an

d a
re 

be
ing

 co
mp

lie
d w

ith
 by

 st
aff
 an

d m
an
ag
em

en
t.  
 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 a 
rev

iew
 fu
nc
tio
n, 
wh

ich
 in
de
pe
nd
en
tly
 re

vie
ws

 an
d r

ep
ort

s u
po
n t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
’s 
int
ern

al 
co
ntr

ol,
 go

ve
rna

nc
e 

an
d r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

rra
ng
em

en
ts.
 It 

cri
tic
all
y e

va
lua

tes
 th

e e
nti
re 

int
ern

al 
co
ntr

ol 
fra

me
wo

rk 
an
d w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

, m
ak
es
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
an
d t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
.  

  
CI
PF

A’s
 C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e f
or 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 in
 Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 
in 
the

 U
nit
ed
 Ki

ng
do
m 
20
06
 de

fin
es
 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it a

s: 
  "an

 as
su
ran

ce
 fu

nc
tio
n t

ha
t p

rov
ide

s a
n i
nd
ep
en
de
nt 

an
d o

bje
cti
ve
 op

ini
on
 to

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 on

 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t, b

y 
ev
alu

ati
ng
 its

 e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 in

 a
ch
iev

ing
 th

e 
org

an
isa

tio
n’s

 o
bje

cti
ve
s. 

It 
ob
jec

tiv
ely

 e
xa
mi
ne
s, 

ev
alu

ate
s a

nd
 re

po
rts
 o
n 
the

 
ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t a
s a

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o t
he
 pr

op
er,

 ec
on
om

ic,
 ef
fic
ien

t a
nd
 ef
fec

tiv
e u

se
 of
 re

so
urc

es
." 

 Th
e f
ind

ing
s e

me
rgi
ng
 fro

m 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 re

vie
ws

 pr
ov
ide

 a 
ba
sis

 fo
r a

n A
nn
ua
l A

ud
it O

pin
ion

 in
 th
e S

tat
em

en
t o
f In

ter
na
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
wit

hin
 th
e A

nn
ua
l G

ov
ern

an
ce
 St

ate
me

nt.
 

         

Page 109



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

9 
  

Lo
nd

on
 B
or
ou

gh
 of

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

20
10
/11

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it P

lan
 

  
 

 
Au

dit
 D
ay
s 

Pa
ge

s 
Co

rpo
rat

e S
ys
tem

s a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il–
wid

e r
ev
iew

s 
19
5 

10
-12

 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e’s

 
80
 

13
-14

 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

am
ilie

s 
36
0 

15
-18

 
Co

mm
un
itie

s, 
Lo
ca
litie

s &
 C
ult
ure

 
95
 

19
-20

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 

14
5 

21
-23

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
& R

en
ew

al 
11
5 

24
-26

 
Ad

ult
, H

ea
lth
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 
10
0 

27
-28

 
Re

so
urc

es
 & 

co
re 

fin
an
cia

l s
ys
tem

s 
21
8 

29
-31

 
Co

ntr
ac
t a
ud
it  

50
 

32
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 Te

ch
no
log

y a
ud
its
  

10
0 

32
 

VF
M 
an
d P

ro-
ac
tiv
e f
rau

d 
70
 

32
-33

 
Fo

llo
w 
up
, m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 re

ac
tiv
e f
rau

d p
rov

isio
n 

35
0 

33
 

To
tal

 Pr
ov

isi
on

 
1,8

78
 

- 
 

Page 110



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

10
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
rp
or
ate

 C
ro
ss
-

Cu
ttin

g  
Sy

ste
ms

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
re 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Pr
oc
es
se
s 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 co
re 

pe
op
le 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
 su

ch
 as

 
ma

na
gin

g a
tte
nd
an
ce
, m

an
ag
ing

 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
, m

an
ag
ing

 co
nd
uc
t a
nd
 

ma
na
gin

g l
ea
rni
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t.  

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

tha
t c
orp

ora
te 
pe
op
le 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
 ar

e b
ein

g c
om

pli
ed
 w
ith
 

res
ult
ing

 in
 go

od
 go

ve
rna

nc
e. 

 

M 
20
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Eff

icie
nc
y 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 

eff
icie

nc
y p

rog
ram

me
s t
o t
ak
e a

cc
ou
nt 
of 

the
 lik

ely
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 fu
tur

e f
un
din

g h
av
e 

be
en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d c
on
tro

ls 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e 

to 
mo

nit
or 

the
ir d

eli
ve
ry 
ac
ros

s t
he
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

H 
20
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 
Re

gis
ter

 re
f. 

RS
B0

01
1 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Na
tio
na
l P

erf
orm

an
ce
 

Ind
ica

tor
s 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
wo

rk 
wil

l b
e t
o a

ud
it 

an
d v

eri
fy 
da
ta 
qu
ali
ty 
of 
a s

am
ple

 of
 

hig
h r

isk
 na

tio
na
l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 

pre
pa
red

 by
 th
e C

ou
nc
il f
or 

su
bm

iss
ion

 
to 
the

 Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

. 

H 
40
 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s E
xte

rna
l 

Au
dit
ors

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Page 111



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

11
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
rp
or
ate

 C
ro
ss
-

Cu
ttin

g  
Sy

ste
ms

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Re
cru

itm
en
t  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

rec
rui
tin
g s

taf
f to

 es
tab

lish
ed
 po

sts
 

en
su
rin
g t
ha
t c
orp

ora
te 
pro

ce
du
res

 ar
e 

co
mp

lie
d w

ith
 an

d t
ha
t s
ati
sfa

cto
ry 
pre

-
rec

rui
tm
en
t c
he
ck
s a

re 
ca
rrie

d o
ut.
 

  

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Le
av
ers

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

va
lua

te 
sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 le
av
ers

 to
 

en
su
re 

tha
t s
taf
f w

ho
 le
av
e t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 of
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il a

re 
pro

mp
tly
 no

tifi
ed
 to
 H
R 

an
d P

ay
rol
l to

 m
itig

ate
 ris

ks
. 

 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce
  

Th
is 
ge
ne
ric
 re

vie
w 
wil

l in
co
rpo

rat
e t
he
 

pre
pa
rat

ion
 an

d v
ali
da
tio
n o

f th
e A

nn
ua
l 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e S

tat
em

en
t a
nd
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e p

rog
res

s m
ad
e i
n 

im
pro

vin
g c

on
tro

ls 
aro

un
d t
ho
se
 sp

ec
ific

 
go
ve
rna

nc
e i
ss
ue
s r
ep
ort

ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 
AG

S. 
 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Page 112



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

12
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
rp
or
ate

 C
ro
ss
-

Cu
ttin

g  
Sy

ste
ms

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fin
an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d 
W
aiv

ers
 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
the

 re
gu
lat
ion

s a
re 

cu
rre

nt,
 up

 to
 da

te 
an
d p

rov
ide

 ef
fec

tiv
e 

fin
an
cia

l c
on
tro

l a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g. 
 In
 

ad
dit
ion

, th
e s

ys
tem

 fo
r c
on
tro

llin
g a

nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 W

aiv
ers

 to
 th
e r

eg
ula

tio
ns
 w
ill 

be
 re

vie
we

d. 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

on
tro

l o
f 

Ov
ert

im
e 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r c
lai
mi
ng
, a
pp
rov

ing
 an

d 
pa
yin

g o
ve
rtim

e t
o o

ffic
ers

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

the
 sy

ste
ms

 ar
e s

ou
nd
 an

d s
ec
ure

 an
d 

co
rpo

rat
e p

roc
ed
ure

s a
re 

co
mp

lie
d w

ith
. 

 

M 
20
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
35
 

 
 

Page 113



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

13
  

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti

ve
’s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Re
gis

tra
rs 
 

  

Th
is 
wil

l b
e a

 re
gu
lar
ity
 au

dit
 to
 th
e 

Re
gis

tra
rs 
off
ice

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

tha
t s
ys
tem

s f
or 

co
ntr

oll
ing

 in
co
me

, 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re,

 co
ntr

oll
ed
 st
ati
on
ery

, a
ss
ets

 
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ar

e s
ou
nd
 an

d s
ec
ure

. 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
me

mb
ers

 
En

qu
irie

s 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s 
for

 de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 an

d m
an
ag
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 en

qu
irie

s r
ais

ed
 by

 el
ec
ted

 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il a

re 
so
un
d a

nd
 

se
cu
re.

 
 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 Se

cu
rity

 
Inc

ide
nt 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill b

e t
o r

ev
iew

 
the

 sy
ste

ms
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

rep
ort

ing
, 

inv
es
tig
ati
ng
 an

d m
an
ag
ing

 in
cid

en
ce
s o

f 
bre

ac
he
s i
n i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 se

cu
rity

 
pro

ce
du
res

. 
 

H 
10
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 re
gis

ter
 

RS
C0

00
4 a

nd
 Au

dit
 

ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Lo
ca
l A

rea
 Ag

ree
me

nts
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 an
d i
ts 

pa
rtn

er’
s a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
for

 de
live

rin
g t
he
 

ou
tco

me
s o

f th
e L

oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nts
 

  

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Page 114



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

14
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti

ve
’s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g p

erf
orm

an
ce
 of
 

its
 ke

y s
erv

ice
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
pri
ori
tie
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il 

are
 m
an
ag
ed
 an

d m
on
ito
red

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

. 
 

H 
15
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

CS
F0

00
3 a

nd
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 

as
se
ss
me

nt 

 
 

20
 

 
 

Page 115



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

15
  

  
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Yo
uth

 Se
rvi
ce
 C
on
tra

ct 
Mo

nit
ori
ng
  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g t
he
 yo

uth
 

se
rvi
ce
 co

ntr
ac
ts 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e 
co
ntr

ac
ts 
de
live

r v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne
y a

nd
 

ou
tco

me
s r
eq
uir
ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il. 

 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Su

pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
 

Of
fen

din
g Y

ou
th 
 

  

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill f

oc
us
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
‘Re

du
cin

g r
e-o

ffe
nd
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
’ 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 pr

ev
en
t a
nd
 re

du
ce
 

yo
uth

 re
-of

fen
din

g. 
 In
 ad

dit
ion

 sy
ste

ms
 

for
 is
su
ing

 R
eh
ab
ilita

tio
n o

rde
rs 
an
d f
or 

pre
pa
rin
g a

nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g ‘
su
pe
rvi
sio

n 
pla

ns
’ w

ill a
lso

 be
 au

dit
ed
. 

 

M 
15
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

CS
C0

00
2 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Ta

ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f L
am

ing
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 

ari
sin

g f
rom

 La
mi
ng
 R
ev
iew

 
 

H 
15
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 re
gis

ter
 

CS
D0

00
9 a

nd
 

CH
&A

D0
00
1 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Fo

cu
s o

n E
arl
y I
nte

rve
nti
on
 

Em
po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt f

am
ilie

s 

Page 116



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

16
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Pr
ev
en
tio
n a

nd
 Ea

rly
 

Int
erv

en
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

 fo
r p

rev
en
tio
n a

nd
 ea

rly
 

int
erv

en
tio
n t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
the

 
ke
y o

bje
cti
ve
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
y 

are
 be

ing
 ac

hie
ve
d a

nd
 m
on
ito
red

.   
 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Fo

cu
s o

n E
arl
y I
nte

rve
nti
on
 

Sc
ho
ols

' R
eg
ula

rity
 Au

dit
  

Sc
ho
ol 
vis

its
 ar

e u
nd
ert

ak
en
 us

ing
 a 
ris
k 

ba
se
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 re

vie
w 
ma

inl
y t
he
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r s
ch
oo
l g
ov
ern

an
ce
, 

bu
dg
et 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

l, a
cc
ou
nti
ng
 

an
d f
ina

nc
ial
 co

ntr
ol,
 pu

rch
as
ing

, 
pe
rso

nn
el/
pa
yro

ll a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 an

d 
co
ntr

ol,
 IT

 Se
cu
rity

 an
d a

ss
et 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 

 

H 
15
0 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
 

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Su

pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 

Fin
an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Sta
nd
ard

s f
or 

Pr
im
ary

 an
d 

Se
co
nd
ary

 Sc
ho
ols

 
W
e p

lan
 to
 vi
sit
 th
e r

es
pe
cti
ve
 nu

mb
er 

of 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ols

 du
rin
g t
he
 ye

ar 
an
d 

int
eg
rat

e t
he
 D
CF

S’s
 fin

an
cia

l 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
sta

nd
ard

s i
nto

 ou
r a

ud
it 

pro
gra

mm
e f
or 

sc
ho
ols

. 

H 
90
 

DC
FS

 re
gu
lat
ion

 on
 

fin
an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sta
nd
ard

s a
t s
ch
oo
ls 
in 

lin
e w

ith
 th
e D

CF
S 

too
lkit

.  

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Su

pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il. 

Page 117



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

17
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
of 
su
pp
lie
s 

an
d p

rov
isio

ns
 fo
r C

en
tra

l 
Kit

ch
en
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

pro
cu
rem

en
t o
f s
up
pli
es
 an

d p
rov

isio
ns
 

for
 C
en
tra

l K
itc
he
n t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
be
st 

va
lue

 is
 ob

tai
ne
d f
rom

 th
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 

an
d t
he
 us

e o
f p
rov

isio
ns
 is
 co

ntr
oll
ed
 an

d 
mo

nit
ore

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly.
 

 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
du
res

 
ma

ke
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

the
 D
ire
cto

rat
e t
o 

ma
ke
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r o

bta
ini
ng
 an

d 
ac
ce
pti
ng
 co

mp
eti
tiv
e o

ffe
rs 
an
d q

uo
tes

 
for

 go
od
s, 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
ork

s b
elo

w 
EU

 
Th

res
ho
lds

. T
his

 au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 an

d 
ev
alu

ate
 sy

ste
ms

 at
 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el.
 

 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d P
roj
ec
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e’s

 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d P
roj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce
du
res

.  A
 sa

mp
le 
of 
str
ate

gic
 

pro
jec

ts 
wil

l b
e s

ele
cte

d t
o t
es
t 

co
mp

lia
nc
e. 

 

M 
10
 

Au
di 
ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Page 118



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

18
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

 
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
To

 be
 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
20
 

 
 

Page 119



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

19
  

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Lo

ca
liti

es
 an

d C
ult

ur
e 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
mm

erc
ial
 W

as
te 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g c
om

me
rci
al 
wa

ste
 by

 th
e 

co
ntr

ac
tor

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t c
on
tro

ls 
ov
er 

inc
om

e a
nd
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

are
 so

un
d a

nd
 

ad
eq
ua
te 
an
d t
he
 co

ntr
ac
t is

 ro
bu
stl
y 

mo
nit
ore

d. 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t 

an
d t
ac
kle

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 

Le
isu

re 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
– 

co
ntr

ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f th
e 

co
ntr

ac
t, e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
so
un
d s

ys
tem

s 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 is
 

ac
hie

ve
d i
n t
he
 de

live
ry 
of 
the

 co
ntr

ac
t. 

 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
He

alt
hy

 C
om

mu
nit

y. 
Re

du
ce
 di
ffe
ren

ce
s i
n 

pe
op
le’
s h

ea
lth
 an

d 
pro

mo
te 
he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
 

Pu
rch

as
es
 of
 lib

rar
y b

oo
ks
 

an
d o

the
r s
toc

ks
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

ov
er 

the
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r p

urc
ha
sin

g 
bo
ok
s a

nd
 ot
he
r s
toc

ks
 fo
r th

e C
ou
nc
il’s

 
lib
rar

ies
 an

d I
de
a S

tor
es
, e
ns
uri
ng
 th
at 

be
st 
va
lue

 is
 ob

tai
ne
d a

nd
 st
oc
ks
 ar

e 
pro

pe
rly
 se

cu
red

.   
 

M 
10
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

CL
00
11
 

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l P

rot
ec
tio
n 

  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s s
tat
uto

ry 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l p
rot

ec
tio
n a

nd
 

po
llu
tio
n c

on
tro

l.  
 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t 

an
d t
ac
kle

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 

Page 120



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

20
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Lo

ca
liti

es
 an

d C
ult

ur
e 

 
 

 
 

 

CC
TV

 C
on
tro

l R
oo
m 
an
d 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
   

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 

sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s a
rou

nd
 th
e 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 op

era
tio
n o

f th
e 

CC
TV

 ro
om

 ar
e s

ou
nd
 an

d s
ec
ure

.   

M 
10
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

CL
00
17
 an

d 
Au

dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Ta

ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
du
res

 
ma

ke
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

the
 D
ire
cto

rat
e t
o 

ma
ke
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r o

bta
ini
ng
 an

d 
ac
ce
pti
ng
 co

mp
eti
tiv
e o

ffe
rs 
an
d q

uo
tes

 
for

 go
od
s, 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
ork

s b
elo

w 
EU

 
Th

res
ho
lds

. T
his

 au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 an

d 
ev
alu

ate
 sy

ste
ms

 at
 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el.
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
  

 
 

20
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 

Page 121



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

21
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ga
s R

ep
air
s a

nd
 

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

ov
er 

the
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d c

on
tro

ls 
in 
pla

ce
 

aro
un
d g

as
 re

pa
irs
 an

d m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

rep
air
s e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
ke
y c

on
tra

ct 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 ar

e a
ch
iev

ed
 an

d w
ork

s p
aid

 
for

 ar
e c

arr
ied

 ou
t e
ffic

ien
tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

.   
  

M 
15
 

TH
H 
Ris

k r
eg
ist
er 

TH
H0

10
01
7 a

nd
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f th
e c

urr
en
t s
ys
tem

s 
an
d c

on
tro

ls 
ov
er 

the
 gr

an
tin
g o

f 
pro

ba
tio
na
ry 
ten

an
cie

s. 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

 
 

 

Le
as
eh
old

er 
Inc

om
e 

Co
lle
cti
on
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d 

co
ntr

ols
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

co
lle
cti
ng
 an

d 
rec

ov
eri
ng
 in
co
me

 du
e f
rom

 
Le
as
eh
old

ers
.   

  

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 a
ffo
rda

ble
 h
ou
sin

g 
an
d 

de
ve
lop

 
str
on
g 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

Page 122



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

22
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fin
an
cia

l S
ys
tem

s 
   

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e k

ey
 fin

an
cia

l 
sy
ste

ms
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e a

nn
ua
l a
ss
ura

nc
e 

ov
er 

the
 so

un
dn
es
s o

f fi
na
nc
ial
 co

ntr
ol 

ac
ros

s T
HH

. 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ca
ret

ak
ing

 Se
rvi
ce
 

Th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill b

e t
o e

xa
mi
ne
 

sy
ste

ms
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g 

ca
ret

ak
ing

 se
rvi
ce
s e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
the

 
se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
we

ll p
lan

ne
d, 
ma

na
ge
d a

nd
 

co
ntr

oll
ed
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
e k

ey
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. 

 

M 
15
 

TH
H 
Ris

k r
eg
ist
er 

TH
H0

10
02
8 a

nd
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e S

erv
ice

 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s 
for

 ef
fec

tiv
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e 

Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n a
re 

so
un
d. 

 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
an
d R

isk
 re

gis
ter

 
TH

H 
01
00
22
 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

Sy
ste

ms
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t w

ork
  

 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
wo

rk 
wil

l b
e t
o 

ad
vis

e m
an
ag
em

en
t o
n p

roc
ed
ure

s a
nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 du

rin
g t
he
 sy

ste
ms

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

sta
ge
s. 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Page 123



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

23
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
its
 

A s
am

ple
 of
 bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ac
ts 
wil

l b
e 

se
lec

ted
 to
 te
st 
the

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 fo
r 

ad
mi
nis

ter
ing

 an
d m

an
ag
ing

 th
es
e 

co
ntr

ac
ts 
to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e o

n c
os
t 

an
d p

rog
ram

me
 co

ntr
ol.
 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

  
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 

the
re 

are
 so

un
d s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f H

ea
lth
 

an
d S

afe
ty 
at 
wo

rk 
ac
ros

s T
HH

. 
 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
an
d R

isk
 R
eg
ist
er 

TH
H0

10
00
9 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
ga
rag

es
, 

sh
ed
s a

nd
 es

tat
e p

ark
ing

 
sp
ac
es
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d 

co
ntr

ols
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g 

inc
om

e a
nd
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

rel
ati
ng
 to
 

ga
rag

es
, s
he
ds
 an

d e
sta

te 
pa
rki
ng
 

sp
ac
es
 in
 al
l H

ou
sin

g a
rea

s t
o e

ns
ure

 
tha

t s
ys
tem

s a
re 

so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re.

 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
an
d M

an
ag
em

en
t 

req
ue
st.
 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 

Fo
llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
s 

 
W
e w

ill c
arr

y o
ut 
fol
low

 up
 au

dit
s t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m
ad
e a

re 
pro

gre
ss
ed
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
ted

. 
H 

20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 124



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

24
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

 As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

tha
t th

ere
 ar

e s
ou
nd
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

go
ve
rna

nc
e, 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d m

an
ag
ing

 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s a
ss
ets

 an
d p

rem
ise

s. 
 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
Str

ate
gic

 ris
k 

reg
ist
er 

DR
D0

00
3 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 
Ho

us
ing

 Pr
op
ert

y B
uy
 Ba

ck
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

ov
er 

the
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 
of 
the

 
bu
y b

ac
k s

ch
em

e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

 
sy
ste

ms
 ar

e e
ffic

ien
t, e

ffe
cti
ve
 an

d 
ac
hie

ve
 th
e o

bje
cti
ve
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il. 

 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 
ho
us
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

p 
str
on
g n

eig
hb
ou
rho

od
s 

Pla
nn
ing

 fe
es
 an

d c
ha
rge

s 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 th
e c

oll
ec
tio
n 

an
d b

an
kin

g o
f p
lan

nin
g f
ee
s. 
 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e R

isk
 

Re
gis

ter
 D
RP

00
05
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 

Page 125



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

25
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

Bu
ild
ing

 Sc
ho
ols

 fo
r th

e 
Fu

tur
e 

Bu
ild
ing

 co
ntr

ac
t a
ud
its
 w
ill b

e c
arr

ied
 

ou
t o
n t
he
 bu

ild
ing

 w
ork

s a
t th

e n
on
-

sa
mp

le 
sc
ho
ols

 in
 th
e B

SF
 pr

og
ram

me
 

to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e t
ha
t c
os
t a
nd
 

pro
gra

mm
e c

on
tro

ls 
are

 ad
eq
ua
te 
du
rin
g 

the
 cu

rre
nc
y o

f th
e c

on
tra

ct.
   

Po
st 
co
ntr

ac
t a
ud
its
 w
ill b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t o
n 

co
mp

let
ed
 sa

mp
le 
sc
ho
ols

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 of
 th
e b

uil
din

g 
pro

gra
mm

e h
av
e b

ee
n a

ch
iev

ed
, fi
na
l 

ac
co
un
ts 
au
dit
ed
 an

d l
es
so
ns
 le
arn

t a
re 

fac
tor

ed
 in
to 
the

 fu
tur

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

wo
rk.
 

H 
25
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

CS
G0

00
5 

an
d A

ud
it n

ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
 

Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d P
roj
ec
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e’s

 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d P
roj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce
du
res

.  A
 sa

mp
le 
of 
str
ate

gic
 

pro
jec

ts 
wil

l b
e s

ele
cte

d t
o t
es
t 

co
mp

lia
nc
e. 

 

H 
10
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

DR
C0

00
3 

an
d A

ud
it n

ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Bu

ild
ing

 
Po

rtfo
lio
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

ov
er 

the
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Bu
ild
ing

 Po
rtfo

lio
. 

M 
15
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

DR
D0

00
1 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Page 126



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

26
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
  

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

 
 

 
 

 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
du
res

 
ma

ke
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

the
 D
ire
cto

rat
e t
o 

ma
ke
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r o

bta
ini
ng
 an

d 
ac
ce
pti
ng
 co

mp
eti
tiv
e o

ffe
rs 
an
d q

uo
tes

 
for

 go
od
s, 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
ork

s b
elo

w 
EU

 
Th

res
ho
lds

. T
his

 au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 an

d 
ev
alu

ate
 sy

ste
ms

 at
 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el.
 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 127



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

27
  

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 

We
llb

ein
g 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Eq

uip
me

nt 
Sto

re 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 is
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

ord
eri
ng
, p
ay
ing

 
an
d c

on
tro

llin
g O

T e
qu
ipm

en
t. 

 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Em

po
we

r O
lde

r a
nd
 

Vu
lne

rab
le 
Pe

op
le 
an
d 

su
pp
ort

 Fa
mi
lie
s 

 
Co

ntr
ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g a

 sa
mp

le 
of 

co
ntr

ac
ts 
aw

ard
ed
 by

 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 ar

e s
ou
nd
 an

d s
ec
ure

 
co
ntr

ac
t m

on
ito
rin
g a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
in 

pla
ce
 at
 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el.
 

  

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Em

po
we

r O
lde

r a
nd
 

Vu
lne

rab
le 
Pe

op
le 
an
d 

su
pp
ort

 Fa
mi
lie
s 

Int
eg
rat

ed
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 of
 

Me
nta

l H
ea
lth
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 fo
r c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 m

en
tal
 he

ath
 

se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

ad
ult
s u

sin
g t
he
 in
teg

rat
ed
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ap

pro
ac
h. 
 

    

H 
15
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

AH
00
14
 

A 
He

alt
hy

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Su

pp
ort

 M
en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o i
mp

rov
e 

me
nta

l h
ea
lth
 

Page 128



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

28
  

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 

We
llb

ein
g 

 
 

 
 

 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f 
Pe

rso
na
lisa

tio
n A

ge
nd
a 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 

the
re 

are
 so

un
d s

ys
tem

s i
n p

lac
e f
or 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th
e p

ers
on
ali
sa
tio
n 

ag
en
da
. 

H 
15
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 
Re

gis
ter

 AH
00
09
 

an
d A

H0
01
0 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Em

po
we

r O
lde

r a
nd
 

Vu
lne

rab
le 
Pe

op
le 

 
Ou

t o
f H

ou
rs 
So

cia
l C

are
 

To
 ex

am
ine

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s f
or 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 ou
t o
f h
ou
rs 

so
cia

l c
are

, e
ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
sy
ste

ms
 ar

e 
so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re.

 
 

M 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Em

po
we

r O
lde

r a
nd
 

Vu
lne

rab
le 
Pe

op
le 
an
d 

su
pp
ort

 Fa
mi
lie
s 

 
Qu

ali
ty 
As

su
ran

ce
  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e’s

 
qu
ali
ty 
as
su
ran

ce
 sy

ste
ms

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

the
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s a
re 

so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re 

an
d r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s m

ad
e b

y t
he
 te
am

 
are

 im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
20
 

 
 

   

Page 129



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

29
  

    
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

 
 

 
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 

Be
ne
fit 
(fu

ll s
ys
tem

s a
ud
it) 

 
H 

12
 

 
 

Ge
ne
ral
 Le

dg
er 

inc
l. 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 
(te

sti
ng
 

on
ly)
 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Ca
sh
ier
s /
 C
as
h i
nc
om

e 
(Te

sti
ng
) 

 
H 

7 
 

 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x (
tes

tin
g) 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Su
nd
ry 
De

bto
rs 
inc

lud
ing

 
Re

co
ve
ry 
an
d W

rite
 of
fs 

(te
sti
ng
) 

Re
vie

ws
 of
 ke

y f
ina

nc
ial
 sy

ste
ms

 
to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e t
o 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
in 
pre

pa
rin
g i
n t
he
 

an
nu
al 
sta

tem
en
t o
f a
cc
ou
nts

 an
d 

to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s 

“m
an
ag
ed
” a

ud
it a

pp
roa

ch
.  

H 
10
 

 
Au

dit
 ne

ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 

 

Cr
ed
ito
rs 
an
d R

2P
 (F

ull
 

sy
ste

ms
) 

 
H 

20
 

  
 

Ca
pit
al 
Ac

co
un
tin
g (

tes
tin
g) 

 
H 

7 
 

 
Pe

ns
ion

s (
tes

tin
g) 

 
H 

5 
 

 
N.
N.
D.
R.
 (te

sti
ng
) 

 
H 

7 
 

 

Page 130



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

30
  

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

 
 

 
 

 

Pe
rso

nn
el/
Pa

yro
ll (
Sy

ste
ms

) 
 

H 
15
 

 
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ts 
(te

sti
ng
) 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Tre
as
ury

 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

(sy
ste

ms
) 

  
H 

10
 

 
 

Co
mp

eti
tiv
e t
en
de
rin
g  

 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 so
un
dn
es
s a

nd
 

ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 co
mp

eti
tiv
e 

ten
de
rin
g a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
for

 pr
oc
uri
ng
 

wo
rks

, g
oo
ds
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 
 

  

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis

  
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. C

ou
nc
il 

Gr
an
t C

lai
m 
- T

ea
ch
ers

  
Pe

ns
ion

s R
etu

rn 
Th

is 
is 
an
 an

nu
al 
au
dit
 w
hic

h w
ill 

ex
am

ine
 th
e d

ed
uc
tio
n, 
pro

ce
ss
ing

 
an
d p

ay
me

nt 
of 
tea

ch
ers

’ p
en
sio

ns
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 to
 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 ce
rtif
yin

g t
he
 

Gr
an
t C

lai
m.
 

 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 
req

uir
em

en
t 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. C

ou
nc
il 

Pa
ym

en
ts 
by
 C
HA

PS
 an

d 
BA

CS
 

To
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 
the

se
 

sy
ste

ms
 fo
r m

ak
ing

 an
d a

pp
rov

ing
 

the
se
 pa

ym
en
ts 
are

 so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re 

to 
pro

tec
t C

ou
nc
il’s

 as
se
ts 
an
d 

int
ere

sts
. 

 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 131



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

31
  

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tiv
e 

Bu
ild
ing

s 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tiv
e b

uil
din

gs
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

sy
ste

ms
 an

d c
on
tro

ls 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 
the

 bu
ild
ing

s i
nc
lud

ing
 co

ntr
ac
t 

pa
ym

en
ts 
for

 re
pa
irs
 an

d m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

etc
. a
re 

so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re.

 
  

M 
15
 

Str
ate

gic
 R
isk

 
reg

ist
er 

RS
E0

00
2 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ou
t o
f H

ou
rs 
Em

erg
en
cy
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 th
at 

the
 ou

t o
f h
ou
rs 
em

erg
en
cy
 se

rvi
ce
 is
 

op
era

tin
g e

ffic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 th
e o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 pr

ior
itie

s o
f 

the
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

To
 be

 al
loc

ate
d s

ub
jec

t to
 

op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 

Page 132



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

32
  

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Co

ntr
ac
t A

ud
it 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it R

ev
iew

s 
Th

es
e a

ud
its
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sa

mp
le 

ca
pit
al 
an
d r

ev
en
ue
 co

ntr
ac
ts 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t re

qu
ire
d w

ork
s/s

erv
ice

s 
are

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
an
d p

rov
ide

d a
nd
 th
at 

pa
ym

en
ts 
ma

de
 w
ere

 in
 lin

e w
ith
 th
e 

co
ntr

ac
t o
bli
ga
tio
ns
. 

H 
50
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Inf
or
ma

tio
n 

Te
ch

no
log

y A
ud

its
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

To
 be

 de
ter

mi
ne
d f
rom

 
op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 an

aly
sis

 / 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

A s
ep
ara

te 
Co

mp
ute

r A
ud
it P

lan
 w
ill 

be
 de

vis
ed
 fo
llo
win

g t
he
 re

vie
w 
of 

the
 co

mp
ute

r a
ud
it s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

n. 
Th

e p
lan

 w
ill i

nc
lud

e a
pp
lica

tio
n 

rev
iew

s e
nc
om

pa
ss
ing

 th
e k

ey
 

fin
an
cia

l s
ys
tem

s. 

- 
10
0 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il. 

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey
 

Au
dit

s 
 

 
 

 
 

Tra
ns
lat
ion

 Se
rvi
ce
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il u

se
 

va
rio
us
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 
de
live

r 
tra

ns
lat
ion

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
 O
ur 

rev
iew

 w
ill 

foc
us
 on

 th
e p

res
en
t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
 tra

ns
lat
ion

 se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
he
the

r 
the

se
 pr

ov
ide

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
 

 

M 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 An

aly
sis

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 

as
 O
ne
. C

ou
nc
il 

Page 133



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

33
  

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
10
/11

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Pr
ior

ity
 

Au
dit

  
Da

ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
 Pr
oa

cti
ve
 Fr

au
d 

Wo
rk 

A p
rov

isio
n o

f fr
au
d a

wa
ren

es
s a

nd
 

an
ti-f
rau

d a
cti
vit
ies

. A
 se

pa
rat

e a
nti
-

fra
ud
 pl
an
 ha

s b
ee
n d

ev
ise

d. 
 

H 
50
 

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Fo
llo

w 
Up

s 
Fo

llo
w-
up
 of
 re

vie
ws

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
in 

08
/09

 to
 en

su
re 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f 
au
dit
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
. 

H 
15
0 

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Tim

e  
 

Th
is 
is 
a p

rov
isio

n f
or 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tim

e r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 di
rec

t, c
on
tro

l a
nd
 

mo
nit
or 

the
 w
ork

 of
 th
e a

ud
it t
ea
m.
 

  

 
10
0 

 
 

Re
ac
tiv

e F
rau

d  
A p

rov
isio

n f
or 

wo
rk 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
on
 

inv
es
tig
ati
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 up

on
 

rep
ort

ed
 irr

eg
ula

riti
es
 an

d  
fra

ud
  

 

H 
10
0 

 
 

 

Page 134



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

34
  

Go
ve
rn
an

ce
-ba

se
d A

ud
it A

ss
es
sm

en
t M

eth
od

olo
gy

  

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Ca

teg
ori
es
 

 
Th

e R
isk

 As
se
ss
me

nt 
mo

de
l ta

ke
s a

cc
ou
nt 
fou

r a
ss
es
sm

en
t c
ate

go
rie
s t
o p

rod
uc
e a

 ris
k i
nd
ex
 fo
r e

ac
h a

ud
ita
ble

 ar
ea
. T

he
 

au
dit
ab
le 
are

a i
s s

co
red

 in
 ea

ch
 ca

teg
ory

 us
ing

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
cri
ter

ia 
to 
ga
ug
e t
he
 de

gre
e o

f ri
sk
 or

 m
ate

ria
lity

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 

pa
rtic

ula
r a

rea
. T

he
 ta
ble

 be
low

 su
mm

ari
se
s t
he
 pr

op
os
ed
 fo
ur 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
ca
teg

ori
es
 an

d w
ha
t e
ac
h i
s i
nte

nd
ed
 to
 m
ea
su
re.

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Ca

teg
or
y 

Me
as
ur
e 

A 
Co

rpo
rat

e I
mp

ort
an
ce
 – 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
/Pr

ior
itie

s 
Co

rpo
rat

e m
ate

ria
lity

 
B 

Co
rpo

rat
e S

en
sit
ivit

y –
 Im

pa
ct 

Re
pu
tat
ion

al 
ma

ter
ial
ity
 

C 
Inh

ere
nt 
Ris

k 
Inh

ere
nt 
vu
lne

rab
ility

 
D 

Co
ntr

ol 
Ris

k 
Co

ntr
ol 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s 

  
Th

e f
ull
 de

fin
itio

n f
or 

ea
ch
 ca

teg
ory

 an
d t
he
 sc

ori
ng
 cr
ite
ria
 ar

e d
es
cri
be
d b

elo
w.
 

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Pr
oc
es
s 

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
wa

s b
as
ed
 on

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
jud

ge
me

nt 
aft
er 

ca
ref

ul 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
e k

ey
 ris

ks
 to
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
wit

h t
he
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

Dir
ec
tor

s a
nd
 ot
he
r k
ey
 of
fic
ers

, a
 re

vie
w 
of 
cu
rre

nt 
an
d p

rev
iou

s a
ud
it p

lan
s a

nd
 st
rat

eg
ic 
iss

ue
s f
ac
ing

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty.
 Th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 

ste
ps
 w
ere

 fo
llo
we

d i
n p

erf
orm

ing
 th
e r

isk
 as

se
ss
me

nt:
 

St
ep

 
Ac

tio
n 

1 
Se

lec
t th

e S
ys
tem

 an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Co

ntr
ols

 to
 be

 ris
k a

ss
es
se
d, 
to 
en
su
re 

a c
lea

r a
nd
 un

am
big

uo
us
 un

de
rst
an
din

g 
of 
the

 ar
ea
 un

de
r re

vie
w.
 Th

is 
is 
no
rm

all
y c

all
ed
 th
e A

ud
ita
ble

 Ar
ea
 

2 
Se

lec
t th

e m
os
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
cri
ter

ion
 an

d t
he
ref

ore
 th
e s

co
re 

in 
ea
ch
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
ca
teg

ory
 

3 
Re

co
rd 

the
 sc

ore
s. 

4 
Co

mp
ute

 th
e r

isk
 in
de
x b

y r
efe

ren
ce
 to
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 se

cti
on
 

 Ca
lcu

lat
ion

 of
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x  

  
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ris

k i
s t
he
 pr

od
uc
t o
f ri
sk
 an

d m
ate

ria
lity

. In
 va

lui
ng
 m
ate

ria
lity

 it 
is 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 ad

d t
he
 co

ns
titu

en
t a
ss
es
sm

en
ts 
of 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
mp

ort
an
ce
 an

d C
orp

ora
te 
Se

ns
itiv

ity
 to
 ge

ne
rat

e a
 M
ate

ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r o
n a

 sc
ale

 of
 10

0. 
 

Page 135



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

35
  

 
To

tal
 R
isk

 is
 th
e p

rod
uc
t o
f in

he
ren

t a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 
ris
k. 
Fo

r th
e p

urp
os
es
 of
 si
mp

lici
ty 
in 
thi
s m

od
el 
Inh

ere
nt 
Ris

k i
s a

ss
es
se
d o

n a
 

sc
ale

 of
 5-

10
 an

d C
on
tro

l R
isk

 on
 a 
sc
ale

 of
 2-

10
. T

he
 m
ini
mu

m 
Ris

k F
ac
tor

 is
 pr

od
uc
ed
 by

 m
ult
ipl
yin

g t
he
se
 co

mp
on
en
ts 
is 

the
ref

ore
 10

% 
(2 

x 5
). 

  
Th

e A
ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x f
or 

ea
ch
 au

dit
ab
le 
are

a i
s, 
the

ref
ore

, th
e M

ate
ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r m
ult
ipl
ied

 by
 th
e R

isk
 Fa

cto
r.  

   
Re

su
lts
 of
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
  

Th
e s

tru
ctu

red
 lis

t o
f a
ud
ita
ble

 ar
ea
s w

ith
 illu

str
ati
ve
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
sc
ore

s i
s r
ec
ord

ed
 an

d t
he
 su

mm
ari
se
d s

co
res

 us
ed
 to
 gi
ve
 th
e 

Ris
k F

ac
tor

 an
d M

ate
ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r a
nd
 th
e r

es
ult
an
t A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x. 

  
Th

e l
ist
 of
 au

dit
ab
le 
are

as
 is
 th
en
 ra

nk
ed
 by

 re
fer

en
ce
 to
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x a

nd
 gr

ou
pe
d a

s h
igh

, m
ed
ium

 or
 lo
w 
pri
ori
ty.
 Th

e t
op
 

thi
rd 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 to
 be

 hi
gh
 pr

ior
ity
, th

e n
ex
t m

ed
ium

 pr
ior
ity
, a
nd
 th
e b

ott
om

 th
ird
 lo
w 
pri
ori
ty.
 

 

Page 136



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

36
  

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 

  
 

 
 

 
    Sc

or
e 

Ri
sk
 to

 D
ep

art
me

nt,
 C
or
po

rat
e 

an
d/o

r S
erv

ice
 O
bje

cti
ve
s 

 
Op

era
tio

na
l R

isk
 

Ex
po

su
re 

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
isk

 Ex
po

su
re 

10
 

Ne
gli
gib

le 
im
pa
ct 
on
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
of 

se
rvi
ce
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. T

his
 w
ou
ld 
sti
ll b

e 
ac
hie

ve
d w

ith
 m
ini
mu

m 
ex
tra

 co
st 
or 

inc
on
ve
nie

nc
e. 

or 
Mi
no
r in

co
nv
en
ien

ce
 

or 
Un

de
r 2

% 
of 
tot
al 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
as
se
ts.
 

20
 

Se
rvi
ce
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 on

ly 
pa
rtia

lly 
ac
hie

va
ble

 w
ith
ou
t c
om

pe
ns
ati
ng
 

ac
tio
n b

ein
g t
ak
en
 or

 re
all
oc
ati
on
 of
 

res
ou
rce

s. 

or 
Dif

fic
ult
 to
 re

co
ve
r 

or 
Be

tw
ee
n 2

% 
an
d 1

0%
 of
 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
as
se
ts.
 

30
 

Un
ab
le 
to 
ac
hie

ve
 se

rvi
ce
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

wit
ho
ut 
su
bs
tan

tia
l a
dd
itio

na
l c
os
ts 
or 

tim
e d

ela
ys
 or

 ad
ve
rse

 ef
fec

t o
n 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 
na
tio
na
l ta

rge
ts 
/ 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs.
 

or 
Pe

rm
an
en
t lo

ss
 of
 da

ta 
or 

Be
tw
ee
n 1

0%
 an

d 3
0%

 of
 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
as
se
ts.
 

40
 

Un
ab
le 
to 
ac
hie

ve
 se

rvi
ce
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

res
ult
ing

 in
 si
gn
ific

an
t v
isib

le 
im
pa
ct 
on
 

se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n s
uc
h a

s c
los

ure
 of
 

fac
iliti

es
. 

or 
Un

ab
le 
to 
res

tor
e s

ys
tem

 
or 

Be
tw
ee
n 3

0%
 an

d 5
0%

 of
 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
as
se
ts.
 

50
 

Un
ab
le 
to 
ac
hie

ve
 se

rvi
ce
 ob

jec
tiv
es
, 

res
ult
ing

 in
 in
ab
ility

 to
 fu
lfil 

co
rpo

rat
e 

ob
lig
ati
on
s. 

or 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
 un

ab
le 
to 

fun
cti
on
 

or 
Ov

er 
50
% 

of 
tot
al 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
as
se
ts 

 

A 
CO

RP
O
RA

TE
 IM

PO
RT

AN
CE

 
Th

is a
spe

ct 
co
nsi

de
rs 
the

 ef
fec

t o
n a

n o
rga

nis
ati
on
 of

 an
y i
na
bil

ity
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 

ma
na
gem

en
t d

efi
ne
d s

erv
ice

 ob
jec

tiv
es 

sho
uld

 th
e s

yst
em

 or
 pr

oc
ess

 fa
il. 

Th
is a

spe
ct 
als

o t
ak
es 

int
o a

cco
un
t th

e f
ina

nc
ial
 

ex
po
sur

e o
r m

ate
ria

lity
 of

 th
e a

rea
. T

he
 co

nse
qu
en
tia
l im

pa
ct,
 ei
the

r d
ire

ctl
y o

r in
dir

ect
ly,
 on

 ot
he
r s
yst

em
s a

nd
 pr

oc
ess

es 
is a

lso
 

rel
ev
an
t to

 th
e a

sse
ssm

en
t. O

ve
ral

l it
 is 

a m
eas

ure
 of

 th
e e

xte
nt 

to 
wh

ich
 th

e o
rga

nis
ati
on
 de

pe
nd
s o

n t
he
 co

rre
ct 
run

nin
g o

f th
e 

sys
tem

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 its

 str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv

es.
 

Page 137



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

37
  

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 

  
 

 
 

 
   Sc

ore
 
Ris

k t
o P

ub
lic 

Im
ag
e 

 
Ris

k o
f A

dv
ers

e 
Pu

bli
cit
y 

 
Ris

k t
o A

cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
 

 
Ris

k o
f n
on
-le
ga
l 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

10
 

Ne
gli
gib

le 
co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 

 
 

 
 

or 
No

 re
gu
lat
ory

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

20
 

So
me

 pu
bli
c 

em
ba
rra

ss
me

nt 
bu
t n
o 

da
ma

ge
 to
 re

pu
tat
ion

 
or 

sta
nd
ing

 in
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 

or  
Inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

of 
int
ere

st 
to 
loc

al 
pre

ss
 

 
 

or 
Mi
nim

al 
reg

ula
tor

y 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
an
d 

lim
ite
d s

en
sit
ivit

y 
to 
no
n-c

om
pli
an
ce
 

30
 

So
me

 pu
bli
c 

em
ba
rra

ss
me

nt 
lea

din
g t
o l
im
ite
d 

da
ma

ge
 

or  
Inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

of 
int
ere

st 
to 
loc

al 
MP

s 
 

 
or  

Mo
de
st 
leg

al 
an
d 

reg
ula

tor
y 

req
uir
em

en
ts 

40
 

Lo
ss
 of
 cr
ed
ibi
lity

 an
d 

pu
bli
c c

on
fid
en
ce
 in
 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 co

nc
ern

ed
 

or  
Inc

ide
nt 
of 
int
ere

st 
to 

Na
tio
na
l P

res
s 

O r 
Inc

ide
nt 
po
ten

tia
lly 

lea
din

g t
o t
he
 di
sm

iss
al 

or 
res

ign
ati
on
 of
 th
e 

res
po
ns
ibl
e f
un
cti
on
al 

ma
na
ge
r 

or  
Ex

ten
siv

e l
eg
al 

an
d r

eg
ula

tor
y 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
wit

h 
sa
nc
tio
ns
 fo
r n

on
-

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

50
 

Hig
hly

 da
ma

gin
g w

ith
 

im
me

dia
te 
im
pa
ct 
on
 

pu
bli
c c

on
fid
en
ce
 

or  
Inc

ide
nt 
of 
int
ere

st 
to 

the
 Au

dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

, 
go
ve
rnm

en
t a
ge
nc
ies

 

O r 
Inc

ide
nt 
po
ten

tia
lly 

lea
din

g t
o t
he
 re

sig
na
tio
n 

or 
dis

mi
ss
al 
of 
a C

hie
f 

Of
fic
er 

or  
Po

ss
ibl
e c

ou
rt 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
ord

er 
for

 no
n-

co
mp

lia
nc
e  

 

B 
Co

rpo
rat

e S
en
sit
ivi

ty 
Th

is a
spe

ct 
tak

es 
int

o a
cco

un
t th

e s
en
sit
ivi

ty 
/ c
on
fid

en
tia
lity

 of
 th

e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 pr

oc
ess

ed
, o
r 

ser
vic

e d
eli
ve
red

 by
 th

e s
yst

em
, o
r d

eci
sio

ns 
inf

lue
nc
ed
 by

 th
e o

utp
ut.

 It 
als

o a
sse

sse
s a

ny
 le
ga
l a
nd
 re

gu
lat
ory

 co
mp

lia
nc
e 

req
uir

em
en
ts. 

Th
e m

eas
ure

 sh
ou
ld 

als
o r

efl
ect

 an
y m

an
ag
em

en
t c
on
cer

ns 
an
d s

en
sit
ivi

tie
s. 

Page 138



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

38
  

 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 

 
 

 
 

 
    Sc

ore
 

Inh
ere

nt 
Ris

k –
 

Vu
lne

rab
ility

 
 

Ris
k o

f E
rro

r d
ue
 to
 

Sy
ste

m 
Co

mp
lex

ity
 

 
Ris

k r
es
ult
ing

 fro
m 
Pa

ce
 

of 
Ch

an
ge
 

 
Ris

k t
o A

ss
et 

Se
cu
rity

 
5 

Lo
w 
vu
lne

rab
ility

 
 

Sim
ple

 sy
ste

m 
wit

h 
low

 ris
k o

f e
rro

r 
or 

No
 ch

an
ge
s p

lan
ne
d 

or 
Un

de
sir
ab
le 
low

 
va
lue

 as
se
ts 
no
t a
t 

ris
k o

f fr
au
d o

r lo
ss
 

6 
Me

diu
m 
or 

low
 

inh
ere

nt 
ris
k 

or 
 

or 
Lim

ite
d c

ha
ng
es
 pl
an
ne
d 

wit
h r

ea
so
na
ble

 
tim

es
ca
le 

 
 

7 
Me

diu
m 
vu
lne

rab
ility

 
or 

Mo
de
rat

ely
 co

mp
lex

 
sy
ste

m 
wit

h m
ed
ium

 
ris
k o

f e
rro

r 
or  

Mo
de
rat

e l
ev
el 
of 
ch
an
ge
 

ov
er 

me
diu

m 
ter

m 
 

 

8 
Me

diu
m 
to 
hig

h 
inh

ere
nt 
ris
k 

or 
 

or 
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
lev

el 
of 

ch
an
ge
 w
ith
 re

str
ict
ed
 

tim
es
ca
le 

 
 

10
 

Hig
hly

 vu
lne

rab
le 

or 
Co

mp
lex

 sy
ste

m 
wit

h 
hig

h r
isk

 of
 er

ror
 

or 
Ex

ten
siv

e c
ha
ng
es
 

pla
nn
ed
 w
ith
 sh

ort
 

tim
es
ca
le 

or  
Hig

hly
 de

sir
ab
le 

as
se
ts 
ex
po
se
d t
o 

hig
h r

isk
 of
 fra

ud
 

or 
los

s 
 C 

Inh
ere

nt 
Ri
sk 

 T
his

 as
pe
ct 
co
nsi

de
rs 
the

 in
he
ren

t ri
sk 

of 
the

 sy
ste

m,
 se

rvi
ce,

 pr
oc
ess

 or
 re

lat
ed
 as

set
s to

 er
ror

, lo
ss,

 
irr
eg
ula

rity
, in

eff
ici
en
cy
, il

leg
ali
ty 

or 
fai

lur
e. 
Th

e p
art

icu
lar

 se
rvi

ce 
sec

tor
, n
atu

re 
of 

op
era

tio
ns 

an
d t

he
 pa

ce 
of 

ch
an
ge 

wi
ll a

lso
 

aff
ect

 th
e l
ev
el 
of 

inh
ere

nt 
ris
k. 
Sim

ila
rly

 th
e r

ela
tiv

e c
om

ple
xit

y o
f th

e s
yst

em
 w
ill 

inf
lue

nc
e t
he
 in

he
ren

t ri
sk 

or 
err

or.
 Th

e 
inh

ere
nt 

vu
lne

rab
ilit

y o
f a

 sy
ste

m,
 se

rvi
ce 

or 
pro

ces
s c

an
no
t b

e a
lte
red

, o
nly

 m
itig

ate
d b

y t
he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co
ntr

ols
 co

nsi
de
red

 in
 

sec
tio

n D
. 

 

Page 139



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

 

39
  

 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 

 
 

 
 

 
   

Sc
ore

 
His

tor
y o

f R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Su
cc
es
s 

 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Ris

k a
nd
 C
on
tro

l 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
 

Co
nd
itio

n o
f R

isk
  

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Co

ntr
ols

 
2 

No
 hi
sto

ry 
of 
co
ntr

ol 
we

ak
ne
ss
 

or 
Th

ere
 is
 ef
fec

tiv
e r

isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 
co
ntr

ols
 op

era
ted

 by
 

ris
k-a

wa
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 

or 
Eff

ec
tiv
e c

on
tro

ls 
an
d r

ob
us
t 

att
itu
de
 to
 th
e m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f 

all
 m
ate

ria
l ri
sk
s. 
Em

be
dd
ed
 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t c
ult
ure

 
4 

No
 hi
sto

ry 
of 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
we

ak
ne
ss
 

or 
Go

od
 m
an
ag
em

en
t ri
sk
 an

d 
co
ntr

ol 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
or 

Sta
ble

 sy
ste

m 
wit

h h
ist
ory

 of
 

rel
iab

ility
 an

d c
on
tro

ls.
 R
isk

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
iss

ue
d 

co
ns
ide

red
 re

gu
lar
ly.
 

6 
No

 hi
gh
 ris

k i
ss
ue
s o

uts
tan

din
g 

fro
m 
the

 pr
ev
iou

s 
au
dit
/in
ve
sti
ga
tio
n/b

es
t 

va
lue

/ex
ter

na
l re

vie
w 

or 
No

 kn
ow

led
ge
 of
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ris
k a

nd
 co

ntr
ol 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
or  

Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 sy

ste
m 

co
ntr

ols
 no

t v
ali
da
ted

. 

8 
So

me
 si
gn
ific

an
t p
rob

lem
s w

ere
 

ide
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ar

e k
no
wn

 to
 be

 
ou
tst
an
din

g f
rom

 th
e p

rev
iou

s 
au
dit
/re

vie
w 

or 
So

me
 si
gn
ific

an
t c
on
ce
rns

 
ha
ve
 be

en
 ex

pre
ss
ed
 by

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
(th

rou
gh
 C
on
tro

ls 
Ris

k W
ork

sh
op
s) 

or  
Te

ch
nic

al 
he
alt
h o

f s
ys
tem

 of
 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 co

ntr
ols

 
in 
do
ub
t. 

10
 

Ma
jor
 w
ea
kn
es
se
s i
n r

isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

on
tro

ls 
we

re 
ide

nti
fie
d a

nd
 ar

e k
no
wn

 to
 be

 
ou
tst
an
din

g 

or 
Ma

jor
 co

nc
ern

s h
av
e b

ee
n 

ex
pre

ss
ed
 by

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

(th
rou

gh
 C
on
tro

ls 
Ris

k 
wo

rks
ho
ps
) 

or  
Ob

so
let
e s

ys
tem

 w
ith
 hi
sto

ry 
of 
pro

ble
ms

 an
d i
ne
ffe
cti
ve
 

co
ntr

ol.
 Li
ttle

 or
 no

 w
ork

 
un
de
rta

ke
n o

n r
isk

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt.
 

 

D 
Co

ntr
ol 

Ri
sk 

  
Th

is a
spe

ct 
ass

ess
es 

the
 le
ve
l o

f c
on
tro

l ri
sk 

ba
sed

 up
on
 th

e r
esu

lts
 of

 pa
st a

ud
its
 of

 th
e c

on
tro

l 
en
vir

on
me

nt 
un
de
r re

vie
w.
 Th

is a
spe

ct 
als

o t
ak
es 

int
o a

cco
un
t o

f th
e o

pe
rat

ing
 hi

sto
ry 

an
d c

on
dit

ion
 of

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ess
es 

an
d k

no
wl
ed
ge 

of 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
co
ntr

ols
 to

 m
ini

mi
se 

ex
po
sur

e t
o r

isk
. C

RS
A 
an
d e

xte
nsi

ve
 Co

ntr
ol 

Ri
sk 

W
ork

sho
ps 

un
de
r th

e 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
of 

the
 Co

un
cil
’s 
Ri
sk 

Ma
na
ge
r c
ou
ld 

sup
po
rt e

va
lua

tio
n. 

Page 140



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 

 

40
  

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 St

rat
eg

y 
 Int

ro
du

cti
on

 
 Wh

at 
is 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
? 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 a 
rev

iew
 fu
nc
tio
n w

ith
in 
an
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
. E

ss
en
tia
lly 

it e
xis

ts 
to 
pe
rfo

rm
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 ro

les
: 

 �
 

rev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 of
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t, i
nte

rna
l c
on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

se
 ar

e s
ou
nd
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
. 

�
 

to 
pro

vid
e a

n a
ss
ura

nc
e o

pin
ion

 on
 th
e s

ou
nd
ne
ss
 of
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
’s 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 in
ter

na
l c
on
tro

l fr
am

ew
ork

s. 
�
 

to 
ad
d 
va
lue

 to
 th

e 
org

an
isa

tio
n’s

 o
pe
rat

ion
al 

ac
tiv
itie

s 
by
 re

co
mm

en
din

g 
en
ha
nc
em

en
ts 

to 
sy
ste

ms
 a
nd
 id

en
tify

ing
 p
ote

nti
al 

eff
icie

nc
ies

. 
  Pe

rha
ps
 th
e m

os
t s
uc
cin

ct 
de
fin
itio

n o
f In

ter
na
l A

ud
it i
s p

rov
ide

d b
y t
he
 In
sti
tut
e o

f In
ter

na
l A

ud
ito
rs 
– U

K a
nd
 Ire

lan
d (

IIA
-U
K)
, a
s f
oll
ow

s: 
 Int
ern

al 
au
dit
ing

 is
 a
n 
ind

ep
en
de
nt,
 o
bje

cti
ve
 a
ss
ura

nc
e 
an
d 
co
ns
ult
ing

 a
cti
vit
y d

es
ign

ed
 to

 a
dd
 va

lue
 a
nd
 im

pro
ve
 a
n 
org

an
isa

tio
n's

 
op
era

tio
ns
. It

 he
lps

 an
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 ac

co
mp

lish
 its

 ob
jec

tiv
es
 by

 br
ing

ing
 a 

sy
ste

ma
tic
, d

isc
ipl
ine

d a
pp
roa

ch
 to

 ev
alu

ate
 an

d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 

eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s o

f ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, c

on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e p

roc
es
se
s. 

 Th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s I

nte
rna

l A
ud
it C

ha
rte

r d
efi
ne
s t

he
 fu

nc
tio
n o

f In
ter

na
l A

ud
it, 
wit

h s
pe
cif
ic 
ref

ere
nc
e t

o i
ts 

rol
e w

ith
in 

the
 A
uth

ori
ty,
 in

 th
e 

fol
low

ing
 w
ay
: 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 an

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t re

vie
w 
fun

cti
on
 es

tab
lish

ed
 as

 a 
se
rvi
ce
 to
 M
em

be
rs,
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e a

nd
 al
l le

ve
ls 
of 
ma

na
ge
me

nt.
 

Th
e 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 S
erv

ice
 is

 re
sp
on
sib

le 
for

 th
e 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 a
de
qu
ac
y a

nd
 e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 o
f t
he
 p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 w
ith
in 
sy
ste

ms
 op

era
tin
g w

ith
in 
all
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 ac
tiv
itie

s. 
It a

lso
 ha

s a
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 to
 m
an
ag
em

en
t th

at 
the

 Au
tho

rity
’s 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 co

rpo
rat

e g
ov
ern

an
ce
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 ar

e s
ati
sfa

cto
ry.
 

 Wh
y d

o w
e n

ee
d a

n I
nte

rn
al 
Au

dit
 St

rat
eg

y?
  

 An
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it S

tra
teg

y o
utl
ine

s t
he
 m

ea
ns
 by

 w
hic

h I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it s

ee
ks
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 its

 st
ate

d a
im
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. T

he
 st
rat

eg
y i
s t
he
 

pla
n f
or 

the
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 de
live

ry 
of 
the

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it s

erv
ice

.  

Page 141



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 

 

41
  

 Th
is 
do
cu
me

nt 
se
ts 
ou
t In

ter
na
l A

ud
it’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ap
pro

ac
h, 
wh

ich
 sh

ou
ld 
fac

ilita
te:
 

 �
 

on
 a
n 
an
nu
al 

ba
sis

, t
he
 p
rov

isio
n 
to 

the
 S

15
1 
off
ice

r o
f a

n 
ov
era

ll o
pin

ion
 o
n 
the

 A
uth

ori
ty’
s 
ris
k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt,
 c
on
tro

l a
nd
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e, 
to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e p

rep
ara

tio
n o

f th
e S

tat
em

en
t o
f In

ter
na
l C

on
tro

l; 
�
 

au
dit
 of

 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t, 
co
ntr

ol 
an
d g

ov
ern

an
ce
 pr

oc
es
se
s t

hro
ug
h 
pe
rio
dic

 au
dit
 pl

an
s i
n a

 w
ay
 w
hic

h 
aff
ord

s 
su
ita
ble

 pr
ior
ity
 to
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 ris

ks
; 

�
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t, 
co
ntr

ol 
an
d 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 
by
 p
rov

idi
ng
 lin

e 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
wit

h 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 

ari
sin

g f
rom

 au
dit
 w
ork

; 
�
 

the
 id
en
tifi
ca
tio
n o

f a
ud
it r

es
ou
rce

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to

 de
live

r a
n a

ud
it s

erv
ice

 w
hic

h m
ee
ts 
the

 C
IPF

A 
Co

de
 of

 P
rac

tic
e 2

00
6 f

or 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 in
 Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt;
 

�
 

eff
ec
tiv
e c

o-o
pe
rat

ion
 w
ith
 ex

ter
na
l a
ud
ito
rs 
an
d o

the
r re

vie
w 
bo
die

s f
un
cti
on
ing

 in
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty;
 an

d 
�
 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 as

su
ran

ce
 an

d c
on
su
lta
nc
y s

erv
ice

s b
y I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it. 

 Th
e R

ole
 an

d P
ur
po

se
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it  

 Th
e r

ole
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it i
s t

o u
nd
ers

tan
d t

he
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s k

ey
 ris

ks
, a

nd
 to

 re
vie

w 
an
d e

va
lua

te 
the

 ad
eq
ua
cy
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 th
e 

sy
ste

ms
 o
f in

ter
na
l c

on
tro

l, r
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 co

rpo
rat

e 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 
tha

t a
re 

in 
op
era

tio
n 
at 

the
 C

ou
nc
il, 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t t
he
y a

re 
su
ffic

ien
t fo

r th
e p

urp
os
es
 of
 m
itig

ati
ng
 ris

k. 
 

 It i
s a

 st
atu

tor
y r
eq
uir
em

en
t fo

r L
oc
al 
Au

tho
riti
es
 to
 ha

ve
 an

 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it f
un
cti
on
, u
nd
er 

S1
51
 of
 th
e L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t A

ct 
19
72
. T

he
 Ac

t 
als

o s
tip
ula

tes
 th

at 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 sh

ou
ld 
ha
ve
 un

res
tric

ted
 ac

ce
ss
 to

 al
l in

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 re

co
rds

 re
tai
ne
d b

y t
he
 A
uth

ori
ty.
 T
his

 en
ab
les

 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 to
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

ely
 re

vie
w,
 ap

pra
ise

 an
d r

ep
ort

 on
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s f
un
cti
on
s a

s o
utl
ine

d i
n t
he
 Au

dit
 C
ha
rte

r. 
 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ai
ms

 
 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ex

ist
s t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 C
ou
nc
il in

 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
f it
s c

orp
ora

te 
ob
jec

tiv
es
. In

 pa
rtic

ula
r: 

 �
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
su
pp
ort

 th
e 
Au

tho
rity

’s 
aim

 to
 p
rov

ide
 q
ua
lity

 p
ub
lic 

se
rvi
ce
s, 

by
 e
va
lua

tin
g 
an
d 
rep

ort
ing

 o
n 
the

 st
an
da
rd 

of 
sy
ste

ms
 of
 in
ter

na
l c
on
tro

l in
 C
ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

 ar
ea
s; 

Page 142



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 

 

42
  

�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w

ill 
su
pp
ort

 th
e 
Au

tho
rity

 in
 w

ork
ing

 to
 th

e 
va
lue

s 
se
t o

ut 
in 

its
 c
orp

ora
te 

pla
n 
by
 p
rov

idi
ng
 th

e 
He

ad
 o
f R

isk
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 th

e 
Dir

ec
tor

 o
f R

es
ou
rce

s a
nd
 th

e 
Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 
wit

h 
rep

ort
s o

n 
the

 e
xte

nt 
of 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 
wit

h 
the

 A
uth

ori
ty’
s 

Co
de
 of
 C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e; 

�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w

ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 A
uth

ori
ty’
s c

om
mu

nit
y a

im
s t

hro
ug
h 
pro

fes
sio

na
l a

ud
it r

ev
iew

s a
nd
 e
ffe
cti
ve
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

im
pro

vin
g s

ys
tem

s t
ha
t s
up
po
rt t

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
aim

s; 
�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w

ill 
as
sis

t t
he
 D

ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s 
in 

the
 d
isc

ha
rge

 o
f h

is 
sta

tut
ory

 re
sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo

r e
ns
uri
ng
 th

e 
pro

pe
r 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n o

f th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s f
ina

nc
ial
 af

fai
rs 

an
d w

ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 A
uth

ori
ty’
s a

im
 of

 m
ax
im
isin

g a
nd
 m

ak
ing

 be
st 
us
e o

f it
s 

fin
an
cia

l re
so
urc

es
 th
rou

gh
: 

o
 R

isk
 ba

se
d r

ev
iew

s o
f fi
na
nc
ial
 sy

ste
ms

; 
o
 A

dv
ice

 on
 th
e a

de
qu
ac
y a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f c
on
tro

ls 
in 
ne
w 
an
d d

ev
elo

pin
g s

ys
tem

s; 
o
 P

rom
oti
on
 of
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 ac

ros
s t
he
 Au

tho
rity

; 
o
 A

dv
ice

 on
 th

e p
rev

en
tio
n a

nd
 de

tec
tio
n o

f fr
au
d a

ffe
cti
ng
 th

e A
uth

ori
ty 
an
d i

nv
es
tig
ati
on
 of

 w
as
te 

or 
ab
us
e w

ith
in 

the
 C
ou
nc
il 

sy
ste

ms
. 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 &
 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t  

 Ris
ks
 a
re 

po
ten

tia
l e

ve
nts

 o
r o

cc
urr

en
ce
s t

ha
t m

ay
 h
av
e 
an
 ad

ve
rse

 ef
fec

t o
n 
the

 o
rga

nis
ati
on
’s 
ab
ility

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 its

 o
bje

cti
ve
s. 

Ris
k 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
is 

the
 p
roc

es
s o

f id
en
tify

ing
, e

va
lua

tin
g 
an
d 
res

po
nd
ing

 to
 ri
sk
s i

n 
ord

er 
to 

mi
tig
ate

 th
em

. R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t is

 n
ot 

the
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 o
f I

nte
rna

l A
ud
it. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w

ill 
us
e 
the

 a
uth

ori
ty’
s 
ris
k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fra

me
wo

rk 
to 

foc
us
 it
s 
wo

rk 
by
 

co
nc
en
tra

tin
g o

n t
ho
se
 ar

ea
s t
ha
t a
re 

mo
st 
cri
tic
al 
to 
the

 au
tho

rity
. C

on
se
qu
en
tly
, In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill r
ev
iew

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s r
isk

 re
gis

ter
s o

n 
a 
six

 m
on
thl
y b

as
is 

an
d 
wh

ere
 n
ec
es
sa
ry 

am
en
d 
the

 in
ter

na
l a

ud
it p

lan
 to

 e
ns
ure

 a
ud
it r

es
ou
rce

s a
re 

co
nti
nu
all
y f

oc
us
ed
 o
n 
are

as
 

ide
nti
fie
d b

y m
an
ag
em

en
t w

he
re 

the
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 m
ay
 no

t b
e a

ch
iev

ed
. 

 Dim
en
sio

n 
4 
fro

m 
the

 C
IPF

A/S
OL

AC
E 

rep
ort

 o
n 
go
od
 g
ov
ern

an
ce
 h
igh

lig
hts

 R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t a

s 
be
ing

 a
n 
int
eg
ral
 p
art

 o
f g

oo
d 

go
ve
rna

nc
e. 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
the

ref
ore

 al
so
 ex

am
ine

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
an
nu
all
y a

nd
 in
 so

 do
ing

, a
lso

 fu
lfil 

the
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 o
f t
he
 C

IPF
A 

Co
de
 o
f P

rac
tic
e 
20
06
 fo

r I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it 
in 

Lo
ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 

to 
rep

ort
 fo

rm
all
y 
on
 th

e 
au
tho

rity
’s 

arr
an
ge
me

nt 
for

 R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t. 

 

Page 143



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 

 

43
  

 Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 A
ud

it C
ov

era
ge

 
 In 
ord

er 
to 
ide

nti
fy 
the

 au
dit
ab
le 
sy
ste

ms
 an

d e
sta

bli
sh
 th
e a

rea
s o

f ri
sk
 or

 sp
ec
ific

 im
po
rta

nc
e w

ith
in 
the

 au
tho

rity
, In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill a
do
pt 

an
 a
pp
roa

ch
 in

vo
lvin

g 
dis

cu
ss
ion

 a
nd
 re

vie
w 

of 
the

 c
urr

en
t p

os
itio

n. 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 w

ill 
be
 g
ath

ere
d 
by
 m

ee
tin
g 
ke
y o

ffic
ers

 w
ith
in 

the
 

au
tho

rity
 in

clu
din

g C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

s a
nd
 F
ina

nc
e M

an
ag
ers

, th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 ot

he
r k

ey
 of

fic
ers

 w
ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

. In
ter

na
l 

Au
dit
 w
ill 
als

o d
isc

us
s t
he
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 of

 th
e E

xte
rna

l A
ud
ito
rs 

an
d t

he
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 of

 th
e “

ma
na
ge
d a

ud
it” 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o e
ns
ure

 th
os
e 

are
as
 u
po
n 
wh

ich
 o
ur 

ex
ter

na
l a

ud
ito
rs 

wo
uld

 se
ek
 to

 p
lac

e 
rel
ian

ce
 o
n 
the

 in
ter

na
l a

ud
it w

ork
 a
re 

inc
lud

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 in

ter
na
l a

ud
it 

pro
gra

mm
e. 
De

tai
ls 
of 
the

 “G
ov
ern

an
ce
” B

as
ed
 St

rat
eg
ic 
Pla

nn
ing

 ar
e a

tta
ch
ed
 to
 th
is 
pa
pe
r fo

r in
for

ma
tio
n. 

 In 
co
mp

ilin
g i
ts 

wo
rk 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
ma

ke
 us

e o
f in

for
ma

tio
n a

va
ila
ble

 w
ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

 to
 id

en
tify

 au
dit
ab
le 

sy
ste

ms
, 

su
ch
 as

 
 �
 

the
 au

tho
rity

’s 
ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

, to
 en

su
re 

ris
ks
 ar

e b
ein

g m
an
ag
ed
 pr

op
erl
y; 
 

�
 

ba
ck
gro

un
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ob

tai
ne
d f
rom

 pr
ev
iou

s a
ud
its
 an

d o
ur 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s t
o d

ate
 w
ith
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty;
 

�
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f is
su
es
 ra

ise
d a

t o
the

r p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s a

fte
r c
are

ful
ly 
co
ns
ide

rin
g k

ey
 ris

ks
 to
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty;
 an

d 
�
 

cu
rre

nt 
an
d p

rev
iou

s a
ud
it p

lan
s a

nd
 st
rat

eg
ic 
iss

ue
s f
ac
ing

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty.
 

 Fo
r e

ac
h a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

m,
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill 
cla

ss
ify
 th

e s
ys
tem

s i
nto

 on
e o

f th
ree

 ris
k b

an
ds
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 th

e s
ys
tem

’s 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e t

o t
he
 

au
tho

rity
: H

igh
 (H

), M
ed
ium

 (M
) o

r L
ow

 (L
). I

t is
 re

co
gn
ise

d a
nd
 ap

pre
cia

ted
 th
at 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ca

nn
ot 

rev
iew

 al
l a
ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

ms
 w
ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

 ea
ch
 ye

ar 
as
 bo

th 
fin
an
cia

l a
nd
 hu

ma
n r

es
ou
rce

s a
re 

lim
ite
d. 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 se

ek
 to
 us

e t
he
 re

so
urc

es
 av

ail
ab
le 

to 
rev

iew
 th

os
e a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

ms
 th

at 
are

 m
os
t s
ign

ific
an
t to

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty.
 H
en
ce
, a

ll s
ys
tem

s h
igh

lig
hte

d a
s b

ein
g h

igh
ly 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
wil

l 
alw

ay
s b

e i
nc
lud

ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 an
nu
al 
au
dit
 pl
an
. A

 pr
op
ort

ion
 of
 m
ed
ium

 si
gn
ific

an
ce
 au

dit
s w

ill a
lso

 be
en
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 pl
an
. In

 de
cid

ing
 

wh
ich

 m
ed
ium

-si
gn
ific

an
ce
 au

dit
ab
le 

sy
ste

m 
to 

rev
iew

, w
e w

ill 
us
e o

ur 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 sy

ste
m 

an
d d

isc
us
s w

ith
 m

an
ag
em

en
t th

os
e 

are
as
 th

at 
wil

l a
dd
 va

lue
. It

 is
 hi

gh
ly 
un
like

ly 
the

 re
so
urc

es
 w
ill 
pe
rm

it t
he
 in

clu
sio

n o
f a

ud
ita
ble

 un
its
 th

at 
are

 of
 lo

w 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e t

o t
he
 

au
tho

rity
 an

d t
he
ref

ore
 th
es
e a

ud
ita
ble

 un
its
 w
ill f

ea
tur

e o
n t
he
 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it p

lan
 un

les
s s

pe
cif
ica

lly 
req

ue
ste

d b
y m

an
ag
em

en
t.  
 

 

Page 144



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

 

 

44
  

De
liv
eri

ng
 th

e S
tra

teg
y 

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 pl
an
 w
ill 
be
 co

mp
ile
d a

nn
ua
lly 

for
 ea

ch
 fin

an
cia

l y
ea
r a

nd
 on

ly 
co
mp

ris
e t

ho
se
 sy

ste
ms

 du
e f

or 
rev

iew
 in
 th

at 
ye
ar.

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

n w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 re

lat
e t
o o

ne
 fin

an
cia

l y
ea
r a

nd
 be

 su
bje

ct 
to 
a f
orm

al 
six

 m
on
thl
y r
ev
iew

.  
 Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rim
ary

 pe
rfo

rm
 ris

k b
as
ed
 au

dit
s, 
all
 ex

ce
pti
on
s t
o t
his

 w
ill r

eq
uir
e p

rio
r a

gre
em

en
t fr

om
 th
e H

ea
d o

f R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t. 

Th
e r

isk
 ba

se
d a

pp
roa

ch
 en

tai
ls 
ex
am

ini
ng
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of

 th
e a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

m,
 th

e r
isk

s r
ela

tin
g t

o t
he
 de

live
ry 
of 

tho
se
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 an

d 
an
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
the

 ad
eq
ua
cy
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 th
e c

on
tro

l fr
am

ew
ork

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
e d

es
ire
d o

bje
cti
ve
s. 

 Au
dit

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
 Th

e r
ep
ort

ing
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r In

ter
na
l A

ud
it a

re 
de
tai
led

 in
 th
e I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it C

ha
rte

r u
nd
er 

“R
ep
ort

ing
”.  

 Qu
ali
ty 

 All
 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it w

ork
 w
ill b

e s
ub
jec

t to
 rig

oro
us
 re

vie
w 
an
d q

ua
lity

 as
su
ran

ce
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s. 
Th

is 
wil

l e
nta

il:-
 

 �
 

pla
nn
ing

 th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
e a

ud
it t
o e

ns
ure

 fo
cu
s o

n a
rea

s o
f ri
sk
s a

nd
 co

nc
ern

s; 
�
 

su
pe
rvi
sio

n o
f a
ud
it w

ork
 by

 th
e A

ud
it M

an
ag
ers

; 
�
 

a f
orm

al 
rev

iew
 an

d s
ign

 of
f o
f th

e a
ud
it r
ep
ort

 an
d a

ud
it f
ile
 by

 th
e A

ud
it M

an
ag
ers

; 
�
 

fur
the

r fo
rm

al 
rev

iew
s o

f a
ll r
ep
ort

s a
nd
 si
gn
 of
f fo

r is
su
e t
o a

ud
ite
e b

y t
he
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 M
an
ag
er;

 
�
 

ob
tai
nin

g f
ee
db
ac
k a

nd
 co

mm
en
ts 
fro

m 
the

 au
dit
ee
s a

nd
 D
ire
cto

rs;
 

�
 

se
ek
ing

 fe
ed
ba
ck
 fro

m 
the

 ex
ter

na
l a
ud
ito
rs;
 an

d  
�
 

be
nc
h m

ark
ing

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it q

ua
lity

 co
ntr

ol 
pro

ce
du
res

 w
ith
 ot
he
r s
im
ila
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s. 

 
   

 

Page 145



 

 

 

45
  

      Th
e I
nte

rn
al 
Au

dit
 Pr

oc
es
s 

 Th
e P

re-
Au

dit
 St

ag
e  

Ba
se
d 
on
 th

e 
au
dit
 ti
me

tab
le,
 w

hic
h 
ha
s 
pre

vio
us
ly 

be
en
 a
gre

ed
, I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it 
Te

am
 w

ill 
giv

e 
tw
o 
we

ek
s 
no
tic
e 
to 

the
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir

ec
tor

 an
d S

erv
ice

 H
ea
d (

the
 A
ud
it O

wn
er)

 of
 an

 im
pe
nd
ing

 au
dit
 re

vie
w 
an
d i
ss
ue
 an

 A
ud
it B

rie
f. T

he
 

Au
dit
 Br

ief
 w
ill a

lso
 de

tai
l h
ow

 th
e a

ud
it r
ela

tes
 to
 th
e a

gre
ed
 au

dit
 pl
an
. T

he
 Au

dit
 O
wn

er 
ha
s a

n o
pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 co

mm
en
t o
n t
he
 

Au
dit
 Br

ief
 an

d r
ais

e a
ny
 ar

ea
s o

f c
on
ce
rn.

 
 Th

e A
ud
it O

wn
er 

wil
l e

ns
ure

 th
at 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 pr

ov
ide

d w
ith
 a 

wr
itte

n a
gre

em
en
t o

r o
the

rw
ise

 to
 th

e A
ud
it B

rie
f w

ith
in 
tw
o 

we
ek
s f
oll
ow

ing
 th
e r

ec
eip

t o
f th

e d
raf

t b
y t
he
 Au

dit
 O
wn

er.
   

 Du
rin

g t
he

 A
ud

it 
At 

thi
s s

tag
e I

nte
rna

l A
ud
it w

ill 
ke
ep
 th

e A
ud
ite
e i
nfo

rm
ed
 of

 ke
y f
ind

ing
s f
ou
nd
 du

rin
g t
he
 co

urs
e o

f th
e a

ud
it. 
Wh

ere
 an

 of
fic
er 

ha
s n

ot 
be
en
 ab

le 
to 
pro

vid
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 re

qu
es
ted

, In
ter

na
l A

ud
it w

ill r
efe

r m
att
ers

 to
 th
e A

ud
it O

wn
er.

 
 

Th
e 
Au

dit
ee
 w

ill 
en
su
re 

tha
t t
he
 a
ud
ito
r i
s p

rov
ide

d 
wit

h 
all
 th

e 
res

ou
rce

s a
nd
 fa

cili
tie
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 in

for
ma

tio
n 
req

ue
ste

d, 
to 

fac
ilita

te 
the

 sm
oo
th 
pro

gre
ss
 of
 th
e a

ud
it, 
inc

lud
ing

 re
sp
on
din

g t
o a

ny
 au

dit
or 

en
qu
irie

s p
rom

ptl
y. 

 Po
st 

Au
dit

 St
ag

e 
Up

on
 co

nc
lus

ion
 of

 th
e a

ud
it f
iel
d w

ork
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill 
pre

se
nt 

a D
raf

t A
ud
it R

ep
ort

 to
 be

 di
sc
us
se
d a

t th
e a

ud
it e

xit
 m

ee
tin
g 

wit
h 

the
 A

ud
it 
Ow

ne
r. 

At 
the

 a
ud
it 
ex
it 
me

eti
ng
, t

he
 fi
nd
ing

s 
wil

l b
e 

dis
cu
ss
ed
, a

lon
g 

wit
h 

an
y 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
for

 
im
pro

ve
me

nt.
 

 

Page 146



 

 

 

46
  

Fo
llo
win

g t
he
 au

dit
 ex

it m
ee
tin
g, 

LB
 To

we
r H

am
let
s I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it w

ill 
iss

ue
 a 

for
ma

l D
raf

t o
f th

e A
ud
it R

ep
ort

 w
hic

h i
nc
lud

es
 a 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 of

 R
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o t

he
 A
ud
it O

wn
er 

wit
hin

 th
ree

 w
ee
ks
 fo

llo
win

g t
he
 co

mp
let
ion

 of
 th

e a
ud
it e

xit
 

me
eti
ng
.  

 Th
e 
Au

dit
 O

wn
er 

ha
s 
thr

ee
 w

ee
ks
 to

 re
sp
on
d 
to 

the
 D

raf
t A

ud
it 
Re

po
rt 
by
 c
om

ple
tin
g 
the

 M
an
ag
em

en
t A

cti
on
 P

lan
 o
f 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
, in

clu
din

g 
list

ing
 re

sp
on
sib

le 
off
ice

rs 
an
d 
pro

po
se
d 
co
mp

let
ion

 d
ate

s. 
 U
po
n 
rec

eip
t o

f t
he
 a
gre

ed
 A
cti
on
 

Pla
n, 
a F

ina
l R

ep
ort

 w
ill b

e i
ss
ue
d t
o a

ll p
art

ies
 co

nc
ern

ed
. 

 Th
e A

ud
it O

wn
er 

wil
l th

en
 en

ter
 th

e a
gre

ed
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

cti
on
s a

nd
 ta

rge
t d

ate
s i
nto

 th
e A

ud
it T

rac
ke
r S

ys
tem

, a
nd
 m

on
ito
r 

the
 pr

og
res

s i
n i
mp

lem
en
tin
g t
he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
. 

 
Th

e L
B 
To

we
r H

am
let
s I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it w

ill 
pre

se
nt 

a S
um

ma
ry 

of 
Fin

din
gs
 fro

m 
rec

en
tly
 is
su
ed
 Fi

na
l A

ud
it R

ep
ort

s t
o t

he
 A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e. 

 T
he
 A
ud
it O

wn
er 

wil
l h

av
e 
the

 o
pp
ort

un
ity
 to

 a
dd
 a
 re

sp
on
se
 to

 th
e 
Su

mm
ary

 o
f F

ind
ing

s b
efo

re 
thi
s r

ep
ort

 is
 

pre
se
nte

d t
o t
he
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e. 

 
               

Page 147



 

 

 

47
  

   

Th
e M

on
ito

rin
g P

ro
ce
ss
 

 
 

Fo
llo

w-
up

 au
dit

s w
ill 
be
 co

nd
uc
ted

 si
x m

on
ths

 af
ter

 th
e i
ss
ue
 of

 th
e F

ina
l R

ep
ort

, a
nd
 a 

fol
low

 up
 au

dit
 re

po
rt w

ill 
be
 is
su
ed
 

sh
ow

ing
 th
e p

rog
res

s o
n i
mp

lem
en
tin
g t
he
 ag

ree
d r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s. 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ar

e c
las

sif
ied

 as
 fo
llo
ws

: 
 Ca

teg
ory

 1 
– H

igh
 Pr

ior
ity
 - 1

00
% 

of 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s t
o b

e i
mp

lem
en
ted

 w
ith
in 
six

 m
on
ths

 
Ca

teg
ory

 2 
– M

ed
ium

 Pr
ior
ity
 – 
95
% 

of 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s t
o b

e i
mp

lem
en
ted

 w
ith
in 
six

 m
on
ths

 
    

Page 148



 

 

 

48
  

 Su
mm

ary
 

   

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
: W

ill 
pro

vid
e 
as
su
ran

ce
 th

at 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
 an

d i
nte

rna
l c
on
tro

ls 
are

 
op
era

tin
g e

ffe
cti
ve
ly,
 en

su
re 

ma
jor
 bu

sin
es
s r

isk
s 

are
 

be
ing

 
ma

na
ge
d 

eff
ec
tiv
ely

, 
an
d 

tha
t 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

are
 

op
era

tin
g 

eff
ec
tiv
ely

. 
 Co

ntr
ol 

Fr
am

ew
or
k: 

 A
 m

atr
ix 

of 
co
ntr

ol 
me

ch
an
ism

s 
wil

l b
e 

de
ve
lop

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 th
at 

ev
ery

 
me

mb
er 

of 
sta

ff 
is 

aw
are

 
of 

the
ir 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 in
 m

an
ag
ing

 ri
sk
, a

nd
 a
 re

po
rtin

g 
fra

me
wo

rk 
wil

l 
en
su
re 

tha
t 

the
 

Se
nio

r 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 a
nd
 th

e 
Bo

ard
 h
av
e 
a 
cle

ar 
vie

w 
of 
the

 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f th
e c

on
tro

ls 
in 
pla

ce
. 

 Ri
sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Th

e 
Ris

k 
Re

gis
ter

 w
ill 

be
 

rev
iew

ed
 o

n 
a 

pe
rio
dic

 b
as
is 

to 
rea

ss
es
s 
the

 
res

idu
al 

lev
el 

of 
ris
k 

for
 t
he
 s

tra
teg

ic 
ris
ks
 

ide
nti
fie
d 
in 

the
 fir

st 
ye
ar 

of 
op
era

tio
n; 

ne
w 
ris
ks
 

ad
de
d a

s t
he
y b

ec
om

e e
vid

en
t. 

Operational RisksPro
fess

ion
al

Fina
ncia

l
Bus

ines
s Pl

ann
ing

Leg
al

Phy
sica

l
Con

trac
tua

l
Tec

hno
logi

cal

Strategic Risks

Pol
itica

l
Eco

nom
ic

Soc
ial

Tec
hno

logi
cal

Leg
isla

tive
Env

iron
me

nta
l

Com
pet

itiv
e

Cus
tom

er/
Citi

zen

Con
trol

 Fra
me

wo
rk

Org
anis

atio
nal

Stru
ctu

re
Spa

n o
f

Con
trol

Rol
es a

nd
Res

pon
sibi

litie
s

Clea
r W

ritt
en

Inst
ruc

tion
s

Clea
r Lin

es
of R

epo
rtin

g
to E

xec
utiv

e
and

 Bo
ard

Disc
ipli

nar
y

Arr
ang

em
ent

s

Inte
rna

l Au
dit

Rev
iew

 of 
Con

trol
 Pro

ces
ses

Rev
iew

 of 
VFM

 Ob
ject

ives
Rev

iew
 of 

 Ma
nag

em
ent

 Inf
orm

atio
n

and
 con

trol
 sys

tem
s

Re
sid

ua
l

Ris
k

Ris
k

Ma
nag

em
ent

Page 149



 

 

 

49
  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 
3: 

Ri
sk
 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ram
ew

or
k 

 
 

De
fin

itio
ns

 
 Ri
sk
 “A

ny
 is
su
e w

hic
h c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 an

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
’s 
ab
ility

 to
 m
ee
t it
s o

bje
cti
ve
s” 

 Ri
sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 a 
pla

nn
ed
 an

d s
ys
tem

ati
c a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 th
e i
de
nti
fic
ati
on
, a

na
lys

is 
an
d c

on
tro

l o
f r
isk

s 
tha

t c
ha
lle
ng
e 
an
d 
thr

ea
ten

 th
e 
ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 o
bje

cti
ve
s 
of 

the
 o
rga

nis
ati
on
. R

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t m

ak
es
 it 

po
ss
ibl
e 
to 

de
ter

mi
ne
 w
he
the

r th
e r

isk
s p

os
e a

 la
rge

 en
ou
gh
 th

rea
t a

nd
 th

e i
nn
ov
ati
on
s a

 bi
g e

no
ug
h o

pp
ort

un
ity
, to

 im
ple

me
nt 

mi
tig
ati
on
 

tec
hn
iqu

es
. 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e I

s t
o i

mp
lem

en
t a

n e
ffe
cti
ve
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 th

at 
en
su
res

 th
at 

ris
ks
 ar

e i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 m

an
ag
ed
 to

 an
 

ac
ce
pta

ble
 le

ve
l a

nd
 th

at 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 a
re 

ful
ly 

ex
plo

ite
d, 

wh
ilst

 m
ini
mi
sin

g, 
fin
an
cia

l lo
ss
, s

erv
ice

 d
isr
up
tio
n, 

ba
d 
pu
bli
cit
y, 

rep
uta

tio
n l
os
s, 
cla

im
s f
or 

co
mp

en
sa
tio
n a

nd
 th
rea

ts 
to 
the

 pu
bli
c a

nd
 st
aff
. 

 Ou
r P

oli
cy
: W

e b
eli
ev
e t

ha
t b

y m
an
ag
ing

 ris
ks
 ef

fec
tiv
ely

, w
e a

t L
B 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s w

ill 
be
 in
 a 

str
on
ge
r p

os
itio

n t
o d

eli
ve
r 

ou
r s

tra
teg

ic 
an
d o

pe
rat

ion
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es
. B

y t
ak
ing

 ad
va
nta

ge
 of

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 an
d m

an
ag
ing

 th
em

 w
ell
, w

e w
ill 
be
 in

 a 
be
tte
r 

po
sit
ion

 to
 im

pro
ve
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 gi
ve
 ou

r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 be

tte
r v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne
y. 

Page 150



 

 

 

50
  

Ob
jec

tiv
es
 of

 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 • 
En

su
re 

tha
t s

ys
tem

s a
re 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 id
en
tify

, t
rac

k a
nd
 re

po
rt 
up
on
 e
xis

tin
g 
an
d 
em

erg
ing

 ri
sk
s t

ha
t c

ou
ld 

da
ma

ge
 th

e 
int
ere

st 
of 
ou
r b

us
ine

ss
 an

d o
ur 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs.
 

• 
En

su
re 

tha
t r
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 em
be
dd
ed
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e o
rga

nis
ati
on
, c

rea
tin
g a

n e
nv
iro
nm

en
t w

he
re 

all
 st

aff
 as

su
me

s 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 ris
k. 
 

  Th
es
e O

bje
cti

ve
s w

ill 
be

 A
ch

iev
ed

 by
:  

 • 
Es

tab
lish

ing
 cl
ea
r ro

les
, re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 lin

es
 w
ith
in 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 fo
r ri

sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t; 

• 
Pr
ov
idi
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r s
ha
red

 le
arn

ing
 on

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
cro

ss
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
; 

• 
De

ve
lop

ing
 an

d m
ain

tai
nin

g s
ys
tem

s f
or 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
 an

d e
va
lua

tin
g a

ll s
ign

ific
an
t ri
sk
s; 

• 
De

ve
lop

ing
 an

d m
ain

tai
nin

g a
 fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 al
loc

ati
ng
 re

so
urc

es
 to
 id
en
tifi
ed
 pr

ior
ity
 ris

k a
rea

s; 
• 

Re
inf
orc

ing
 th
e i
mp

ort
an
ce
 of
 ef
fec

tiv
e r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
s p

art
 of
 th
e e

ve
ryd

ay
 w
ork

 of
 em

plo
ye
es
 by

 of
fer

ing
 tra

ini
ng
; 

• 
Inc

orp
ora

tin
g r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t c
on
sid

era
tio
ns
 in
to 
Be

st 
Va

lue
 an

d s
erv

ice
 re

vie
ws

 an
d b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
nin

g; 
• 

Pu
t in

 pl
ac
e r

ev
iew

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
to 
as
se
ss
 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 ou

r m
ec
ha
nis

ms
 an

d a
rra

ng
em

en
ts.
 

       

Page 151



 

 

 

51
  

To
 Em

ph
as
ise

 th
e O

rg
an

isa
tio

n’s
 W

or
kin

g C
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, t

he
 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t M

iss
ion

 St
ate

me
nt 

is 
as
 Fo

llo
ws

: 
 “Lo

nd
on
 B
oro

ug
h 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s r

ec
og
nis

es
 th

at 
it h

as
 a 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 m

an
ag
e 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 an
d 
ris
ks
 in

 a 
str
uc
tur

ed
 

ma
nn
er 

in 
ord

er 
tha

t L
B T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 w
ill b

ett
er 

ac
hie

ve
 its

 co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 en

ha
nc
e t
he
 va

lue
 of
 se

rvi
ce
s i
t p
rov

ide
s 

to 
the

 C
om

mu
nit
y”.
 

 Th
e 
Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e, 

Co
rpo

rat
e 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 (C

MT
) a

nd
 th

e 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 M

an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

(D
MT

) w
ill 
ha
ve
 o
ve
ral
l 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r r
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 w
ill 
be
 co

ns
ult
ed
 a
nd
 ke

pt 
inf
orm

ed
 a
s t

o 
the

 p
rog

res
s o

f t
he
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 
of 

the
 

str
ate

gy
 on

 at
 le
as
t a
n a

nn
ua
l b
as
is.
 

Page 152



 

 

 

52
  

 Ro
les

 an
d R

es
po

ns
ibi

liti
es
 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
Th

e C
om

mi
tte
e’s

 pr
im
ary

 ro
le 
is 
to 
rev

iew
 an

d c
on
clu

de
 up

on
 th
e a

de
qu
ac
y a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ov
era

ll in
ter

na
l c
on
tro

l s
ys
tem

.  I
n p

erf
orm

ing
 th
is 
rol
e t
he
 C
om

mi
tte
e’s

 w
ork

 
pre

do
mi
na
ntl
y f
oc
us
es
 up

on
 th
e f
ram

ew
ork

 of
 ris

ks
, c
on
tro

ls 
an
d r

ela
ted

 as
su
ran

ce
s t
ha
t u
nd
erp

in 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ob
jec

tiv
es
. 

 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 

.  On
e o

f th
e r

ole
s o

f th
e C

MT
 is
 to
 w
ork

 on
 a 
cro

ss
-di
rec

tor
ate

 ba
sis

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 

an
 ef
fec

tiv
e r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
rra

ng
em

en
t in

 pl
ac
e t
o a

ch
iev

e i
ts 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d t
o c

on
sid

er 
qu
art

erl
y r
ep
ort

s o
n t
he
 ke

y s
tra

teg
ic 
ris
ks
 fa
ce
d b

y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 ho

w 
the

se
 ris

ks
 ar

e b
ein

g 
ma

na
ge
d a

nd
 m
itig

ate
d. 
   

 

Co
rp
or
ate

 D
ire

cto
r o

f 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

As
 S.

15
1 o

ffic
er,

 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 R
es
ou
rce

s i
s r
es
po
ns
ibl
e f
or 

the
 pr

op
er 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n o

f 
the

 fin
an
cia

l a
ffa
irs
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il. 
 Th

e r
eq
uir
em

en
t to

 ha
ve
 an

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it f
un
cti
on
 de

riv
es
 fro

m 
S.1

51
 of
 th
e L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t A

ct 
19
72
  A

s s
uc
h t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 R
es
ou
rce

s s
up
po
rts
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 its

 de
pa
rtm

en
ts 
in 
en
su
rin
g t
ha
t th

e a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
ma

de
 fo
r fi
na
nc
ial
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 in
ter

na
l c
on
tro

l s
ys
tem

s a
re 

so
un
d a

nd
 se

cu
re.

 
 

 Co
rp
or
ate

 
Di
rec

tor
s 

 

Th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

s h
av
e t
he
 op

era
tio
na
l re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo
r e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
the

re 
are

 so
un
d 

pro
ce
du
res

 in
 pl
ac
e a

t D
ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el 
for

 ef
fec

tiv
e f
ina

nc
ial
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

int
ern

al 
co
ntr

ol 
sy
ste

ms
. 

 

 
   

Page 153



 

 

 

53
  

 Ri
sk
 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

cti
on

 Pl
an

s 
On

e 
of 

the
 k
ey
 ri
sk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t o

bje
cti
ve
s 
is 

the
 e
ffe
cti
ve
 m

an
ag
em

en
t o

f t
he
 o
rga

nis
ati
on
’s 

ris
ks
, b

oth
 s
tra

teg
ic 

an
d 

op
era

tio
na
l. T

his
 ha

s b
ee
n a

ch
iev

ed
 by

 th
e s

es
sio

ns
 to
 id
en
tify

 an
d p

rof
ile
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
’s 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
str
ate

gic
 ris

ks
. 

 On
ce
 th

is 
tas

k h
as
 b
ee
n 
co
mp

ile
d, 

SM
T 
an
d 
the

 A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 
wil

l b
e 
as
ke
d 
to 

co
mm

en
t o

n 
the

se
 ri
sk
s a

nd
 th

e 
ris
k 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
. I
n 

rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e 

op
era

tio
na
l r
isk

s, 
ea
ch
 D

ire
cto

r h
as
 fa

cili
tat
ed
 a
nd
 c
o-o

rdi
na
ted

 a
 s
im
ila
r r

isk
 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
ex
erc

ise
 in
 or

de
r th

at 
the

 si
gn
ific

an
t o

pe
rat

ion
al 
ris
ks
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ac

cu
rat

ely
 id
en
tifi
ed
 pr

ofi
led

 an
d m

an
ag
ed
. T

he
 

aim
 of
 su

ch
 a 
pro

ce
ss
 is
 th
at 
it w

ill e
ve
ntu

all
y f
orm

 pa
rt o

f e
ac
h D

ivis
ion

’s 
an
nu
al 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
nin

g p
roc

es
s. 

 Co
mi
ng
 ou

t o
f th

is 
pro

ce
ss
, w

ill b
e r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
cti
on
 pl
an
s r
ela

tin
g t
o t
he
 m
os
t s
eri
ou
s s

ign
ific

an
t ri
sk
s, 
i.e
. th

os
e w

he
re 

the
 ex

ist
ing

 le
ve
ls 
of 

int
ern

al 
co
ntr

ol 
are

 se
en
 as

 in
ad
eq
ua
te.
 Th

e a
bo
ve
 as

se
ss
me

nts
 (b

oth
 st
rat

eg
ic 
an
d o

pe
rat

ion
al)
 w
ill 
be
 

a y
ea
rly
 pr

oc
es
s w

ith
 tra

ck
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g o

f ri
sk
s o

n a
n a

nn
ua
l b
as
is.
 

 Th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s w
ill 
rec

eiv
e c

op
ies

 of
 ea

ch
 D
ivis

ion
’s 
op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

cti
on
 pl
an
s i
n o

rde
r t
ha
t a

ny
 

cro
ss
-de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 ris

ks
 ca

n 
be
 p
ick

ed
 u
p a

nd
 m

an
ag
ed
 a
cc
ord

ing
ly.
 T
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s w
ill 
als

o 
mo

nit
or 

the
 ris

k 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
str
ate

gy
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t p
rog

res
s i
s m

ad
e a

ga
ins

t th
e k

ey
 si
gn
ific

an
t ri
sk
s. 

 Sim
ila
rly
, th

e s
am

e r
isk

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e c
an
 be

 ad
op
ted

 w
he
n s

erv
ice

s a
re 

go
ing

 th
rou

gh
 th
e B

es
t V

alu
e p

rog
ram

me
. 

A r
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
ac
k c

an
 be

 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 Be

st 
Va

lue
 do

cu
me

nta
tio
n. 
It i
s g

en
era

lly 
ac
ce
pte

d t
ha
t e
ac
h D

ire
cto

rat
e m

us
t 

be
 se

en
 to
 be

 m
an
ag
ing

 its
 ris

ks
 in
 or

de
r to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
Be

st 
Va

lue
. 

Page 154



 

 

 

54
  

 
Cl
as
sif

ica
tio

n o
f R

isk
 

 
St
rat

eg
ic 
Ri
sk
s 

Op
era

tio
na

l R
isk

s 
Po

liti
ca
l 

 
 

 
W
ron

g s
tra

teg
ic 
pri
ori
tie
s 

 
No

t m
ee
tin
g G

ov
ern

me
nt 
ag
en
da
s 

To
o s

low
 to
 in
no
va
te/
mo

de
rni
se
 

De
cis

ion
s b

as
ed
 on

 in
co
mp

let
e 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

Un
ful
fille

d p
rom

ise
s t
o C

ou
nc
il 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
rec

rui
t a
 su

ita
ble

 C
EO

 

Ec
on

om
ic 

Ge
ne
ral
 ec

on
om

ic 
pro

ble
ms

 
Re

gio
na
l e
co
no
mi
c p

rob
lem

s 
Tre

as
ury

 ris
k 

Mi
ss
ed
 bu

sin
es
s o

r s
erv

ice
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 

Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
rec

rui
t/re

tai
n s

taf
f 

La
ck
 of
 tra

ini
ng
 

Ov
er-

rel
ian

ce
 on

 ke
y o

ffic
ers

 
Ine

ffic
ien

t m
an
ag
em

en
t p
roc

es
se
s 

Ina
bil
ity
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
ch
an
ge
 

La
ck
 of
 em

plo
ye
e m

oti
va
tio
n 

Ba
d m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f p
art

ne
rs 

Fin
an

cia
l a
nd

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
nin

g 
Fa

ilu
re 

of 
ma

jor
 pr

oje
ct(
s) 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
pri
ori
tis
e, 
all
oc
ate

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 bu
dg
ets

 an
d m

on
ito
r 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
im
ple

me
nt 
eff
ec
tiv
e 

pa
rtn

eri
ng
 co

ntr
ac
ts 
for

 pr
op
ert

y 
an
d e

sta
te 
se
rvi
ce
s 

So
cia

l 
Fa

ilin
g t
o m

ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 

dis
ad
va
nta

ge
d 

Im
pa
ct 
of 
de
mo

gra
ph
ic 
ch
an
ge
s 

Em
plo

ym
en
t c
ha
lle
ng
es
 

La
ck
 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
sta

ff  
Fa

ilu
res

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 

Te
ch

no
log

ica
l 

Ob
so
les

ce
nc
e o

f te
ch
no
log

y 
Se

cu
rity

 po
lici

es
 

Br
ea
ch
 of
 co

nfi
de
nti
ali
ty 

Fa
ilu
re 

in 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 

 

Le
ga

l 
No

t m
ee
tin
g s

tat
uto

ry 
du
tie
s 

Br
ea
ch
 of
 co

nfi
de
nti
ali
ty/
DP

A 
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
co
mp

ly 
wit

h E
uro

pe
an
 

Dir
ec
tiv
es
 on

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
of 
wo

rks
, 

su
pp
lie
s, 
an
d s

erv
ice

s 
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
im
ple

me
nt 
ne
w 
leg

isla
tio
n 

Ph
ys
ica

l 
Att

ac
ks
 on

 pe
rso

nn
el 

Lo
ss
 of
 ta
ng
ibl
e a

ss
ets

 
No

n c
om

pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 he

alt
h &

 
sa
fet
y l
aw

 
Lo
ss
 of
 ph

ys
ica

l a
ss
ets

 
Lo
ca
l a
nd
 na

tio
na
l e
me

rge
nc
ies

 
Le

gis
lat

ive
 

Ju
dic

ial
 re

vie
w 

Hu
ma

n R
igh

ts 
Ac

t b
rea

ch
es
 

Int
erv

en
tio
n b

y r
eg
ula

tor
y b

od
ies

 
Ina

de
qu
ate

 re
sp
on
se
 to
 ne

w 
leg

isla
tio
n 

Po
or 

res
po
ns
e t
o A

ud
it C

om
mi
ss
ion

 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

Im
pa
ct 
of 
su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 po

lici
es
 

No
ise

, c
on
tam

ina
tio
n a

nd
 

po
llu
tio
n 

 

Co
ntr

ac
tua

l 
Ov

er-
rel
ian

ce
 on

 ke
y 

su
pp
lie
rs/
co
ntr

ac
tor

s 
Fa

ilu
re 

of 
ou
tso

urc
e p

rov
ide

r 
Qu

ali
ty 
iss

ue
s 

No
n-c

om
pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

po
lici

es
 

Te
ch

no
log

ica
l 

Fa
ilu
re 

of 
big

 te
ch
no
log

y p
roj
ec
t 

IT 
sy
ste

m 
cra

sh
es
 af
fec

t s
erv

ice
s 

Br
ea
ch
es
 of
 se

cu
rity

 of
 ne

tw
ork

 an
d 

da
ta 

Ba
d m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f in

tra
ne
ts 
an
d 

we
bs
ite
s 

Co
mp

eti
tiv

e 
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
sh
ow

 be
st 
va
lue

 
Fa

ilu
re 

of 
bid

s f
or 

go
ve
rnm

en
t fu

nd
s 

Cu
sto

me
r/C

itiz
en

 
La
ck
 of
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

Ba
d p

ub
lic 

an
d m

ed
ia 
rel
ati
on
s 

 
 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 
30 March 2010 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 
5.3 

REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  

 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Audit Services  

 

 
Annual Anti Fraud Plan  2010-11    
 
  
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This report provides audit committee with a summary of the 
planned work to be carried out by the Corporate Anti Fraud Team 
in 2010/11. 

 
1.2 Local Authorities in the United Kingdom are required to maintain 

high standards of probity and have sound arrangements for 
protecting the public purse. Sound systems of public accountability 
are also vital for effective management and in maintaining public 
confidence. This minimisation of losses from fraud and corruption 
is essential for ensuring that resources are used for their intended 
purpose. 

 
1.3 The need for effective anti fraud work within local authorities has 

also been reflected by the Audit Commission, through the Use of 
Resources Assessment. The requirements highlight the 
expectations around the framework local authorities have in place 
in respect of the prevention and detection of fraud. As such, it is 
imperative that the Council has adequate processes, skills and 
resources to support anti fraud and corruption activities.  The work 
of the Anti Fraud Team will increase in 2010/11 with the setting up 
and management of a small team to look at social housing fraud. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 
 

 

Agenda Item 53

Page 157



 
 
3. ANNUAL CORPORATE ANTI FRAUD PLAN 2010/11 
 
 

3.1 This is the third year where we have provided a separate and 
specific plan for anti fraud work as previously it had been 
included within the Internal Audit Plan. This is to reflect the 
increasing priority of the service within Internal Audit.  

 
3.2 The overall aims and objectives of this plan reflect the Council’s 

Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The key aims are to:  
 

• Highlight and promote the Council's commitment to stop 
fraud and corruption;  

 
• Document the roles and responsibilities of Members and 

officers in respect of fraud and corruption;  
 

• Detail the current Council activity in respect of the five key 
elements of the Strategy, namely, prevention, detection, 
investigation, sanctions, and deterrence; and 

 
• Demonstrate the Council has sound arrangements in place 

to receive and investigate allegations of breaches of proper 
standards of financial conduct and of fraud and corruption.  

 
3.3 The key drivers used to compile the corporate anti fraud plan for 

2010/11 has built on experience and takes account of the: - 
 

• Fraud Risk Register (maintained by audit through training 
with services); 

 
• Management requests and priorities; 

 
• Local Knowledge;  

 
• Joint working arrangements - external  (DWP, PCT, Police 

and other Local Authorities); 
 

• Resourcing the Government’s initiative to examine instances 
of un lawful sub letting of Registered Social Landlord 
properties  

 
• Joint Working arrangements – internal (payroll, pensions, 

parking services, benefits services, housing services;  
 

• Issues identified from planned audit work; and 
 

Page 158



• Good Practice checklists from the CIPFA Publication-
Managing the risk of Fraud- Red Book 2. 

 
3.4 Our plan is attached as Appendix A. The focus of the plan is to:- 
 

• Planned activities for Tower Hamlets Homes that will include 
a pro active and reactive work and along with review of 
access to accommodation, including nominations, transfers, 
successions and management determinations; as part of the 
on-going work of the Social Housing Fraud resource 

 
• Manage the internal audit process and continue to support 

the Authority on providing assurance on data quality of the 
National Indicators which have replaced the best value 
performance indicators; (n.b. this also includes the 
management of the 40 days resource from the  Internal Audit 
Plan) 

 
• Continue management of the National Fraud Initiative 

process for the Authority, ensuring we meet our requirements 
under the Audit Commissions Code of Data Matching 
Practice and that the NFI  exercise is  appropriately 
resourced and finalised within prescribed deadlines; in 
finalising the 2008/9 exercise and prepare and the deliver the 
2010/11 NFI. 

 
• Ensure that the work of those engaged in Anti Fraud work 

supports the Council’s Strategic Plan; 
 

• Work jointly, internally and externally by maintaining  existing 
arrangements and developing better co-ordination; 

 
• Continue to provide anti fraud  training and awareness to 

members and officers;  
 

• Continue to hold monthly meetings  with the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Legal Services) on Governance issues;  

 
• Ensure that appropriate training and development on ethical 

governance matters is rolled out to staff and members as 
appropriate; 

 
• Publicise all our successes; 

 
• Ensure that all agreed timescales prescribed for the 

completion of investigation work are met and that all cases 
are adequately reported to senior management as part of our 
ongoing reporting procedures; and 

 

Page 159



• Develop mechanisms for categorising and quantify fraud for 
more accurate reporting to enable better informed risk 
assessments. 

 
3.5 The plan makes provision for the existing resource plus a buy in 

of circa 100 additional days along with the temporary resource to 
manage the social housing fraud work.     

 
3.6 The following table shows the Corporate Anti Fraud Team 

resources for 2010/11 and the resource required to complete the 
anti fraud work in 2009/10. 

 
 
 

Reactive resources Days 
Head of Audit Services 180 
NFI co-ordinator and Fraud Manager 200 
Additional bought in requirement (1/2 post) 100 
 480 
Plus  
Social Housing Fraud Temporary resource 
(3 x 6 months) 300 

 
 
4. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
4.1 The comments of the Corporate Director of Resources  have been 

incorporated into this report. 
 
 
5. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 

Services) 
 
5.1. There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
6. One Tower Hamlets Considerations  
 
6.1 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets Considerations issues 

arising from this report.  
 
7. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
7.1. There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this 

report. 

Page 160



 
 
8. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
8.1.  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
 
9. Risk Management Implications  
 
9.1. The implications arising from failure to control and manage risks could 

result in vulnerability to the systems of control that may be exploited. 
This report identifies areas of risk for management to mitigate. 

 
 
10. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
10.1. There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 

Page 161



AP
PE

ND
IX 

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

No
 of

 
da

ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ho

me
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Su

pp
ort

 an
d 

Ad
vic

e 
5 

  
H 

 C
irc
a 

£1
40
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

W
ork

 ca
rrie

d 
for

wa
rd,

 
W
his

tle
 bl
ow

s 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ref

err
als

 an
d 

pro
ac
tiv
e 

co
nti
ng
en
cy
 

35
 

Fin
ali
sin

g w
ork

 ca
rrie

d f
orw

ard
, 

W
his

tle
 bl
ow

s m
an
ag
em

en
t in

clu
din

g 
tho

se
 fo
r T

HH
, M

an
ag
em

en
t re

fer
ral
s 

an
d r

ea
cti
ve
 an

d p
roa

cti
ve
 

co
nti
ng
en
cy
. T

he
re 

wil
l w

e a
dd
itio

na
l 

wo
rk 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e w
ork

 on
 So

cia
l 

Ho
us
ing

 Fr
au
d i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 
ite
ms

 of
 th
is 
pla

n 

H 
Cir

ca
 

£1
40
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

An
ti F

rau
d 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
/ 

Jo
int
 W

ork
ing

- 
10
 

Th
is 
wo

rk 
inc

lud
es
 th
e F

rau
d F

oru
ms

, 
tra

ini
ng
 w
ith
 th
e s

erv
ice

 on
 An

ti F
rau

d 
an
d C

orr
up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y, 
Mo

ne
y 

La
un
de
rin
g e

tc.
 Th

ere
 is
 al
so
 

pro
vis

ion
 fo
r in

 ye
ar 

un
pla

nn
ed
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort
 to
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 

H 
Cir

ca
 

£1
40
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Le
gis

lat
ive

 
Re

qu
ire
me

nt 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
50
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 162



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Ho

us
ing

 
Cl
ien

t 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

NF
I 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
10
 

Th
is 
wo

rk 
wil
l in

vo
lve

 m
an
ag
ing

 th
e 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 W
eb
 ba

se
 si
te,
 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt a

nd
 

mo
nit
or 

pro
gre

ss
. 

H 
Cir

ca
 

£1
40
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
10
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pr
oa

cti
ve
 

Tr
ain

ing
 an

d 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

An
ti f
rau

d 
lia
iso

n g
rou

ps
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

5 
Th

is 
wil
l in

vo
lve

 cl
os
e w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 
ou
r e

xte
rna

l p
art

ne
rs 
 

inc
lud

ing
 th
e P

oli
ce
, D

WP
 an

d P
CT

.  
H 

N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

An
ti f
rau

d 
tra

ini
ng
 an

d 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

for
 m
em

be
rs 

an
d s

erv
ice

s- 
Inc

lud
es
 m
ult
i 

mo
du
le 
E-

Le
arn

ing
 

pa
ck
ag
e 

10
 

Th
is 
is 
an
 on

go
ing

 m
ec
ha
nis

m 
tha

t 
se
ek
s t
o e

mb
ed
 go

od
 pr

ac
tic
e w

ith
in 

the
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 w
ill b

e e
nh
an
ce
d b

y 
the

 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 ou

r E
- L

ea
rni
ng
 

pa
ck
ag
e o

n G
ov
ern

an
ce
 m
att
ers

. 

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
15
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 163



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

 
Ov

era
ll 

Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Au
dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

10
 

Pr
ep
ara

tio
n a

nd
 pr

es
en
tat
ion

 of
 

rep
ort

s t
o t
he
 C
om

mi
tte
e  

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
5 

Pr
ep
ara

tio
n a

nd
 pr

es
en
tat
ion

 of
 

rep
ort

s t
o t
he
 C
om

mi
tte
e  

  
N/
A 

  
  

  

FO
I 

5 
Re

ac
tiv
e r

es
po
ns
es
 to
 Fr

ee
do
m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 re

qu
es
ts 
for

 in
for

ma
tio
n. 

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Mo
ne
y 

lau
nd
eri
ng
- 

Tra
ini
ng
 

Mo
du
le 
an
d 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

10
 

Th
is 
wo

rk 
en
ha
nc
es
 ou

r e
xis

tin
g 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r th

e p
rop

er 
dis

clo
su
re 

of 
Mo

ne
y L

au
nd
eri
ng
 

ins
tan

ce
s a

nd
 w
ill e

ns
ure

 w
e m

ee
t 

be
st 
pra

cti
ce
. 

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Ca
teg

ori
sin

g 
an
d 

Qu
an
tify

ing
 

fra
ud
 

10
 

De
ve
lop

ing
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d p

roc
ed
ure

s 
for

 ca
teg

ori
sin

g a
nd
 qu

an
tify

 fra
ud
 to
 

en
ab
le 
me

an
ing

 sa
vin

gs
 ta
rge

ts 
H 

Ov
er 

£1
B 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
40
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 164



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

No
 of

 
da

ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

Na
tio

na
l 

Ind
ica

tor
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Na
tio
na
l 

Ind
ica

tor
s 

40
 

Th
is 
is 
a f
irs
t y
ea
r re

vie
w 
of 
the

 ne
w 

Na
tio
na
l In

dic
ato

rs 
an
d w

ill f
orm

 a 
ke
y 

ev
alu

ati
on
 w
ith
in 
the

 C
AA

 pr
oc
es
s. 
 

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Na
tio
na
l 

Ind
ica

tor
s 

W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou
ps
 

10
 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e e

ac
h o

f th
e 

dir
ec
tor

ate
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 te
am

s a
nd
 

the
 co

rpo
rat

e p
erf

orm
an
ce
 te
am

 
pro

vid
ing

 su
pp
ort

 an
d t
rai
nin

g o
n d

ata
 

qu
ali
ty 
tes

tin
g a

nd
 ev

alu
ati
on
 of
 th
e 

ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 re

tur
ns
 in
 pr
ep
ara

tio
n o

f 
the

 ex
ter

na
l  a

ud
it r
ev
iew

. 

H 
N/
A 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
50
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Na
tio

na
l 

Fr
au

d 
Ini

tia
tiv

es
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

NF
I 2
00
8/0

9 
an
d 2

00
9 p

ilo
ts 

20
 

NF
I 2
00
9/1

0 f
ina

lisi
ng
 pr

ev
iou

s 
ex
erc

ise
s a

nd
 pi
lot
s 

H 
Ov

er 
£5
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

NF
I 2
01
0/1

1 
ne
w 
ex
erc

ise
 

25
 

Pr
ep
ara

tio
n, 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
s a

nd
 da

ta 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
for

 ne
w 
ex
erc

ise
. 

H 
Ov

er 
£5
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Page 165



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

Na
tio

na
l 

Fr
au

d 
Ini

tia
tiv

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

NF
I 2
01
0/1

1 
ne
w 
ex
erc

ise
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

60
 

Th
is 
wo

rk 
wil
l in

vo
lve

 m
an
ag
ing

 th
e 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 W
eb
 ba

se
 si
te,
 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt a

nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 pr

og
res

s f
or 

the
 C
ou
nc
il a

s 
a w

ho
le.
 It 
wil
l a
lso

 in
clu

de
 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 re

po
rtin

g t
o t
he
 Au

dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

pre
sc
rib
ed
 de

ad
lin
es
. 

H 
Ov

er 
£5
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
10
5 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Jo
int

 w
or
kin

g 
wi
th 

oth
er 

ag
en

cie
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

DW
P j

oin
t 

wo
rki
ng
 an

d 
ref

err
als

 
9 

Th
is 
inv

olv
es
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 su

pp
ort

 to
 

DW
P r

efe
rra

ls 
on
 st
aff
 re
lat
ed
 

inq
uir
ies

 
H 

£1
40
m 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Po
lice

 re
fer

ral
s 

8 
Re

sp
on
din

g t
o M

et 
Po

lice
 re

fer
ral
s 

fro
m 
bo
th 
the

 lo
ca
l a
nd
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 

po
lice

 fu
nc
tio
ns
. 

H 
Un

kn
ow

n 
de
pe
nd
en
t 

on
 va

lue
s 

of 
ref

err
als

 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Page 166



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

Jo
int

 w
or
kin

g 
wi
th 

oth
er 

ag
en

cie
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 

wit
h P

CT
 

20
 

Th
is 
wil
l in

vo
lve

 jo
int
 R
isk

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
ke
y F

rau
d R

isk
s t
o 

bo
th 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 an

d r
es
ult
an
t jo

int
 

wo
rki
ng
 

H 
Ov

er 
£1
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 

an
d r

efe
rra

ls 
fro

m 
oth

er 
LA

's 
9 

Su
pp
ort

ing
 in
qu
irie

s f
rom

 ot
he
r L

oc
al 

Au
tho

riti
es
 w
he
re 

ca
se
s o

f s
us
pe
cte

d 
Fra

ud
 an

d I
rre

gu
lar
ity
 ar
e i
de
nti
fie
d. 

H 
Un

kn
ow

n 
de
pe
nd
en
t 

on
 va

lue
s 

of 
ref

err
als

 

  
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Jo
int
 w
ork

 w
ith
 

Be
ne
fits

 Fr
au
d 

9 
Jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 Be

ne
fits

 Fr
au
d o

n 
cro

ss
ov
er 

ma
tte
rs 
ari
sin

g f
rom

 so
cia

l 
ho
us
ing

 fra
ud
 m
att
ers

 
H 

£1
40
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

 
55
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pla
nn

ed
 ot

he
r 

pr
o a

cti
ve
 

wo
rk 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ac
ce
ss
 

co
ntr

ols
- 

Re
vie

w 
of 

rec
rui
tm
en
t 

ve
ttin

g f
or 

ne
w 

sta
ff 

20
 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

va
lua

te 
the

 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s o

f a
cc
es
s t
o 

em
plo

ym
en
t to

 th
e C

ou
nc
il f
rom

 bo
th 

pe
rm

an
en
t a
nd
 te
mp

ora
ry 
sta

ff t
o 

en
su
re 

sy
ste

ms
 ar

e a
s r
ob
us
t a
s 

po
ss
ibl
e. 

H 
 O
ve
r 

£1
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Page 167



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

Pla
nn

ed
 ot

he
r 

pr
o a

cti
ve
 

wo
rk 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

An
ti F

rau
d 

Da
ta 
Ma

tch
ing

 
Te

sti
ng
 

20
 

Th
is 
wil
l in

vo
lve

 da
ta 
ma

tch
ing

 va
rio
us
 

ke
y f
ina

nc
ial
 sy

ste
ms

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

the
 da

ta 
he
ld 
is 
rel
iab

le 
an
d p

rov
ide

s 
go
od
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f th
e m

ini
mi
sa
tio
n o

f 
fra

ud
 an

d o
r e

rro
r. 

H 
£3
00
M 

0.5
% 

to 
3%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
40
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

So
cia

l H
ou
sin

g 
Fra

ud
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
30
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ov
erv

iew
 of
 so

cia
l 

ho
us
ing

 fra
ud
 te
am

 an
d o

bje
cti
ve
s 

H 
Ov

er 
£1
50
M 

0.5
% 

to 
5%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

Co
nti

ng
en

cie
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pr
oa
cti
ve
 

co
nti
ng
en
cy
 

60
 

  
  

Un
kn
ow

n 
de
pe
nd
en
t 

on
 va

lue
s 

of 
ref

err
als

 

  
  

  

W
/B 

co
nti
ng
en
cy
 

25
 

  
  

Un
kn
ow

n 
de
pe
nd
en
t 

on
 va

lue
s 

of 
ref

err
als

 

  
  

  

  
85
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA

L  
48
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 168



 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
No

 of
 

da
ys
 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

ris
k a

s %
  

So
ur
ce
 of

 
Ri
sk
  

Lin
k t

o C
or
po

rat
e 

pr
ior

itie
s 

So
cia

l H
ou
sin

g 
Fra

ud
 

30
0 

Te
mp

ora
ry 
tea

m 
to 
se
t u
p t
o i
de
nti
fy 

un
law

ful
 ac

co
mm

od
ate

d p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r 
pro

pe
rtie

s, 
rec

ov
er 

an
d w

ork
 w
ith
 

TH
H 
an
d R

SL
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 im

pro
ve
 

sy
ste

ms
 

H 
Ov

er 
£1
50
M 

0.5
% 

to 
5%

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

an
d E

thi
cs
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 on

e 
Co

un
cil 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



 
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
 
30 March 2010 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
5.4 

 
REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Audit Services 
 
 

 
Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
 
 Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 This report provides Audit Committee with an updated Anti Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy following the best practice guidance issued by the 
CIPFA publication “Managing the Risk of Fraud – Actions to Counter 
the Risk of Fraud- Red Book 2”. 

 
1.2 Audit Committee will recall that the Council undertook a review of its 

arrangements earlier in the financial year to benchmark its 
arrangements against the requirements of the best practice guide as 
prescribed by CIPFA. The small number of additional actions required 
to maintain best practice, have been worked on during the year and 
attached is a revised Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy which is 
intended to ensure the Council continues to meet best practice.  

 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note this report. 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 

Agenda Item 54

Page 171



 
3. Background 
 

3.1 As part of our ongoing efforts to ensure the strategy and systems in 
place within the Council remain relevant and meets best practice the 
Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy as well as a range of other 
procedures and practices within the Council including Prosecutions 
Policy, Joint Working etc. were the subject of an independent review.  

 
3.2 The review was undertaken by the former Head of Legal Services and 

evaluated the existing strategy and arrangements against the following 
five key tests. These are further broken down into a number of 
additional key questions which seek to evidence the effectiveness of the 
Councils overall Governance arrangements.  

 
3.3 The key tests were:- 

 
3.3.1 Adopting the right strategy 

 
  Does the organisation have a counter fraud and corruption strategy that 

can be clearly linked to the Effective policies and procedures in relation 
to identifying, reporting and investigating suspected fraudulent/corrupt 
activity are in place. 

 
3.3.2 Measuring Fraud and Corruption Losses 

 
  Are fraud and corruption risks considered as part of the organisation’s 

strategic risk management arrangements. 
 

3.3.3 Creating and Maintaining a strong structure 
 
  Do those tasked with countering fraud and corruption have the 

appropriate authority needed to pursue their remit effectively, linked to 
the organisation’s counter fraud and corruption strategy. 

 
3.3.4 Taking action to tackle the problem 

 
  Is the organisation undertaking the full range of necessary action. 
 
 

3.3.5 Defining Success 
 
  Relevant officers and Committees are made aware of investigations 

which may effect their 
 

3.4 The methodology used to undertake this review was to examine the 
available evidence against each of these tests and develop 
recommendations to ensure we meet best practice where this was 
considered necessary. 

Page 172



 
3.5 The Red Book 2 requirements form part of the new Comprehensive 

Area Assessment testing under the Key Lines of Enquiry sections 2.3 
and 2.4   The questions they cover are:- 

 
• Does the organisation promote and demonstrate the principles 

and values of good governance? 
 
• Does the organisation manage its risks and maintain a sound 

system of internal control  
 
 
 
4. Progress update 

  
4.1 The Red Book 2 requirements form part of the new Comprehensive 

Area Assessment testing under the Key Lines of Enquiry sections 2.3 
and 2.4   The questions they cover are:- 

 
• Does the organisation promote and demonstrate the principles 

and values of good governance? 
 
• Does the organisation manage its risks and maintain a sound 

system of internal control? 
 
4.2 The review found that against each of the tests undertaken, the 

Council’s arrangements were generally good with most points either 
fully or partially met. 

 
4.3 Some of the questions required further development to meet full 

compliance and where this has been found there are suggestions to 
enhance the arrangements further. 

 
4.4 The expectation is that the Council will have reached full compliance by 

the end of this financial year. 
 

4.5 At the 29th September 2009 Audit Committee, Members received a 
report on the Council’s progress made in compliance with the Red Book 
2 requirements and the actions required to “achieve full compliance”. 
Attached as appendix A is an update which shows that we are on 
course to be compliant by the end of March 2010. 

 
4.6 The attached Appendix B is an updated Anti Fraud and Corruption 

Strategy that includes the additional best practice suggestions from the 
independent review. 

Page 173



 
5.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 The comments of the Corporate Director of Resources have been 

incorporated into this report. 
 
 
6.  Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
6.1. There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
 
7.  One Tower Hamlets Considerations  
 
7.1 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets Considerations issues arising from 

this report.  
 
 
8.  Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
8.1. There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
 
 
9.  Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
9.1.  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
 
10.  Risk Management Implications  
 
10.1. The implications arising from failure to control and manage risks could result in 

vulnerability to the systems of control that may be exploited. This report 
identifies areas of risk for management to mitigate. 

 
 
11.  Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
11.1. There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 

Page 174



AP
PE

ND
IX
 A
 

1. 
AD

OP
TIN

G 
TH

E R
IG
HT

 ST
RA

TE
GY

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 en

ha
nc
e c

om
pli
an
ce
 

1.1
 

Do
es
 th

e o
rg
an

isa
tio

n 
ha

ve
 a 

co
un

ter
 fr

au
d 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 

str
ate

gy
 th

at 
ca
n 

be
 c

lea
rly

 
lin

ke
d 

to 
the

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n’s
 

ov
era

ll s
tra

teg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

es
? 

• 
An

ti 
Fra

ud
 a

nd
 C

orr
up
tio
n 

Str
ate

gy
 

wit
h 

lin
ks
 
to 

ov
era

ll 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

• 
An

nu
al 

Fra
ud
 P

lan
 w

hic
h 

is 
als

o 
rep

ort
ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

• 
An

nu
al 
An

ti F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 to
 th

e A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Mo

nth
ly 

me
eti
ng
s 

be
tw
ee
n 

the
 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 O

ffic
er 

an
d 
He

ad
 o
f A

ud
it 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Y 
Re

vis
ion

s 
to 

be
 m

ad
e 

to 
the

 S
tra

teg
y 
an
d 

up
da
ted

 o
n 

Int
ran

et 
an
d I
nte

rne
t b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9. 

1.2
 

Is 
the

re 
a 

cle
ar 

rem
it 

‘to
 

red
uc

e 
los

se
s 

to 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rru

pti
on

 
to 

an
 
ab

so
lut

e 
mi

nim
um

’ c
ov

eri
ng

 a
ll 
are

as
 

of 
fra

ud
 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

 
aff

ec
tin

g t
he

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
? 

• 
An

ti F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
 

Y 
Th

e i
ntr

od
uc
tio
n t

o t
he
 A
nti
 F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 a

me
nd
ed
 t
o 

sp
ec
ific

all
y 

sta
te 

tha
t 
it 

is 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s a
im
 to
 re

du
ce
 lo
ss
es
 to
 fra

ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n t

o a
n 

ab
so
lut
e m

ini
mu

m.
 

 Th
is 
is 
no

w 
in 

pla
ce
 

 
1.3

 
Ar
e 

the
re 

eff
ec
tiv

e 
lin

ks
 

be
tw
ee
n 

‘po
lic
y’ 

wo
rk 

(to
 

de
ve
lop

 a
n 

an
ti-f

rau
d 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

 
an

d 
‘ze

ro
 

tol
era

nc
e’ 

cu
ltu

re,
 c

rea
te 

a 
str

on
g 

de
ter

ren
t 
eff

ec
t 
an

d 
pr
ev
en

t f
rau

d 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 

by
 de

sig
nin

g a
nd

 re
de

sig
nin

g 
po

lic
ies

 a
nd

 s
ys
tem

s) 
an

d 
‘op

era
tio

na
l’ 
wo

rk 
(to

 d
ete

ct 
an

d 
inv

es
tig

ate
 
fra

ud
 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 a
nd

 s
ee
k 
to 

ap
ply

 
sa
nc

tio
ns

 an
d 
rec

ov
er 

los
se
s 

wh
ere

 it 
is 
fou

nd
)? 

• 
An

ti F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
• 

An
nu
al 
Fra

ud
 P
lan

 w
hic

h i
nc
lud

es
 ris

k 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
an
d 

is 
rep

ort
ed
 to

 th
e 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
An

nu
al 
An

ti F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 to
 th

e A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
An

ti 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 c

orr
up
tio
n 

cla
us
e 

in 
Co

un
cil 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

• 
Eth

ica
l 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Pr
oto

co
l 

for
 

Co
un
cil 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

• 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
n 
CR

6 
Pr
ev
en
tin
g 

Fra
ud
 an

d C
orr

up
tio
n 

• 
Sa

nc
tio
ns
 Po

licy
 

 

Y 
Th

e A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y s
ho
uld

 be
 in
clu

de
d 

as
 a

 s
pe
cif
ic 

ite
m 

in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 c
orp

ora
te 

ind
uc
tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
 fo

r n
ew

 em
plo

ye
es
. T

he
 S
an
cti
on
s P

oli
cy
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to
 co

ve
r a

ll a
rea

s o
f fr

au
d a

nd
 co

rru
pti
on
 an

d 
to 

inc
lud

e 
a 

rec
ov
ery

 o
f l
os
se
s 
an
d 

a 
po
lice

 re
fer

ral
s 

po
licy

.  
Th

e r
isk

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th

e A
nn
ua
l F

rau
d 

Pla
n s

ho
uld

 be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to

 in
clu

de
 fin

an
cia

l im
pa
ct.
 T
he
 

ou
tco

me
 o

f 
au
dit
 i
nv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

inc
lud

e 
pro

po
rtio

na
te 

pro
po
sa
ls 

for
 c
ou
nte

r f
rau

d 
me

as
ure

s 
wh

ere
 a
pp
rop

ria
te 

an
d t
his

 pr
ac
tic
e s

ho
uld

 be
 fo

rm
ali
se
d a

s a
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 in
 al
l c
as
es
. 

  

Page 175



 
1. 
AD

OP
TIN

G 
TH

E R
IG
HT

 ST
RA

TE
GY

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 en

ha
nc
e c

om
pli
an
ce
 

1.4
 

Is 
the

 fu
ll 
ran

ge
 o

f i
nte

gr
ate

d 
ac
tio

n 
be

ing
 ta

ke
n 

for
wa

rd
 o

r 
do

es
 th

e o
rg
an

isa
tio

n ‘
pic

k a
nd

 
ch

oo
se
’? 

Ov
era

ll 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

is 
as
se
ss
ed
 b

y 
ref

ere
nc
e 
to 

the
 e
xte

nt 
to 

wh
ich

 th
e 

Co
un
cil 

me
ets

 th
e c

rite
ria
 sp

ec
ifie

d i
n 

Se
cti
on
 4
.1 

to 
4.3

4 
of 

the
 R

ed
 B
oo
k 

Re
vie

w 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th
e l
att
er 

se
cti
on
 of
 

thi
s a

pp
en
dix

. 
 

Y 
 

1.5
 

Do
es
 th

e o
rg
an

isa
tio

n f
oc

us
 on

 
ou

tco
me

s 
(i.e

. r
ed

uc
ed

 lo
ss
es
 

an
d 

no
t 
jus

t 
ac
tiv

ity
 (
i.e
. t

he
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

inv
es
tig

ati
on

s, 
pr
os

ec
uti

on
s, 
etc

.)?
 

Th
e 
An

nu
al 

An
ti F

rau
d 
Re

po
rt 
to 

the
 

Au
dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

an
d 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y p

red
om

ina
ntl
y 

ac
tiv
ity
 ba

se
d. 

 

Y 
Th

e A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 sh
ou
ld 

the
ref

ore
 be

 ex
pa
nd
ed
 

to 
inc

lud
e 
tar

ge
ts 

for
 re

du
cti
on
 in

 lo
ss
es
 a
nd
 c
on
sid

era
tio
n 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 gi
ve
n a

s t
o w

he
the

r it
 is
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o q
ua
nti
fy 
los

se
s 

an
d i
ntr

od
uc
e t
arg

ets
 in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
are

as
 to
 be

ne
fits

 an
d N

FI.
 

  
1.6

 
Ha

s 
the

 s
tra

teg
y 
be

en
 d
ire

ctl
y 

ag
ree

d 
by

 th
os

e 
wi
th 

po
liti

ca
l 

an
d 
ex
ec
uti

ve
 a
uth

or
ity

 fo
r t

he
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
? 

Th
e r

ev
ise

d A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n 

Str
ate

gy
 w

as
 a
pp
rov

ed
 b
y 
the

 A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 3

0th
 J

un
e 

20
08
 a

nd
 

co
mp

lia
nc
e i
s f
urt

he
r d

em
on
str
ate

d b
y 

pre
vio

us
 pu

bli
ca
tio
n o

f th
e A

nti
 F
rau

d 
an
d 
Co

rru
pti
on
 S

tra
teg

y 
du
rin
g 
20
06
 

in 
a 

lea
fle
t 

ac
co
mp

an
yin

g 
pa
y/a

llo
wa

nc
e 

ad
vic

es
 

for
 

all
 

Co
un
cill

ors
, 

em
plo

ye
es
 

an
d 

pe
ns
ion

ers
 an

d a
n i
ntr

an
et 
art

icle
. 

 

Y 
Th

e A
nti
 F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y s
ho
uld

 be
 am

en
de
d 

to 
inc

lud
e 

ref
ere

nc
e 

to 
the

 in
ter

na
l a

pp
rov

al 
pro

ce
ss
 fo

r 
ad
op
tio
n 

of 
the

 S
tra

teg
y 

an
d 

sp
ec
ify
 t
he
 L

ea
d 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 

wit
h o

ve
ral
l re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo
r th

e S
tra

teg
y. 
 

  

 

Page 176



 
2. 
ME

AS
UR

IN
G 
FR

AU
D 
AN

D 
CO

RR
UP

TIO
N 
LO

SS
ES

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

2.1
 

Ar
e 

fra
ud

 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 

ris
ks
 c

on
sid

ere
d 

as
 p

art
 o

f 
the

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n’s
 s

tra
teg

ic 
ris

k 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
? 

• C
orp

ora
te 
Fra

ud
 R
isk

 R
eg
ist
er 

 
• A

nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de
s 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t a

nd
 is
 re

po
rte

d t
o 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

 

Y 
 

2.2
 

Is 
the

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
 se

ek
ing

 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
ac
cu

rat
ely

 th
e n

atu
re 

an
d 
sc
ale

 o
f l
os

se
s 
to 

fra
ud

 
an

d c
or
ru
pti

on
? 

• A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
wh

ich
 in
clu

de
s a

 de
fin
itio

n o
f fr

au
d 

• A
nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de
s 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t a

nd
 is
 re

po
rte

d t
o 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 F

rau
d 

Re
po
rt 

to 
the

 
Au

dit
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

an
d 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
 

Y 
Th

e 
An

nu
al 

An
ti 

Fra
ud
 R

ep
ort

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

ex
pa
nd
ed
 to

 
inc

lud
e h

om
ele

ss
ne
ss
 an

d a
ll o

the
r p

roc
ee
din

gs
 in
itia

ted
 by

 
the

 C
ou
nc
il in

 ad
dit
ion

 to
 be

ne
fits

 an
d p

ark
ing

 re
lat
ed
 ca

se
s 

to 
inc

lud
e 
es
tim

ate
d 
po
ten

tia
l lo

ss
es
 fo

r e
ac
h 
are

a. 
 T
he
 

rep
ort

 sh
ou
ld 

als
o 
inc

lud
e 
civ

il p
roc

ee
din

gs
 ta

ke
n 
(if 

an
y) 

an
d 
an
on
ym

ise
d 

inf
orm

ati
on
 a
bo
ut 

dis
cip

lin
ary

 s
an
cti
on
s 

ap
pli
ed
 (if

 an
y).
 C
on
sid

era
tio
n s

ho
uld

 be
 gi

ve
n t

o a
do
pti
ng
 

a 
me

tho
d 

of 
as
se
ss
ing

 
los

se
s 

pre
ve
nte

d 
in 

are
as
 

su
sc
ep
tib
le 
to 
su
ch
 a 
ca
lcu

lat
ion

. 
 De

ve
lop

ed
 in

 20
09
/10

. 
To

 be
 in

clu
de

d i
n 2

00
9/1

0 A
nn

ua
l A

nti
 F
rau

d R
ep

or
t a

s 
a 
sta

nd
ard

 it
em

, t
og

eth
er 

wi
th 

the
 In

su
ran

ce
 C

lai
ms

 
ex
pe

rie
nc

e a
nd

 ex
po

su
re 

to 
Fr
au

d i
n t

he
 ye

ar.
 

2.3
 

Do
es
 t

he
 o

rg
an

isa
tio

n 
us

e 
ac
cu

rat
e 
es
tim

ate
s 
of 

los
se
s 

to 
ma

ke
 in

for
me

d 
jud

gm
en

ts 
ab

ou
t 

lev
els

 
of 

bu
dg

eta
ry 

inv
es
tm

en
t in

 w
or
k t

o c
ou

nte
r 

fra
ud

 an
d c

or
ru
pti

on
? 

• A
nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de
s 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t a

nd
 is
 re

po
rte

d t
o 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 F

rau
d 

Re
po
rt 

to 
the

 
Au

dit
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

an
d 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
 

Y 
Th

e 
ris
k 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
inc

lud
ed
 in

 th
e 
An

nu
al 

Fra
ud
 P

lan
 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to

 in
clu

de
 fin

an
cia

l im
pa
ct 

so
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

ca
n 
de
mo

ns
tra

te 
tha

t it
 h
as
 ta

ke
n 
ac
co
un
t o

f t
he
 

lev
el 
of 

po
ten

tia
l lo

ss
es
 w
he
n d

ete
rm

ini
ng
 th

e a
llo
ca
tio
n o

f 
res

ou
rce

s 
for

 c
ou
nte

r f
rau

d 
me

as
ure

s. 
 T
he
 A

nn
ua
l A

nti
 

Fra
ud
 

Re
po
rt 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 

ex
pa
nd
ed
 

to 
inc

lud
e 

ho
me

les
sn
es
s 
an
d 
all
 o
the

r p
roc

ee
din

gs
 in

itia
ted

 b
y 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

in 
ad
dit
ion

 to
 be

ne
fits

 an
d p

ark
ing

 re
lat
ed
 ca

se
s t
o 

inc
lud

e e
sti
ma

ted
 po

ten
tia
l lo

ss
es
 fo

r e
ac
h a

dd
itio

na
l a
rea

. 
Co

rpo
rat

e A
nti
 F
rau

d s
ho
uld

 co
ns
ide

r s
ett
ing

 up
 a 

sy
ste

m 
to 
rec

ord
 lo
ss
es
 to
 fra

ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n. 

 

Page 177



 
3. 
CR

EA
TIN

G 
AN

D 
MA

IN
TA

IN
IN
G 
A 
ST

RO
NG

 ST
RU

CT
UR

E 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

3.1
 

Do
 

tho
se
 

tas
ke
d 

wi
th 

co
un

ter
ing

 
fra

ud
 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

 
ha

ve
 

the
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te 

au
tho

rit
y 
ne

ed
ed

 
to 

pu
rsu

e 
the

ir 
rem

it 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
, 

lin
ke
d 

to 
the

 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
’s 

co
un

ter
 f
rau

d 
an

d c
or
ru
pti

on
 st

rat
eg

y?
 

• A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
• C

on
sti
tut
ion

 
• S

ch
em

e o
f M

an
ag
em

en
t 

• F
ina

nc
ial
 

Re
gu
lat
ion

 
CR

6 
- 

Pr
ev
en
tin
g F

rau
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n 

 

Y 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
n 
CR

6 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 a
me

nd
ed
 a
s p

art
 o
f 

the
 c

urr
en
t r

ev
iew

 o
f F

ina
nc
ial
 R

eg
ula

tio
ns
 to

 in
clu

de
 

sp
ec
ific

 re
fer

en
ce
 to

 th
e 
He

ad
 o
f A

ud
it 
Se

rvi
ce
s 
in 

the
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
 o
f p

ote
nti
al 

fra
ud
 a
nd
 c
orr

up
tio
n. 

Re
vis

ion
s 

ha
ve
 be

en
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 re

vis
ed
 re

gu
lat
ion

s. 
 

 Th
is 

ha
s 
be

en
 re

vis
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 in

tro
du

ce
d 

wh
en

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 ar

e r
e i
ss
ue

d. 
3.2

 
Is 

the
re 

str
on

g 
po

liti
ca
l a

nd
 

ex
ec
uti

ve
 su

pp
or
t f
or
 w

or
k t

o 
co

un
ter

 
fra

ud
 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

? 

• A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
• A

nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de
s 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t a

nd
 is
 re

po
rte

d t
o 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 F

rau
d 

Re
po
rt 

to 
the

 
Au

dit
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

an
d 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
• S

tat
em

en
ts 

by
 th

e 
Le
ad
 M

em
be
r 

Re
so
urc

es
 &

 P
erf

orm
an
ce
 (
EL

A 
Ar
tic
le 
02
/10

/08
) 

Y 
Co

ns
ide

r is
su
ing

 a 
joi
nt 

sta
tem

en
t fr

om
 th

e L
ea
de
r o

f th
e 

Co
un
cil 

an
d t
he
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e. 

 

Page 178



 

3. 
CR

EA
TIN

G 
AN

D 
MA

IN
TA

IN
IN
G 
A 
ST

RO
NG

 ST
RU

CT
UR

E 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

3.3
 

Is 
the

re 
a 

lev
el 

of 
fin

an
cia

l 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 w
or
k t

o c
ou

nte
r 

fra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or
ru
pti

on
 th

at 
is 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te 

to 
the

 ri
sk
 th

at 
ha

s b
ee
n i

de
nti

fie
d?

 

• A
nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de
s 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t a

nd
  is

 re
po
rte

d t
o 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

Y 
Co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 

giv
en
 

to 
be
nc
hm

ark
ing

 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

on
 co

un
ter

 fra
ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

wit
h 

oth
er 

co
mp

ara
ble

 
loc

al 
au
tho

riti
es
. 

 
As

 
in 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 in

 2.
3 a

bo
ve
, th

e r
isk

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
inc

lud
ed
 

in 
the

 A
nn
ua
l F

rau
d 
Pla

n 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 e
xp
an
de
d 
to 

inc
lud

e 
fin
an
cia

l im
pa
ct 
so
 th

at 
the

 C
ou
nc
il c

an
 de

mo
ns
tra

te 
tha

t it
 

ha
s 
tak

en
 a
cc
ou
nt 

of 
the

 le
ve
l o

f p
ote

nti
al 

los
se
s 
wh

en
 

de
ter

mi
nin

g 
the

 a
llo
ca
tio
n 
of 

res
ou
rce

s 
for

 c
ou
nte

r f
rau

d 
me

as
ure

s. 
 T

he
 A

nn
ua
l A

nti
 F

rau
d 

Re
po
rt 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 

ex
pa
nd
ed
 
to 

inc
lud

e 
ho
me

les
sn
es
s 

an
d 

all
 
oth

er 
pro

ce
ed
ing

s i
nit
iat
ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il i
n a

dd
itio

n t
o b

en
efi
ts 

an
d 
pa
rki
ng
 re

lat
ed
 c
as
es
 to

 in
clu

de
 e
sti
ma

ted
 p
ote

nti
al 

los
se
s f
or 

ea
ch
 ar

ea
.   

 Th
e 

Au
dit

 
an

d 
Ho

us
ing

 
Be

ne
fit 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

are
 

be
nc

hm
ark

ed
 vi
a t

he
 C
IPF

A 
Be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 C
lub

s. 
Th

e 
ou

t t
ur
n 

rep
or
t f

or
 2

00
8/0

9 
on

 th
e 

An
ti 

Fr
au

d 
An

nu
al 

rep
or
t i
de

nti
fie

d 
ac
tua

l a
nd

 n
oti

on
al 

va
lue

s f
or
 

all
 lo

ss
es
 in

cu
rre

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f fr

au
d a

nd
 er

ro
r. 

3.4
 

Ar
e 

all
 t

ho
se
 w

or
kin

g 
to 

co
un

ter
 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 

pr
ofe

ss
ion

all
y 

tra
ine

d 
an

d 
ac
cre

dit
ed

 fo
r t
he

ir r
ole

? 

• 
Be

ne
fits

, 
an
d 

Pa
rki
ng
 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

off
ice

rs 
PIN

S a
cc
red

ite
d 

• 
Qu

ali
fie
d 

 
Tra

din
g 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
Of
fic
ers

 
• 
He

ad
 
of 

Au
dit
 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

is 
a 

ce
rtif
ied

 fra
ud
 ex

am
ine

r 
• 
Ad

 ho
c o

the
r tr

ain
ing

 – 
e.g

. w
itn
es
s 

tra
ini
ng
 fo

r th
os
e g

ivin
g e

vid
en
ce
 in
 

cri
mi
na
l p
roc

ee
din

gs
 

Y 
Th

e 
He

ad
 o

f 
Au

dit
 S

erv
ice

s 
to 

ide
nti
fy 

se
rvi
ce
s 

wit
h 

pro
fes

sio
n 

sk
ills

 g
ap
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
 a

nd
 d

ev
elo

p 
rel
ev
an
t tr

ain
ing

. 
 Th

is 
ha

s b
ee
n c

om
ple

ted
. 

Page 179



 

3. 
CR

EA
TIN

G 
AN

D 
MA

IN
TA

IN
IN
G 
A 
ST

RO
NG

 ST
RU

CT
UR

E 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

3.5
 

Do
 th

os
e e

mp
loy

ee
s w

ho
 ar

e 
tra

ine
d 

an
d 

ac
cre

dit
ed

 
for

ma
lly
 r

ev
iew

 t
he

ir 
sk
ills

 
ba

se
 

an
d 

att
en

d 
reg

ula
r 

ref
res

he
r c

ou
rse

s 
to 

en
su

re 
the

y 
are

 
ab

rea
st 

of 
ne

w 
leg

isl
ati

on
? 

• 
PD

R 
Pr
oc
es
s 

• 
Fra

ud
 ci
rcu

lar
s 

• 
Re

fre
sh
er 

co
urs

es
 

• 
Lo
nd
on
 

Bo
rou

gh
 

Fra
ud
 

Inv
es
tig
ati
on
 G
rou

p 
  

Y 
Th

e H
ea
d o

f A
ud
it S

erv
ice

s s
ho
uld

 re
vie

w 
ran

do
m 

sa
mp

le 
of 

PD
R 

rec
ord

s 
to 

en
su
re 

thi
s 

are
a 

of 
pe
rso

na
l 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
is 
be
ing

 af
fec

ted
 an

d r
ev
iew

ed
.  

 Th
is 
ha

s b
ee
n c

om
ple

ted
. 

3.6
 

Ar
e 

all
 t

ho
se
 w

or
kin

g 
to 

co
un

ter
 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
 

un
de

rta
kin

g 
thi

s 
wo

rk 
in 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

wi
th 

a 
cle

ar 
eth

ica
l 

fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d 

sta
nd

ard
s 

of 
pe

rso
na

l 
co

nd
uc

t? 

• 
Em

plo
ye
es
’ C

od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
 

• 
Au

dit
 M
an
ua
l 

• 
Fra

ud
 in

ve
sti
ga
tio
n 
po
licy

 c
od
e 
of 

co
nd
uc
t 

 

Y 
 

3.7
 

Is 
the

re 
an

 ef
fec

tiv
e p

ro
pr
iet

y 
ch

ec
kin

g p
ro
ce
ss
? 

• 
At 

pre
se
nt 

CR
B 

ch
ec
ks
 o

nly
 a

re 
ob
tai
ne
d 
for

 s
pe
cif
ic 

se
rvi
ce
s 
an
d 

co
rpo

rat
e a

nti
 fra

ud
 st
aff
 

Pa
rtia

l 
Cu

rre
nt 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 d
o 
no
t in

clu
de
 th

e 
mo

re 
ex
ten

siv
e 

pre
 

em
plo

ym
en
t 

sc
ree

nin
g 

req
uir
ed
 

to 
me

et 
the

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

of 
thi
s 
cri
ter

ia 
an
d 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

giv
en
 to

 im
ple

me
nti
ng
 ap

pli
ca
nt 
pro

pri
ety

 ch
ec
ks
, in

clu
din

g 
the

 r
es
ou
rce

s 
av
ail
ab
le/
req

uir
ed
 fo

r 
the

 in
tro

du
cti
on
 o

f 
su
ch
 a 
pro

ce
ss
. 

 Th
is 

is 
be

ing
 e
xa
mi

ne
d 

wi
th 

HR
 a
nd

 a
n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te 

 
ele

ctr
on

ic 
ide

nti
ty 

vo
uc

hin
g t

oo
l  i
s b

ein
g e

va
lua

ted
. 

3.8
 

Do
es
 

the
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

reg
ula

rly
 re

vie
w 

its
 p
ro
pr
iet

y 
ch

ec
kin

g 
an

d 
are

 r
an

do
m 

ch
ec
ks
 ca

rri
ed

 o
ut 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t it

 is
 im

ple
me

nte
d?

 

• 
Se

e 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

3.7
 ab

ov
e 

Pa
rtia

l 
Th

is 
wil

l fo
rm

 pa
rt o

f th
e p

roc
es
s m

en
tio
ne
d a

bo
ve
 an

d w
ill 

go
 liv

e i
n e

arl
y 2

01
0. 

Page 180



 

3. 
CR

EA
TIN

G 
AN

D 
MA

IN
TA

IN
IN
G 
A 
ST

RO
NG

 ST
RU

CT
UR

E 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

3.9
 

Ar
e 

fra
me

wo
rk 

ag
ree

me
nts

 
in 

pla
ce
 to

 w
or
k 
wi
th 

oth
er 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
s a

nd
 ag

en
cie

s?
 

 

• 
Th

ere
 

are
 

no
 

su
ch
 

for
ma

l 
ag
ree

me
nts

 in
 p

lac
e 

at 
pre

se
nt.
  

Th
e 
An

ti 
Fra

ud
 F
oru

m 
wh

ich
 w

as
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 in

 2
00
7 

an
d 

inc
lud

es
 

pa
rtn

er 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 s
uc
h 
as
 th

e 
po
lice

, 
PC

T 
an
d 

To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ho

me
s 
is 

ho
we

ve
r w

ell
 p
lac

ed
 to

 
co
ns
ide

r 
an
y 

pro
po
se
d 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

wh
ich

 
mi
gh
t 

be
 

de
ve
lop

ed
.  

Th
e 
Fo

rum
’s 

ter
ms

 o
f 

ref
ere

nc
e 

alr
ea
dy
 i
nc
lud

e 
the

se
 

ma
tte
rs 

an
d 

the
 F

oru
m 

ov
ers

ee
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 
an
d 
rev

iew
 o
f a

ny
 

ag
ree

me
nts

 an
d e

ns
ure

 th
ey
 fo

cu
s 

on
 t
he
 p

rac
tic
ali
tie
s 

of 
co
mm

on
 

wo
rk.
 

Y 
Ag

ree
me

nts
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 w
ith
 th

e p
oli
ce
 an

d N
HS

 
as
 a
 m

ini
mu

m 
an
d 
ap
pro

ve
d 
by
 th

e 
Fo

rum
 a
s 
so
on
 a
s 

po
ss
ibl
e. 

SL
A’s

 in
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 PC

T a
nd
 H
ou
sin

g B
en
efi
ts.
 

 Pr
oto

co
l i

n 
pla

ce
 w

ith
 P

CT
 a

nd
 In

ter
na

l A
ud

it 
an

d 
Ho

us
ing

 B
en

efi
ts.

 
  

3.1
0 

Ar
e 

the
 

fra
me

wo
rk 

ag
ree

me
nts

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 th

e 
pr
ac
tic

ali
tie

s 
of 

co
mm

on
 

wo
rk?

 
 

• 
Se

e 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

3.9
 ab

ov
e 

Y 
 

3.1
1 

Ar
e t

he
re 

reg
ula

r m
ee
tin

gs
 to

 
im

ple
me

nt 
an

d 
up

da
te 

the
se
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
? 

 

• 
Se

e 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

3.9
 ab

ov
e. 

 
Y 

Th
is 
is 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e A

nti
 Fr

au
d F

or
um

 w
hic

h m
ee
ts 

fou
r 

tim
es
 pe

r a
nn

um
.  

 

Page 181



 
4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.1
 

Is 
the

 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

un
de

rta
kin

g t
he

 fu
ll r

an
ge

 of
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 ac
tio

n?
 

• 
An

ti F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
• 

An
nu
al 

Fra
ud
 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 
is 

als
o 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

• 
An

nu
al 

An
ti 
Fra

ud
 R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Au

dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Eth

ica
l G

ov
ern

an
ce
 P
rot

oc
ol 
for

 C
ou
nc
il 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

• 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
n 
CR

6 
- P

rev
en
tin
g 

Fra
ud
 an

d C
orr

up
tio
n 

• 
Sa

nc
tio
ns
 Po

licy
 

• 
Au

dit
 M
an
ua
l  

• 
An

ti F
rau

d F
oru

m 
• 

CR
B C

he
ck
s 

• 
Co

ns
titu

tio
n 

• 
Sc

he
me

 of
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Y 
Th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s a

ris
ing

 ou
t o

f th
is 
rev

iew
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 

im
ple

me
nte

d 

4.2
 

Do
es
 th

e 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 h
av
e 

a 
cle

ar 
pr
og

ram
me

 o
f w

or
k 

att
em

pti
ng

 to
 c
rea

te 
a 
rea

l 
an

ti 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru
pti

on
 

an
d 

ze
ro
 t
ole

ran
ce
 c

ult
ur
e 

(in
clu

din
g 

str
on

g 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 
to 

fac
ilit

ate
 

wh
ist

le 
blo

wi
ng

)? 

• 
An

ti 
Fra

ud
 a

nd
 C

orr
up
tio
n 

Str
ate

gy
 

inc
lud

ing
 w
his

tle
 bl
ow

ing
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 

• 
Co

nfi
de
nti
al 
W
his

tle
 Bl

ow
ing

 ho
tlin

e 
• 

An
nu
al 

Fra
ud
 
Pla

n 
wh

ich
 
is 

als
o 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

• 
An

nu
al 

An
ti 
Fra

ud
 R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Au

dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Sta

tem
en
ts 

by
 

the
 

Le
ad
 

Me
mb

er 
Re

so
urc

es
 &
 P
erf

orm
an
ce
 (E

LA
 A
rtic

le 
02
/10

/08
) 

• 
In 

yo
ur 

be
st 

int
ere

sts
! P

ull
ing

 T
og
eth

er 
Ar
tic
le 
– O

cto
be
r 2

00
8 

• 
Be

at 
the

 ch
ea
ts 
ad
ve
rts
  

• 
E-
Le
arn

ing
 

Y 
 

 

Page 182



 
4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.3
 

Ar
e 
the

re 
cle

ar 
go

als
 fo

r t
his

 
wo

rk 
(to

 
ma

xim
ize

 
the

 
pe

rce
nta

ge
 o
f s

taf
f a

nd
 p
ub

lic
 

wh
o 

rec
og

niz
e 

the
ir 

res
po

ns
ibi

liti
es
 to

 p
ro
tec

t t
he

 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

an
d 

its
 

res
ou

rce
s)?

 

Th
ere

 a
re 

no
 g
oa
ls 

in 
pla

ce
 fo

r t
his

 
wo

rk.
 

Y 
Th

e 
An

nu
al 

Fra
ud
 P
lan

 a
nd
 R

ep
ort

 sh
ou
ld 

be
 e
xp
an
de
d 
to 

inc
lud

e t
arg

ets
 an

d t
im
eli
ne
s f
or 

as
se
ss
ing

 an
d e

va
lua

tin
g t
he
 

ex
ten

t 
to 

wh
ich

 a
n 

an
ti 

fra
ud
 a

nd
 c

orr
up
tio
n 

cu
ltu
re 

is 
de
ve
lop

ing
 an

d e
mb

ed
de
d w

ith
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il. 

  
4.4

 
Is 

thi
s 

pr
og

ram
me

 o
f 

wo
rk 

be
ing

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 im
ple

me
nte

d?
 

Se
e 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

4.3
 ab

ov
e. 

Y 
 

4.5
 

Ar
e 

the
re 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 
in 

pla
ce
 to

 e
va
lua

te 
the

 ex
ten

t t
o 

wh
ich

 a
 r
ea
l 
an

ti 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rru

pti
on

 c
ult

ur
e 
ex
ist

s 
or
 is

 
de

ve
lop

ing
 

thr
ou

gh
ou

t 
the

 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
? 

Se
e 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

4.3
 ab

ov
e. 

 
Y 

 

4.6
 

Ar
e 
ag

ree
me

nts
 in

 p
lac

e 
wi
th 

sta
ke
ho

lde
r r

ep
res

en
tat

ive
s 
to 

wo
rk 

tog
eth

er 
to 

co
un

ter
 fr
au

d 
an

d c
or
ru
pti

on
? 

 

Th
e 

Co
un
cil 

ha
s 
ag
ree

d 
an
ti 
fra

ud
 

an
d 
co
rru

pti
on
 cl

au
se
s f

or 
us
e 
in 

its
 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 

ad
op
ted

 a
n 

Eth
ica

l 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e P

rot
oc
ol 

bu
t h

as
 no

t y
et 

de
ve
lop

ed
 

ag
ree

me
nts

 
wit

h 
sta

ke
ho
lde

r re
pre

se
nta

tiv
es
. 

Y 
Ag

ree
me

nts
 w

ith
 s
taf
f g

rou
ps
, p

rof
es
sio

ns
 a
nd
 th

e 
un
ion

s 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 de

ve
lop

ed
. 

 

4.7
 

Ha
ve
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 be
en

 m
ad

e 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t 
sta

ke
ho

lde
r 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s 

be
ne

fit 
fro

m 
su

cc
es
sfu

l c
ou

nte
r 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rru

pti
on

 w
or
k?

 

Th
ere

 
are

 
cu
rre

ntl
y 

no
 
sp
ec
ific

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e. 

 
Y 

A 
po
licy

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

ag
ree

d 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t 
fee

db
ac
k 

is 
pro

vid
ed
 so

 th
at 

rem
ed
ial
 ac

tio
n c

an
 be

 ta
ke
n a

nd
 re

co
ve
red

 
or 

pre
ve
nte

d l
os
se
s a

re 
ret

urn
ed
/re

tai
ne
d i
n t
he
 st
ak
eh
old

er’
s 

bu
dg
et.
  

  
4.8

 
Do

es
 th

e 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 h

av
e 
a 

cle
ar 

pr
og

ram
me

 
of 

wo
rk 

att
em

pti
ng

 to
 c
rea

te 
a 
str

on
g 

de
ter

ren
t e

ffe
ct?

 

An
nu
al 

Fra
ud
 P

lan
 w

hic
h 

is 
als

o 
rep

ort
ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

 
Y 

 

Page 183



 

4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 
Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t   
Y/N

 
Ac

tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.9
 

Do
es
 t
he

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n 
ha

ve
 a

 
cle

ar 
pr
og

ram
me

 o
f p

ub
lic
ity

 to
 

co
un

ter
 fr
au

d a
nd

 co
rru

pti
on

? 
 

• 
Sta

tem
en
ts 

by
 th

e 
Le
ad
 M

em
be
r 

Re
so
urc

es
 &

 P
erf

orm
an
ce
 (

EL
A 

Ar
tic
le 
02
/10

/08
) 

• 
In 

yo
ur 

be
st 

int
ere

sts
! 

Pu
llin

g 
To

ge
the

r A
rtic

le 
– O

cto
be
r 2

00
8 

• 
Be

at 
the

 ch
ea
ts 
ad
ve
rts
  

• 
Int
ran

et 
po
sti
ng
s 

• 
Pa

y s
lip
 no

tifi
ca
tio
ns
 

• 
Ho

sp
ita
l N

ew
sle

tte
rs 

• 
Bo

rou
gh
 M
ap
 

Y 
Pu

bli
cit
y 
ha
s 
be
en
 ta

rge
ted

 a
t s

uc
ce
ss
es
 a
nd
 a
rea

s 
of 

kn
ow

n l
os
s b

ut 
a c

om
pre

he
ns
ive

 pu
bli
cit
y p

rog
ram

me
 fo

r 
ea
ch
 y
ea
r s

ho
uld

 b
e 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
Co

mm
un
ica

tio
ns
 a
nd
 

rev
iew

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e A

nn
ua
l F
rau

d P
lan

. 
 .  

4.1
0 

Ha
s 

the
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

su
cc
es
sfu

lly
 p

ub
lis
he

d 
wo

rk 
in 

thi
s a

rea
? 

Se
e c

om
pli
an
ce
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

for
 4.
9 a

bo
ve
. 

Y 
 

4.1
1 

Ha
s 
the

 p
ub

lic
ity

 b
ee
n 
tar

ge
ted

 
at 

the
 gr

ea
tes

t fr
au

d l
os

se
s?

 
Se

e c
om

pli
an
ce
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

for
 4.
9 a

bo
ve
. 

Y 
 

4.1
2 

Do
es
 t
he

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n 
se
ek
 t
o 

de
sig

n 
fra

ud
 a
nd

 co
rru

pti
on

 o
ut 

of 
ne

w 
po

lic
ies

 an
d s

ys
tem

s a
nd

 
to 

rev
ise

 
ex
ist

ing
 

on
es
 

to 
rem

ov
e a

pp
are

nt 
we

ak
ne

ss
es
? 

Re
vie

w 
of 

ke
y p

roj
ec
ts 

in 
ad
va
nc
e 
of 

co
ntr

ac
t a
wa

rd:
 

�
 
Pu

rch
as
e C

ard
s 

�
 
Co

mm
en
su
ra 

 
�
 
SX

3 
�
 
To

llg
ate

 

Y 
 

4.1
3 

Do
 

co
nc

lud
ing

 
rep

or
ts 

on
 

inv
es
tig

ati
on

s i
nc

lud
e a

 sp
ec
ific

 
se
cti

on
 o
n 
ide

nti
fie

d 
po

lic
y 
an

d 
sy
ste

ms
 

we
ak
ne

ss
es
 

tha
t 

all
ow

ed
 th

e f
rau

d a
nd

 co
rru

pti
on

 
to 

tak
e p

lac
e?

 

In 
pra

cti
ce
, 

the
 o

utc
om

e 
of 

au
dit
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

inc
lud

e 
pro

po
rtio

na
te 

pro
po
sa
ls 

for
 co

un
ter

 fr
au
d 
me

as
ure

s 
wh

ere
 th
is 
is 
co
ns
ide

red
 ap

pro
pri
ate

.  
 

Y 
Th

is 
pra

cti
ce
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 fo

rm
ali
se
d 
as
 a
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 in
 al
l in

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
. 

 We
 h

av
e 

un
de

rta
ke
n 

wo
rk 

in 
20
09
/10

 o
n 

Ho
us

ing
 

Be
ne

fit 
cla

im
s t

o P
ark

ing
 Pe

rm
its

. 
4.1

4 
Is 

the
re 

a 
sy
ste

m 
in 

pla
ce
 fo

r 
co

ns
ide

rin
g 

an
d 

pr
ior

itis
ing

 
ac
tio

n 
to 

rem
ov

e 
ide

nti
fie

d 
we

ak
ne

ss
es
? 

 

In 
pra

cti
ce
, 

the
 o

utc
om

e 
of 

au
dit
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
s i
de
nti
fy 
the

 ex
ten

t o
f a

ny
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 an

d a
llo
ca
te 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 
for

 im
ple

me
nti
ng
 ch

an
ge
s w

he
re 

thi
s i
s 

co
ns
ide

red
 ap

pro
pri
ate

. 

Y 
Th

is 
pra

cti
ce
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 fo

rm
ali
se
d 
as
 a
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 in
 a
ll i
nv
es
tig
ati
on
s 
an
d 
a 
gra

din
g 
sy
ste

m 
ag
ain

st 
wh

ich
 w

ea
kn
es
se
s 

are
 m

ea
su
red

 s
ho
uld

 b
e 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

To
 be

 pr
ep

are
d a

nd
 pr

es
en

ted
 to

 th
e a

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e 

as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 O
utt

ur
n r

ep
or
t. 

Page 184



 
 4.
  T

AK
IN
G 
AC

TIO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.1
5 

Th
ere

 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
wh

ist
le 

blo
wi
ng

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 
in 

pla
ce
? 

An
ti 

Fra
ud
 a

nd
 C

orr
up
tio
n 

Str
ate

gy
 

inc
lud

ing
 w
his

tle
 bl
ow

ing
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 

Te
lep

ho
ne
 s

urv
ey
 o

n 
aw

are
ne
ss
 o

f 
str
ate

gy
 – 
Ma

rch
 20

08
 

• 
Co

nfi
de
nti
al 
W
his

tle
 Bl

ow
ing

 ho
tlin

e 
• 
Be

at 
the

 
ch
ea
ts 

ad
ve
rts
 

joi
nt 
 

pu
bli
ca
tio
n w

ith
 Be

ne
fits

 Fr
au
d 

• 
Int
ran

et 
po
sti
ng
s 

• 
Pa

y s
lip
 no

tifi
ca
tio
ns
 

• 
Be

ne
fits

 a
nd
 P

ark
ing

 o
ffic

ers
 P

IN
S 

ac
cre

dit
ed
 

• 
He

ad
 o
f A

ud
it S

erv
ice

s i
s a

 ce
rtif
ied

 
fra

ud
 ex

am
ine

r 
• 
Ad

 h
oc
 o
the

r t
rai
nin

g 
– 
e.g

. w
itn
es
s 

tra
ini
ng
 fo

r t
ho
se
 g
ivin

g 
ev
ide

nc
e 
in 

cri
mi
na
l p
roc

ee
din

gs
 

Y 
Th

e A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 Fr

au
d R

ep
ort

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to

 id
en
tify

 
the

 so
urc

es
 an

d n
atu

re 
of 

dis
clo

su
res

 m
ad
e u

nd
er 

the
 w
his

tle
 

blo
win

g p
roc

ed
ure

. 
 

4.1
6 

Ar
e 

an
aly

tic
al 

int
ell
ige

nc
e 

tec
hn

iqu
es
 u

se
d 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

po
ten

tia
l 

fra
ud

 
an

d 
co

rru
pti

on
? 

Na
tio
na
l 

Fra
ud
 

Ini
tia
tiv
es
 

an
d 

rea
cti
ve
/pr

oa
cti
ve
  ID

EA
 da

ta 
 m
atc

hin
g  

 
Y 

 

4.1
7 

Ar
e 

the
re 

eff
ec
tiv

e 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 f
or
 c

oll
ati

ng
, 

sh
ari

ng
 

an
d 

an
aly

sin
g 

int
ell
ige

nc
e?

 

• 
 Ea

ch
 F

rau
d 

Se
rvi
ce
 h

as
 it

’s 
ow

n 
da
ta 
ca
se
 ha

nd
lin
g s

ys
tem

s 
• 
Int
ern

al 
pro

toc
ols

 
for

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

sh
ari
ng
 be

tw
ee
n A

ud
it a

nd
 B
en
efi
ts,
 

Pa
yro

ll, 
Pa

rki
ng
, T

rad
ing

 S
tan

da
rds

 
an
d 
ad
 h
oc
 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

wit
h 
the

 
DW

P o
the

r L
A’s

 an
d P

oli
ce
 

Y 
An

y 
ag
ree

me
nts

 
de
ve
lop

ed
 

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

the
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

co
nta

ine
d 

in 
3.9

 a
bo
ve
 s

ho
uld

 i
nc
lud

e 
pro

vis
ion

 fo
r in

for
ma

tio
n/d

ata
 sh

ari
ng
 w
ith
 ot

he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s, 

su
ch
 as

 po
lice

 an
d N

HS
. 

  

Page 185



 
 4.
  T

AK
IN
G 
AC

TIO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc

e M
et 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.1
8 

Ar
e 

the
re 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 i
n 

pla
ce
 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t 

su
sp

ec
ted

 ca
se
s o

f f
rau

d 
or
 

co
rru

pti
on

 
are

 
rep

or
ted

 
pr
om

ptl
y 
to 

the
 a
pp

ro
pr
iat

e 
pe

rso
n 

for
 

fur
the

r 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

? 
 

• 
An

ti F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y  
• 

Fin
an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 

• 
Int
ern

al 
inf
orm

ati
on
 ex

ch
an
ge
 

• 
Em

plo
ye
e C

od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 

• 
NF

I n
oti
fic
ati
on
s a

nd
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 

• 
W
his

tle
 bl
ow

ing
 Pr

oc
es
s 

 

Y 
Th

e A
nti
 Fr

au
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y s
ho
uld

 be
 in
clu

de
d a

s 
a s

pe
cif
ic 
ite
m 

in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 co
rpo

rat
e i
nd
uc
tio
n p

roc
es
s f
or 

ne
w 

em
plo

ye
es
. A

 le
afl
et 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 p
rod

uc
ed
 fo

r m
an
ag
ers

 
rem

ind
ing

 th
em

 of
 th
eir
 ob

lig
ati
on
 to
 re

po
rt a

ctu
al 
or 

su
sp
ec
ted

 
ca
se
s 
of 

fra
ud
 a
nd
 c
orr

up
tio
n 
to 

int
ern

al 
au
dit
.  

Th
e 
lea

fle
t 

co
uld

 al
so
 us

efu
lly 

ide
nti
fy 
the

 ke
y i
nd
ica

tor
s o

f p
ote

nti
al 
fra

ud
 

an
d c

orr
up
tio
n a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 an
 ou

tlin
e o

f th
e p

roc
es
s f

oll
ow

ed
 

by
 in

ter
na
l a

ud
it i
n 
ac
co
rda

nc
e 
wit

h 
the

 A
ud
it M

an
ua
l fo

r t
he
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
 of
 su

sp
ec
ted

 fra
ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n. 

 Ag
ree

d f
or
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n f
ro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
10
 

4.1
9 

Ar
e 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 in

 p
lac

e 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t 
ide

nti
fie

d 
po

ten
tia

l c
as
es
 ar

e p
ro
mp

tly
 

an
d 

ap
pr
op

ria
tel

y 
inv

es
tig

ate
d?

 
 

• 
Au

dit
 M
an
ua
l  

• 
NF

I ta
rge

ts 
• 

W
his

tle
-bl
ow

ing
 tim

e f
ram

es
 

• 
Be

ne
fits

 tim
e f

ram
es
 w
ith
in 

ke
y w

ork
 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 

 

Y 
 

4.2
0 

Ar
e 

pr
oa

cti
ve
 

ex
erc

ise
s 

un
de

rta
ke
n 

in 
ke
y 
are

as
 o

f 
ris

k 
or
 

kn
ow

n 
sy
ste

m 
we

ak
ne

ss
es
? 

 

• 
Fra

ud
 R
isk

 R
eg
ist
er 

• 
An

nu
al 
Fra

ud
 Pl

an
 

• 
An

nu
al 
Au

dit
 Pl

an
 

  

Y 
Th

e r
isk

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th
e A

nn
ua
l F
rau

d P
lan

 sh
ou
ld 

be
 e
xp
an
de
d 
to 

inc
lud

e 
fin
an
cia

l im
pa
ct 

so
 th

at 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 

ca
n 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
tha

t i
t h

as
 ta

ke
n 

ac
co
un
t o

f t
he
 le

ve
l o

f 
po
ten

tia
l lo

ss
es
 w
he
n d

ete
rm

ini
ng
 th

e a
llo
ca
tio
n o

f r
es
ou
rce

s 
for

 c
ou
nte

r f
rau

d 
me

as
ure

s. 
 T
he
 A
nn
ua
l A

nti
 F
rau

d 
Re

po
rt 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 e
xp
an
de
d 
to 

inc
lud

e 
ho
me

les
sn
es
s 
an
d 
all
 o
the

r 
pro

ce
ed
ing

s i
nit
iat
ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il i
n a

dd
itio

n t
o b

en
efi
ts 
an
d 

pa
rki
ng
 re

lat
ed
 ca

se
s t
o i
nc
lud

e e
sti
ma

ted
 po

ten
tia
l lo

ss
es
 fo

r 
ea
ch
 ad

dit
ion

al 
are

a. 
 Th

e l
ev
el 
of 

pro
ac
tiv
e f

rau
d w

ork
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 

Th
is 
is 
inc

lud
ed

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 20

10
/11

 pl
an

. 
 

Page 186



 
4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.2
1 

Is 
the

 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
’s 

inv
es
tig

ati
on

 w
or
k e

ffe
cti

ve
? 

 
Th

ere
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly
 n
o 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 in

 
pla

ce
 fo

r a
na
lys

ing
 in

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 th

at 
ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

un
de
rta

ke
n 

in 
ter

ms
 o

f 
tim

eli
ne
ss
, o

utc
om

es
, le

ve
l o
f s
an
cti
on
s, 

pro
se
cu
tio
ns
 a
nd
 th

e 
am

ou
nt 

of 
los

se
s 

rec
ov
ere

d. 

Y 
Th

es
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

nd
 th

e o
utc

om
e 

rep
ort

ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e a

nd
 re

lev
an
t s
tak

eh
old

ers
. 

 A 
co

or
din

ate
d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
de

ve
lop

ed
 a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 

rep
or
ted

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 ou

ttu
rn
 re

po
rt 
for

 20
09
-10

.  
4.2

2 
Is 

it 
ca
rri
ed

 
ou

t 
in 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

wi
th 

cle
ar 

gu
ida

nc
e?

 
• 

Au
dit
 M
an
ua
l 

• 
Fra

ud
 in

ve
sti
ga
tio
n 

po
licy

 c
od
e 

of 
co
nd
uc
t 

Y 
Im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
 fo

r 4
.21

 a
bo
ve
 co

uld
 a
lso

 
be
 us

ed
 fo
r m

on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 qu

ali
ty 
as
su
ran

ce
 pu

rpo
se
s. 

4.2
3 

Do
 

tho
se
 

un
de

rta
kin

g 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

s 
ha

ve
 

the
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 p
ow

ers
, b

oth
 in

 
law

 a
nd

 w
he

re 
ne

ce
ss
ary

, 
wi
thi

n t
he

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
? 

• 
An

ti F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y 
• 

Co
ns
titu

tio
n 

• 
Sc

he
me

 of
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

• 
Fin

an
cia

l 
Re

gu
lat
ion

 
CR

6 
- 

Pr
ev
en
tin
g F

rau
d a

nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n 

• 
RI
PA

 an
d P

AC
E a

uth
ori
se
d o

ffic
ers

  

Y 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
n 
CR

6 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 a
me

nd
ed
 a
s p

art
 o
f t
he
 

cu
rre

nt 
rev

iew
 o

f F
ina

nc
ial
 R

eg
ula

tio
ns
 to

 in
clu

de
 s

pe
cif
ic 

ref
ere

nc
e t

o t
he
 H
ea
d o

f A
ud
it S

erv
ice

s i
n t

he
 in

ve
sti
ga
tio
n o

f 
po
ten

tia
l fr

au
d a

nd
 co

rru
pti
on
.  
An

y a
gre

em
en
ts 

de
ve
lop

ed
 in

 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s c

on
tai
ne
d i
n 3

.9 
ab
ov
e 

sh
ou
ld 
inc

lud
e p

rov
isio

n f
or 

int
ern

al 
rig
hts

 of
 in
ve
sti
ga
tio
n w

ith
 

oth
er 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
, s
uc
h a

s t
he
 N
HS

. 
Th

is 
is 
no

w 
in 

pla
ce
. 

4.2
4 

Ar
e 

ref
err

als
 h

an
dle

d 
an

d 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

s u
nd

ert
ak
en

 in
 

a t
im

ely
 m

an
ne

r?
 

• 
NF

I 
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 

by
 

the
 

au
dit
 

co
mm

iss
ion

 
• 

Be
ne
fits

 tim
e f

ram
es
 w
ith
in 
ke
y w

ork
 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 

• 
W
his

tle
 bl
ow

ing
 re

po
rtin

g 
• 

Re
po
rtin

g t
o A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

Y 
Im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
 fo

r 4
.21

 a
bo
ve
 co

uld
 a
lso

 
be
 us

ed
 fo
r m

on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 qu

ali
ty 
as
su
ran

ce
 pu

rpo
se
s. 

4.2
5 

Do
es
 th

e 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 h
av
e 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 i
n 

pla
ce
 f
or
 

as
se
ss
ing

 th
e 
eff

ec
tiv

en
es
s 

of 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

s?
 

De
loi
tte
’s 
pe
rio
dic

 ex
ter

na
l a
ud
its
 

 
Y 

In 
20
09
 Th

e H
ea
d o

f A
ud
it S

erv
ice

 to
 in
tro

du
ce
 cl
ien

t fe
ed
ba
ck
 

su
rve

ys
 fo

llo
win

g e
ac
h i
nv
es
tig
ati
on
 w
hic

h c
an
 al
so
 be

 us
ed
 to

 
pro

vid
e f
ee
db
ac
k t
o i
nv
es
tig
ato

rs 
on
 th
eir
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
. 

  
 

Page 187



 
4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

4.2
6 

Do
es
 th

e 
or
ga

nis
ati

on
 h
av
e 

a c
lea

r a
nd

 co
ns

ist
en

t p
oli

cy
 

on
 

the
 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n 
of 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 w
he

re 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rru

pti
on

 is
 p

ro
ve
n 

to 
be

 
pr
es
en

t? 

Sa
nc
tio
ns
 Po

licy
 

 
Y 

Th
e S

an
cti
on
s P

oli
cy
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to

 co
ve
r a

ll a
rea

s o
f 

fra
ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n a

nd
 to

 in
clu

de
 a 

rec
ov
ery

 of
 lo
ss
es
 an

d a
 

po
lice

 re
fer

ral
s p

oli
cy
. 

  
4.2

7 
Ar
e 

all
 p

os
sib

le 
sa
nc

tio
ns

 
dis

cip
lin

ary
/re

gu
lat

or
y, 

civ
il 

an
d c

rim
ina

l c
on

sid
ere

d?
 

An
nu
al 
Fra

ud
 R
ep
ort

 
MA

TT
 & 

YA
S i

nv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

 
Pa

rtia
l 

Th
e A

nti
 F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y a
nd
 S
an
cti
on
s P

oli
cy
 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 a

me
nd
ed
 to

 in
clu

de
 s
pe
cif
ic 

ref
ere

nc
e 

to 
‘tri
ple

 
tra

ck
ing

’. 
To

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 w
ith

 Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s d

ur
ing

 20
09
-10

. 
4.2

8 
Do

es
 t

he
 c

on
sid

era
tio

n 
of 

ap
pr
op

ria
te 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 t
ak
e 

pla
ce
 a

t 
the

 e
nd

 o
f 

the
 

inv
es
tig

ati
on

 w
he

n 
all
 t

he
 

ev
ide

nc
e i
s a

va
ila
ble

? 

MA
TT

 & 
YA

S i
nv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n: 

 
Pa

rtia
l 

An
y 
rev

isio
ns
 to

 th
e 
Sa

nc
tio
ns
 p
oli
cy
 s
ho
uld

 re
fle
ct 

cu
rre

nt 
pra

cti
ce
 to

 c
on
sid

er 
sa
nc
tio
ns
 a
t t
he
 e
nd
 o
f a

n 
inv

es
tig
ati
on
 

un
les

s 
ea
rlie

r 
int
erv

en
tio
n 

is 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 (
for

 e
xa
mp

le 
civ

il 
pro

ce
ed
ing

s 
to 

ob
tai
n 
a 
fre

ez
ing

 o
rde

r t
o 
pro

tec
t a

ss
ets

) o
r 

wh
ere

 ea
rlie

r in
ter

ve
nti
on
 is
 po

ss
ibl
e (

for
 ex

am
ple

 di
sc
ipl
ina

ry 
ac
tio
n 

no
t 

de
pe
nd
en
t 

on
 
the

 
ou
tco

me
 
of 

a 
cri
mi
na
l 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
). 

 Th
is 
wi
ll b

e f
or
ma

lis
ed

 by
 m

arc
h 2

01
0. 

4.2
9 

Do
es
 

the
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

mo
nit

or
 th

e 
ex
ten

t t
o 
wh

ich
 

the
 a
pp

lic
ati

on
 o
f s

an
cti

on
s 

is 
su

cc
es
sfu

l? 

An
nu
al 

An
ti 
Fra

ud
 R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Au

dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

 
Pa

rtia
l 

Th
e 
An

nu
al 

Fra
ud
 R

ep
ort

 sh
ou
ld 

be
 e
xp
an
de
d 
to 

inc
lud

e 
an
 

an
aly

sis
 a

nd
 c

om
pa
ris
on
 in

 t
he
 s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 a

pp
lica

tio
n 

of 
sa
nc
tio
ns
 in
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea
rs.
 

 To
 be

 ef
fec

ted
 fo

r 2
00
9/1

0 o
ut 

tur
n. 

 
4.3

0 
Do

es
 th

e o
rg
an

isa
tio

n h
av
e a

 
cle

ar 
po

lic
y 
on

 th
e 
rec

ov
ery

 
of 

los
se
s 

inc
ur
red

 to
 fr

au
d 

an
d c

or
ru
pti

on
? 

Th
ere

 is
 no

 cu
rre

nt 
po
licy

. 
 

Pa
rtia

l 
Re

vis
ion

s t
o 
the

 S
an
cti
on
s P

oli
cy
 sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e 
the

 a
dd
itio

n 
of 
a r

ec
ov
ery

 of
 lo
ss
es
 po

lic
y. 

 To
 be

 im
ple

me
nte

d d
ur
ing

 20
09
-10

. 

Page 188



 

4. 
 TA

KI
NG

 A
CT

IO
N 
TO

 TA
CK

LE
 TH

E P
RO

BL
EM

 
Ite
m Re
f 

Ite
m 
Re

f 
Ite
m 
Re

f 
Ite
m 
Re

f 
Ite
m 
Re

f 
4.3

1 
Is 

the
 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
in 

rec
ov

eri
ng

 
an

y 
los

se
s 

inc
ur
red

 
by

 
fra

ud
 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

? 
 

Th
ere

 is
 n
o 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 o
f t
he
 re

co
ve
ry 

of 
los

se
s a

t p
res

en
t. 

 
Y 

An
 an

aly
sis

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 re

lat
ing

 to
 th

e r
ec
ov
ery

 
of 
los

se
s s

ho
uld

 be
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 An

nu
al 
An

ti F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 to
 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e. 

 To
 be

 ef
fec

ted
 as

 pa
rt 
of 

the
 20

10
-11

 re
po

rti
ng

 cy
cle

. 
4.3

2 
Do

es
 t
he

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n 
us

e 
the

 c
rim

ina
l a

nd
 c
ivi
l l
aw

 to
 

the
 fu

ll i
n r

ec
ov

eri
ng

 lo
ss
es
? 

 

Pa
rtia

l c
om

pli
an
ce
 de

mo
ns
tra

ted
 by

: 
 MA

TT
 & 

YA
S i

nv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

 

Pa
rtia

l 
Th

e A
nti
 F
rau

d a
nd
 C
orr

up
tio
n S

tra
teg

y a
nd
 S
an
cti
on
s P

oli
cy
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to

 re
fle
ct 
cu
rre

nt 
pra

cti
ce
 an

d t
o c

on
sid

er 
to 

pa
ral
lel
 sa

nc
tio
ns
, P

OC
A 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 a
nd
 th

e 
po
ten

tia
l fo

r 
ins

ura
nc
e c

lai
ms

. 
 To

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt 
of 

the
 20

10
-11

 pl
an

. 
4.3

3 
Do

es
 

the
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

mo
nit

or
 p
ro
ce
ed

ing
s 
for

 th
e 

rec
ov

ery
 of

 lo
ss
es
? 

 

An
nu
al 

An
ti 
Fra

ud
 R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Au

dit
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

 
Y 

Co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 sh
ou
ld 

be
 g
ive

n 
as
 to

 w
he
the

r i
t is

 p
os
sib

le 
to 

qu
an
tify

 lo
ss
es
 in

 ad
dit
ion

al 
are

as
 to

 be
ne
fits

 an
d N

FI 
an
d t

o 
rep

ort
ing

 th
e 

am
ou
nt 

of 
los

se
s 

rec
ov
ere

d 
by
 r
efe

ren
ce
 to

 
ind

ivid
ua
l 
ca
se
s 

(w
he
re 

the
 l
os
se
s 

are
  

sig
nif
ica

nt)
 a

nd
 

oth
erw

ise
 b

y 
ref

ere
nc
e 

to 
ca
teg

ori
es
 o

r t
yp
es
 o

f c
as
e, 

for
 

ex
am

ple
 de

pe
nd
ing

 on
 th
e s

an
cti
on
 ap

pli
ed
. 

4.3
4 

Wh
at 

is 
the

 o
rg
an

isa
tio

n’s
 

su
cc
es
sfu

l re
co

ve
ry 

rat
e?

 
 

Th
ere

 is
 no

 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f th
e r

ec
ov
ery

 of
 

los
se
s a

t p
res

en
t. 

 
Y 

An
 an

aly
sis

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 re

lat
ing

 to
 th

e r
ec
ov
ery

 
of 
los

se
s s

ho
uld

 be
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 An

nu
al 
An

ti F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 to
 

the
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e. 

 To
 be

 ef
fec

ted
 as

 pa
rt 
of 

the
 20

10
-11

 re
po

rti
ng

 cy
cle

 
 

 

Page 189



 
5  
DE

FIN
IN
G 
SU

CC
ES

S 

Ite
m Re
f 

Ke
y O

bje
cti
ve
 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f C
om

pli
an
ce
 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

Me
t 

Y/N
 

Ac
tio
ns
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 fu
ll c

om
pli
an
ce
 

5.1
 

Ar
e 

the
re 

cle
ar 

ou
tco

me
s 

de
sc
rib

ed
 

for
 

wo
rk 

to 
co

un
ter

 
fra

ud
 

an
d 

co
rru

pti
on

? 
 

• 
Re

d B
oo
k R

ev
iew

 
• 

An
nu
al 

Fra
ud
 P

lan
 w

hic
h 

is 
als

o 
rep

ort
ed
 to
 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e 

• 
An

nu
al 
An

ti F
rau

d R
ep
ort

 to
 th

e A
ud
it 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 St

an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

 

Pa
rtia

l 
Fu

lly 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
of 

the
 R

ed
 B

oo
k 

Re
vie

w 
wil

l e
sta

bli
sh
 cl

ea
rer

 o
utc

om
es
 w

hic
h 
rel
ate

 to
 a
ctu

al 
su
ms

 lo
st 
an
d h

arm
 ca

us
ed
 by

 fra
ud
 an

d c
orr

up
tio
n. 

 Fu
ll 
co

mp
lia
nc

e 
wi
ll 
pr
ov

ide
 th

e 
Co

un
cil
 w

ith
 c
on

fid
en

ce
 

tha
t 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 

me
et 

be
st 

pr
ac
tic

e 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 a 
‘va

lue
 ad

de
d’ 

be
ne

fit.
  

5.2
 

Do
 t

he
 d

es
ire

d 
ou

tco
me

s 
rel

ate
 t
o 

the
 a

ctu
al 

su
ms

 
los

t t
o 
an

d 
ha

rm
 ca

us
ed

 b
y 

fra
ud

 an
d c

or
ru
pti

on
? 

 

Se
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
 r

ela
tin
g 

to 
5.1

 
ab
ov
e. 

 
Pa

rtia
l 

Fu
ll 
co

mp
lia
nc

e 
wi
ll 
pr
ov

ide
 th

e 
Co

un
cil
 w

ith
 c
on

fid
en

ce
 

tha
t 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 

me
et 

be
st 

pr
ac
tic

e 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
 a 
‘va

lue
 ad

de
d’ 

be
ne

fit 

  

Page 190



            
        APPENDIX B 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

 
 

This document should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Anti- money 
Laundering Policy 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets has a revenue and capital budget of 

almost £1 billion and employs around 10,000 staff, inclusive of those 
employed within our schools. It works with an extensive number of partners 
including the third sector and private sector. The scale, complexity and profile 
of the Council put it at potential risk to fraud and corruption, both from within & 
without. 

 
1.2 The Council is committed to making sure that the opportunity for fraud and 

corruption is reduced to an absolute minimum and have strategies and policies 
to underpin this commitment through our Governance procedures. The lead 
member for Resources drives this strategy as part of the Council’s overall Risk 
Management arrangements. 

 
1.3 Where there is the possibility of fraud, corruption and other problems, we will 

deal with it in a firm and controlled manner. 
 
1.4 It is essential that the Council is able to prevent and detect fraud, thus 

ensuring that services are provided honestly and efficiently and Public funds 
are administered properly. The Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the 
principles that the Council is committed to in preventing and reporting fraud 
and corruption. It should be noted that the scope of this document is 
concerned only with matters associated with potential cases of fraud and 
corruption and does not consider other matters of malpractice which are 
properly covered by other policies within the council’s procedures. 

 
Definitions of Fraud and Corruption 

 
Fraud "The intentional distortion of financial statements or other records by 
persons internal or external to the authority which is carried out to conceal the 
misappropriation of assets or otherwise for gain." 

 
Corruption "The offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or 
reward which may influence the actions of any person." 
 

 

Page 191



2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Committee on Standards in Public Life, Chaired by Lord Nolan 

strengthened the need to have clear procedures for staff to raise concerns if 
they feel that malpractice has occurred.   

 
2.2 The Council expects all of its staff, partners and Members to comply with the 

seven principals of public life in all of its activities. These are  
 

Selflessness 
 

Holders of public office take decisions in terms of the public interest. They 
should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends. 

 
Integrity 

 
Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or 
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence 
them in their performance of the official duties. 

 
Objectivity 
 
In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contract, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, 
holders of public office should make choices on merit. 
 
Accountability 
 
Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the 
public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their 
office. 
 
Openness 
 
Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions 
and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and 
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands. 
 
 
Honesty 

 
Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest. 

 
Leadership 

 
Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and example. 

Page 192



2.3 The council is committed to delivering an anti-fraud culture within the authority 
and among people and organisations that deal with it. It will attempt to raise 
the awareness of fraud, both within the authority, and in the community. It will 
encourage the reporting of suspected fraud and will take appropriate action 
when fraud, corruption or irregularity comes to light. 

 
2.4 The strategy set out in this document covers the following areas: 
 

• Legislative framework 
• The anti fraud environment 
• Preventing fraud and corruption 
• Detecting, investigating and recovery  
• Training and awareness 

 
 
3. THE LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK 
 
3.1 Under the Local Government Act 1972 the Chief Financial Officer has a duty 

to ensure that there is an adequate process of Internal Audit to ensure the 
independent appraisal of the Councils systems of internal control, practices 
and systems. This requirement was further reinforced by the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2003.  

 
3.2 There is now a requirement for the annual accounts to include a statement on 

internal control to be certified by the Chief Executive and Leader of the 
Council. 

 
3.3 From time to time there will be a need to examine allegations and incidents 

that may have regard to fraud, corruption or financial malpractice. 
 
3.4 In these circumstances the Council will ensure that any inquiry is legal, meets 

professional standards and that whistleblowers raising a genuine concern are 
afforded protection in accordance with the law. 

 
3.5 Relevant Legislation 
 
3.5.1 The following is an outline of some of the primary legislation that covers 

investigation of fraud and corruption :- 
 

• The Fraud Act 2006 
• The Theft Acts1968 and 1978 ( as amended) 
• Social Security (Fraud) Act 1997 
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
• Audit Commission Act 1998 
• Data Protection Act 1998 
• Human Rights Act 1998  
• Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
• Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 
• Money Laundering Regulations 2003 

Page 193



• The Identity Card Act 2006 
 
3.5.2 Further information on a number of these can be found at Appendix 1. 
 
 
4. THE ANTI- FRAUD ENVIRONMENT  
 
4.1 We expect all people and organisations that are in any way associated with 

the Council to be honest and fair in their dealings with us, our clients and 
customers. We expect our members and employees to lead by example in 
these matters. 

 
4.2 To support this we have a number of procedures and rules to make sure that 

our financial, working and organisational procedures are properly controlled. 
These are an important part of our internal control process, and it is important 
that all members and staff know about them. 

 
The most important of these are as follows: 

 
• Standing Orders 
• Financial Regulations 
• Code of Conduct for Employees 
• Code of Conduct for Members 
• Scheme of Delegation 
• Risk Management Strategy and Local Code of Corporate Governance 

 
4.3 Where regulations are breached the Council reserves the right to take formal 

action which may include ending their employment with the Council and civil 
and /or criminal proceedings being commenced. 

 
4.4 In the case of elected members the Council's Monitoring Officer will be 

responsible for reporting matters to the appropriate authority. 
 
4.5 We believe our members and employees have an important part to play in 

dealing with fraud and corruption and we will encourage our staff and 
members to report suspected fraud or corruption. 

 
4.6 We will deal with all information fairly and confidentially. We will endeavour not 

to reveal the names of the people who gave us the information. Our Fraud 
Response Plan (Appendix 2) gives more advice on this issue. 

 
4.7 We expect our Directors and Heads of Service to deal firmly and quickly with 

anyone who is responsible for fraud or corruption. The Chief 
Executive/Director of Resources in consultation with the Head of Audit 
Services may refer matters to the police if there is suspicion of any criminal 
activity having taken place. 

 
4.8 The conduct of an investigation is a serious, expensive and disruptive 

business. Therefore where it is found that allegations are unfounded and 

Page 194



vexatious or malicious, this will be taken very seriously and dealt with under 
the Council's disciplinary code. 

 
 
5 PREVENTING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 
5.1 The diversity and scope of the Councils business functions and services 

exposes the authority to the risk of fraud. We are committed to fighting fraud 
and corruption, whether attempted from inside or outside the authority. We will 
take appropriate action against the perpetrators. The council's strategy for 
fighting fraud and corruption is based four cornerstone principles as follows: 

 
5.2 Anti fraud culture 
 
5.2.1 The council believes that the ongoing development of a culture of honesty and 

openness is a key element in tackling fraud. The council expects all elected 
members and employees to carry out their duties in accordance with 
appropriate legal requirements, internal codes of conduct including Human 
Resource Strategy guidance, procedures and regulations and to act at all 
times with honesty and probity in the discharge of their duties. The council 
expects that all outside individuals and organisations, including partners, 
suppliers, contractors and claimants will act towards the authority with honesty 
and integrity. 

 
5.2.2 Where IT systems are being utilised all parties are required to comply with the 

requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998, Acceptable Use Policy and the 
Computer Misuse Act. 
 

5.3 Internal Controls   
 
5.3.1 The council has in place a framework of controls and procedures to deter 

fraud from taking place and detect it when it does. It is the responsibility of all 
members and employees to work within this framework. These controls 
include codes of practice, schemes of delegation, standing orders and 
financial regulations and a risk management strategy. 
 

5.4 Effective Action 
 
5.4.1 Corporate Directors and Service Heads will report all suspicions of fraud or 

corruption to the Head of Audit Services via the Director of Resources/ Chief 
Executive in their respective roles of Head of Paid Services and Section 151 
officer. If elected members are suspected then the Chief Executive/Monitoring 
Officer will co-ordinate the investigation. Following investigation, the 
appropriate action will be taken which may include disciplinary action, civil 
recovery and referral to the police. 

 
 
5.4.2  Where evidence of irregularity has been found and prosecuted all cases will 

be publicised through press articles etc. to maximise awareness and to act as 
a deterrent to others. 

Page 195



6. DETECTING, INVESTIGATING AND RECOVERY   
 
6.1 This section should be read with our Fraud Response Plan (see Appendix 2) 

and also our Prosecution Policy (Appendix 4). 
 
6.2 The Council has robust processes designed to reduce the risk of fraud and 

corruption these include regular management review of systems and 
procedures to ensure compliance with financial control, a risk based Internal 
Audit review cycle, Risk Management review process and governance guides 
including Hospitality procedures and declarations of interests. 

 
6.3 Where appropriate and in accordance with the fraud response plan the 

Internal Audit Service will undertake formal investigations into fraud and 
corruption. The process utilised in undertaking and investigation is covered by 
established professional practice as prescribe by CIPFA and in compliance 
with the Councils Fraud Response Plan and legislative guidance. 

 
6.4 All cases referred either by the Whistle blowing telephone line or via an 

internal referral are formally risk assessed by the Head of Audit Services and 
approval sought from the Head of Risk Management. Each case is then 
recorded for tracking on a database maintained by Internal Audit. It is 
important that transparency is maintained in all decision making and 
consequently there is a process verification and review of the basis elements 
of the enquiry throughout the audit/investigation process.  

 
6.5 It is important to note that the auditor receiving the complaint will not be the 

sole investigator of the enquiry, therefore ensuring the utmost independence is 
maintained during the currency of an investigation. 

 
6.6 Data Matching 
 
6.6.1 As a proactive commitment to the prevention and detection of fraud the 

Authority has actively participated in the National Fraud Initiative, which is a 
data matching exercise carried out by the Audit Commission under their 
powers within the Audit Commission Act 1998. This data match looks at wide 
variety of data sources and compares them to each other to identity potential 
fraud and irregularity. The potential fraud and irregularity areas include:- 

 
• Benefits 
• Payroll and Pensions 
• Creditors 
• Street Traders 
• Insurance 
• Private and Voluntary Adult Homes 
• Child Minders 
• Blue badge misuse 

 
6.6.2 In addition data matching is also carried out with the Benefit Agency 

(Department of Works and Pensions) and the Inland Revenue under their own 
statutory powers. 

Page 196



 
6.6.3 Data matching is conducted within the requirements of the current Data 

Protection legislation, and the new Audit Commission protocols effective from 
2006 and staff side consultation. 

 
6.7 Housing or Council Tax Benefit Fraud 
 
6.7.1 This Service is managed by the Central Benefits Section within the Resources 

Directorate.   
 
6.7.2 The framework for benefits related investigations and sanctions is contained 

within Appendix 4 
 
6.7.3 Concerns regarding possible Housing or Council Tax Benefit Fraud, these can 

be reported using the Benefit Fraud Hotline on (0207 364 7443 – 24 hour 
answer phone service) or you can speak to a Benefit Investigator direct on 
0207 364 7425 or 7426 or 7442 

 
6.7.4 Other possible fraudulent activity include the following (see Appendix 5 for 

more details)  :- 
 

• Tenancy Fraud 
• Grants 
• Insurance Claims 
• Parking Permits including Blue Badge Scheme 
• Identity theft fraud 
• Protect yourself 
• Advance fee fraud 

 
 
7. TRAINING AND AWARENESS 
 
7.1 All staff in the authority will be trained in fraud awareness and anti-fraud and 

corruption procedures, and this training will be reinforced regularly. It is the 
responsibility of chief officers to ensure that staff are properly trained. The 
Director of Resources will provide advice and assistance in the provision of 
training in fraud awareness to staff. 

 
7.2 Future training will include ;- 
 

• Organised workshops will continue to be delivered   during for 2010/11 
• Induction training to new Investigating Officers under the Council’s 

Disciplinary Code. 
• Departmental management team training 
• Regular on-line alerts and training 

 
 
 
 

Page 197



8. CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 Tower Hamlets Council is committed to tackling fraud and corruption 

whenever it happens. Our ongoing response relies heavily on the principles 
included in this document. 

 
8.2 We will continue to review our processes and procedures to ensure this 

strategy document remains effective following endorsement of the current 
approach by the Audit Panel and Standards Committee. 

.

Page 198



APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
The Fraud Act 2006 
 
The Fraud Act 2006 came into effect on 15 January 2007. It applies to England, 
Wales and Northern Ireland and is based on the recommendations of the Law 
Commission report “Fraud” published in 2002. 
 
The act replaces all the deception offences in the Theft Acts of 1968 and 1978 and 
replaces them with a single offence of Fraud as outlined in Section 1 of the act.  
 
The offence can be committed in three different ways thus- 
 

• False representation  (Section 2) 
• Failure to disclose  information when there is a legal duty to do so 

(Section 3) 
• Abuse of position (Section 4) 

 
The Act also creates new offences of possession (Section 6) and making or 
supplying articles for use in frauds (Section 7)  
 
The offence of fraudulent trading (Section 458 of the Companies Act 1985) will apply 
to sole traders (Section 9). 
 
Obtaining services by deception is replaced by a new offence of obtaining services 
dishonestly (Section 11). 
 
Further information on this legislation can be found at 
http;//www.opsi.gov.uk/acts.htm 
 
The Identity Card Act 2006 
 
The Identity Card Act 2006 defines what constitutes an identity document and 
includes  

• an ID card 
• a designated document 
• an immigration document 
• a UK passport 
• a passport issued by or on behalf of the authorities of a country or territory 

outside the UK or by or on behalf of an international organisation 
• a document that can be used instead of a passport- for example a visa 
• a UK diving license or a driving  license issued by or on behalf of the 

authorities of a country or territory outside the United Kingdom 
 
Under this legislation it is an offence to hold a false Identity document. 
A person found guilty of this offence shall be liable, on conviction on indictment to 
imprisonment for a term not exceeding ten years or to a fine, or both.   
  

Page 199



This legislation is evolving and guidance will be updated as it becomes clearer.  
 
The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 
 
The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and Money Laundering Regulations 2003 place  
some important obligations upon professional advisers from a wide range of sectors, 
including Tax advisers, Accountants, Auditors, Insolvency Practitioners and Legal 
advisers. Such professionals who carry on relevant business are required to fulfil a 
range of obligations to prevent money laundering. In particular they are required to 
report their knowledge or suspicion of money laundering to the National Criminal 
Intelligence Service (NCIS). This covers the proceeds of all crime including all acts 
of tax evasion and fraud. 
 
At Tower Hamlets we have followed the guidance of CIPFA and the Head of Audit 
Services fulfils the role of Money Laundering reporting officer. There is a process 
and procedure for reporting concerns to the National Criminal Intelligence Service 
(NCIS) and Metropolitan Police via prescribed documentation. The areas most likely 
to be exposed to Money Laundering are physical cash, asset transactions and 
planning gain receipts. 
 
 If you have a concern regarding this you have a duty to report your concern to the 
Head of Audit Services who will investigate the matter. 
 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
 
To demonstrate the Councils commitment to open/ transparent government it has 
adopted the Home Office guidelines and documentation for Directed Surveillance and 
Covert Human Intelligence Sources- Informants/ whistleblowers. This act was 
introduced in response to the Human Rights Act 1998 and the London Borough of 
Tower Hamlets is committed to maintaining its principles.   
 
The Office of Surveillance Commissioners (‘OSC’) are tasked with carrying out 
regular inspections of Law Enforcement Agencies to ensure compliance with the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (‘RIPA’) in so far as directed 
surveillance and the use or conduct of a covert human intelligence source (‘CHIS’) is 
concerned.  As part of that implementation, the OSC advise that Law Enforcement 
Agencies to develop a Corporate Policy.   As the Council is classed as a Law 
Enforcement Agency and in order to follow the OSC’s requirement as to a Corporate 
Policy, this Policy has been formulated and which came into effect from July 27th 
2004.   
 
Section 6(1) of the Human Rights Act 1998 provides that it is unlawful for a public 
authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a Convention right. 
 
Article 8 of the European Convention of Human Rights provides: 
 
Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence. 
 

Page 200



There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right 
except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being 
of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or 
morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 
 
RIPA was introduced to ensure that surveillance and certain other intelligence 
gathering complies with the European Convention of Human Rights.  Specifically, 
Part II of RIPA provides a statutory framework that is compliant with the European 
Convention of Human Rights when using intrusive surveillance techniques and by 
introducing national standards that apply to the Police and other Law Enforcement 
Agencies. 
 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, which came into force in 1999, provides 
whistleblowers with statutory protection against dismissal and victimisation. The Act 
applies to people at work raising genuine concerns about crime, civil offences, 
miscarriage of justice, and danger to health and safety or the environment. It applies 
whether or not the information is confidential and extends to malpractice overseas.  
 
The Act distinguishes between internal disclosures (a disclosure in good faith to a 
manager or the employer is protected if the whistleblower has reasonable suspicion 
that the malpractice has occurred or is likely to occur), regulatory disclosures and 
wider disclosures. Regulatory disclosures can be made in good faith to prescribed 
bodies such as the Health and Safety Executive, the Inland Revenue and the 
Financial Services Authority.  
 
Wider disclosures (e.g. to the police, the media, and MPs) are protected if, in addition 
to the tests for internal disclosures, they are reasonable in all the circumstances and 
they meet one of three conditions. Provided they are not made for personal gain 
these conditions are, that the whistleblower: 
 

• reasonably believed he would be victimised if he raised the matter 
internally or with a prescribed regulator;  

• reasonably believed a cover-up was likely and there was no prescribed 
regulator; or  

• had already raised the matter internally or with a prescribed regulator.  
 
For protection from victimisation to be afforded under the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act it is necessary in the first instance to consider the nature of the information 
revealed, and decide whether the disclosure is a 'qualifying disclosure' within 
Section 43(B) of the Employment Rights Act 1996.  
 
The question is whether the worker concerned honestly believes that the 
information revealed tends to show that there has been, or is, or is likely to be a 
relevant failure - past, present or future. 

 
The relevant failure may be:- 

 

Page 201



(a) a criminal offence; 
(b) a failure to comply with any legal obligation; 
(c) a miscarriage of justice; 
(d) a danger to the health and safety of any person; 
 
Extract from Internet Report prepared by 'Public Concern at Work' 

 
 

 
 

Page 202



APPENDIX 2 
 
 
Fraud Response Plan 
 
As part of the Borough’s Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy, it is best practice to 
have a Fraud Response Plan in place. The plan offers staff direction and help in 
dealing with matters of suspected Fraud and Corruption indicating responsibilities, 
and sources for guidance. 
 
Internal Audit 
 
The Internal Audit Service is usually the most appropriate unit to investigate 
suspected fraud. It is essential, therefore, that every case of suspected fraud is 
reported to Internal Audit. 
 
The Director of Resources will advise and decide on how an inquiry will be 
progressed and, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, whether external agents 
such as the Police need to be informed. 
 
Experienced Audit staff will be assigned to manage fraud and/or corruption 
investigations. Such investigations by Internal Audit will give due regard to Audit 
Commission Guidelines, Codes of Practice and relevant legislation. 
 
At the conclusion of the investigation, management of the service concerned will be 
informed as to the outcome together with recommendations as to proposed action. 
The Planned Audit Team will ensure that all recommendations agreed are fully 
implemented following an actual follow-up audit within six months of the conclusion of 
the investigation. This will therefore inform the risk based audit approach and the 
local/corporate risk registers. 
 
Reporting suspected Fraud and Corruption 
 
Staff are at the forefront in helping the authority to detect fraud. It is often members of 
staff who are the first to notice suspected cases of fraud and corruption. 
 
The authority encourages staff to report issues concerning fraud or corruption. 
Financial Regulations and the Officers Code of Conduct require staff to raise their 
concerns where irregularity is suspected. 
 
When the employee first uncovers a case of suspected fraud or corruption the action 
they initially take can often be vital to the success of any investigation that ensues. It 
is essential that their actions be in line with the guidance given in this document. 
 
Guidance on ‘What to do’ when you suspect fraud and/or corruption are given in the 
Sections headed ‘Action by Employees’ and that on ‘Action by Managers’ 
 
NB. Your suspected fraud and/or corruption matter should be reported to one of the 
following :- 
 

Page 203



• Your Line Manager - (where appropriate) 
• Your Head of Service- (where appropriate) 
• Your Corporate Director- (where appropriate) 
• The Head of Audit Services - Tony Qayum Ext. 4773 
• Internal Audit - Fraud Co-ordination Manager - Lino Messore Ext. 4774   
• Head Risk Management Minesh Jani  Ext 0738 
• Monitoring Officer - Isabella Freeman Ext 4800 
• Director of Resources – Chris Naylor  Ext  4700 
• Via the Confidential Staff Whistle blowing Hotline on Free phone 0800 

528 0294 (See Whistle blowing process – Appendix 3) 
• Public Concern at Work 020 7404 6609  

 
Action by employees 
 
Where fraud or corruption is suspected: 
 

• Write down your concerns immediately 
 
• Make a note of all relevant details e.g. telephone conversations, dates 

times, names, actions 
 
• Any notes or evidence in their possession, which supports what is being 

reported, must be kept intact and placed in a secure location 
 
• Report the matter immediately to either your line manager or your Head 

of Service. If this is not possible/or appropriate due to your concerns 
potentially about your own service or line manager, it can be reported to 
the Internal Audit Service (Tony Qayum Ext. 4773 or Lino Messore Ext. 
4774). Alternatively, the Councils confidential Staff Whistle blowing 
telephone line can be used for this (0800 528 0294). Give that officer any 
notes you have made or any evidence that you have gathered 

 
• Do not tell anybody else about your suspicions 
 
• Be prepared to assist Internal Audit or any authorised body in any 

investigation 
 

• Do not attempt to carry out an investigation yourself as this may 
jeopardise any future enquiry and compromise your evidence 

 
Please note that under no circumstances should a staff member speak to or write to 
representatives of the press, TV, radio or to another third party about a suspected 
fraud without the express authority of the Chief Executive. 
 
It is paramount that officers do not act in a manner that may give rise to an action for 
slander or libel. 
 
 

Page 204



Action by Managers 
 
Where fraud or corruption is suspected: 
 

• Listen to the concerns raised by staff and treat every reported case 
seriously, sensitively and confidentially. Never give members of staff the 
impression that their well-meaning concerns are being treated with 
anything other than the utmost seriousness 

 
• All staff concerns should be given a fair hearing, along with reassurance 

that their report of such issues will not affect them adversely 
 
• Attempt to gain as much information as possible from the member of staff 

reporting the concern. This should include any notes or evidence in their 
possession, which supports what is being reported. Such evidence must 
be kept intact and placed in a secure location 

 
• Assess whether the suspicions may have some foundation before taking 

the matter further 
 
• All suspected concerns involving suspected fraud and corruption must be 

reported in compliance with Financial Regulations to the Director of 
Resources or to the Head of Audit Services and give that officer any notes 
or evidence that has been gathered 

 
• Be prepared to assist Internal Audit or any authorised body in any 

investigation 
 
• Do not attempt to carry out any investigation. 

 

Page 205



 
APPENDIX 3 
 
 
Whistle blowing Process 
 
The introduction of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (see appendix A for 
further information) has enhanced the need for an Anti Fraud culture to be present in 
all Public Service environments.   This entails meaningful and accessible means for 
Staff, Members and Partners to raise concerns in confidence. 
 
The cornerstone of an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is a Whistle blowing facility 
which would enable staff, partners and Members to raise concerns of a serious 
nature in confidence and with assurance that if the matters reported are well-founded 
they will be investigated without fear of comeback to the whistleblower 
 
The Council launched a confidential Whistle blowing telephone line in September 
2000 and has regularly publicised via articles in Pulling Together, the Councils 
Intranet and within the Authority's Corporate Governance arrangements, including 
the Authority’s Financial Regulations 
 
"Do you have a genuine concern about Unlawful or improper conduct by Council 
officers or councillors"? 
 

• If you do, we need to know about it 
 
• You are not a snitch, if you raise a genuine concern you will be helping the 

council 
 
• You will not be asked to prove your concern is true, only that it is honestly 

raised 
 
• You must have a concern about unlawful conduct for example possible 

abuse of authority or dishonest activity 
 
• Your concern should not be a grievance or complaint about services. 

These have different routes for redress 
 
• You should not raise malicious or false concerns 
 
• If you raise a genuine, but, unfounded concern, you will not be involved in 

any follow up action 
 
• You can remain anonymous and be treated with strict confidence if you 

request 
 
  
 

Page 206



 
A Supplement not a Substitute – The Usual Channels for Complaint 
 
It is important to note that the Whistle blowing strategy is not intended to replace any 
of the complaint/concern mechanisms already in place at Tower Hamlets. 
 
Anyone, including elected members, staff, service users, partners and members of 
the Public are encouraged to raise genuine complaints or matters of concern with the 
Council through existing procedures. 
 
Where an appropriate avenue exists people should use it.  The Whistle blowing 
procedure is designed to supplement, rather than replace the existing procedures 
wherever practicable.  These channels are: 
 

♦ The Councils Complaints Procedure  
♦ The Grievance Procedure 
♦ Line Management 
♦ The Housing Benefit Fraud Hotline (0207 364 7443) 
♦ The Social Services Complaint’s Unit (0207 364 2143) 
♦ The Audit Commission  

 
Safeguards 
 
The Council recognises that a decision to “blow the Whistle” can be a difficult one to 
make.  This may be influenced by the fear of reprisal from those who may have 
perpetrated the alleged malpractice or from the organisation as a whole. 
 
The Council will not tolerate any victimisation and will take appropriate action to 
protect any person who raises a concern in good faith, including any necessary 
disciplinary action.   
 
Wherever possible, the Council will protect the anonymity of any member of staff who 
raises a concern and who does not want his/her name to be disclosed. 
 
However, this may not always be possible, as any investigation process may in itself 
reveal the source of information and a statement by the Whistleblower may be a 
necessary part of evidence, particularly if it is thought the matter may lead to a 
criminal prosecution. 
 
The Council will protect individuals and the organisation from false, malicious and 
vexatious expressions of concern. If staff make an allegation in good faith, but it is 
not confirmed by the investigation, no action will be taken against them. If, however, 
individuals make malicious or vexatious allegations, disciplinary action may be 
considered and implemented. 
 
The Council will do its best to protect an individual’s identity when s/he raises a 
concern and does not want their name to be disclosed. It must be appreciated, 
however, that the investigation process may reveal the source of the information and 
a statement by the individual may be required as part of the evidence. The Council 
will try to ensure that the negative impact of either a false or unfounded allegation on 

Page 207



any “accused” person is minimised. This entails acting with the strictest 
independence and professional confidentiality. 
 
In determining if action to investigate will take place, the Council will consider the 
following:- 
 

• whether it is the Council’s business 
 
• the credibility of the concern 
 

the seriousness Anonymous concerns will be considered at the discretion of the 
Council.   
 

• of the issues raised 
 
• the likelihood of obtaining the necessary information 
 
• the experience of previous related reports 

 
The following charts shows how to get your concerns investigated, and takes you 
through the agreed procedures on how each concern is dealt with to ensure 
transparency and that it is being treated seriously. 
 

Page 208



 
• I think a fraud or unlawful act may 

have been committed 
 
• What should I do? 
 
• Who should I contact? 
 

• Is it serious and well founded? 
• If Yes 
 
• You can raise your concerns  in confidence 

on the Whistle blowing Hot Line (or write to 
Tony Qayum –Head of Audit Services – 4th 
Floor Mulberry Place) 

 
• What will happen if I ring the 

Hotline 
• You will be asked for details of your concern 
 
 

• Will I have to give my name? • NO   
 

• So what will happen next? 
 

• Your concern will be given a reference 
number. You can call in 10 days to check 
progress 

 
• Who does anything about it? 
 

• A Registration Officer will take details of your 
call, and a professional investigator will 
review and classify it. 

 
• A register of all calls will be kept, and the 

Registration Officer will report this to the 
Chief Executive 

 
A final decision will be made and if appropriate 
an independent confidential investigation will be 
carried out 

• Won't it just be covered up? 
 

• NO - there is independence between the 
Registration Officer and the Investigation 
Officer. The Investigation Officer is 
answerable to the Chief Executive, and the 
Chief Executive must ensure that justified 
action is reported back to the Registration 
Officer 

 
• An external registered body will 

independently audit the Registration and the 
Investigation of your concerns. 

 
 
PLEASE CALL 0800 528 0294 if you have any concerns or would like further details of 
the process. Strict Confidentiality and Anonymity will be preserved if requested. 
 

Page 209



APPENDIX 4 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

BENEFIT FRAUD ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
 
 
1) Background 
 

The Benefits service positively encourages the take up of Housing and Council 
Tax Benefit but acknowledges its responsibility to prevent and detect benefit 
fraud. 

 
Benefit offences are taken seriously by the Authority and it is our aim to apply 
prosecutions and sanctions in cases where such action is deemed 
appropriate. 

 
This policy is designed to provide a suitable framework to ensure a fair and 
consistent approach is applied for cases under consideration. 

 
 
2) Legislative framework 
 

The Authority has the power to prosecute offenders under Section 111A and 
112 of the Social Security Administration Act 1992 which is generally the 
legislation most appropriate to benefit fraud offenders.  However other 
legislation such as the Theft Act 1968 may be used where appropriate. 

 
The Authority may apply sanctions in cases where prosecution is feasible, but 
is not the preferred option.  The available sanctions are: 

 
• Administrative Penalty – where a penalty fine of 30% of the fraudulently 

overpaid benefit can be applied.  The offender has the right to refuse to 
accept the penalty but the Authority should then proceed with prosecution 
action on the case.  Therefore the case must be of suitable quality for 
prosecution action from the outset. 

 
The legislation pertaining to Administrative Penalties is contained within 
Section 115A of the Social Security Administration Act 1992 (as amended by 
Section 15 of the Social Security (Fraud) Act 1997). 

 
• Formal Caution – an oral warning that is administered when a claimant 

has admitted to an offence.  These are generally used in less serious 
cases where lower amounts of money are involved.   

 
The caution is offered in cases where the claimant has admitted the offence, 
and he/she has a choice in whether to accept or decline the caution.  If the 
caution is declined the Authority should proceed with prosecution action.  An 
accepted caution is recorded on the Department of Work and Pensions 
Central database and the record is kept for 5 years.  Prior to offering Formal 

Page 210



Cautions or Administrative Penalties the Central Database is checked.  It 
would not be appropriate to issue more than one caution or penalty to an 
individual.  If the check shows they have accepted a caution or penalty 
previously the Authority should proceed with prosecution action against that 
individual. 

 
Both Administrative Penalties and Formal Cautions are offered in a special 
interview by an officer who has not dealt with the investigation of the case.  
The format of the interview is fully proceduralised by the Department of Work 
and Pensions (DWP) to ensure clarity, fairness and consistency. 

 
 

3) Prosecution  
 

Prosecutions on benefit fraud cases are generally facilitated by the Councils 
Legal Section, but they may also be taken by the DWP or the Police where 
necessary, according to circumstances. 

 
 
4) Suitability for Prosecution and Sanction Action 
 

Cases are scrutinised by the Investigations Manager for the suitability for 
prosecution or sanction action taking into account a number of factors. 

 
Primarily evidence and the public interest test are applied before further 
additional details of the case are taken into account.  Details of the considered 
criteria are given below: 
 
A) Sufficiency of evidence 
   

• Is there enough evidence to provide a realistic prospect of 
conviction? 

• Has the evidence been collected in an appropriate manner? 
• Can the evidence be used in court? 
• Is the evidence reliable? 

-  
B) Public interest test 

 
Generally it must be seen to be in the public interest to prosecute.  
Poor publicity surrounding an attempted prosecution can lead to 
criticism of the Authority.  Factors to be taken into account should 
include: 
 
• Whether there has been unnecessary delays in carrying out the 

investigation (i.e. unexplained lapses of time). 
• Whether the offender has any serious mental or physical health 

problems. 
• The age of the offender. 
• Whether the person has voluntarily disclosed the offence before 

the investigation discovered the fraud. 

Page 211



• Whether a vulnerable person would be put at risk by a 
prosecution (i.e. an informant). 

 
C) Additional factors of the case 
 

A key consideration in the decision whether to prosecute is the level 
of dishonesty involved in the fraud.  An investigated case may result 
in a relatively large amount of overpaid benefit, but another with a 
lower amount of overpayment may present as more serious because 
of the level of knowledge and deception involved. 

 
Other factors taken into consideration are:   

 
• Whether there is evidence of a previous instance of benefit fraud. 
• Where the offender was in a position of trust (e.g. employee or 

councillor). 
• Where there is evidence of collusion (e.g. with landlord or 

employer) 
• Where the person has declined an Administrative Penalty or 

Caution. 
• Where Authorised Officer powers have been obstructed. 
• Where there are errors or flaws in the benefit assessment 

process. 
 

 
The facts of the case are provided by the investigating officer in 
summary form at the end of the investigation following a taped 
Interview under Caution and calculation (by the Benefit Office) of any 
resulting overpayment.  
 
The Principal Investigation Officer heading the relevant team will 
evaluate the case and pass her/ his recommendations on to the 
Team Manager. 
 
 The Team Manager will consider all the available evidence and 
determine whether any further action will be appropriate on the case 
in terms of criminal prosecution action, Formal Caution or 
Administrative Penalty.  The above mentioned points are taken into 
consideration as are any serious social or personal factors that may 
have come to light during the investigation.  The amount of the 
benefit overpaid as a result of the perceived fraudulent activity is 
taken into consideration but is not a definitive measure of what action 
is to be taken on the case.   
 
The Authority aims to facilitate prosecution action on all cases where 
there is suitable evidence and supporting criteria.  The team has an 
officer dedicated to preparing the paperwork required and liaising 
with the Legal department to ensure optimum results are achieved 
when the case goes to court. 

  

Page 212



APPENDIX 5 
  
Concerns on the following can be reported via the Whistle blowing hotline and will be 
referred to the appropriate Service Head for investigation and action as necessary. 
 
Tenancy Fraud 
 
The public sector has a limited number of properties available to let and lettings are 
prioritised according to housing needs. Tenancy fraud involves obtaining properties 
by deception (for example, individuals claiming to be homeless when they already 
own a property or are already living at an address), or continuing to claim to be living 
at a property when they have moved out and sublet it.  
 
We have a duty to house certain vulnerable members of society (e.g. children), and 
are often forced to use bed and breakfast facilities due to a shortage of public sector 
housing. In addition, families or individuals on the housing waiting list are denied 
housing because people are using the council properties for profit or simply queue 
jumping. Fraudulently obtaining housing from Registered Social Landlords or 
subletting for personal gain uses up precious resources that should be available to 
families in need.  
 
Grants 
 

The council awards several different grants to individuals and organisations in the 
borough. These range from house renovation grants to voluntary organisations 
providing services to the community. Grant fraud usually involves either making false 
claims in order to obtain a grant or providing false accounts of how the money is 
spent. 
 
Insurance claims 
 

The Council receives bogus insurance claims, particularly related to trips and falls on 
the pavement. This is a serious problem, which drains resources away from repairing 
and improving the highways themselves. 
 
Parking permits including Blue Badge Scheme 
 

The council has designated many neighbourhoods as controlled parking zones, 
many requiring a parking permit which is only available to residents. Parking in 
certain areas of the borough is at a premium, which causes some motorists to use 
fake permits, other residents' permits, or may fraudulently use a resident's address to 
obtain a permit from us. This kind of fraud reduces the availability of parking for 
residents and reduces the revenue to the council. 
  
Identity theft/fraud 
 
Identity theft is the unlawful taking of another person's details without their 
permission. The information stolen can be used to obtain many financial services 
goods and other forms of identification i.e. passports and driving licenses. The 
information stolen can range from a copy of birth certificate to copies of discarded 
bank or credit card statements and utility bills. 

Page 213



 
Once the criminals have copies of someone's identity they can embark on criminal 
activity in your name with the knowledge that any follow up investigations will not lead 
to them. With your details they can obtain documents that are in essence real but 
contain false information thus making it difficult for organisations to known who they 
really are dealing with.  
 
Protect yourself! 
 
Be careful with your personal information. If you receive a telephone call from a credit 
card company, bank or other retail company asking to confirm certain details about 
yourself decline them and ask to call them back preferably through a central 
switchboard. Also, do not reveal your personal details when using your mobile phone 
in a public place. When destroying personal correspondence such as bank and credit 
card statements consider a shredder or even burning them on the garden refuse. If 
you cannot do either then tear the papers up into very small pieces and place in the 
refuse bin with other waste products.  
 
If you move address remember to inform all of the companies that send personal 
information to you in the post. Always consider re-directing your post with Royal Mail. 
If you fail to do this people moving in might have free access to your personal details 
and misappropriate them. 
 
How do you know if are victim to this type of fraud? 
 

• Are you missing your regular monthly statements? 
 

• Have you noticed charges to your accounts that are not yours? Remember to 
check all statements especially bank and credit card.  

 
• Being contacted by a debt collection agency about outstanding payments for 

items or services that you have not ordered.  
 
Protect yourself act quickly 
 

• Firstly do not ignore the problem it might not be you that has ordered some 
goods or opened an account but the debt falls to your name and address.  

 
• Once blacklisted for credit it may take many years to fully recover the problem 

you might have difficulties in obtaining a mortgage or other bank credit.  
 

• Contact your local Police and report the crime and ask for a crime reference 
number to quote to the companies that allege that you have opened an 
account with them. 

 
Check out the Home Office identity theft website at www.identity-theft.org.uk for more 
information 
 
 

Page 214



Advance fee fraud 
 
Advance fee fraud is a popular crime, which involves a myriad of schemes and 
scams - mail, faxed, and telephone promises designed to facilitate victims parting 
with money. They usually claim to be from a general or politician in a foreign country 
who has a large sum of money (millions of pounds), which they wish to get out of a 
country, and need help in getting it out with the promise of a substantial share of the 
cash in return. If you receive correspondence of this sort report it to the police. 
Remember, if it seems too good to be true, it probably is! For further crime prevention 
advice, visit the BBC Crime Prevention website or the Home Office fraud prevention 
website 
  

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

COMMITTEE: 
 

Audit 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

30 March 2010 
CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 
REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 
5.5 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Oladapo Shonola, Chief Financial 
Strategy Officer 

TITLE: 
Treasury Management Activity for 
Period Ending 28 February 2010 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1 This report advises the Committee of treasury management activity for the year up to 

28 February 2010 as required by the Local Government Act 2003.  
1.2 The report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate Director of 

Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the projected 
investment returns. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report. 
3 REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and the Local Authorities (Capital Financing and 

Accounting) Regulations 2003 requires that regular reports be submitted to 
Council/Committee detailing the council’s treasury management activities. 

3.2 The regular reporting of treasury management activities should assist in ensuring that 
Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions and monitor progress on 
implementation of investment strategy as approved by Full Council. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
4.1 The Council is bound by legislation to have regard to the Treasury Management 

(TM) Code. The Code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council 
(Audit Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury 
management activities. 

4.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to be 
some good reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such reason, 
having regard to the need to ensure that Members are kept informed about 
treasury management activities and to ensure that these activities are in line with 
the investment strategy approved by the Council. 

Lead Member Cllr Ohid Ahmed –  Resources and Performance 
Community Plan Theme All 
Strategic Priority One Tower Hamlets 

Agenda Item 55

Page 217



 2 

5 BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulation 2003 

requires local authorities to have regard to the Treasury Management (TM) Code. The 
TM code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council (Audit 
Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury management 
activities and risks. 

 
5.2 These reports are in addition to the mid-year and annual treasury management activity 

reports that should be presented to Council midway through the financial year and at 
year end respectively. 

 
5.3 This report details the current credit criteria/risk level adopted by the Corporate 

Director of Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year and the 
projected investment returns. 

 
6.   TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD 1 April to 28 February 2010 
 6.1 This section of the report sets out: 

• The current credit criteria being operated by the Council. 
• The treasury investment strategy for the current financial year and the progress 

in implementing this. 
• The transactions undertaken in the period and the investment portfolio 

outstanding as at 28 February 2010. 
 
7 CREDIT CRITERIA 
7.1 The following credit criteria for investment counterparties were established by the 

Council in February 2009 as part of the budget setting exercise. Explanation of credit 
ratings criteria is attached at Appendix I. 

 
Table 1: Counterparty Credit Rating Criteria  
  UK 

Institutions 
Up to £25M 

UK 
Institutions 
Up to £10M 

Overseas 
Institutions 
Up to £10M 

Short Term F1+ F1+ F1+ 
Long Term AA- AA- AA- 
Individual B BC AB 
Support 2 3 2 

 
7.2 In response to the recent instability in capital markets and the banking sector the 

Corporate Director of Resources restricted the investment list to institutions which 
have guaranteed support from national governments who are assessed by the 
rating agencies as having the financial capacity to provide such support. 

 
 

Page 218



 3 

 
 
 
  

Table 2: Lending List     
Institution Country of 

Incorporation 
Active in 
Market 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Australia Y 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Australia Y 
National Australia Bank Ltd Australia Y 
Westpac Banking Corporation Australia Y 
Dexia Bank Belgium Belgium Y 
Overseas-Chinese Banking Corporation Ltd China Y 
United Overseas Bank Ltd China Y 
DBS Bank Ltd Singapore Y 
Abbey National Plc (Santander Group) UK Y 
Bank of Scotland Plc UK Y 
Barclays Bank Plc UK Y 
HSBC Bank Plc UK Y 
Lloyds Banking Group Plc UK Y 
National Westminster Bank UK N 
Nationwide Building Society UK Y 
Royal Bank of Scotland UK Y 

 
8 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
8.1 Sector was appointed on a trial basis in February 2009 to provide a cash management 

service to the Council.  The contract has now been awarded to Sector on a more 
permanent basis following a tendering exercise. 

8.2 The service to be provided encompasses the development and implementation of an 
investment strategy with risk parameters specified by the Council and negotiating with 
counterparties the terms for term deposits of funds. 

8.3 These functions were previously undertaken in-house but the Corporate Director of 
Resources considered it to be appropriate to move to external provision after the 
success of the trial. 

8.4 The performance of the contractor will be closely monitored to ensure that the council’s 
investment strategy is being followed and that returns are being maximised within the 
constraints of the strategy. 

8.5 It should be emphasised that the Council retains control of the credit criteria and the 
investments. Sector’s role is purely advisory. 

8.6 Sector’s interest rate projections are that base rate will remain static at 0.5% for the 
current financial year with no movement in rates until we are well into Q4 of 2010. 
Against this macro-economic perspective Sector has developed a strategy which 
delivers enhanced performance through maximising the investment term of the 
portfolio. This will enable the portfolio to obtain exposure to the higher rates associated 
with investment in the longer term.  

 
Page 219



 4 

8.7 Sector calculated that the Council will have an effective investment balance of 
£100million for 2009/10.  This is an average and balances will vary through the year. 
The current balance of £79.8M reflects a reduction in balances due to significant 
capital expenditure and a lull in business rates collections in February and March 2010. 

8.8 The current investment strategy within the constraints of the Councils credit criteria and 
liquidity requirement is as set out below. 

 
Investment Strategy 

 
Projection Actual Deal 

Term Amount £M Rate % Counterparty Maturity Amount £M Rate 
Overnight 15 0.75% Abbey 

National plc 
Call 10.000 0.80% 

Overnight   0.75% Clydesdale 
Bank plc 

Call 12.400 0.75% 

Overnight     Alliance & 
Leicester 

Call     

Overnight   0.75% Bank of 
Scotland plc 

Call 12.400 0.75% 

      SUB TOTAL   34.800   
              
1 Month 5 0.70%         
              
2 Months 10 1.00%         
              
3 Months 30 1.30%         
              
6 Months 5 1.60% Nationwide 15 April 2010 5.000 0.80% 
      Nationwide 15 July 2010 5.000 0.79% 
              
9 Months 10 1.70% Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
01 March 2010 5.000 2.60% 

      Nationwide 30 July 2010 5.000 0.99% 
              
12 Months 25 2.00% Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
14 May 2010 5.000 3.00% 

      Lloyds 12 August 
2010 

5.000 1.82% 
      Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
13 January 

2011 
5.000 2.20% 

      Barclays 
Bank plc 

27 April 2010 10.000 2.15% 

      SUB TOTAL   45.000   
              
  £100   TOTAL   £79.800   

 
8.9 The council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank plc, are used as depositors of last 

resort for investment of additional funds received after the treasury transactions 
have been completed and the money markets have closed. 

 

Page 220



 5 

9 INVESTMENT RETURNS 
9.1 As a result of investment decisions taken so far this year there has been a total 

return of £1.13M - a full year return of £1.237M is projected. This equates to 
1.24% return on projected cash balances of £100M at the start of the year. 

9.2 When compared against the following benchmarks: Bank of England base rate; 
0.50%, 3 month LIBOR; 0.73%, 12 month deposit; 1.15%, the 1.24% return 
achieved compares favourably given that the strategy also relies on deposits to be 
placed in reserve accounts. Reserve accounts offer lower rates of return. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1. The comments of the Corporate Director Resources have been incorporated into 

the report. 
 
11 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
 
11.1  The Committee is asked to note the information in the report concerning the 

Councils treasury transactions undertaken by the Corporate Director of resources 
under delegated powers. 

 
12. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
12.1 Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed significantly towards 

the budget.  
 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
13.1 There are no Sustainable Actions for A Greener Environment implications. 
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
14.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. To minimise risk the 

investment strategy has restricted exposure of council cash balances to UK backed 
banks or institutions with the highest short term rating or strong long term rating. 

 
15 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
15.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report. 
16 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
16.1 Monitoring and reporting of treasury management activities ensures the Council 

optimises the use of its monetary resources within the constraints placed on the 
Council by statute, appropriate management of risk and operational requirements. 

Page 221



 6 

 Appendix 1: Definition of Credit Ratings  
 
 
Support Ratings 
 
Rating  
1 A bank for which there is an extremely high probability of external 

support. The potential provider of support is very highly rated in its 
own right and has a very high propensity to support the bank in 
question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term 
rating floor of 'A-'. 

2 A bank for which there is a high probability of external support.  The 
potential provider of support is highly rated in its own right and has a 
high propensity to provide support to the bank in question. This 
probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 
'BBB-'. 

3 A bank for which there is a moderate probability of support because 
of uncertainties about the ability or propensity of the potential 
provider of support to do so. This probability of support indicates a 
minimum Long-term rating floor of 'BB-'. 
 

4 A bank for which there is a limited probability of support because of 
significant uncertainties about the ability or propensity of any 
possible provider of support to do so. This probability of support 
indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 'B'. 
 

5 A bank for which external support, although possible, cannot be 
relied upon. This may be due to a lack of propensity to provide 
support or to very weak financial ability to do so. This probability of 
support indicates a Long-term rating floor no higher than 'B-' and in 
many cases no floor at all. 

 
Short-term Ratings 
 
Rating  
F1 Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely 

payment of financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote 
any exceptionally strong credit feature. 

F2 Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in 
the case of the higher ratings. 

F3 Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments is adequate; however, near-term adverse changes 
could result in a reduction to non-investment grade. 

 

Page 222



 7 

 
Long-term Ratings 
 
Rating Current Definition (August 2003) 
AAA Highest credit quality. 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation 

of credit risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity 
is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events. 

AA Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote a very low 
expectation of credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for 
timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not 
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events. 

A High credit quality. 'A' ratings denote a low expectation of credit 
risk. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is 
considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more 
vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic conditions 
than is the case for higher ratings. 

BBB Good credit quality. 'BBB' ratings indicate that there is currently a 
low expectation of credit risk. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered adequate, but adverse changes 
in circumstances and in economic conditions are more likely to 
impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment-grade category 

 
Individual Ratings 
 
Rating  
A A very strong bank. Characteristics may include outstanding 

profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

B A strong bank. There are no major concerns regarding the bank. 
Characteristics may include strong profitability and balance sheet 
integrity, franchise, management, operating environment or 
prospects 

C An adequate bank, which, however, possesses one or more 
troublesome aspects. There may be some concerns regarding its 
profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

D A bank, which has weaknesses of internal and/or external origin. 
There are concerns regarding its profitability, substance and 
resilience, balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. Banks in emerging markets are 
necessarily faced with a greater number of potential deficiencies of 
external origin. 

E A bank with very serious problems, which either requires or is likely 
to require external support. 

 

Page 223



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



 -1- 

 
 

COMMITTEE 
 

Audit Committee  
 

DATE 
 
30th March 2010  
 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

5.6 
REPORT OF: 
 

Chris Naylor - Director of Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Alan Finch – Service Head, Corporate 
Finance   

TITLE: 
 

Changes to Local Authority 
Financial Reporting Requirements  
 
Ward(s) affected:           All 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
 With effect from the 2010/11 financial year, the authority is required to adopt 

International Financial Reporting Standards.  These are being introduced 
across the public sector in the UK to ensure that reported results are 
consistent with international standards applying to the private sector and in 
other countries across the World.   The main outcome of this will be that 
accountants from any sector will be able to understand and comment upon 
local authority accounts, which will improve understanding and scrutiny.  This 
report informs Committee of the progress of IFRS implementation.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Audit Committee is recommended to:- 
 
2.1. Note progress towards meeting the International Financial Reporting Standard 

(IFRS).  
 

 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (SECTION 100A) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of holder and 
address where open to inspection 
 

  Alan Finch (Tel  0207 364 4915)  
   
   
   
   

Agenda Item 56

Page 225



 -2- 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 In June, officers reported on the requirement for the Council to adopt 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   This report provides an 
update on the requirements and the Council’s progress towards meeting 
them.   
 
 

4. INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD (IFRS)  
 
4.1 With effect from the 2010/11 financial year,  local authorities will be required 

to prepare their financial statements in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).  This replaces the existing standards 
and the Generally Accepted Accounting Code of Practice for the UK 
(UKGAAP).  IFRS, which has applied to Companies for some years, has 
already been introduced in central government and the NHS and the purpose 
is to have a single standard upon which all major organisations throughout the 
world are required to report.  Adoption is mandatory for local authorities.  

 
4.2. The IFRS introduces many changes to the way results are reported, but the 

main changes which will make a noticeable difference to the way information 
is used are:  

 
- Increasing the level of detail required in reporting the valuation of fixed 

assets.  
 
- Bringing assets procured through PFI onto the balance sheet.  
 
- Enhancing the level of information required to be reported on leases 

and contracts.  
 
- Providing more information in the accounts which relates back to 

Services and Directorates, so that the performance against  budget 
will be become clearer from the accounts.  

 
- Increasing the level of reporting required relating to employee 

benefits.  
 
It is understood from experience elsewhere that the changes are likely to 
increase the size of the accounts by about 50%.   

 
4.3. As the IFRS is introduced fully in 2010/11, it will be necessary to state the 

current year’s (2009/10) accounts in IFRS terms as well as in accordance with 
existing standards.  

  
4.4. The project began in December 2008 but has been affected by staff changes.  

Initially the authority was ahead of most others in responding to IFRS but we 
are now among the majority of authorities.  The authority remains on schedule 
to complete the conversion in time for the necessary deadlines.  The table at 
Appendix A sets out the current status of the project in more detail.   

 
 

Page 226



 -3- 

 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 
5.1 The comments of the chief financial officer are incorporated within this report 
 of which he is the author. 
 
5.2. There are additional costs incurred in adopting IFRS, both in relation to the 

project and to maintain processes and systems and continue to report on the 
new basis. These will need to be contained within existing resources.  

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
6.1 There are no specific risk management implications. 
 
 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 
 
  
7.1. There are no legal implications arising out of this report. 
 
8. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Statement of Accounts is a single statement of the financial position of 

the whole Council which is potentially of interest to all individuals and 
organisations  which have dealings with the Council. 

 
8.2. The statements are published on the Council’s website both in draft and in 

audited form.  Interested parties have the right to inspect the accounts during 
the audit and local electors have the right to question the auditor.  Details of 
these rights are publicised in local newspapers at appropriate stages.  

 
 
9. ANTI-POVERTY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific anti-poverty implications arising out of this report. 
 
10.  SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

(SAGE) 
 
10.1 There are no SAGE implications arising out of this report.  
            

Page 227



 
-4
- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

A 
 

  
 

IN
TE

RN
AT

IO
NA

L F
IN
AN

CI
AL

 R
EP

OR
T S

TA
ND

AR
DS

 PR
OJ

EC
T  

- P
RO

GR
ES

S R
EP

OR
T  

Iss
ue

  
RA

G 
St
atu

s  
Ex

pla
na

tio
n  

Pr
og

res
s t

o D
ate

  
Co

ntr
ac
ts 
 

AM
BE

R 
 

All
 m

ajo
r c

on
tra

cts
 m

us
t b

e 
rev

iew
ed
 to

 
en
su
re 

tha
t c

lau
se
s w

hic
h i

nv
olv

e t
ran

sfe
r 

of 
as
se
ts 

or 
ris
k 
are

 p
rop

erl
y 
ac
co
un
ted

 
for

.  

24
5 c

on
tra

cts
 of

 ov
er 

£2
50
,00

0 a
 ye

ar 
in 

va
lue

 
ha
ve
 

be
en
 

ide
nti
fie
d. 
 

Do
cu
me

nta
tio
n 

for
 a

rou
nd
 tw

o-t
hir
ds
 o

f 
the

se
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ob
tai
ne
d 

an
d 

fur
the

r 
ste

ps
 ar

e b
ein

g t
ak
en
 to
 ob

tai
n t
he
 re

st.
  

Le
as
es
 

AM
BE

R 
IFR

S 
ch
an
ge
s t
he
 ru

les
 w
hic

h d
iffe

ren
tia
te 

be
tw
ee
n 

a 
fin
an
ce
 

lea
se
 

an
d 

an
 

op
era

tio
na
l l
ea
se
. A

ll 
ma

jor
 le

as
es
 m

us
t 

be
 re

vie
we

d 
to 

en
su
re 

the
y 
are

 p
rop

erl
y 

cla
ss
ifie

d  

30
4 

lea
se
s 

ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

ide
nti
fie
d 

an
d 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 o

bta
ine

d 
for

 
aro

un
d 

ha
lf. 

 F
urt

he
r 
ste

ps
 a

re 
be
ing

 
tak

en
 to
 ob

tai
n t
he
 re

st.
  

PF
I  

GR
EE

N 
 

IFR
S 

wil
l 

ch
an
ge
 

the
 

ac
co
un
tin
g 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 f
or 

PF
I, 

bri
ng
ing

 a
ss
ets

 
ob
tai
ne
d 

thr
ou
gh
 t

his
 r

ou
te 

on
to 

the
 

au
tho

rity
’s 
ba
lan

ce
 sh

ee
t.  
 

Th
e 

au
tho

rity
 
ha
s 

thr
ee
 
ex
tan

t 
PF

I 
sc
he
me

s; 
tw
o r

ela
tin
g t
o s

ch
oo
ls 
an
d o

ne
 

rel
ati
ng
 to

 th
e 
Ba

rka
nti
ne
 e
sta

te.
  A

ss
et 

va
lua

tio
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 o
bta

ine
d 
an
d 
the

 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 a
cc
ou
nti
ng
 t
ran

sa
cti
on
s 

are
 

be
ing

  id
en
tifi
ed
.  

Em
plo

ye
e B

en
efi
ts 
 

AM
BE

R 
 

Th
e 

ne
w 

ac
co
un
tin
g 

rul
es
 

req
uir
e 

au
tho

riti
es
 
to 

va
lue

 
an
d 

ac
co
un
t 

for
 

lia
bil
itie

s 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to

 n
on
-fin

an
cia

l s
taf
f 

be
ne
fits

.  
Th

e 
mo

st 
ob
vio

us
 e
xa
mp

le 
is 

wh
ere

 st
aff
 ca

rry
 fo

rw
ard

 le
av
e a

t th
e e

nd
 

of 
fin
an
cia

l y
ea
r to

 be
 ta
ke
n i
n a

 la
ter

 ye
ar,

 
thi
s r

ep
res

en
ts 
va
lue

 ow
ed
 to

 th
e m

em
be
r 

of 
sta

ff t
o t
he
 au

tho
rity

.   
   

Da
ta 

wa
s c

oll
ec
ted

 on
 st

aff
 le

av
e c

arr
ied

 
for

wa
rd 

at 
the

 e
nd
 o

f 2
00
8/0

9 
an
d 

a 
rep

ea
t e

xe
rci
se
 is

 b
ein

g 
un
de
rta

ke
n 

at 
the

 en
d o

f th
e c

urr
en
t fi
na
nc
ial
 ye

ar.
   

Page 228



 
-5
- 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
 

AM
BE

R 
 

Th
e 
rul
es
 o
n 
va
lui
ng
 in

fra
str
uc
tur

e 
as
se
ts 

are
 ch

an
gin

g. 
 F
or 

ex
am

ple
 in

 fu
tur

e 
the

 
roa

d n
etw

ork
 m

us
t b

e a
ss
es
se
d a

cc
ord

ing
 

to 
the

 w
idt
h 
of 

roa
ds
 a
nd
 th

eir
 u
nd
erl
yin

g 
fab

ric
 as

 w
ell
 as

 ro
ad
 le
ng
th.
  

Gu
ida

nc
e 
wa

s 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 o
n 
19

th
 M

arc
h 

an
d 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s 
are

 
in 

ha
nd
 
wit

h 
Hig

hw
ay
s &

 T
ran

sp
ort

ati
on
 to

 en
su
re 

the
 

rel
ev
an
t in

for
ma

tio
n c

an
 be

 ob
tai
ne
d. 
  

Co
mp

on
en
t A

cc
ou
nti
ng
  

RE
D 

IFR
S 
req

uir
es
 fu

tur
e w

ork
s t
o c

om
po
ne
nts

 
of 

as
se
ts 

(eg
 ro

ov
es
, b

oil
ers

 e
tc)
 to

 b
e 

se
pa
rat

ely
 va

lue
d a

nd
 ac

co
un
ted

 fo
r.  

Th
is 

wil
l a

pp
ly 

fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
10
.  

A 
pla

n  
ha
s b

ee
n e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 fo

r u
nd
ert

ak
ing

 th
is 

wo
.  

Se
gm

en
tal
 re

po
rtin

g 
AM

BE
R 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

an
d 
inc

om
e 
wil

l n
ee
d 
to 

be
 

rep
ort

ed
 b
y 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 b
y 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 in

 
fut
ure

 as
 w
ell
 as

 by
 st
an
da
rd 

he
ad
ing

s. 
  

Th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on
 is

 a
lre
ad
y 
av
ail
ab
le 

in 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
rep

ort
s. 
 

Tra
ini
ng
  

GR
EE

N 
 

Tra
ini
ng
 
of 

ac
co
un
tan

cy
 
sta

ff 
in 

all
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
s 
an
d 
se
lec

ted
 o
the

rs,
 n
ota

bly
 

Pr
op
ert

y 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
sta

ff, 
is 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 
to 
em

be
d I
FR

S  
 

Tra
ini
ng
 ha

s b
ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 in

 th
e f

irs
t 

pa
rt o

f M
arc

h 2
01
0. 
 

Re
sta

tem
en
t 
of 

Ba
lan

ce
 

Sh
ee
t  

AM
BE

R 
 

Th
e 
ba
lan

ce
 sh

ee
t a

s a
t 1

st
 A
pri
l 2

00
9 
is 

req
uir
ed
 to
 be

 re
sta

ted
 on

 IF
RS

 pr
inc

ipl
es
.  

Th
is 

ha
s 

be
en
 d

ela
ye
d 

be
yo
nd
 t

he
 

ori
gin

al 
tim

eta
ble

 a
nd
 w
ill 
be
 u
nd
ert

ak
en
 

by
 m
id 
Ap

ril 
20
10
.  

       
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	41 Audit Opinion Plan - London Borough of Tower Hamlets 2009-10
	42 Audit Opinion Plan - London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 2009-10
	43 Certification of Claims and Returns - London Borough of Tower Hamlets 2008-09
	51 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report December 2009-10
	52 Annual Internal Audit Plan 2010-11
	53 Annual Anti-Fraud Plan 2010-11
	54 Anti--Fraud and Corruption Strategy
	55 Treasury Activity for the period ending 28 February 2010
	56 Changes to Local Government Reporting Standards

